
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 1



 
 

State Of Oklahoma 
Commission 

for 
Rehabilitation Services 

 
Department of Rehabilitation Services 

3535 NW 58th Street, Suite 200 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112 

 
Monday, March 9, 2015, 10:00 am 

Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 

Jack Tucker– Commission Chair 
Lynda Collins – Commission Vice Chair 
Steve Shelton – Commission Member 
Linda Santin – Commission Assistant 

  
1. Call to Order and Roll Call Commission Chair   

2. Statement of Compliance with Open Meeting Act Commission Assistant  

3. Introduction of Guests Commission Chair  

4. Questions, Concerns, and Comments from the 
Commissioners 

Commission Chair  

5. Public Comments 
 

Public Audience  

Reports 
 

6. Director’s Report with possible Commission 
discussion WIOA update, Hiring Freeze Imposed 
by Governor, Return on Investment project 
update, RSA approval of the FY15 911 reporting 
system, DDD media release, WINGS graduation, 
410 report for January, Employee retirement, 
People with Disability Awareness Day

Joe Cordova,  
DRS Executive Director 

     

  

7. Financial Status Report with possible Commission 
discussion. The presentation includes the FY15 
Summary. 

Kevin Statham, 
Chief Financial Officer  

Page 2



  
 
 
 
 

8. 

 
 
 
 
 
Personnel Activity Report with possible 
Commission discussion: The presentation will 
include the status of vacancy announcements by 
division, including names and effective dates of 
selected employees; all separations by division 
for the previous month; and current FTE status. 

 
 
 
 
 
Goli Dunkle, 
MSD Administrator 

 

9. Legislative Report with possible Commission 
discussion. This report is an update regarding 
DRS bills that were requested; budget hearings 
and legislation that affects DRS.

Kevin Nelson, DRS 
Legislative Liaison  

10. Oklahoma School for the Blind Superintendent 
Report with possible Commission discussion. This 
report contains a summary of OSB student 
activities and Academic progress of new OSB 
students 

Jim Adams, OSB 
Superintendent  

11. Governor’s Oklahoma United We Ride Council 
Report with possible Commission discussion. This 
report is a summary of Council purpose and 
activities to dates; it outlines pending and future 
activities.  

Irene Martin, DRS 
Transportation Resources 
Coordinator 
 

 

12. DRS Human Resources Development Report with 
possible Commission discussion: This report 
contains an outline of supervisor training 
requirements, core competencies and wellness 
activities and training for employees.  

Nancy Hurst, DRS 
Human Resources 
Programs Manager III 

 

13. Visual Services Division Administrator Report with 
possible Commission discussion: This report 
contains a summary of training, BEP update, 
Assistive technology, OLBPH, introduction of new 
staff, Field Services Coordinator updates in their 
areas of supervision 

Doug Boone, 
VS Division Administrator 
  

 

14. Vocational Rehabilitation Office Security Update 
with possible Commission discussion:  This report 
is an update regarding completion of security 
upgrades thus far for the VR-VS field services 
offices.  

Mark Kinnison,  
VR Division Administrator  

Page 3



Action Items 

15.   Review and Discussion with Possible Vote to Approve 
the February 9, 2015, Commission for Rehabilitation 
Services Meeting Minutes 

Commission Assistant  

16. Review and Discussion with Possible Vote for 
Approval of Donations to the Oklahoma School for the 
Blind 
Resolution 2015-15 
 

Jim Adams,  
OSB Superintendent 

 

17. Review and Discussion with Possible Vote for 
Approval of Donations to the Oklahoma School for the 
Deaf 
Resolution 2015-16 
 

KaAnn Varner,  
OSD Superintendent 

 

18. Review and Discussion with possible vote for 
Approval of Proposed External and Internal Policy 
Changes 
Resolution 2015-17 

  External Policies: 
612:1‐1‐6.  Description of forms and instructions 
issued by the Department for public use  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐3‐2.  The Director of Rehabilitation Services  
[AMENDED] 
612:1‐3‐2.1.  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation 
Services  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐3‐8.1.  Executive officers  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐3‐10.  Final signature authority  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐5‐1.  Overview of the department  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐5‐3.  Division of Visual Services (DVS) 
Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually 
Impaired (DVRBVI)  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐11‐2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐11‐15.  Overview of reasonable 
accommodation  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐11‐16.  Providing reasonable accommodations 
for employees  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐11‐57.  Undue hardship/undue burdens  
[REVOKED] 
612:1‐13‐3.  Administration of programs  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐13‐4.  Dissemination of rules  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐13‐5.  Awareness  [REVOKED] 
612:1‐13‐6.  Maintenance of racial and ethnic data  
[AMENDED] 
 

Sandra Wright, 
PDPS Administrator 

 

Page 4



 
 
612:1‐13‐7.  Composition of planning and 
policymaking bodies  [AMENDED] 
612:1‐13‐9.  Complaint rules and procedures  
[AMENDED] 
612:3‐3‐20.  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
recruitment and selection plan  [AMENDED] 
612:3‐5‐30.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
Visually Impaired compliance reviews [AMENDED] 
612:3‐5‐31.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
Visually Impaired outcome measures  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐1.  Purpose  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐3.  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation 
programs  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐3.1.  Procedural exceptions  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐3.2.  Pilot projects  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐5.  Confidentiality  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐6.  Due process  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐1‐7.  Purchase of services and goods for 
individuals with disabilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐3‐2.  Consideration of comparable services 
and benefits  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐3‐3.  Client participation in services cost and 
financial status determination  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐3‐4.  Services exempt from client participation 
in service costs  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐3‐5.  Basic living requirements  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐3‐6.  Income, Assets and Liabilities  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐1.  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation 
and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the 
Blind & Visually Impaired  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐2.  Field staff responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐3.  Client responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐21.  Processing incoming referrals  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐21.1  Information and referral system  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐24.1.  Basic eligibility requirements for 
vocational rehabilitation services  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐24.2  Assessment for determining eligibility  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐24.3  Trial Work Experience and Extended 
Evaluation  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐25.1  Order of selection  [AMENDED] 

Page 5



 
 
 
612:10‐7‐31.  Transfer of cases  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐50.  Eligibility Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐51.  Individualized Plan for Employment  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐87.  Actions requiring supervisor’s approval  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐98.  General guidelines for physical and 
mental restoration services [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐130.  Maintenance  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐142.  General guidelines for training services  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐149.  College and university training  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐150.  Continued eligibility for college or 
university training  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐152.  Payment of tuition and fees at colleges 
and universities  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐158.  Training for individuals in custody of 
the Department of Corrections  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐161.  Public and private vocational schools  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐162.  Textbooks, supplies, training tools and 
equipment  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐183.  Ongoing support services  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐184.  Extended services  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐199.  Reader/recording services  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐201.  Rehabilitation teaching services  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐203.  Orientation and Mobility (O & M)  
[AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐205.  Services to persons who are deaf –
blind  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐206.  Assistive technology services for 
individuals with visual impairments  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐216.  Tools, occupational equipment, initial 
stocks and supplies  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐7‐245.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐9‐17.  Application Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10‐11‐7.  Administrative review  [AMENDED] 
612:15‐1‐3.  Library functions and legal basis  
[AMENDED] 
612:15‐5‐2.  Suspension procedures  [AMENDED] 
612:20‐3‐5.  Departmental resources  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐2‐5.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
 

Page 6



 
612:25‐4‐TOC.  Subchapter 4.  The State Licensing 
Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐1.  Organization of the State Licensing 
Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐14.  Training for new or potential licensed 
managers  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐27.  Initial inventory and supplies  
[AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐52.  SLA responsibility for assignment and 
transfer of licensed managers [REVOKED 
612:25‐4‐53.  Assignment, promotion and transfer policy 
[AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐54.  Business enterprise vacancy 
announcement  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐55.  Qualifications  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐57.  Applicant Selection Committee  
[AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐58.  Annual and Performance Evaluations  
[AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐59.  Interview, Selection Process and Scoring  
[AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐60.  Ninety day replacement  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐61.  Satellite/remote business enterprise  
locations  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐62.  Vending machine income  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐72.  Audits  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐4‐73.  Due Process  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐1.  Licensing requirements for managing a 
business enterprise  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐2.1.  Probation  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐3.  Grounds for suspension or termination of 
a license [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐15.  Setting aside of funds  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐18.  Establishing new licensed managers in 
business enterprises  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐21.  Business expenses  [AMENDED] 
612:25‐6‐22.  Monthly reports  [AMENDED] 

Internal Policies; 
DRS: 1‐13‐1.  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault  
[AMENDED] 
DRS: 3‐3‐16.  Leave when an office is temporarily 
closed due to unsafe working conditions or services 
are temporarily reduced due to hazardous weather 
(paid administrative leave)  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3‐3‐20.  DRS Criminal Background Check  
[AMENDED] 
DRS: 3‐3‐95.  Types of grievances  [AMENDED] 
 

Page 7



 
 
DRS:3‐3‐101.  Discrimination and harassment 
complaint policy and procedure  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3‐3‐110.  Risk Management Programs Purpose 
and Scope  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3‐3‐112.  Disaster Response and Recovery  
[AMENDED] 
DRS:3‐9‐8.  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation 
and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the 
Blind & Visually Impaired Division’s Clients  
[AMENDED] 
DRS:3‐9‐80.  Fleet management  [AMENDED] 

 
19. 

 
New Business (“Any matter not known about  
or which could not have been reasonably foreseen 
prior to the time of posting.” 25 O.S. § 311) 

 
Commission Chair 

 

 
20. 

 
Announcements 
Date and location of next regular meeting of the 
Commission for Rehabilitation Services: 
Monday, April 13, 2015 at 10:00 a.m.   
Department of Rehabilitation Services 
3535 NW 58th Street, Suite 200 
Oklahoma City, OK 73112 

 
Commission Chair 
 
 

 

 
21. 

 
Adjournment 

 
Commission Chair 

 

     

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                

 

Page 9



Report to Commissioners 

Joe D. Cordova 

03-09/2015 

 

WIOA Update, first teleconference with regions VI and VII states was held February 23. 

 

Hiring freeze imposed by Governor. 

 

Return on Investment project update 

Several meetings will be held now in March concerning the ROI project with 
participating states.  On-site meeting is scheduled for March 30. 

 

RSA approval of the FY15 911 data reporting system. 

 

DRS Media Release regarding the Disability Determination Division and #2 national 
ranking in accuracy rate of cases processed for eligibility. 

 

WINGS graduation, March 26 in Norman 

This group of 19 graduates have worked diligently on projects with a goal of improving 
employment outcomes for individuals with a severe mental health diagnosis; identifying 
targeted training needs for staff; improving financial literacy for clients; and creating a 
desk top reference guide for case management for all counselors. 

 

410 revenue report for January and  

Extensive media coverage on Jason Price and the work he does by saving the 
government and tax-payers millions of dollars over the years by placing PWD in good 
paying jobs and bringing millions of dollars in social security reimbursement funds each 
year to DRS. 

Page 10



 

Wiley Bill Barnes retirement 

 

People with Disabilities Awareness Day 2015 is Monday, April 20, at the state Capitol 
from noon till 4:30 p.m 

Page 11



Page 1 of 3 
 

Workforce Implementation Network [WIN] Conference Call 
 

February 23, 2015 
 

NOTES 
 
 
The Workforce Implementation Network [WIN] held its first conference call to discuss its 
proposed Purpose, Identify critical issues for State VR Agencies resulting from the 
passage of WIOA and the Rehabilitation Act Amendments, and plan for next steps and 
future communications. 
 
Purpose: 
To develop and support a State VR Agency Community of Practice to address policies, 
practices, and staff training issues regarding the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act [WIOA], including the Amendments to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and to develop 
policy and training products to support our common efforts in implementing federal 
legislation. Using the efforts of this Community of Practice should result in products that 
can be customize and implemented, perhaps sooner and with greater programmatic 
consistency than if each of individual agency approached this alone. 
 
In lieu of either proposed or finalized federal regulations at this point in time, the 
following is a synopsis of the issues discussed and what some agencies are currently 
doing to address or implement policies and practices required by WIOA and the 
Rehabilitation Act Amendments: 
 

 Use and assignment of the required 15% set aside of VR funds for Pre-
Employment Transition Services (PETS); 

 
 Developing coding for PETS for VRC hours worked, costs, etc., knowing that this 

may change; 

 Developing methods for staff to record time and travel to assign costs for PETS 
activities; 

 Utilizing the AWARE electronic case recording and financial management system 
– and possibly other electronic case management systems such as LIBERA - to 
track staff time for PETS activities; 

 Impact of PETS on funding and risks involved in proceeding without federal 
regulations; 

 Fees for service charged by vendors who are currently providing PETS that may 
be duplicated statewide; 

 Guidance from other states and RSA would be welcome; 

Page 12



Page 2 of 3 
 

 Creating or utilizing an existing service as a repository of information regarding 
WIOA and Rehabilitation Act Amendments issues and concerns, such as 
CURRENTS elmo; 

 Determining if Homemaker, Unpaid Family Workers, and possibly other 
employment outcomes are still allowable under the requirement for a general 
goal of competitive integrated employment; 

 Changing VRC minimum degree or other certification requirements or to address 
hiring issues in areas of the state where higher entry level requirements may 
affect the agency’s ability to fill positions.  States indicated the following: 

 Nebraska General does not require CRC certification, however, most 
Counselors have a Masters.  There is a Bachelor’s level position.  The 
agency has not yet discussed any minimum requirement changes; 

 Oklahoma Combined is much the same as Nebraska General; 
 Iowa General has not yet discussed minimum requirements, and the loss of 

financial resources effects the agency’s ability to address this issue; 
 Iowa Blind reports that there is a state law requiring a minimum of a 

Bachelor’s degree for state certification for working with individuals that are 
blind.  The state VR agency certifies staff and it does not appear that WIOA 
and the Rehabilitation Act Amendments will impact this state requirement; 

 New Mexico Blind SRC has affirmed the current standard of requiring a 
Master’s degree; and 

 Missouri General will continue to require a Master’s degree 
  

 Suggest that CSAVR should consider surveying states about minimum 
requirements for personnel; 

 Addressing personnel training needs and resources in light of the loss of In-
Service Training grants; 

 Not enough VRCs are graduating from higher education programs to meet the 
need; 

 Policy changes regarding the use of sub-minimum wages in light of WIOA and 
the Rehabilitation Act Amendments; and 

 CSAVR plans and activities to assist agencies concerning the WIOA and 
Rehabilitation Act Amendments, such as the activities and recommendations of 
the Transition Committee and the red-line version of the law. 

Major issues resulting from the group’s discussion for future discussion and action 
include: 
 

Page 13



Page 3 of 3 
 

 PETS; 
 Input and possible impact on the development and finalization of 

Performance Measures; 
 Unified Planning; and 
 Personnel Standards 

 
The group will be surveyed on agenda and date and time for the next call and for 
future calls and possible face-to-face meetings. 

Page 14



1 
 

OPM 15‐?? 
DATE: February 11, 2015 

 
TO: All Appointing Authorities 

FROM: Lucinda Meltabarger, Administrator    

 
SUBJECT: Executive Order 2015‐06 – Signed February 6, 2015 ‐ Personnel Restriction Guidelines 

 
Please be advised that Governor Mary Fallin signed Executive Order 2015‐06 on February 6, 2015, regarding 

p e r s o n n e l  guidelines for state government.   (Please see the attached copy of the above referenced 
Executive Order.) The following information is offered to provide clarification on this subject. 
 

 Personnel Transactions (all hiring, reinstatement, salary raises, performance bonuses, promotions or 
acceptance of transferred employees) started on or after February 6, 2015 are subject to the Personnel 
Guidelines. 
 

 All Personnel Transactions (all hiring, reinstatement, salary raises, performance bonuses, promotions or 
acceptance of transferred employees) that were started prior to February 6, 2015, are subject to the 
requirements of the Second Amended Executive Order 2011-11. 
 

 All critical need and hard-to-fill position exceptions (Example: Child Welfare Specialist; Correctional 
Officers; Correctional Food Service Personnel; Correctional Case Managers; Social Service Specialists; 
etc.) that were previously approved will remain unless otherwise determined by the Cabinet Secretary or 
statewide elected official. 

 
 Human Capital Management (HCM) does not require an approved Personnel Restriction Exception 

Request (HCM-92) prior to posting vacant positions for agencies. However, the approval is required prior 
to extending an offer of employment. 

 

 The Cabinet Secretary or statewide elected official has discretion to impose more restrictive personnel 
action requirements in any one or all of the agencies within his or area of responsibility.  
  

PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS REQUIRING AN EXCEPTION TO THE RESTRICTIONS 

 
The Personnel Guidelines apply to all personnel transactions listed below.  Agencies are required to have a 
Personnel Restriction Exception Request (HCM-92) approved before proceeding with any of the following 
personnel transactions: 

 

 
Transactions 

Approved Personnel 
Restriction Exception 

Request Needed (HCM‐92) 

 
Other Information 

Classified  
Position Audits 

                     Yes 

Audits  of  classified  positions  shall  not  be 
initiated or conducted at the request of the 
agency unless specifically approved by the 
Cabinet Secretary or statewide elected official 
(EO 2015‐06) 

 
Unclassified 

Position Reallocations 
 

                          Yes 

Reallocations  of  unclassified  positions  shall 
not be initiated or conducted at the request 
of the agency unless specifically approved by 
the Cabinet Secretary or statewide elected 
official  (EO 2015‐06) 

Page 15



2 
 

New Hires, 
 reinstatements,  
and accepting a  

transferred employee  
from another agency 

Yes 

New hires include but are not limited to: 
noncompetitive, direct hire, student 
appointment, intern appointment,  
temporary appointment, state work incentive, 
and unclassified appointment changes. 

Granting salary raises, 
awarding performance 

bonuses 
Yes 

Raises include: salary raises,  
Pay for Performance increases, equity 
adjustments, market adjustments, skill-based 
increases and non-legislative Classified and  
Unclassified salary adjustments. 

Promoting employees Yes  

 

 
 
 

PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POSITIONS REQUIRING AN EXCEPTION  
 

The Personnel Guidelines apply to all personnel transactions (hiring, reinstatement, salary raises, performance bonuses, 
promotions or acceptance of transferred employees) for Information  Technology  positions,  regardless  of  the Cabinet 
area of responsibility in which the individual is or may be employed and shall require the approval of the Secretary of 
Finance, Administration, and Information Technology (Secretary of Finance). 

 

** In addition to and regardless of job class, the restriction guidelines apply to any non‐IT position for which:  (1) the 
primary responsibilities are information technology‐related, or (2) successful completion of assigned information 
technology‐related duties would require more than half of time worked. 

 
 

You are required to have a Personnel Restriction Exception Request (HCM-92) approved by the Secretary of Finance 
before proceeding with any of the following transactions: 
 

 
 

 
TRANSACTIONS: ALL OTHER 

 
You are not required to have a completed approved Personnel Restriction Exception Request (HCM-92) for the 
following transactions: 

 
1. Change of employment type of existing employees (Example: Intern, Students, Temporary Appointment, State 

Work Incentive) 
2. Career Progression (under-filled position) 

 
Transactions 

Approved Personnel 
Restriction Exception  

Request Needed (HCM‐92) 

 
Other Information 

 
All hiring, reinstatement, 

promotion, or 

transferred IT Positions 

or non‐IT positions with 
substantial IT‐related 

responsibilities 

 
 
 
 

Yes 

All    hiring,    reinstatement,    promotion    or 
acceptances     of     transferred     Information 
Technology positions, regardless of the 
Cabinet area of responsibility in which the 
individual is employed, shall require the 
approval   of   the   Secretary   of   Finance, 
Administration, and Information Technology    
(EO 2015‐06) 

Page 16



3 
 

3. Pay Differentials (Example: Shift Differential for select industrial occupations) 
4. Detail to Special Duty 
5. Demotion (Voluntary or involuntary) 
6. Change in percentage worked (increasing hours worked for part time employees) 
7. Classification Grievances 

 

 
Please feel free to contact one of the following individuals if you have questions: 

 

Ron Wilson (405) 522‐0422 ron.wilson@omes.ok.gov 
Jake Smith (405) 521‐6327 jacob.smith@omes.ok.gov 

 Elizabeth Blais (405)522-6907 elizabeth.blais@omes.ok.gov 
    

   

Page 17

mailto:ron.wilson@omes.ok.gov
mailto:jacob.smith@omes.ok.gov
mailto:elizabeth.blais@omes.ok.gov


  
 
 

From: Shieh, Yann-Yann [Yann-Yann.Shieh@ed.gov] 
 Sent: Monday, February 23, 2015 2:55 PM 
 To: Joe D. Cordova 
 Cc: Shieh, Yann-Yann; Rankin-White, Sue; Washington, Vernita; Sandra Wright 
 Subject: OK-C FY 2014 RSA 911 data are cleared 
 
 REHABILITATION SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 
 
Mr. Joe D. Cordova 
Executive Director 
Department of Rehabilitation Services 
3535 NW 58th Street, 
Suite 500 
Oklahoma City, OK 73112-4815 
 
Dear Mr. Cordova: 
We have reviewed the output from the RSA_EDIT program that relates to your RSA-911 
data submission for FY 2014 as well as the narrative that accompanied your 
submission. As a result, all errors, anomalies, or discrepancies  issues have been 
resolved for your agency. Therefore, we have cleared your data for the FY 2014 
national database. Your efforts at providing us with accurate and timely data are 
important for the effective management of the vocational rehabilitation program. 
  
Sincerely, 
Sue Rankin-White 
Director 
State Monitoring and Program 
Improvement Division 
 

Page 18



Memo From Jason Price 

Hello, 

January 2015 was a success in terms of 410 revenue and quality outcomes! We received an additional 

$155,611.87 from 13 more individuals reaching at least 9 months of SGA level employment. Through 

January 30, we find ourselves at $583,343.89 from 43 cases reaching the aforementioned milestone. 

Let's keep pushing, many more rounds to fight! Attached are specifics, including deposit notice. 

Thank you 

Jason Price, CRC 

Program Manager 

SSA Related VR Units and Cold Case Unit 

405-522-7959 office 

405-626-4853 cell phone/text 

iprice@okdrs.gov 

Page 19



IPP Page 1 of 1 

QOllCCtOf Welcome: Laurita Klrksey | Feb 13, 2015 Oklahoma Department of Public Safety 

Home | Orders J Invoices Payments j Reports About - Advanced Search - Preferences - He |p# - Logout 

Download Remittance I 

Payment Type Reference p a y m e n t T y p e Reference # 101036151223519 
Go] 

Advanced Search Print Related Documents Download History 

Payment Status 

y AU 
• Settled 

• Reduced 

• Returned 

28040001 - SOCIAL SECURITY ADMIN - DIVISION 
OF CENTRAL ACCT. OPERATIONS 

Pay To: STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

One Five Five Six One One US Dollar 87/100 

US-Treasury 

Payment Type 
Reference #: 

Payment Type: 

Issue Date 

Amount: 

101036151223519 

ACH 

Feb 11,2015 

155.611,87 USD 

Remittance Information 1 of 1 

Invoice Number Invoice 
Date 

PO 
Number ' n v o l c ! Discount Amount Payment Additional 

Data 

0415VOCREHAB035 N/A N/A 155,611.87 .00 155,611.87 Addenda 

Supplier Bank Account 

Bank Name Account Number 

N/A XXXX0052 

Print | Related Documents | Download History 

Download Remittance | 

Home - Orders - Invoices - Payments - Reports 

© 2007 - 2014 Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. 

£)QlS Cost ^/i^^rs^m 

) 

httns://www.inD.frns.te^^ ... 2/13/2015 

Page 20



The national LEAD Center posted Paula Burkes’ story from the Oklahoman about Jason 
Price and taxpayer savings when Social Security disability recipients become employed. 
The LEAD Center is a national collaborative of disability, workforce and economic 
empowerment organizations dedicated to improving employment and economic 
advancement outcomes. LEAD Center is funded by the Office of Disability Employment 
Policy, U.S. Department of Labor.  https://www.leadcenter.org/news/newsfeed/2015-02-
01/oklahoma-department-rehabilition-services-program-chief-helps-disabled-find-jobs-
oklahoman 
 
Jody Harlan, Communications Director 
 

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

77
,3

85
,5

88
.0

0
50

.6
%

40
,7

94
,3

97
.7

6
52

.7
%

35
,8

05
,8

22
.0

1
99

.0
%

T
ra

ve
l

1,
73

6,
35

1.
00

1.
1%

92
5,

59
2.

38
53

.3
%

10
3,

42
4.

93
59

.3
%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
20

,2
17

,2
02

.0
0

13
.2

%
8,

28
6,

10
3.

89
41

.0
%

10
,3

78
,3

53
.5

6
92

.3
%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

20
0,

51
9.

00
2.

1%
72

6,
49

3.
62

22
.7

%
77

3,
29

7.
11

46
.9

%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

40
,6

93
,9

92
.0

0
26

.6
%

16
,6

95
,0

09
.0

9
41

.0
%

22
,5

63
,9

64
.8

5
96

.5
%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
9,

64
1,

82
6.

00
6.

3%
5,

03
8,

35
2.

04
52

.3
%

4,
60

3,
47

3.
96

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
15

2,
87

5,
47

8.
00

10
0.

0%
72

,4
65

,9
48

.7
8

47
.4

%
74

,2
28

,3
36

.4
2

96
.0

%

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

 A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

 A
g

en
cy

 S
u

m
m

ar
y

Page 23



D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

27
,7

43
,8

28
.0

0
35

.8
%

14
,7

00
,8

01
.2

6
53

.0
%

12
,7

01
,8

68
.4

1
98

.8
%

T
ra

ve
l

1,
35

7,
75

0.
00

1.
8%

76
8,

20
2.

16
56

.6
%

31
,2

05
.4

0
58

.9
%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
9,

38
4,

00
9.

00
12

.1
%

3,
65

7,
18

1.
53

39
.0

%
5,

00
0,

83
0.

33
92

.3
%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

91
2,

26
2.

00
2.

5%
44

5,
99

4.
10

23
.3

%
51

8,
25

7.
80

50
.4

%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

31
,9

60
,8

18
.0

0
41

.2
%

12
,7

50
,7

44
.4

5
39

.9
%

17
,9

37
,8

97
.0

5
96

.0
%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
5,

21
8,

68
2.

00
6.

7%
2,

64
7,

55
5.

18
50

.7
%

2,
57

1,
12

6.
82

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
77

,5
77

,3
49

.0
0

10
0.

0%
34

,9
70

,4
78

.6
8

45
.1

%
38

,7
61

,1
85

.8
1

95
.0

%

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s 
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

25
,0

82
,0

21
.0

0
34

.5
%

13
,2

52
,3

38
.7

5
52

.8
%

11
,4

22
,1

83
.9

3
98

.4
%

T
ra

ve
l

1,
28

5,
40

0.
00

1.
8%

74
2,

22
8.

03
57

.7
%

27
,7

30
.4

0
59

.9
%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
8,

37
9,

69
0.

00
11

.5
%

3,
09

4,
93

7.
79

36
.9

%
4,

67
2,

08
2.

93
92

.7
%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

79
8,

91
2.

00
2.

5%
43

7,
90

8.
97

24
.3

%
51

7,
91

6.
89

53
.1

%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

31
,2

38
,1

64
.0

0
42

.9
%

12
,4

19
,9

74
.7

7
39

.8
%

17
,6

74
,1

14
.7

2
96

.3
%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
4,

94
9,

49
3.

00
6.

8%
2,

50
5,

17
0.

89
50

.6
%

2,
44

4,
32

2.
11

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
72

,7
33

,6
80

.0
0

10
0.

0%
32

,4
52

,5
59

.2
0

44
.6

%
36

,7
58

,3
50

.9
8

95
.2

%

V
o

ca
ti

o
n

al
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 V
is

u
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

V
oc

at
io

na
l R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

G
ra

nt

A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

Page 24



D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

5,
46

1,
79

7.
00

67
.0

%
2,

96
4,

50
7.

27
54

.3
%

2,
48

8,
79

2.
87

99
.8

%

T
ra

ve
l

46
,0

00
.0

0
0.

6%
37

,1
62

.3
2

80
.8

%
10

0.
00

81
.0

%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
1,

68
9,

62
0.

00
20

.7
%

79
4,

79
3.

49
47

.0
%

69
5,

90
4.

86
88

.2
%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
36

3,
07

9.
00

4.
5%

92
,2

49
.0

7
25

.4
%

75
,0

66
.8

0
46

.1
%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

10
0,

17
4.

00
1.

2%
40

,5
44

.2
0

40
.5

%
12

,1
80

.8
4

52
.6

%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
48

8,
90

3.
00

6.
0%

27
1,

77
3.

70
55

.6
%

21
7,

12
9.

30
10

0.
0%

T
ot

al
8,

14
9,

57
3.

00
10

0.
0%

4,
20

1,
03

0.
05

51
.5

%
3,

48
9,

17
4.

67
94

.4
%

A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

O
kl

ah
o

m
a 

S
ch

o
o

l f
o

r 
th

e 
B

lin
d

Page 25



D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

6,
96

2,
24

5.
00

64
.2

%
3,

84
3,

34
0.

91
55

.2
%

3,
05

9,
07

8.
78

99
.1

%

T
ra

ve
l

38
,9

00
.0

0
0.

4%
18

,9
65

.0
1

48
.8

%
5,

90
6.

67
63

.9
%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
2,

26
9,

72
0.

00
20

.9
%

92
4,

68
5.

54
40

.7
%

1,
04

4,
16

2.
06

86
.7

%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
36

6,
17

8.
00

3.
4%

15
9,

19
0.

03
43

.5
%

18
,0

42
.0

1
48

.4
%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

58
3,

00
0.

00
5.

4%
30

5,
95

0.
90

52
.5

%
16

1,
65

6.
50

80
.2

%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
62

0,
60

5.
00

5.
7%

37
5,

88
1.

59
60

.6
%

24
4,

72
3.

41
10

0.
0%

T
ot

al
10

,8
40

,6
48

.0
0

10
0.

0%
5,

62
8,

01
3.

98
51

.9
%

4,
53

3,
56

9.
43

93
.7

%

A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

O
kl

ah
o

m
a 

S
ch

o
o

l f
o

r 
th

e 
D

ea
f

Page 26



D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

31
,0

97
,6

68
.0

0
66

.4
%

16
,2

56
,6

72
.3

0
52

.3
%

14
,4

70
,2

25
.7

9
98

.8
%

T
ra

ve
l

15
2,

00
0.

00
0.

3%
31

,3
01

.7
6

20
.6

%
60

,3
20

.8
6

60
.3

%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
3,

98
5,

08
6.

00
8.

5%
1,

79
1,

51
9.

06
45

.0
%

2,
26

3,
24

1.
05

10
1.

7%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
26

9,
00

0.
00

0.
6%

5,
13

2.
94

1.
9%

15
5,

93
4.

50
59

.9
%

C
lie

nt
 / 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

8,
05

0,
00

0.
00

17
.2

%
3,

59
7,

76
9.

54
44

.7
%

4,
45

2,
23

0.
46

10
0.

0%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
3,

30
7,

04
6.

00
7.

1%
1,

74
1,

39
6.

44
52

.7
%

1,
56

5,
64

9.
56

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
46

,8
60

,8
00

.0
0

10
0.

0%
23

,4
23

,7
92

.0
4

50
.0

%
22

,9
67

,6
02

.2
2

99
.0

%

A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
 D

iv
is

io
n

Page 27



D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 F
Y

 1
5

A
s 

o
f 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
31

, 2
01

5

B
u

d
g

et
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
%

 
E

xp
en

d
ed

E
n

cu
m

b
ra

n
ce

s
%

 U
se

d
P

er
so

nn
el

6,
12

0,
05

0.
00

64
.8

%
3,

02
9,

07
6.

02
49

.5
%

3,
08

5,
85

6.
16

99
.9

%

T
ra

ve
l

14
1,

70
1.

00
1.

5%
69

,9
61

.1
3

49
.4

%
5,

89
2.

00
53

.5
%

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g
2,

88
8,

76
7.

00
30

.6
%

1,
11

7,
92

4.
27

38
.7

%
1,

37
4,

21
5.

26
86

.3
%

O
ffi

ce
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
29

0,
00

0.
00

3.
1%

23
,9

27
.4

8
8.

3%
5,

99
6.

00
10

.3
%

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

t
6,

59
0.

00
0.

1%
1,

74
5.

12
26

.5
%

4,
84

4.
88

10
0.

0%

T
ot

al
9,

44
7,

10
8.

00
10

0.
0%

4,
24

2,
63

4.
02

44
.9

%
4,

47
6,

80
4.

30
92

.3
%

A
ll 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

D
R

S
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 28



Department of Rehabilitation Services
Financial Status Report FY 15

As of January 31, 2015

Personnel 

Salary Expense

Insurance Premium -Health-Life, etc

FICA-Retirement Contributions

Inter/Intre Agency Payment for Personal Services

Travel

Travel - Agency Direct

Travel - Reimbursements  

General Operating

AFP Encumberances

Bond Indebtness and Expenses

Buildings-Purchase, Construction and Renovation

General Operating

Maintenance & Repair

Miscellaneous Administration Fee

Professional Services

Production, Safety, Security 

Refunds, Indemnities, Restitution

Rent Expense

Scholarships, Tuition and Other Incentive-Type Payments

Shop Expense

Specialized Supplies & Materials

Office Furniture & Equipment

Library Equipment & Resources

Office Furniture & Equipment

Client / General Assistance

Social Service and Assistance Payments

Indirect Cost

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

A
S

 O
F

 F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
0,

 2
01

5
 

 
F

IL
LE

D
 A

N
D

 V
A

C
A

N
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

S
 

P
er

so
nn

el
 A

ct
iv

ity
 =

 1
1 

va
ca

nt
 p

os
iti

on
s 

fil
le

d 
/ 3

1 
po

si
tio

ns
 in

 A
nn

ou
nc

em
en

t o
r 

S
el

ec
tio

n 
P

ro
ce

ss
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
iv

is
io

n
 

T
it

le
/P

IN
 

D
at

e 
V

ac
at

ed
 

L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 
B

eg
in

 
d

at
e 

E
n

d
 d

at
e 

A
n

n
. #

 
A

c
ti

o
n

/In
cu

m
b

en
t

D
at

e 
F

ill
ed

 
M

S
D

 
C

on
tr

ac
t/A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
A

ge
nt

 II
I /

 0
85

6 
9/

19
/2

01
4

M
S

D
 –

 C
D

S
 

1/
22

/2
01

5 
2/

4/
20

15
15

-0
68

B
ro

ok
e 

Le
w

is
 

2/
18

/2
01

5 

F
S

D
 

A
cc

ou
nt

an
t I

V
 / 

09
63

 
4/

15
/2

01
2

F
S

D
 

2/
10

/2
01

5 
2/

19
/2

01
5

15
-0

72
W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
H

C
M

4B
 

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 

P
ro

gr
am

s 
F

ie
ld

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

/ 0
62

4 
9/

30
/2

01
44

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
2/

13
/2

01
5 

2/
26

/2
01

5
15

-0
76

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
n 

 
D

D
D

 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

M
an

ag
er

 II
 / 

14
37

 
N

ew
 P

IN
D

D
D

 
1/

5/
20

15
 

1/
9/

20
15

15
-0

64
B

ru
ce

 S
m

ith
 

2/
17

/2
01

5 

D
D

D
 

P
ro

gr
am

s 
M

an
ag

er
 II

 / 
14

38
,1

43
9,

14
40

,1
44

1,
14

42
 

N
ew

 P
IN

s
D

D
D

 
2/

17
/2

01
5 

2/
23

/2
01

5
15

-0
77

W
ai

tin
g 

fo
r 

H
C

M
4B

’s
 

 

O
S

B
 

D
ire

ct
 C

ar
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I /
 0

24
8,

02
98

 

4/
22

/2
01

4 
10

/1
/2

01
3 

11
/1

9/
20

14
O

S
B

 
10

/3
0/

20
14

 
11

/1
0/

20
14

15
-0

42
M

ic
he

lle
 S

m
ith

 
D

on
al

d 
B

ac
cu

s 
1/

26
/2

01
5 

1/
26

/2
01

5 
O

S
B

 
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I /
 0

41
9 

8/
28

/2
01

4
O

S
B

 
12

/1
7/

20
14

 
12

/3
0/

20
14

15
-0

58
K

im
be

rly
 P

ol
itt

e 
2/

18
/2

01
5 

O
S

B
 

D
ire

ct
 C

ar
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I /
 0

63
8 

10
/1

/2
01

3
O

S
B

 
1/

22
/2

01
5 

2/
4/

20
15

15
-0

69
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 

2/
11

/2
01

5 
 

O
S

B
 

P
ol

ic
e 

O
ffi

ce
r 

II 
/ 0

78
7 

12
/1

3/
20

14
O

S
B

 
2/

13
/2

01
5 

3/
05

/2
01

5
15

-0
75

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
n 

 
O

S
B

 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t L
iv

in
g 

In
st

ru
ct

or
 / 

08
52

 
2/

04
/2

01
5

O
S

B
 

2/
20

/2
01

5 
2/

26
/2

01
5

15
-0

79
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
pe

n 
 

O
S

D
 

T
ea

ch
er

 / 
06

35
 

1/
17

/2
01

4
O

S
D

 
7/

10
/2

01
4 

U
nt

il 
F

ill
ed

15
-0

04
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
pe

n 
 

O
S

D
 

T
ea

ch
er

 / 
04

13
 

7/
31

/2
01

4
O

S
D

 
7/

23
/2

01
7 

U
nt

il 
F

ill
ed

15
-0

09
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 

8/
12

/2
01

4 
 

O
S

D
 

D
ire

ct
 C

ar
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I /
 0

77
8 

5/
20

/2
01

4
O

S
D

 
11

/1
3/

20
14

 
11

/2
6/

20
14

15
-0

51
G

ay
la

 J
en

ni
ng

s 
2/

03
/2

01
5 

O
S

D
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n/
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
II 

/ 
01

54
 

9/
01

/2
01

4
O

S
D

 
12

/1
2/

20
14

 
12

/2
6/

20
14

15
-0

56
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 

1/
6/

20
15

 
 

O
S

D
 

P
rin

ci
pa

l /
 0

41
4 

7/
15

/2
01

1
O

S
D

 
12

/3
1/

14
 

U
nt

il 
F

ill
ed

15
-0

62
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
pe

n 
 

O
S

D
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 V

 / 
09

98
 

8/
08

/2
01

4
O

S
D

 
1/

22
/2

01
5 

2/
4/

20
15

15
-0

67
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 

2/
19

/2
01

5 
 

O
S

D
 

D
ire

ct
 C

ar
e 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

II 
/ 0

10
5 

2/
01

/2
01

5
O

S
D

 
2/

11
/2

01
5 

2/
24

/2
01

5
15

-0
73

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
n 

 

Page 31



D
iv

is
io

n
 

T
it

le
/P

IN
 

D
at

e 
V

ac
at

ed
 

L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 
B

eg
in

 d
at

e
E

n
d

 d
at

e
A

n
n

 #
A

ct
io

n
/In

cu
m

b
en

t 
D

at
e 

F
ill

ed
 

V
R

 
A

ss
is

tiv
e 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
I /

 1
19

7 
9/

30
/2

01
2

V
R

36
 –

 O
K

C
 

6/
09

/2
01

4
6/

30
/2

01
4

14
-1

30
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 7

/1
0/

20
14

 
 

V
R

 
V

R
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
V

 / 
09

29
 

8/
31

/2
01

4
V

R
26

 –
 C

la
re

m
or

e 
9/

19
/2

01
4

10
/9

/2
01

4
15

-0
28

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 1
0/

17
-2

01
4 

 
V

R
 

V
R

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

V
 / 

03
23

 
9/

12
/2

01
4

V
R

47
 –

 O
K

C
 

10
/1

6/
20

14
10

/2
9/

20
14

15
-0

40
D

an
ie

lle
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

2/
18

/2
01

5 
V

R
 

V
R

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

V
 / 

03
66

 
9/

15
/2

01
4

V
R

31
 –

 O
K

C
 

11
/4

/2
01

4
11

/2
4/

20
14

15
-0

47
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 1

2/
03

/2
01

4 
 

V
R

 
P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
ia

n 
III

 / 
04

67
 

10
/1

4/
20

14
V

R
23

 –
 O

K
C

 
11

/1
3/

20
14

12
/3

/2
01

4
15

-0
49

Jo
sh

ua
 D

un
ca

n 
2/

17
/2

01
5 

V
R

 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

F
ie

ld
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
I /

 1
19

5 
9/

29
/2

01
4

V
R

95
 –

 O
K

C
 

12
/0

3/
20

14
12

/0
9/

20
14

15
-0

52
W

en
dy

 B
oh

an
na

n 
2/

18
/2

01
5 

V
R

 
V

R
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II 

/ 1
03

0 
10

/2
2/

20
14

V
R

78
 –

 T
ah

le
qu

ah
 

12
/0

4/
20

14
12

/1
7/

20
14

15
-0

53
N

kw
eh

 C
he

 A
lo

ta
 

2/
02

/2
01

5 

V
R

 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

III
 / 

03
72

 
12

/0
1/

20
14

V
R

47
 –

 O
K

C
 

12
/1

0/
20

14
12

/2
3/

20
14

15
-0

54
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 1

/5
/2

01
5 

 
V

R
 

V
R

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I 
/ 0

77
6 

6/
12

/2
01

4
V

R
86

 –
 A

da
 

12
/3

1/
20

14
1/

13
/2

01
5

15
-0

63
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 1

/2
0/

20
15

 
 

V
R

 
V

R
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II 

/ 0
16

6 
8/

31
/2

01
4

V
R

45
 –

 T
ul

sa
 

1/
15

/2
01

5
2/

4/
20

15
15

-0
66

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 2
/1

1/
20

15
 

 
V

R
 

V
R

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

V
 / 

04
78

 
2/

17
/2

01
5

V
R

06
 –

 D
un

ca
n 

2/
04

/2
01

5
2/

17
/2

01
5

15
-0

70
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 2

/2
4/

20
15

 
 

V
R

 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

III
 / 

K
20

C
 

11
/1

9/
20

14
V

R
78

 –
 T

ah
le

qu
ah

 
2/

05
/2

01
5

2/
25

/2
01

5
15

-0
71

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
n 

 

V
R

 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

III
 / 

11
88

 
2/

05
/2

01
5

V
R

97
 –

 G
uy

m
on

 
2/

18
/2

01
5

3/
10

/2
01

5
15

-0
78

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

pe
n 

 

Page 32



   

D
iv

is
io

n
 

T
it

le
/P

IN
 

D
at

e 
V

ac
at

ed
 

L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 
B

eg
in

 
D

at
e 

E
n

d
 D

at
e 

A
n

n
. #

 
A

ct
io

n
/In

cu
m

b
en

t 
D

at
e 

F
ill

ed
 

 

V
S

 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
B

lin
d 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

I /
 0

05
2 

5/
31

/2
01

4 
V

S
58

 –
 A

da
 

9/
23

/2
01

4 
10

/1
3/

20
14

 
15

-0
29

 
A

ly
ci

a 
W

rig
ht

 
2/

02
/2

01
5 

 

V
S

 
V

en
di

ng
 F

ac
ili

ty
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 II

 /
 0

17
0 

4/
01

/2
01

4 
V

S
33

 –
 O

K
C

 
10

/2
2/

20
14

 
11

/4
/2

01
4 

15
-0

41
 

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 1
1/

12
/2

01
4 

 
 

V
S

 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

M
an

ag
er

 II
 / 

01
93

 
6/

23
/2

01
4 

V
S

62
 –

 M
us

ko
ge

e 
11

/1
3/

20
14

 
12

/3
/2

01
4 

15
-0

50
 

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 1
2/

11
/2

01
4 

 
 

V
S

 
V

en
di

ng
 M

ac
hi

ne
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
I /

 
10

27
 

10
/2

7/
20

14
 

V
S

33
 –

 O
K

C
 

12
/1

7/
20

14
 

12
/3

0/
20

14
 

15
-0

57
 

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 1
/1

2/
20

15
 

 
 

V
S

 
V

R
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II 

/ 1
03

3 
7/

14
/2

01
4 

V
S

73
 –

 O
K

C
 

12
/2

3/
20

4 
1/

5/
20

15
 

15
-0

60
 

A
pp

 li
st

 s
en

t 1
/1

3/
20

15
 

 
 

V
S

 
V

R
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
V

 / 
10

38
 

12
/3

1/
20

14
 

V
S

73
 –

 O
K

C
 

12
/3

1/
20

14
 

1/
13

/2
01

5 
15

-0
61

 
A

pp
 li

st
 s

en
t 1

/2
0/

20
15

 
 

 
V

S
 

Li
br

ar
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

II 
/ 0

02
7 

11
/0

1/
20

14
 

V
S

72
 –

 O
LB

P
H

 
1/

9/
20

15
 

1/
22

/2
01

5 
15

-0
65

 
W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
E

-L
is

t 
 

 
N

O
T

E
: 

W
ai

tin
g 

fo
r 

H
C

M
-9

 =
 W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
H

C
M

 to
 r

et
ur

n 
H

C
M

-9
’s

 to
 in

fo
rm

 if
 a

pp
lic

an
t m

ee
ts

 m
in

im
um

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
po

si
tio

n.
 

 

 
W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
E

-L
is

t =
 W

ai
tin

g 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

ap
pl

ic
an

t l
og

 fr
om

 H
C

M
. 

P
en

di
ng

 A
pp

ro
va

l=
 W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
un

cl
as

si
fie

d 
ap

po
in

tm
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

di
re

ct
or

 a
nd

 c
ab

in
et

 s
ec

re
ta

ry
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
da

te
 

 

Page 33



 

RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS/SEPARATIONS   = 6 

 
SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION (Executive/MSD/FSD) 
NONE 
 
DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION 
Hooper, Jamie – VR Specialist II – VR02-Altus, Resigned 2/03/2015   (3 years 1 month) 
Ottinger, Mary – Rehabilitation Technician III – VR97-Guymon, Resigned 2/05/2015   (4 years) 
Hall, Tammy – VR Specialist IV – VR18-Muskogee, Discharged 2/09/2015   (13 years 11 months) 
 
VISUAL SERVICES DIVISION 
Southerland, Paula – Rehabilitation of the Blind Specialist III – VS91-Tulsa, Retired 2/01/2015   (40 years) 
 
DVR/DVS-HRD 
NONE 
 
OKLAHOMA SCHOOL FOR THE BLIND 
Phillips, Rebecca – Independent Living Instructor I, Discharged 2/04/2015   (2 years) 
 
 
OKLAHOMA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF 
Branch, Nadine – Direct Care Specialist III, Retired 2/01/2015   (10 years) 
 
DISABILITY DETERMINATION DIVISION 
NONE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
CURRENT FTE STATUS 

FY 2015 
 

 FTE as of February 20, 2015 
 

DIVISION BUDGETED 
FTE 

FILLED PENDING EXEMPT 
FTE 

TOTAL FILLED PLUS 
PENDING MINUS 

EXEMPT FTE 

Support Services (Executive/MSD/FSD) 74.50 62.70 2.00 (0.00)  64.70
Vocational Rehabilitation  277.00 243.00 9.00 (7.00) 245.00
Visual Services 144.00 125.00 6.00 (4.00) 127.00
DVR/DVS-HRD 8.00 10.00 0.00 (0.00) 10.00
Oklahoma School for the Blind 94.50 88.50 3.00 0.00  91.50
Oklahoma School for the Deaf 126.50 118.00 6.00 0.00  124.00
      
Total (NON-EXEMPT) 724.50 647.20 26.00 (11.00) 662.20
      
Disability Determination Division 
(EXEMPT) 368.00 321.50 5.00 0.00  326.50
      
TOTAL NON-EXEMPT & EXEMPT 1092.50 968.70 31.00 (11.00) 988.70
      

Authorized Agency FTE Limit = 1255         
      

  * Authorized agency FTE limit does not include Executive Fellow and SWIP appointments 
 
ROUTING TO: Joe Cordova, Director 
  Cheryl Gray, Chief of Staff 
  Kevin Statham, Chief Financial Officer 
  Goli Dunkle, Division Administrator 
  Tom Patt, Human Resources Program Director 

 Dana Tallon, Public Information Manager II 
 Linda Santin, Executive Assistant 
 Rosemarie Chitwood, Secretary V 
 Paul Adams, Project Coordinator  
              

 

 

Page 35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                

 

Page 36



March  Legislative Report 

My report will be brief as this is committee deadline week and I write you from 

the final Senate Appropriations and Budge committee hearing before the 26th 

deadline.  

Budget:   

 learned from the State Equalization Board the the State’s budget hole has 

doubled from roughly $300 million to $611 million. At this level all agencies are 

expecting cuts.  Just to remind you, the Governor’s budget called for 6.25% cuts 

for most agencies when the deficit was $300 million.   Education agencies are 

going through a new round of budget hearings.  Our House subcommittee for 

human services has asked for the impact of cute of 2, 4, and 6 percent.  It could 

get worse.  

Legislation: 

On our request bills, both our DDD unclassified bill and purchasing bills passed 

without opposition.  However, we did not get a hearing on our A‐F bills or our 

property bill. This was, in part, on terrible luck on schedule because the Senate 

Education meets on Monday’ and we lost two Monday's this month due to 

weather.  

As far as our watch list bills, the two BEP bills, SB 521 and HB 1613 (requiring 

health vending options on state property) were not heard; and SB 660, (allowing 

agencies to allow food vendors in their parking lots) passed with a commitment 

from Sen. Fields to work with us to address concerns on competition with our 

blind vendors)  And HB 1969, (which requires agencies to favor competitive 

integrated employment for individuals with disabilities) passed without comment.  

Of particular note, HB1512, by Kern, strengthening the interpreter standards for 

public schools passed out of House common education yesterday 8‐3. The deaf 

and interpreter community came out to support the bill and packed the 

committee room and both overflow rooms. While there were some concerns with 

the Impact the bill would have on school districts, it was clear that their presence 

Page 37



had a strong influence on passage of the bill.  

The next deadline is March 12th, for reporting bills off the floor. 

 

Page 38



39 Bills On Report
Bill # Information

HB1209 Paraphrase: HB1209, by Rep. Dennis Ray Casey, R-Morrison, Rep. Earl Sears, R-
Bartlesville, Sen. Clark Jolley, R-Oklahoma City, and Sen. Greg Treat, R-Oklahoma
City, appropriates funds from the FY2016 General Revenue Fund to the Department
of Rehabilitative Services, sets budget limits and establishes FTE limitations.
(Appropriation Bill) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget (H)

 
HB1242 Paraphrase: HB1242, by Rep. Dennis Ray Casey, R-Morrison, Rep. Earl Sears, R-

Bartlesville, Sen. Clark Jolley, R-Oklahoma City, and Sen. Greg Treat, R-Oklahoma
City, makes general appropriations to state agencies, boards and commissions.
(Appropriation Bill) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget (H)

 
HB1243 Paraphrase: HB1243, by Rep. Dennis Ray Casey, R-Morrison, Rep. Earl Sears, R-

Bartlesville, Sen. Clark Jolley, R-Oklahoma City, and Sen. Greg Treat, R-Oklahoma
City, makes general appropriations to state agencies, boards and commissions.
(Appropriation Bill) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget (H)

 
HB1286 Paraphrase: HB1286, by Rep. Josh Cockroft, R-Tecumseh, requires each agency

subject to the Oklahoma State Finance Act to develop a contingency plan and
corresponding budget for up to a 25 percent reduction in any federal monies. The bill
requires the contingency plan and budget be submitted to the Director of the Office
of Management and Enterprise Services, the Governor, the Speaker of the
Oklahoma House of Representatives and the President Pro Tempore of the
Oklahoma State Senate within 30 days of the effective date of the bill. It also
requires every entity subject to the bill's provisions to make an annual disclosure in a
separate written report and information available through a website maintained by or
on behalf of the entity of all federal funds under the control of the entity and the
programs for which the federal funds are used by distinct expenditure categories and
to identify the priority or rank of the federal funds in descending order with the
funding source the agency relies on to the greatest extent listed first and the funding
source the agency relies on to the least extent listed last. It also requires every
subject entity to make an annual disclosure either in a separate written report,
information available through a website maintained by or on behalf of the entity or
both, of the federal funds for which the agency must incur costs to implement and

Watch List As of 2-25-2015
Watch list
Tracking List Bill Index

Page 39



shall provide such information in descending order with the most costly federal funds
listed first and the least costly federal funds listed last. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All
rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Rules (H)

 
HB1287 Paraphrase: HB1287, by Rep. Josh Cockroft, R-Tecumseh, HB1287 creates the

Oklahoma State Government Open Records One-Stop Initiative. The bill requires the
Chief Information Officer to develop and maintain an online web presence at the web
address OpenRecords.ok.gov to allow the public to file a request for documents
under the Oklahoma Open Records Act. The bill requires the Chief Information to
shall retrieve and deliver the documents to the requester in accordance with the
procedures of the Oklahoma Open Records Act upon finding that the requested
documents are open records under the act. It requires documents requested through
the open records web portal be delivered to the requester in electronic format. It also
requires the electronic material be made available to the public through the
data.ok.gov web portal immediately following delivery of the documents. It provides
that the bill cannot be construed to change any obligation of public officials to comply
with already existing provisions of the Oklahoma Open Records Act. - © 2015
eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Rules (H)

 
HB1336 Paraphrase: HB1336, by Rep. James Lockhart, D-Heavener, requires all health

benefit plans issued or renewed on or after Nov. 1, 2015, to include coverage for the
diagnosis and treatment of any autistic disorder, provided such treatments are
medically necessary and identified and ordered by a licensed physician, licensed
psychologist or licensed clinical social worker for an insured who is diagnosed with
an autism spectrum disorder. The bill lists included, but not limited to, treatments.
The bill also removes language providing that health benefit plans are not required to
include coverage for any autistic disorder. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights
reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Insurance (H)

 
HB1337 Paraphrase: HB1337, by Rep. James Lockhart, D-Heavener, requires public bodies

to make available on their website information concerning the number of persons
with disabilities employed by the public body. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights
reserved.
Status: H General Order   Status Date: 02/09/2015

 
HB1376 Paraphrase: HB1376, by Rep. Randy McDaniel, R-Edmond, specifies the

employees eligible for a defined contribution system established by the Oklahoma
Public Employees Retirement System as those in a full-time position or a position
that is more than half-time and qualifies for employee benefits. It allows an employee

Page 40



who begins participating in a defined benefit plan on or after November 1, 2015, in
one of the positions listed, to continue to participate in the defined benefit plan only
as long as he or she continues to be employed in that position. - © 2015 eCapitol,
LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Committee - Committee Sub, Do Pass   Status Date: 02/17/2015
Committee(1): H Business, Labor & Retirement Laws (H)

 
HB1452 Paraphrase: HB1452, by Rep. David Ralph Brumbaugh, R-Broken Arrow and Sen.

David Holt, R-Oklahoma City, requires the gross salary of each employee to be
made available on state agency websites. It requires the data to be made available
in an open-structured format that may be downloaded by the public and which allows
the viewer to systematically sort, search, and access all data. It also requires a link
to the budget and audited financial statements of the public entity as provided to the
State Auditor and Inspector; and raw data sets which include all expenditure data as
requested by and provided to the State Auditor and Inspector. (Amended by House,
Committee Substitute) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H General Order   Status Date: 02/18/2015

 
HB1512 Paraphrase: HB1512, by Rep. Sally Kern, R-Oklahoma City, requires an educational

interpreter under the Oklahoma Educational Interpreter for the Deaf Act with to be
certified with an Educational Interpreter Performance Assessment (EIPA) before
being allowed to be employed by a public school district. It limits them to be
assigned to work in only the grade levels covered by the EIPA credentials of the
educational interpreter until the interpreter has attained certification. It prohibits
employment by those interpreters who have not attained certification. It specifies
which credentials may not work for employment as an interpreter. It directs the State
Department of Education to provide access to a current registry of the names of
educational interpreters and the types and expiration dates of certifications held by
each interpreter as provided by the Department of Rehabilitation Services and the
Registry of Interpreters of the Deaf (RID). It requires registration by interpreters and
directs DRS to investigate reports of uncertified individuals. The bill directs the State
Board of Education to establish penalties for noncompliance with registration
requirements. It also requires school districts to provide an annual performance
evaluation for each educational interpreter and requires them to submit a biannual
report to SDE listing the names, the certifications and certification levels held by
each educational interpreter employed by the district. (Emergency Measure) - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Committee - Committee Sub, Do Pass   Status Date: 02/24/2015
Committee(1): H Common Education (H)

 
HB1522 Paraphrase: HB1522, by Rep. Katie Henke, R-Tulsa, clarifies language related to

the annual reports of the Oklahoma School Testing Program. The bill requires that
the reports include student achievement results of schools that directly or indirectly
receive revenue from the state for the financial support of public schools including
schools participating in the Lindsey Nicole Henry Scholarships for Students with
Disabilities Program and student performance descriptions of schools that directly or

Page 41



indirectly receive revenue from the state for the financial support of public schools.
(Emergency Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Committee - Do Pass Failed   Status Date: 02/24/2015
Committee(1): H Common Education (H)

 
HB1533 Paraphrase: HB1533, by Rep. Todd Thomsen, R-Ada, creates the Oklahoma Higher

Education Scholarship Act to provide scholarships to middle-income students
attending institutions in The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education. The bill
provides that income for the program will consist of funds accruing in the Oklahoma
Higher Education Scholarship Trust Fund created by the bill. The bill requires the
State Regents for Higher Education to award scholarships from the Oklahoma
Higher Education Scholarship Program, to eligible students. The bill sets student
eligibility for the scholarships. The bill provides that the scholarships will be in an
amount equivalent to the nonguaranteed resident tuition for which an eligible student
is obligated at an institution of The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education.
(Emergency Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Subcommittee Laid Over   Status Date: 02/09/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget, Education (H)

 
HB1561 Paraphrase: HB1561, by Rep. Elise Hall, R-Oklahoma City, creates the Quality

Workforce Act. It permits an eligible establishment which receives approval by the
Oklahoma Department of Commerce under the provisions of the this bill to receive a
rebate from the Oklahoma Tax Commission equal to amounts paid for workforce
investment for eligible employees plus any rebate supplement on or after July 1,
2016. It requires that such payments be made until fully reimbursed but annual
payments will be required to be limited to an amount equal to 5 percent of the
average wage of all employees of the establishment multiplied by the number of
eligible employees. The bill creates a special fund designated the Quality Workforce
Rebate Payment Fund for the Oklahoma Tax Commission with the State Treasury. It
requires that Oklahoma Department and the Oklahoma Tax Commission to
promulgate rules necessary to implement their respective duties and responsibilities
under the provisions of this bill. It lists the prescribed fines for any applicant
convicted of violating the conditions of this bill. The bill requires the Oklahoma
Department of Commerce to prepare triennially a report which shall include a fiscal
analysis of the costs and benefits of the Quality Workforce Act, and will be submitted
to the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of
Representatives and the Governor no later than March 1, 2019 and every 3 years
after. The bill requires that the provisions listed therein to cease having force and
effect of law effective July 1, 2020, and prohibits any claim to paid thereafter. - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget, Revenue & Taxation (H)

 
HB1664 Paraphrase: HB1664, by Rep. David Dank, R-Oklahoma City, creates the Ethics

and Transparency Act of 2015. The bill states that the Oklahoma Ethics Commission

Page 42



require all entities spending money in a state and local political race to abide by the
same donor and expenditure reporting rules as political action committees and
individual candidates. (Amended by House, Committee Substitute) - © 2015
eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H General Order   Status Date: 02/18/2015

 
HB1738 Paraphrase: HB1738, by Rep. Lewis Moore, R-Arcadia, establishes the Oklahoma

Privacy Protection Act. The bill establishes the state policy to refuse material support
or participation in any federal agency with the power to authorize the collection of
electronic data or metadata of any person pursuant to any action not based on a
warrant. It states an agency, board or commission in violation of this act will not
receive state grant funds and any individual in violation is subject to removal from
office or employment and a $1,000 fine. (Emergency Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol,
LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Committee - Laid Over   Status Date: 02/18/2015
Committee(1): H State & Federal Relations (H)

 
HB1744 Paraphrase: HB1744, by Rep. Josh Cockroft, R-Tecumseh, establishes the

Oklahoma Federal Funds Commission Act and the Oklahoma Federal Funds
Commission. The bill states what the commission will study. This bill states the
commission will make recommendations to the governor prior to Nov. 1, 2020, to
avoid or minimize the risk of a reduction in the amount of federal funds by the state
and by local governments in the state; reduce the dependency of the state and of
local governments in the state on federal funds; and prepare for a reduction in the
amount of federal funds by the state and by local governments in the state. The bill
states after Nov. 1, 2020, the commission will be assigned to another federal issue
as assigned by the Legislature or Governor. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights
reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Rules (H)

 
HB1748 Paraphrase: HB1748, by Rep. Tom Newell, R-Seminole and Sen. Greg Treat, R-

Oklahoma City, requires certain entities to report, through written disclosure and
information available on their website, all federal funds under control of the entity
and the programs the funds are used for. The bill requires the programs be sorted or
ranked by priority. This bill specifies what kinds of information to be included in the
disclosure. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Laid Over   Status Date: 02/17/2015

 
HB1760 Paraphrase: HB1760, by Rep. John Enns, R-Enid, creates the Commitment to Care

for People with Complex Physical Disabilities Act and defines related terms. The bill
requires the Oklahoma Health Care Authority to take into consideration the unique
medical and functional needs of members with complex physical disabilities when
preparing or adjusting its budget. It requires OHCA to provide coverage for specialty
provider services, specialized equipment, and supplies for people with complex
physical disabilities. It specifies how the agency is to proceed with such

Page 43



considerations. The bill also directs OHCA to establish focused regulations and
policies for CRT products and services. It directs the regulations and policies to
consider customized services and specifies those considerations. - © 2015 eCapitol,
LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Referred to Committee   Status Date: 02/18/2015
Committee(1): H Appropriations & Budget (H)

 
HB1859 Paraphrase: HB1859, by Rep. Harold Wright, R-Weatherford and Sen. Dan

Newberry, R-Tulsa, modifies the membership of the Governor's Council for
Workforce and Economic Development. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H General Order   Status Date: 02/19/2015

 
HB1969 Paraphrase: HB1969, by Rep. Terry O'Donnell, R-Catoosa, creates the Oklahoma

Employment First Act. The bill requires all state agencies to coordinate effects and
collaborate within and among such agencies to ensure that state programs, policies,
procedures and funding support competitive integrated employment of individuals
with disabilities. It requires that all state agencies, whenever feasible, to share data
and information across systems in order to track progress toward full implementation
of this bill. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H Committee - Do Pass   Status Date: 02/24/2015
Committee(1): H Business, Labor & Retirement Laws (H)

 
HB2081 Paraphrase: HB2081, by Rep. Jason Nelson, R-Oklahoma City and Sen. Kimberly

David, R-Porter, states intent of the Oklahoma State Regents of Higher Education to
establish a comprehensive transition and postsecondary program for students with
intellectual disabilities which shall be offered by institutions. The bill specifies the
parameters of the degree program. This bill requires the state regents establish
procedures and criteria to establish a comprehensive transition and postsecondary
program for students with intellectual disabilities to be offered by institutions
including eligibility for Pell Grants, Work Study and enrollment without meeting
certain admission standards. It requires the state regents seeks funding for
institutional grants to meet this criteria. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: H General Order   Status Date: 02/19/2015

 
HB2101 Paraphrase: HB2101, by Rep. Lewis Moore, R-Arcadia, creates the Whistleblower

Liberty Fund Act. The bill exempts persons from being disciplined, demoted,
transferred, terminated or otherwise penalized as a result of providing information to
any person government entity or organization about the alleged misuse of federal
funds if the information was provided in the good-faith belief that reasonable grounds
existed at the time the information was provided to suspect misuse of the federal
funds or that the use of federal funds was in violation of any provisions of the United
States Constitution. It awards such person 10 percent of the total amount of funds
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been misused. - © 2015
eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.

Page 44



Status: Second Reading - Referred to House Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): H Rules (H)

 
SB0060 Paraphrase: SB0060, by Sen. Earl Garrison, D-Muskogee and Rep. Jerry McPeak,

D-Warner, exempts the Oklahoma School for the Blind and the Oklahoma School for
the Deaf from the A-F school grading system. (Emergency Measure) - © 2015
eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Education (S)

 
SB0067 Paraphrase: SB0067, by Sen. Ron Sharp, R-Shawnee and Rep. Justin Wood, R-

Shawnee, prohibits the operator of a vehicle from communicating with a handheld
electronic device, either verbally or by typing an email or text during the physical
operation of a motor vehicle. The bill establishes a penalty that cannot exceed the
fine for a misdemeanor. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Public Safety (S)

 
SB0146 Paraphrase: SB0146, by Sen. Frank Simpson, R-Ardmore, exempts the Oklahoma

School for the Blind or the Oklahoma School for the Deaf from the State Board of
Education's annual reports of the results of the Oklahoma School Testing Program
which describe student achievement in the state and each school site. (Emergency
Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Education (S)

 
SB0149 Paraphrase: SB0149, by Sen. Earl Garrison, D-Muskogee and Rep. Jerry McPeak,

D-Warner, provides that expenditures of funds appropriated to the State Department
of Rehabilitation Services for educational programs or educational materials for the
Oklahoma School for the Blind and the Oklahoma School for the Deaf be in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Commission for Rehabilitation Services
in consultation with the State Purchasing Director. (Amended by Senate, Stricken
Title, Emergency Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S Engrossed   Status Date: 02/24/2015

 
SB0153 Paraphrase: SB0153, by Sen. Kimberly David, R-Porter and Rep. Pat Ownbey, R-

Ardmore, increases the number of unclassified employees in the Disability
Determination Division of the State Department of Rehabilitation Services from a
total number of 14 to 21. (Amended by Senate, Stricken Title) - © 2015 eCapitol,
LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/11/2015

 
SB0156 Paraphrase: SB0156, by Sen. Earl Garrison, D-Muskogee, exempts the Oklahoma

school for the Blind and the Oklahoma School for the Deaf from certain requirements
Page 45



concerning the disposition of state-owned property. (Emergency Measure) - © 2015
eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Appropriations (S)

 
SB0162 Paraphrase: SB0162, by Sen. Jim Halligan, R-Stillwater and Rep. Lee Denney, R-

Cushing, requires the State Board of Education, in consultation with experts in the
education and assessment of students with the most significant cognitive disabilities,
to promulgate rules providing for exemptions from the mandated tests administered
pursuant to the Oklahoma School Testing Program Act for students on an
individualized education program (IEP), in accordance with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), that directs that the student is to be assessed with
alternate achievement standards through the Oklahoma Alternate Assessment
Program (OAAP) who otherwise demonstrate satisfactory knowledge in that subject.
(Amended by Senate, Stricken Title, Emergency Measure, Committee Substitute) - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S Committee - Do Pass as Amended   Status Date: 02/25/2015
Committee(1): S Appropriations (S)

 
SB0308 Paraphrase: SB0308, by Sen. Nathan Dahm, R-Broken Arrow and Rep. George

Faught, R-Muskogee, requires agencies exempt from the Administrative Procedures
Act to publish its exempt rules on its website. The bill requires an agency to respond
within 30 days to a request from the Governor, House or Senate to review its rules
and respond to a small business within 90 days. The bill requires that all requests to
waive requirements be submitted in writing to the Governor. The bill gives the
Legislature the authority to amend proposed and effective agency rules. The bill
eliminates the process from the legislative cutoff dates. (Amended by Senate,
Stricken Title, Emergency Measure) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/16/2015

 
SB0346 Paraphrase: SB0346, by Sen. Nathan Dahm, R-Broken Arrow and Rep. Ken

Walker, R-Tulsa, creates the Governor's Transparency Act of 2015. The bill requires
a state agency entering into a Memorandum of Understanding or Memorandum of
Agreement with any agency, department or any organization receiving appropriated
money, grants, contracts from the State of Oklahoma or any other state or funds
from the government of the United States to publish a report on its website and the
documents.ok.gov website of all Memorandums of Understanding or Memorandums
of Agreement within 15 business days of the memorandum's effective date. The bill
establishes the requirements for the report. The bill requires when any state agency
enters into a Memorandum of Understanding or Memorandum of Agreement, and
when the state Legislature is in session, the state agency to provide the chair of the
appropriate legislative committee, based on the subject matter or agency executing
the document, with a copy of the Memorandum of Understanding or Memorandum of
Agreement. The bill provides the state agency may not publish any such report on a
Memorandum of Understanding or Memorandum of Agreement that is privileged
under law pursuant to the Oklahoma Open Records Act, but it also requires a report

Page 46



to be published to indicate what entities are subject to the privileged Memorandum of
Understanding or Memorandum of Agreement and its duration. The bill also requires
that Memorandums of Understanding or Memorandums of Agreement solely
between state departments or agencies cite the state constitutional or statutory
authority granted for the subject addressed in the Memorandum of Understanding or
Memorandum of Agreement. The bill also requires Memorandums of Understanding
or Memorandums of Agreement between any agencies, departments and any
organizations receiving appropriated money, grants, contracts from the State of
Oklahoma, or any other state or funds from the government of the United States cite
the authority granted by federal or state statute and/or in the Constitution of the
United States as well as the Constitution of the State of Oklahoma for the subject
addressed in the Memorandum of Understanding or Memorandum of Agreement. - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/16/2015

 
SB0449 Paraphrase: SB0449, by Sen. Corey Brooks, R-Washington and Rep. Dennis

Johnson, R-Duncan, declares a hiring freeze for a five year period following the
effective date of the bill as a further control on human resource costs. The bill
exempts the State Department of Corrections, the Department of Public Safety, the
Department of Education, the State Senate, and the House of Representatives from
the provisions of the bill. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/17/2015

 
SB0450 Paraphrase: SB0450, by Sen. Bill Brown, R-Broken Arrow, declares a hiring freeze

for a five year period following the effective date of the bill as a further control on
human resource costs. The bill exempts the State Department of Corrections, the
Department of Public Safety, the Department of Education, the State Senate, and the
House of Representatives from the provisions of the bill. (Emergency Measure) - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Appropriations (S)

 
SB0521 Paraphrase: SB0521, by Sen. Kyle Loveless, R-Oklahoma City, creates the Access

to Healthy Choices in Oklahoma Act. It requires all food and beverages purchased
by, or sold, served or otherwise provided by state agencies, through vending
machines located on property owned or leased by the state to meet minimum
nutrition and procurement standards put forth in the bill. It also requires the State
Department of Health to designate an appropriate position with the department to
disseminate information and train state agency staff and vendors on the standard to
support compliance and assist the implementation of the nutrition and procurement
standards required by the bill. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Health & Human Services (S)
Committee(2): S Appropriations (S)

 

Page 47



SB0522 Paraphrase: SB0522, by Sen. Ralph Shortey, R-Oklahoma City, creates the
Oklahoma Official English Language Implementation Act. The bill declares that the
English language is the official language of the state. It requires that the state to
preserve and enhance the role of English as the official language of Oklahoma. - ©
2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/03/2015
Committee(1): S Rules (S)
Committee(2): S Appropriations (S)

 
SB0544 Paraphrase: SB0544, by Sen. Robert Standridge, R-Norman, creates the

Professional Services Acquisition Act. The bill provides that a person or business
whose physical place of business is located outside of the physical boundaries of
Oklahoma will not be authorized to solicit, contract or provide an acquisition of
professional services, or its related products, where public state funds are paid on
behalf of the solicitation, contract or acquisition, except when the person or business
entity is in compliance with the same rules, regulations, and laws imposed on a
person or business entity whose physical place of business is located in Oklahoma.
The bill prohibits the State of Oklahoma, including its agencies, contractors, and
subcontractors, from using state funds in any manner relative to solicitation, bid,
acquisition, contracting or hiring an out-of-state person or business entity to provide
professional services, or its related products, except when the person or business
entity is in compliance with the same rules, regulations, and laws required for the
same type of business entity or person physically located in Oklahoma. The bill
exempts allopathic physicians, osteopathic physicians, pharmacists, dentists,
podiatrists, and optometrists offering professional services and related products from
its provisions. The bill requires any state agency soliciting, entering into a contract or
contracting for any acquisition in violation of the bill to either rescind the contract or
decline to renew the contract until compliance is met. The bill establishes
compliance requirements. It establishes that its provisions do not limit the authority
of any licensure board from bringing an action to regulate the products or
professional services or to enforce license violations. The bill also provides the use
of a computer, computer system, computer network or any electronic means to
obtain an acquisition of product or professional services in one jurisdiction to or from
another jurisdiction is deemed to have occurred in this jurisdiction for purposes of
any administrative, civil or criminal action under the bill. The bill defines applicable
terms. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S Referred to 2nd Committee   Status Date: 02/09/2015
Committee(2): S Appropriations (S)

 
SB0612 Paraphrase: SB0612, by Sen. Dan Newberry, R-Tulsa, modifies the membership of

the Governor's Council for Workforce and Economic Development and requires
compliance with the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act. The bill also
directs the council to form a subcommittee on health workforce for the purpose of
informing, coordinating, and facilitating statewide efforts to ensure that a well-trained,
adequately distributed, and flexible health workforce is available to meet the needs
of an efficient and effective health care system in Oklahoma. The bill also specifies

Page 48



the duties of the Health Workforce Subcommittee. (Amended by Senate, Stricken
Title, Committee Substitute) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/19/2015

 
SB0660 Paraphrase: SB0660, by Sen. Eddie Fields, R-Wynona and Rep. Scott Biggs, R-

Chickasha, authorizes agency administrators to allow food vendors to sell food and
Made In Oklahoma products in the parking lots of state agencies or state buildings.
(Amended by Senate, Stricken Title) - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: S General Order   Status Date: 02/16/2015

 
SB0754 Paraphrase: SB0754, by Sen. Kimberly David, R-Porter, creates the Commitment to

Care for People with Complex Physical Disabilities Act. The bill requires the
Oklahoma Health Care Authority to take into consideration the needs of members
with complex physical disabilities. The bill requires the Authority to provide coverage
for specialty provider services, specialized equipment and supplies for people with
complex physical disabilities. The bill requires the Authority to established rules and
policies for certain products and services. The bill establishes specific supplier
standards that provide the equipment. The bill establishes rules and regulations for
billing. - © 2015 eCapitol, LLC. All rights reserved.
Status: Second Reading - Referred to Senate Committee   Status Date: 02/04/2015
Committee(1): S Health & Human Services (S)
Committee(2): S Appropriations (S)

 

© 2010-15 eCapitol, LLC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

As provided by this agreement access to bill tracking / capitol news services is restricted to the registered User. The User shall have no right to divulge, publish, loan, give or
sell any of the information provided under this agreement. Information retrieved from system may not be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system or
translated into any language in any form by any means without the written permission of eCapitol, LLC. All other rights reserved. If a person uses a copyrighted work without
permission of the rights holder, he or she is open to a charge of copyright infringement. Additional terms and conditions governing the access to and use of eCapitol website
and the services and materials provided by eCapitol are set forth in the eCapitol Subscriber Agreement posted on the eCapitol website.

Close  Send

Page 49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



Oklahoma School for the Blind 
 

March 15  

Commissioners Report:  

OSB Students Activities 

The OSB Panthers started 2015 off with a roar.   

January 15th, OSB students in the 7th and 8th grade and students in the service learning class helped the 

Sapulpa Lions serve at their annual Bean Dinner. This year funds donated by the Sapulpa Lions funded 

some middle school outings and two students to Close‐Up in Washington D.C.  

January 23rd& 24th, our students participated in the South Central Association of School for the Blind 

(SCASB) regional competition in Macon, Georgia. This regional event is comprised of six states; Georgia, 

Alabama, Mississippi, Louisiana, Texas and Oklahoma. We had three students place 1st in their category, 

one 2nd place, three 3rd places and two 4th places. Our wrestling team took 2nd place overall. Our 

cheerleading squad took 3rd place for outstanding dance routine.  

On January 27th the OSB 4‐H club hosted another successful Rabbit and Poultry Show. Five students took 

first place in various categories. Five students took 2nd place; three 3rd places, two 4th places and one 

student took 1st in Showmanship Reserve Grand Overall of the Show.   

February 9th, we began the administration of the ACT test for five OSB students.   

February 10th, Senior Charity Pickup was voted Homecoming Queen. Our wrestlers competed against 

Checotah.  

February 16th, our Principal, Mrs. Lynn Cragg, was featured in the Muskogee Phoenix as the “Okie from 

Muskogee”.   

February 20th, our Open House attracted 58 people from Muskogee, Tahlequah and the surrounding 

area.  

February 24th, our fifth and eighth grade students began their writing test.   

February 25th, eight students in our service learning club helped the Muskogee County Lions Club with 

their annual chili fund raiser.  

Academic progress of new students at OSB   

Below you will find individual new student data regarding their academic progress over a two year 

period. As mentioned in my January 2015 report we use the Woodcock Johnson III, Test of Achievement. 

For a number of years, prior to my employment at OSB, students were assessed using the Diagnostics 

Achievement Battery (DAB) for elementary grades and Diagnostic Achievement Test for Adolescents 

(DATA) for secondary grades. These tests were administered annually and for some students twice a 

year. Upon learning of this practice I was immediately concerned about the validity of the test and the 

Page 51



Oklahoma School for the Blind 
 

frequency in which it was given. After several discussions with our administrative team we made the 

decision to use the Woodcock Johnson III, Test of Achievement beginning in 2012.  

Student names have been replaced with an alphabetical letter for confidentially reasons.  Of the sixteen 

data sets of students presented here, eleven (69%) have shown significant progress (two or more grade 

levels) in one or more categories.  Thirteen (81%) of these students have other disabilities in addition to 

blindness or visual impairment.   

Year  Grade  Word Rec  Read Comp  Math Calc  Problem Solving 

A  2012‐13  9th  4.5  7.0  5.1  3.8 

A 2014‐15  11th  6.0  5.4  9.4  4.1 

           

B  2012‐13  6th  5.7  5.4  5.9  6.6 

B  2013‐14  7th  10.8  12.0  11.0  7.8 

           

C  2012‐13  9th  7.1  7.9  4.1  5.7 

C 2013‐14  10th  8.9  9.2  3.8  4.7 

           

D  2012‐13  5th  2.3  1.7  3.5  2.5 

D  2014‐15  7th  2.9  2.1  6.9  3.6 

           

D  2012‐13  10th  7.1  7.0  5.1  4.7 

D  2014‐15  12th  8.0  4.4  4.4  5.0 

           

E  2012‐13  10th  9.5  13.0  9.4  7.8 

E  2014‐15  12th  13.0  15.3  13.0  16.9 

           

F  2012‐13  2nd  K.4  1.3  2.0  <K.0 

F  2014‐15  4th  1.7  1.4  2.0  1.3 

           

G  2011‐12  6th  4.0  4.0  2.0  3.7 

G 2013‐14  8th  5.4  5.4  8.3  6.6 

           

H  2011‐12  6th  2.2  3.0  1.7  3.2 

H  2013‐14  8th  3.6  4.3  4.7  3.0 

           

           

Year  Grade  Word Recog  Reading comp  Math Calc  Problem Solving 

           

I  2011‐12  5th  8.4  8.0  2.4  4.0 

I  2012‐13  6th  13.0  6.1  3.5  5.3 

           

J  2011‐12  4th  3.5  2.7  2.9  2.8 

J  2013‐14  6th  4.3  2.9  4.4  3.8 

           

K  2011‐12  6th  <1.0  <1.0  2.0  4.0 

Page 52



Oklahoma School for the Blind 
 

K  2012‐13  7th  5.7  3.8  4.4  3.8 

           

L  2010‐11  6th  8.6  8.7  4.7  4.7 

L  2012‐13  8th  >18.0  >18.0  6.9  7.8 

           

M  2009‐10  2nd  <1.0  <1.0  1.0  <1.0 

M  2010‐11  3rd  1.7  2.0  2.0  1.2 

           

N 2009‐10  2nd  3.7  2.7  2.7  1.4 

N 2010‐11  3rd  4.7  4.0  3.0  4.7 

           

O 2008‐9  4th  1.7  2.2  3.0  4.7 

O 2010‐11  6th  3.0  2.7  2.7  4.7 

           

P  2008‐09  2nd  3.4  3.7  2.4  1.7 

P 2009‐10  3rd  6.4  8.0  3.0  2.7 

           

           

           

 

Page 53



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



  

Governor’s Oklahoma United We Ride Council  
Irene Martin, Transportation Resources Coordinator 

March 9, 2015, Report to DRS Commission 
 

Summary of Council Purpose and Activities to Date: 
 

1. Governor’s Oklahoma United We Ride Council was created in 2006 by Executive Order of Governor 
Brad Henry and was continued in 2011 by Order of Governor Mary Fallin. 
 

2. The Council is comprised of Directors of 11 State Agencies, with Dept. of Rehabilitation Services 
serving as the lead. 
 

3. Sixteen other members include individuals who are transportation disadvantaged, organizations that 
serve those individuals, local governments, an Oklahoma Tribe, and transit providers.  
 

4. The purpose of the Council is to assess gaps and barriers to effective human service transportation in the 
state, identify the most efficient methods for facilitating the coordination of human service 
transportation services, and recommend ways to enhance citizen access to all available transportation 
and resources.  
 

5. A joint Okla. Dept. of Transportation--United We Ride Council survey in 2011 showed that lack of 
information about available transportation was a bigger barrier than actual lack of transportation.  
 

6. Based on the findings of that survey, the Council created MyRide—Statewide, an online clearinghouse 
of public transportation resources to inform all Oklahomans of what public transportation is available in 
their county. MyRide launched in September, 2013, and has had more than 17,000 visits to the site:  
www.MyRide.ok.gov.  
 

7. In the spring of 2014, the Council partnered with transit providers, regional Councils of Governments, 
and stakeholders to conduct 11 On the Road with MyRide regional meetings to market MyRide to the 
public.  
 

8. During that timeframe, the Council’s project to transition MyRide into a call-center service in addition 
to the web-based service was selected to receive specialized One-Call/One-Click training from the 
National Center for Mobility Management.    
 

9. In December of 2014, the Council obtained a toll-free number 1-844-OKMyRide (844-656-9743) to 
allow those with no computer or internet access to reach a call-center to navigate the website for them. 
DRS has generously procured the phone line for us, and the Council entered an agreement to pay 
HeartLine 2-1-1 to answer the calls. January, 2015, was the first full month using the call-center and 63 
callers were served. 
 

 

Page 55



Pending and Future Council Activities: 
 
1. Governor Fallin made re-appointments or new appointments to the Council for one, two, or three-

year terms in May, 2014. The Council does not yet have a new Executive Order following the latest 
gubernatorial inauguration, but the Council is proceeding as though it will occur by end of April.  
 

2. DRS and the United We Ride Council have begun migrating the MyRide website into an interactive 
application through an agreement with Oklahoma Interactive –the same company that developed our 
MyRide.ok.gov website. This web application is being developed at “Zero” cost to the Council and 
DRS.   
 

3. At its February 19, 2015, quarterly meeting the Council approved its budget for SFY’16 and will 
schedule a Council member workday in April to update its Strategic Action and Marketing and 
Outreach Plans.  
 

4. The Council will soon begin working with transit providers and regional Councils of Governments 
and other stakeholders to conduct a second round of On The Road with MyRide regional meetings; 
these will market the new call-center services, and updated website in an effort to make finding 
public transportation resources even more accessible to all Oklahomans.  

 
5. Next UWR quarterly meeting is scheduled for May 21, 2015 

DRS State Office, 4th Floor SILC Office Conference Room 
10:30 a.m. to noon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For more information about the Council, please visit www.ok.gov/unitedweride. 
To find rides by county, visit www.MyRide.ok.gov or call 1-844-OKMyRide (844-656-9743). 

 
 

Page 56



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



DRS Professional Development Leadership Training Report for March 
2015:  
 
Our agency has the good fortune of having an Executive Team committed 
to supporting and encouraging leadership development.  Stemming from 
that commitment, a working group from our E-Team designed a leadership 
training program. This initiative is intended to facilitate growth and 
increased expertise in ten areas the group identified as competencies all 
supervisors should exhibit. The training initiative is entitled Core 
Competencies for Supervisors and will consist of three required leadership 
skills building workshops. In addition, there will be voluntary on-line 
trainings and a discussion board as well as custom-designed teambuilding 
opportunities.  Below is an outline of the training and support DRS 
supervisors can expect to receive.  
 
Required Training:  
 

The following are the three mandatory leadership skills building workshops:  
 

1) Crucial Conversations - Skills for talking when the stakes are high. 
This is a pre-requisite to Crucial Accountability. (70% of supervisors 
have completed at this writing.) 

2) Crucial Accountability - Tools for resolving violated expectations, 
broken commitments and bad behavior. (28% of supervisors have 
completed.) 

3) 7 Habits for Managers – Managing yourself, leading others, 
unleashing potential of your staff.( 31% of supervisors have 
completed.) 

 
The goal is for all agency supervisors to have completed the required 
courses by March 2016. At that point, a second phase will begin.  
 
The following are Online Opportunities that will be coming soon:  
 

1) HR Forum: An overview of the DRS Hiring Process, Benefits, 
Progressive Discipline, PMP and Time and Leave.  This will be 
offered face-to-face and on-line in 2015. 

2) Community of Practice: An on-line leadership discussion forum.  
 

 

Page 58



Facilitation Opportunities:  
 
These activities will be facilitated at unit meetings by Professional 
Development staff upon request. 
 

1) Strengths Finders:  
Unit staff will receive a book that includes a code to complete an on-line 
individual strengths assessment. Supervisors will send results consisting of 
each staff member’s top 5 strengths to a facilitator in the Professional 
Development Team. Results will be compiled and strengths of the team 
explored together.  

2) MBTI:  
Overview of Meyers-Briggs Type Indicator. The indicator will be 
administered and scored. Team building and conflict resolution activities 
designed for supervisor to participate in with his/her own unit will also be 
offered. (8 units have completed with 2 more currently scheduled.)  
 

Core Competencies:  
 
Core Competency 1: Sets and works toward goals. 
 
Core Competency 2: Understands and manages conflict in alignment with 
the agency’s stated philosophy and values. 
 
Core Competency 3: Serves customers and meets their needs. Respects 
all internal and external customers. 
 
Core Competency 4: Understands the structure, processes and boundaries 
of the agency as it relates to state government.  
 
Core Competency 5: Fosters the development of staff. Motivates, inspires, 
challenges, encourages and rewards others. 
 
Core Competency 6: Works cooperatively with others as part of a team. 
Helps to set a tone of cooperation within the work group and across 
groups. Values working relationships. 
 
Core Competency 7: Analyzes situations and prioritizes actions needed to 
solve problems. 
 

Page 59



Core Competency 8:  Sees the big picture. Contributes to the agency’s 
strategic planning and initiatives. Actively supports the organization’s 
vision, mission and goals.  
 
Core Competency 9: Is tactful, respectful and courteous even when faced 
with hostile, difficult, or highly emotional circumstances. 
 
Core Competency 10: Understands own strengths and contributions; 
recognizes and appreciates diverse strengths and perspectives. 
 
 
Wellness activities and training for employees:  
 
Stress Management continues to be a popular topic for unit retreats and 
meetings. This topic has also been taught to supervisors in three divisions 
as well as all of the teachers at OSD.  
Increasing Well-being is another topic that has been and will be offered at 
State Office Tuesday Training events as well as at unit retreats and 
meetings.  
 
DDD has a comprehensive wellness plan that includes educational 
seminars, exercise classes, healthy meals, weight reduction and smoking 
cessation programs and health related competitions. There is a room in the 
facility dedicated to exercise activities with equipment purchased by the 
Wellness Committee with funds raised through various means including 
offering healthy snacks in the break room. Ergonomically sound equipment 
has been provided to staff as needed. DDD is currently looking to hire a 20 
hour per week Wellness Coordinator.  
 
Oklahoma Health Care Authority has developed a new website dedicated 
to healthy living at www.SoonerFit.org that will be shared with all DRS 
employees.  
  
Thank you!  
 

Nancy Hurst 
DRS Professional Development  
405/635-2778 office 
405/474-7602 cell 
nhurst@okdrs.gov 

Page 60



 
 
 
 
                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                

 

Page 61



VS Administrator’s Report to Commission for March 2015 

Submitted by Doug Boone 

Training: 

Upcoming training on April 2 for East Central University students: 

The idea of this cooperation with East Central University is to educate undergraduate and graduate 
students of Rehabilitation and Special Education about blindness.   
We are inviting Adelmo Vigil from New Mexico as the keynote speaker.   
There will be breakout sessions for technology, adaptive equipment, transition, orientation center 
presentation by clients, and presentation on other related areas. 
 

Business Enterprise Program: 

The snack bar in the basement of the capitol was opened at the beginning of February and has been 

receiving very favorable comments from the building occupants. 

In regards to the 4th floor snack bar, we are still working with a company to propose a solution to the tile 

issue that will satisfy the City/County Health Department. As it stands right now, the health dept. will 

not permit that location for any type of food sale because of the type of tile installed. 

Assistive Technology: 

We have had a lot of efforts to streamline the referral process, the enactment of the consumer Helpdesk 

even though Paul Miller has not moved away from the field yet he has begun handling trouble shooting 

calls, and we are still looking to make our functional assessment tool accessible by working with IT staff. 

We have and are attending AT conferences in Orlando and San Diego. We have been marketing to local 

businesses and are scheduled to present at the Directors of HR meeting for all state agencies on March 

27th!!! 

Library: (excerpt from NLS email) 

Dear Kevin Treese and Jill Streck, 

Excellent job on going through the rigorous quality assurance procedures that participating in the 

network‐produced audiobooks on BARD pilot entails. I am pleased to inform you that your book 

DBC01821 Fire in the hills, is now available on BARD. The posting of your book to BARD marks an 

important milestone in our effort to increase the quantity of materials available on BARD. 

Congratulations. Your library is now certified to submit audiobooks that meet the requirements outlined 

in Network Specifications NS01and NS02 by participating in open submission… BARD users can now 

access your book DBC01821 from its listing in recently added books and magazines or by using any of 

the search tools in the Find Books area of BARD…. 

Page 62



Richard J. Smith                                                                                                                                                                    

Chief, Network Division ‐ National Library Service                                                                                                

Washington, DC 

Introductions of new staff:  (they are planning on being at the meeting) 

New O & M’s‐ Michael Harvey and Alycia Wright  

New Counselors‐ Zeynep Yilmaz and Dona Overbay 

 

Administration: (Doug, Fatos, and Greg) 

Revising VS Academy presentations, for the next planned staff training 

Summer Transition Program:  Continuing planning of 2 week “Transition Independence Program for the 

Summer” at UCO 

Expanding Staff Expectations:  Developing reading material list for discussion in unit meetings, to expand 

staff expectations for blind and v.i. persons to reach quality employment. 

Staff Appreciation:  Exploring additional ways to recognize staff.   

Position Realignment:  Reassigning our VS evaluator to manage a caseload while conducting limited Voc. 

evaluations 

Staffing:  We’ve had several teacher retirements in VS and will be working on replacing those positions 

as soon as possible.  We had offered and a candidate had accepted the Program Manager position for 

Tulsa/Muskogee but withdrew in favor of a higher paying position.   

Consumer Training Venue:  Working towards a system where office front desk receptionist can train our 

clients.  

 

 

 

Page 63



 
 
 
 
                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                

 

Page 64



Dear Commissioners and Director 

 

I would like to provide you with information regarding the security upgrades thus far for the VR‐VS field 

service offices.    There are a total of 36 offices across the state.     

So far the following office locations have been completed: 

BEP Facility 

South OKC Office 

Evaluation Center, OKC 

Shepherd Mall Suite 47 

Shepherd Mall Suite 21 

Shepherd Mall Suite 51 

Shepherd Mall Suite 91 

Shepherd Mall Suite 59 

Edmond Office 

Altus office 

 

The Duncan office is scheduled for February 26; with the Chickasha office scheduled for March 3. 

 

The anticipated completion timeline for all offices to receive security upgrades is June 12, 2015 

 

 

 

  

Page 65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



State of Oklahoma 
Commission for Rehabilitation Services 
Department of Rehabilitation Services 

3535 NW 58th Street, Suite 200 
Oklahoma City, OK 73112 
Monday, February 9, 2015 

 
 

Commission Chair, Jack Tucker, called the meeting to order. Roll call was taken. 
Commissioner Tucker, Commissioner Collins and Commissioner Shelton were all 
present. 
 
Reports: 
Director, Joe Cordova reported on Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), 
Legislative Performance Review Hearings, Social Security Reimbursement, Disability 
Determination Division accomplishment, Social Security Administration initiative, Project 
Search, Disability Awareness Day, and OSB student media coverage. 
No discussion 
 
Financial Status Report: a summary of the Financial Status Report was presented by 
Kevin Statham. No discussion 
 
Personnel Activity Report: the report was presented by Goli Dunkle. No discussion 
 
Legislative Report: Kevin Nelson presented a report on the Senate budget hearing, 
initial legislative bill review and bills on the Agency’s watch list. No discussion 
 
Oklahoma Rehabilitation Council Report: Theresa Hamrick summarized ORC activities, 
projects and meeting updates. No discussion 
 
Oklahoma Statewide Independent Living Council Report: Sidna Madden, reported on 
events and activities by SILC members and administrative issues. No discussion 
 
Division of Vocational Rehabilitation Division Administrator Report: Mark Kinnison 
reported on updates happening in the VR Division including staff recognition. No 
discussion 
 
Disability Determination Division Administrator Report: Noel Tyler reported on Divisional 
accomplishments for FY2014 and projections for FY2015. No discussion 
 
Ticket to Work Report:  Jason Price gave a summary on the history of the Ticket to 
Work Program and how the program was revamped to provide beneficiaries more 
options.  No discussion 
 

Page 67



OSD Superintendent’s Report:  KaAnn Varner, reported on the student activities and 
training provided to staff. She also reported on the capital projects happening on the 
OSD campus.  No discussion 
 
Action Items: 
Review and approval of the minutes from the January 12, 2015, regular Commission 
meeting.  All Commissioners were present and voted in the affirmative. Motion passed. 
 
Review and approval of Donations for the Oklahoma School for the Deaf.  Resolution 
2015-13.  All Commissioners were present and voted in the affirmative. Motion passed. 
 
Review and approval of Donations for the Oklahoma School for the Blind. Resolution 
2015-14.  All Commissioners were present and voted in the affirmative. Motion passed. 
 
Review and approval of DRS administration moving forward with requesting passage of 
the following legislation; SB60, SB149, SB153, and SB156.  All Commissioners were 
present and voted in the affirmative. Motion passed. 
 
Announcements:  
Date and location of the next regular meeting for the Commission for Rehabilitation 
Services: Monday March 9, 2015, 10:00 a.m.  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
3535 NW 58th, Suite 200, Oklahoma City, OK 73112. 
 
Adjournment:   
Meeting was declared adjourned by Jack Tucker, Commission Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



Executive Summary 
 March 9, 2015 

 

OSB Action Item 
 

ISSUE: 
 
Advise Commission of donations received by Oklahoma School for the Blind in 
February, 2015 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Gifts from individuals, groups and employees. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Superintendent recommends acceptance of gifts from sources listed above. 
 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  (if any) 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)/PACKET SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: (list) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Limit Summary to one page 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



O
S

B
 D

o
n

at
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 D

o
n

at
io

n
s 

                                
    

D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
u

n
d

er
 $

50
0 

 
 

 
 

D
at

e 
N

am
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
, C

it
y,

 S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 

C
as

h
 

F
u

n
d

 
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 
V

al
u

e 
2.

2.
15

 
A

E
R

B
V

I O
K

 C
ha

pt
er

 
81

4 
N

or
th

 F
 S

tr
ee

t 
M

us
ko

ge
e,

 O
K

  7
44

03
 

$2
00

.0
0 

70
1–

 B
ra

ill
e 

C
ha

lle
ng

e 
&

 C
an

e 
Q

ue
st

 
 

 

2.
3.

15
 

G
re

go
ry

 &
 S

on
ya

 
M

or
ga

ns
en

 
12

11
2 

S
E

 E
ag

le
 D

riv
e 

C
la

ck
am

as
, O

R
  9

70
15

 
$2

00
.0

0 
21

6 
– 

T
ec

h.
 D

ev
ic

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

u
b

to
ta

l o
f 

C
as

h
 (

u
n

d
er

 $
50

0)
 d

o
n

at
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

$4
00

.0
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 S
u

b
to

ta
l o

f 
V

al
u

e 
$0

.0
0 

D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
$5

00
 a

n
d

 o
ve

r 
 

 
 

 

2.
10

.1
5 

O
K

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
of

 B
lin

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
th

 

40
1 

N
or

th
 M

ai
n 

M
us

ko
ge

e,
 O

K
  7

44
03

 
$1

,0
00

.0
0 

21
6 

– 
G

e
ne

ra
l F

un
d

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
u

b
to

ta
l o

f 
C

as
h

 (
$5

00
 a

n
d

 o
ve

r)
 d

o
n

at
ed

 In
 F

eb
.  

20
15

 
 

$1
,0

00
.0

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

S
u

b
to

ta
l o

f 
V

al
u

e 
$ 

T
o

ta
l D

o
n

at
io

n
 A

m
ts

.-
 C

as
h

 a
n

d
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 f
o

r 
F

eb
. 2

01
5 

   
 $

1,
40

0.
00

 
 

 

Page 71



 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES 

RESOLUTION 2015-15 
March 9, 2015 

 
RESOLVED, THAT THE COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES DOES 
HEREBY APPROVE AND ADOPT THE FOLLOWING IN CONFORMANCE WITH SB 
356, O.S. Section 166.2 Title 74: 

 

 

Donations to the Oklahoma School for the Blind in February 2015, from 
individuals, groups and employees.  

 

 

 

Approved in regular session on March 9, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

_________________ 

Jack Tucker, Chair                                                                                                                     
Commission for Rehabilitation Services           

lcs 

Page 72



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



Executive Summary 
February 2015 

 

OSD Action Item 
 

ISSUE: 
 
To advise Commission of donations received at the Oklahoma School for the Deaf 
for February, 2015. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Gifts from off-campus individuals and groups and employees. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Superintendent recommends acceptance of gifts from sources listed above. 
 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:   
   (if any) 
 
None. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)/PACKET SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: 
     (list) 
 
 
 
 
*Limit Summary to one page 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
U

n
d

er
 $

50
0

D
at

e
N

am
e

A
d

d
re

ss
, C

it
y,

 S
ta

te
, Z

ip
C

as
h

F
u

n
d

P
ro

p
er

ty
V

al
u

e

2/
20

T
ar

ge
t T

ak
e 

C
ha

rg
e 

of
 E

du
ca

tio
n

P
O

 B
ox

 5
92

14
 M

in
ne

ap
ol

is
, M

N
 5

54
59

-0
21

4
$3

4.
92

$3
4.

92

$3
4.

92
$3

4.
92

D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
$5

00
 a

n
d

 O
ve

r
D

at
e

N
am

e
A

d
d

re
ss

, C
it

y,
 S

ta
te

, Z
ip

C
as

h
F

u
n

d
P

ro
p

er
ty

V
al

u
e

$0
.0

0

$3
4.

92
$3

4.
92

T
o

ta
l D

o
n

at
io

n
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 (

C
as

h
 a

n
d

 P
ro

p
er

ty
) 

fo
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
T

o
ta

l o
f 

V
al

u
e

O
S

D
 D

o
n

at
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

 D
o

n
at

io
n

s

S
ub

to
ta

l o
f C

as
h 

(u
nd

er
 $

50
0)

 d
on

at
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

S
ub

to
ta

l o
f V

al
ue

S
ub

to
ta

l o
f C

as
h 

($
50

0 
an

d 
O

ve
r)

 d
on

at
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

S
ub

to
ta

l o
f V

al
ue

Page 75



 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES 

RESOLUTION 2015-16 
March 9, 2015 

 
RESOLVED, THAT THE COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES DOES 
HEREBY APPROVE AND ADOPT THE FOLLOWING IN CONFORMANCE WITH SB 
356, O.S. Section 166.2 Title 74: 

 

 

Donations to the Oklahoma School for the Deaf in February 2015, from 
individuals, groups and employees.  

 

 

 

Approved in regular session on March 9, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

_________________ 

Jack Tucker, Chair                                                                                                                     
Commission for Rehabilitation Services           

lcs 

Page 76



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                 

Page 77



 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES 

RESOLUTION 2015-17 
March 9, 2015  

 
RESOLVED, THAT THE COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES DOES 
HEREBY ADOPT THESE ADMINISTRATIVE RULES, IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT:: 

Proposed Permanent Rules: 

612:1-1-6.  Description of forms and instructions issued by the Department for public 
use  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-2.  The Director of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-2.1.  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-8.1.  Executive officers  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-10.  Final signature authority  [AMENDED] 
612:1-5-1.  Overview of the department  [AMENDED] 
612:1-5-3.  Division of Visual Services (DVS) Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind 
& Visually Impaired (DVRBVI)  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-15.  Overview of reasonable accommodation  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-16.  Providing reasonable accommodations for employees  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-57.  Undue hardship/undue burdens  [REVOKED] 
612:1-13-3.  Administration of programs  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-4.  Dissemination of rules  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-5.  Awareness  [REVOKED] 
612:1-13-6.  Maintenance of racial and ethnic data  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-7.  Composition of planning and policymaking bodies  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-9.  Complaint rules and procedures  [AMENDED] 
612:3-3-20.  Department of Rehabilitation Services recruitment and selection plan   
[AMENDED] 
612:3-5-30.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational  
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired compliance reviews [AMENDED] 
612:3-5-31.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational  
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired outcome measures  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-1.  Purpose  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation programs  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.1.  Procedural exceptions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.2.  Pilot projects  [AMENDED] 

612:10-1-5.  Confidentiality  [AMENDED] 

Page 78



612:10-1-6.  Due process  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-7.  Purchase of services and goods for individuals with disabilities  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-3-2.  Consideration of comparable services and benefits  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-3.  Client participation in services cost and financial status determination  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-3-4.  Services exempt from client participation in service costs  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-5.  Basic living requirements  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-6.  Income, Assets and Liabilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-1.  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-2.  Field staff responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-3.  Client responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-21.  Processing incoming referrals  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-21.1  Information and referral system  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-24.1.  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational rehabilitation services  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-24.2  Assessment for determining eligibility  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-24.3  Trial Work Experience and Extended Evaluation  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-25.1  Order of selection  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-31.  Transfer of cases  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-50.  Eligibility Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-51.  Individualized Plan for Employment  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-87.  Actions requiring supervisor’s approval  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-98.  General guidelines for physical and mental restoration services 
[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-130.  Maintenance  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-142.  General guidelines for training services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-149.  College and university training  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-150.  Continued eligibility for college or university training  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-152.  Payment of tuition and fees at colleges and universities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-158.  Training for individuals in custody of the Department of Corrections  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-161.  Public and private vocational schools  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-162.  Textbooks, supplies, training tools and equipment  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-183.  Ongoing support services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-184.  Extended services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-199.  Reader/recording services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-201.  Rehabilitation teaching services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-203.  Orientation and Mobility (O & M)  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-205.  Services to persons who are deaf –blind  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-206.  Assistive technology services for individuals with visual impairments  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-216.  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks and supplies  
[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-245.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-9-17.  Application Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10-11-7.  Administrative review  [AMENDED] 

Page 79



612:15-1-3.  Library functions and legal basis  [AMENDED] 
612:15-5-2.  Suspension procedures  [AMENDED] 
612:20-3-5.  Departmental resources  [AMENDED] 
612:25-2-5.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-TOC.  Subchapter 4.  The State Licensing Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-1.  Organization of the State Licensing Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-14.  Training for new or potential licensed managers  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-27.  Initial inventory and supplies  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-52.  SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers 
[REVOKED 
612:25-4-53.  Assignment, promotion and transfer policy [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-54.  Business enterprise vacancy announcement  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-55.  Qualifications  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-57.  Applicant Selection Committee  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-58.  Annual and Performance Evaluations  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-59.  Interview, Selection Process and Scoring  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-60.  Ninety day replacement  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-61.  Satellite/remote business enterprise locations  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-62.  Vending machine income  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-72.  Audits  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-73.  Due Process  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-1.  Licensing requirements for managing a business enterprise  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-2.1.  Probation  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-3.  Grounds for suspension or termination of a license [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-15.  Setting aside of funds  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-18.  Establishing new licensed managers in business enterprises  
[AMENDED] 
612:25-6-21.  Business expenses  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-22.  Monthly reports  [AMENDED] 
 

Internal Policies: 
DRS: 1-13-1.  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3-3-16.  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe working 
conditions or services are temporarily reduced due to hazardous weather (paid 
administrative leave)  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3-3-20.  DRS Criminal Background Check  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3-3-95.  Types of grievances  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-101.  Discrimination and harassment complaint policy and procedure  
[AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-110.  Risk Management Programs Purpose and Scope  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-112.  Disaster Response and Recovery  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-9-8.  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Division’s Clients  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-9-80.  Fleet management  [AMENDED] 

 
 
 

Page 80



OKLAHOMA COMMISSION FOR REHABILITATION SERVICES 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 1.  ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS 
DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 3.  MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIVISION 

DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 10.  VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION AND VISUAL SERVICES 
DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 15.  OKLAHOMA LIBRARY FOR THE BLIND  

AND PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED (OLBPH) 
DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 20.  SPECIAL SCHOOLS 

DRS POLICY, CHAPTER 25.  BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
 

March 9, 2015 
 

ISSUE:  The majority of the changes throughout Chapter 1 involve updating language to reflect 
restructuring of the Office of Civil Rights.  Updates include clarifying processes and updating 
language to reflect current use of terms.  Chapter 3 changes involve name change of Office of 
Personnel Management becoming Human Capital Management. Changes to Chapter 10 consist 
of clarifying terms and updating language to reflect current use of terms. Updated language 
consists of requiring all diabetics to complete a knowledge survey regarding current best 
practices for the management of diabetes; requiring written medical/vocational justification when 
lenses and frames are purchased by DRS for clients and payment of tuition requires completion 
of the first semester, grade report, proof of enrollment, and an itemized invoice to support 
authorization.The majority of the changes that encompasses all chapters is a revised name from 
Visual Services (VS) to Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind and Visually Impaired (VRBVI). 
Additional changes to Chapter 25 are due to state and federal audits as well as updating 
language. 

 
BACKGROUND:   Due to changes in procedures and state and federal audits, changes in our 
policy are now necessary. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Review and discuss: 
External Policies: 

612:1-1-6.  Description of forms and instructions issued by the Department for public use  
[AMENDED] 

612:1-3-2.  The Director of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-2.1.  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 

612:1-3-8.1.  Executive officers  [AMENDED] 
612:1-3-10.  Final signature authority  [AMENDED] 
612:1-5-1.  Overview of the department  [AMENDED] 
612:1-5-3.  Division of Visual Services (DVS) Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 

Visually Impaired (DVRBVI)  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-15.  Overview of reasonable accommodation  [AMENDED] 
612:1-11-16.  Providing reasonable accommodations for employees  [AMENDED] 

Page 81



612:1-11-57.  Undue hardship/undue burdens  [REVOKED] 
612:1-13-3.  Administration of programs  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-4.  Dissemination of rules  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-5.  Awareness  [REVOKED] 
612:1-13-6.  Maintenance of racial and ethnic data  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-7.  Composition of planning and policymaking bodies  [AMENDED] 
612:1-13-9.  Complaint rules and procedures  [AMENDED] 
612:3-3-20.  Department of Rehabilitation Services recruitment and selection plan  

[AMENDED] 
612:3-5-30.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for 

the Blind & Visually Impaired compliance reviews [AMENDED] 
612:3-5-31.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for 

the Blind & Visually Impaired outcome measures  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-1.  Purpose  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation programs  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.1.  Procedural exceptions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-3.2.  Pilot projects  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-5.  Confidentiality  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-6.  Due process  [AMENDED] 
612:10-1-7.  Purchase of services and goods for individuals with disabilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-2.  Consideration of comparable services and benefits  [AMENDED] 

612:10-3-3.  Client participation in services cost and financial status determination  
[AMENDED] 

612:10-3-4.  Services exempt from client participation in service costs  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-5.  Basic living requirements  [AMENDED] 
612:10-3-6.  Income, Assets and Liabilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-1.  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 

Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-2.  Field staff responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-3.  Client responsibilities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-21.  Processing incoming referrals  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-21.1  Information and referral system  [AMENDED] 

612:10-7-24.1.  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational rehabilitation services  
[AMENDED] 

612:10-7-24.2  Assessment for determining eligibility  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-24.3  Trial Work Experience and Extended Evaluation  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-25.1  Order of selection  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-31.  Transfer of cases  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-50.  Eligibility Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-51.  Individualized Plan for Employment  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-87.  Actions requiring supervisor’s approval  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-98.  General guidelines for physical and mental restoration services 

[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-130.  Maintenance  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-142.  General guidelines for training services  [AMENDED] 

Page 82



612:10-7-149.  College and university training  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-150.  Continued eligibility for college or university training  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-152.  Payment of tuition and fees at colleges and universities  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-158.  Training for individuals in custody of the Department of Corrections  

[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-161.  Public and private vocational schools  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-162.  Textbooks, supplies, training tools and equipment  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-183.  Ongoing support services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-184.  Extended services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-199.  Reader/recording services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-201.  Rehabilitation teaching services  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-203.  Orientation and Mobility (O & M)  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-205.  Services to persons who are deaf –blind  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-206.  Assistive technology services for individuals with visual impairments  

[AMENDED] 
612:10-7-216.  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks and supplies  [AMENDED] 
612:10-7-245.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:10-9-17.  Application Status  [AMENDED] 
612:10-11-7.  Administrative review  [AMENDED] 
612:15-1-3.  Library functions and legal basis  [AMENDED] 
612:15-5-2.  Suspension procedures  [AMENDED] 
612:20-3-5.  Departmental resources  [AMENDED] 
612:25-2-5.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-TOC.  Subchapter 4.  The State Licensing Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-1.  Organization of the State Licensing Agency  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-14.  Training for new or potential licensed managers  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-27.  Initial inventory and supplies  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-52.  SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers 

[REVOKED 
612:25-4-53.  Assignment, promotion and transfer policy [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-54.  Business enterprise vacancy announcement  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-55.  Qualifications  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-57.  Applicant Selection Committee  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-58.  Annual and Performance Evaluations  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-59.  Interview, Selection Process and Scoring  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-60.  Ninety day replacement  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-61.  Satellite/remote business enterprise locations  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-62.  Vending machine income  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-72.  Audits  [AMENDED] 
612:25-4-73.  Due Process  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-1.  Licensing requirements for managing a business enterprise  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-2.1.  Probation  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-3.  Grounds for suspension or termination of a license [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-15.  Setting aside of funds  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-18.  Establishing new licensed managers in business enterprises  [AMENDED] 
612:25-6-21.  Business expenses  [AMENDED] 

Page 83



612:25-6-22.  Monthly reports  [AMENDED] 
 

Internal Policies; 
 

DRS: 1-13-1.  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3-3-16.  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe working 

conditions or services are temporarily reduced due to hazardous weather (paid administrative 
leave)  [AMENDED] 

DRS: 3-3-20.  DRS Criminal Background Check  [AMENDED] 
DRS: 3-3-95.  Types of grievances  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-101.  Discrimination and harassment complaint policy and procedure  

[AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-110.  Risk Management Programs Purpose and Scope  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-3-112.  Disaster Response and Recovery  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-9-8.  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 

Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Division’s Clients  [AMENDED] 
DRS:3-9-80.  Fleet management  [AMENDED] 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  The proposed policy sections should have no impact on the budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS/PACKET SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: 
 

612:1-1-6, 612:1-3-2, 612:1-3-2.1, 612:1-3-8.1, 612:1-3-10, 612:1-5-1, 612:1-5-3, 612:1-11-2, 
612:1-11-15, 612:1-11-16, 612:1-11-57, 612:1-13-3, 612:1-13-4, 612:1-13-5, 612:1-13-6, 
612:1-13-7, 612:1-13-9, 612:3-3-20,612:3-5-30, 612:3-5-31, 612:10-1-1, 612:10-1-2,  
612:10-1-3, 612:10-1-3.1, 612:10-1-3.2, 612:10-1-5, 612:10-1-6, 612:10-1-7, 612:10-3-2, 
612:10-3-5, 612:10-3-6, 612:10-7-1, 612:10-7-2, 612:10-7-3, 612:10-7-21, 612:10-7-21.1, 
612:10-7-24.1, 612:10-7-24.2, 612:10-7-24.3, 612:10-7-25.1, 612:10-7-31, 612:10-7-50, 
612:10-7-51, 612:10-7-87, 612:10-7-98, 612:10-7-130, 612:10-7-142, 612:10-7-149, 612:10-7-
150, 612:10-7-152, 612:10-7-158, 612:10-7-161, 612:10-7-162, 612:10-7-183, 612:10-7-184,  
612:10-7-199, 612:10-7-201, 612:10-7-203, 612:10-7-205, 612:10-7-206, 612:10-7-216,  
612:10-7-245, 612:10-9-17, 612:10-11-7, 612:15-1-3, 612:15-5-2, 612:20-3-5, 612:25-2-5, 
612:25-4-TOC, 612:25-4-1, 612:25-4-14, 612:25-4-27, 612:25-4-52, 612:25-4-53, 612:25-4-54, 
612:25-4-55, 612:25-4-57, 612:25-4-58, 612:25-4-59, 612:25-4-60, 612:25-4-61, 612:25-4-62, 
612:25-4-72, 612:25-4-73, 612:25-6-1, 612:25-6-2.1, 612:25-6-3, 612:25-6-15, 612:25-6-18, 
612:25-6-21, 612:25-6-22, DRS:1-13-1, DRS: 3-3-16, DRS: 3-3-20, DRS:3-3-95, DRS:3-3-101, 
DRS:3-3-110, DRS:3-3-112, DRS:3-9-8, DRS:3-9-80 

Page 84



Page 85



612:1-1-6  Administrative Operations 
  Description of forms and instructions 
  issued by the Department for public use 
 

 

612:1-1-6  Administrative Operations 
  Description of forms and instructions 
  issued by the Department for public use 

612:1-1-6.  Description of forms and instructions issued by the Department for public 1 
use  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
 Forms and instructions issued by the Department for public use are: 4 
 5 
(1)  "A Personal Directory, Your Rights and Responsibilities as an Applicant or Client for 6 
Vocational Rehabilitation or Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 7 
Visually Impaired" is issued for public use as a guide to accessing services from the 8 
Department, as a guide to requesting fair hearings, and as a guide to the application and 9 
eligibility determination process. The explanations given in this publication repeat 10 
Department policy faithfully and accurately. 11 
 12 
(2)  The Certification as a Person With A Severe Disability is issued to qualifying individuals 13 
to use in applying for State government jobs, and allows for exemption from specific Merit 14 
System requirements. 15 
 16 
(3)  From time to time, the Department issues public information pamphlets for general 17 
distribution. These pamphlets present general overviews of services provided by the 18 
Department as a whole, or by Divisions or Units within the Department. These pamphlets 19 
are carefully reviewed using the two-person proofreading method to check against the 20 
official Code or Register text. 21 

Page 86



612:1-3-2  Administrative Operations 
  The Director of Rehabilitation Services 

 
612:1-3-2  Administrative Operations 
  The Director of Rehabilitation Services 

 1 
612:1-3-2.  The Director of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  The Director of Rehabilitation Services, as the chief administrative and executive 4 
officer of the Department of Rehabilitation Services (DRS), is charged with the 5 
responsibility for day-to-day direction of the activities necessary for DRS to attain its 6 
mission as established by Title 74, Section 166.1 et seq. of Oklahoma State Statute.  7 
The work of the Director is overseen by the Commission for Rehabilitation Services. 8 
 9 
(b)  The Director directly supervises the Chief of Staff, the Chief Fiscal Officer, the 10 
Communications Director and External Relations Officer, and the Civil Rights 11 
Administrator. 12 
 13 
(c)  The Director's duties include: 14 

 15 
(1)  assuring that all of DRS is working toward its mission and the goals established 16 
by the Commission through aggressive implementation of the planning and 17 
budgeting system; 18 
 19 
(2)  serving as staff to the Commission for Rehabilitation Services, providing 20 
necessary input for decision-making and assuring that actions approved by the 21 
Commission are carried out; 22 
 23 
(3)  serving as ex officio member to the Rehabilitation Advisory Council, and 24 
consultant to the Independent Living Council; 25 
 26 
(4)  developing and maintaining cooperative relationships with lawmakers and other 27 
officials, both federal and state, to assure the fulfillment of DRS's mission; 28 
 29 
(5)  maximizing all available resources for the delivery of services to the clients DRS 30 
is charged to serve; 31 
 32 
(6)  serving as the chief spokesperson for DRS and as an advocate for the clients it 33 
serves; 34 
 35 
(7)  assuring the coordination of services with other  state agencies; and, 36 
 37 
(8)  selecting staff capable of carrying out the DRS mission for the areas 38 
immediately under the Director’s supervision, establishing job descriptions and 39 
specifications for each of those positions, delegating authority to complete duties 40 
assigned and overseeing the accomplishment of those assigned responsibilities. 41 

Page 87



612:1-3-2.1  Administrative Operations 
  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services 

 
612:1-3-2.1  Administrative Operations 
  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services 

 1 
612:1-3-2.1.  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  The Chief of Staff of Rehabilitation Services assists the Director of the Department 4 
in fulfilling the chief administrative and executive responsibilities for day-to-day direction 5 
of the activities necessary for DRS to attain its mission as established by Title 74, 6 
Section 166.1 et seq. of Oklahoma State Statute.  The work of the Chief of Staff is 7 
overseen by the Director of the Department of Rehabilitation Services.  In the Director's 8 
absence, the work of the Chief of Staff is overseen by the Commission for Rehabilitation 9 
Services. 10 
 11 
(b)  To the extent deemed necessary and prudent by the Director, or in the Director's 12 
absence, the Chief of Staff supervises the Division Administrators for Vocational 13 
Rehabilitation Services, Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually 14 
Impaired, Disability Determination, Financial Services Division, Management Services, 15 
and the Superintendents of the School for the Blind and the School for the Deaf.  To the 16 
extent deemed necessary and prudent by the Director, or in the Director's absence, the 17 
Chief of Staff also supervises the Communications Director and External Relations 18 
Officer, and the Chief Fiscal Officer, and the Civil Rights Administrator. 19 
 20 
(c)  The Chief of Staff duties include: 21 

 22 
(1)  assuring that all of DRS is working toward its mission and the goals established 23 
by the Commission and the Director through aggressive implementation of the 24 
planning and budgeting system; 25 
 26 
(2)  serving as staff to the Commission for Rehabilitation Services at the direction of, 27 
or in the absence of, the Director, providing necessary input for decision-making and 28 
assuring that actions approved by the Commission are carried out; 29 
 30 
(3)  developing and maintaining cooperative relationships with lawmakers and other 31 
officials, both federal and state, to assure the fulfillment of DRS's mission; 32 
 33 
(4)  maximizing all available resources for the delivery of services to the clients DRS 34 
is charged to serve; 35 
 36 
(5)  serving as a spokesperson for DRS and as an advocate for the clients it serves; 37 
 38 
(6)  assuring the coordination of services with other state agencies; and, 39 
 40 
(7)  carrying out such other duties and assignments the Director, or in the Director's 41 
absence, the Commission deems necessary and prudent to attain the mission of 42 
DRS; delegating authority to complete duties assigned, and overseeing the 43 
accomplishment of those assigned responsibilities. 44 

Page 88



612:1-3-8.1  Administrative Operations 
  Executive officers 

 
612:1-3-8.1  Administrative Operations 
  Executive officers 

 
612:1-3-8.1  Executive officers  [AMENDED] 
 

The executive officers in (1) through (54) report directly to the Department of 
Rehabilitation Services Director. 
 
(1)  Chief of Staff. The Chief of Staff assists the Director of the Department in 
fulfilling the chief administrative and executive responsibilities for day-to-day 
direction of the activities necessary for DRS to attain its mission as established by 
Title 74, Section 166.1 et seq. of Oklahoma State Statute.  The work of the Chief of 
Staff is overseen by the Director of the Department of Rehabilitation Services.  In the 
Director's absence, the work of the Chief of Staff is overseen by the Commission for 
Rehabilitation Services. 
 
(2)  Chief Fiscal Officer. The Chief Fiscal Officer is responsible for the direction and 
oversight of the Department’s fiscal operations, including finance, general and 
federal accounting, budgeting, administration and control of financial information 
systems, and reporting activities.  
 
(3)  Civil Rights Administrator. The Civil Rights Office is responsible for preparing 
the annual Affirmative Action Plan; ensuring that DRS is in compliance with all 
applicable state and federal laws, executive orders and other policies regarding 
discrimination based on race, sex, national origin, age, religion, and/or disability.  
The Civil Rights Administrator conducts investigations of discrimination and/or 504, 
ADA compliance complaints for Department employees and clients. 
 
(43)  External Relations Officer.  The External Relations Officer coordinates The 
Department's legislative initiatives and monitors legislative actions affecting the 
Department. 
 
(54)  Communications Director. The Communications Director coordinates the 
dissemination of public information about DRS.  This is accomplished through news 
releases, a Department newsletter, publications in appropriate media formats, and 
other public relations activities. The Communications Office is also responsible for 
producing the Department's annual report. 

Page 89



612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 
 

 

612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 

612:1-3-10.  Final signature authority  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
The Department of Rehabilitation Services recognizes the importance of efficient 3 

processing of resource and operations approval requests. At the same time, the 4 
Department must assure sufficient oversight of resource allocation in order to fulfill its 5 
obligations as a steward of public funds. The Department has therefore established a 6 
signature authority listing to delineate final approval levels for resource and operations 7 
approval requests.  With regard to signature authority on contracts, all expenditures must 8 
be consistent with DRS's budget categories as approved by the Commission. Delegation of 9 
final signature authority is limited to the next lower administrative level unless approved in 10 
writing by the Director. The administrator is to notify the appropriate administrative 11 
programs of delegations. Administrators have authority to approve actions within their 12 
areas of responsibility at all administrative levels below their own.  The requests listed in (1) 13 
through (9) of this Subsection must continue to be reviewed and approved by the 14 
appropriate staff before presentation to the individual with final signature authority. There 15 
are additional resource and operations approvals unique to each administrative area that 16 
are stated in the policies established for that administrative area. 17 

 18 
(1)  Director's signature. The Director has final signature authority for items listed in 19 
(A) through (E) of this Paragraph. 20 

 21 
(A)  Sole source contracts. 22 
 23 
(B)  Initial contracts for $250,000 or more. 24 
 25 
(C)  Notices of personnel action (may be delegated). 26 
 27 
(D)  Leave without pay requests for 90 days or more. 28 
 29 
(E)  Other actions as required by executive order, statute, etc. 30 

 31 
(2)  Chief of Staff. The Chief of Staff has final signature authority for items listed in (A) 32 
through (C) of this Paragraph. 33 

 34 
(A)  Initial contracts between $100,000 and $250,000 on a case by case basis and 35 
upon written authority of the Director. 36 
 37 
(B)  Initial contracts or interagency agreements which obligate the entire 38 
Department or more than one division. 39 
 40 
(C)  New brochures, forms, publications (electronic or printed), and videos 41 
produced for more than one division. 42 

 43 
(3)  Division Administrator. Division Administrators have final signature authority for 44 
items listed in (A) through (K) of this Paragraph. 45 

Page 90



612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 
 

 

612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 

 46 
(A)  Initial contracts for less than $100,000. 47 
 48 
(B)  New or revised interagency agreements involving the division. 49 
 50 
(C)  Administrative purchases costing $10,000 or more (may be delegated). 51 
Computer purchases must be co-signed by the Administrator for Information 52 
Services. 53 
 54 
(D)  Requests for employee in-state travel (may be delegated). 55 
 56 
(E)  Requests for out-of-state employee travel. 57 
 58 
(F)  Final decisions for employee grievance resolution, other than discrimination 59 
complaints, and for adverse action after review by Human Resources. 60 
 61 
(G)  Leave without pay requests for less than 90 days. 62 
 63 
(H)  Brochures, forms, publications (electronic or printed), and videos produced for 64 
the division. 65 
 66 
(I)  Requests for internships or practicums for respective division. 67 
 68 
(J)  Memos for general distribution to the division. 69 
 70 
(K)  Grant proposals. 71 

 72 
(4)  Executive and MSD Administrators. Executive and MSD Administrators have final 73 
signature authority for items listed in (A) through (F) of this Paragraph. 74 

 75 
(A)  Office supply orders. 76 
 77 
(B)  Reorder of existing printed materials. 78 
 79 
(C)  MSD Unit administrative purchase requisitions under area of responsibility up 80 
to $10,000. Computer purchases must be co-signed by the Administrator for 81 
Information Services. 82 
 83 
(D)  Administrative memos under area of responsibility. 84 
 85 
(E)  Policy Transmittals by the Administrator for Policy Development and Programs 86 
Standards. 87 
 88 
(F)  Requests for employee in-state travel. 89 

 90 

Page 91



612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 
 

 

612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 

(5)  Field Coordinators and Program Managers in DVR and DVSDVRBVI. The Field 91 
Coordinators or Program Managers in Vocational Rehabilitation Services and Visual 92 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Divisions have final 93 
signature authority for administrative purchases up to $10,000. Computer purchases 94 
must be co-signed by the Administrator for Information Services. 95 
 96 
(6)  Program Managers in DVR and DVSDVRBVI. Program Managers have final 97 
signature authority for items listed in (A) through (B) of this Paragraph. 98 

 99 
(A)  Office supply requisitions other than those available on the electronic ordering 100 
system. 101 
 102 
(B)  Reorder of existing printed materials. 103 

 104 
(7)  Superintendents at OSB and OSD. Superintendents have final signature authority 105 
for items listed in (A) through (J) of this Paragraph for the respective school. 106 

 107 
(A)  Initial contracts for less than $100,000. 108 
 109 
(B)  Interagency agreements involving only the school. 110 
 111 
(C)  All administrative and educational purchases. Computer purchases must be co-112 
signed by the Administrator for Information Services. 113 
 114 
(D)  Requests for all employee travel. 115 
 116 
(E)  Final decisions for adverse action after review by Human Resources. 117 
 118 
(F)  Final decisions for grievance resolutions, other than discrimination complaints. 119 
 120 
(G)  Leave without pay requests for less than 90 days. 121 
 122 
(H)  Requests for internships or practicums. 123 
 124 
(I)   Brochures, forms, publications (electronic or printed), and videos produced for 125 
the school. 126 
 127 
(J)  Grant proposals. 128 
 129 

(8)  Supervisors at OSB and OSD. Supervisors at OSB and OSD have final signature 130 
authority for items in (A) through (B) of this Paragraph for the respective school. 131 

 132 
(A)  Office supply orders. 133 
 134 
(B)  Reorder of existing printed materials. 135 

Page 92



612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 
 

 

612:1-3-10  Administrative Operations 
  Final signature authority 

 136 
(9)  Program Managers, Disability Determination Division. Program Managers at the 137 
Disability Determination Division have final signature authority for the following items in 138 
(A) through (B) of this Paragraph. 139 

 140 
(A)  The Program Manager responsible for budgets, contracts, and purchases 141 
approves administrative purchases under $10,000. Computer purchases must be 142 
co-signed by the Administrator for Information Services. 143 
 144 
(B)  Reorder of existing printed materials. 145 

Page 93



612:1-5-1  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of the department 
 

 

612:1-5-1  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of the department 

612:1-5-1.  Overview of the department  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
 The purpose of this Subchapter is to provide an overview of the program divisions 3 
within the Department of Rehabilitation Services. Program divisions are established for 4 
the following areas: Vocational Rehabilitation Services, Visual ServicesVocational 5 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired, Disability Determination, Management 6 
Services, The Oklahoma School for the Blind and the Oklahoma School for the Deaf. 7 
Each of the Divisions has one or more components. 8 

Page 94



612:1-5-3  Administrative Operations 
  Division of Visual ServicesVocational  
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired (DVSDVRBVI) 

 
612:1-5-3  Administrative Operations 
  Division of Visual ServicesVocational  
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired (DVSDVRBVI) 

 1 
612:1-5-3.  Division of Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 2 

Visually Impaired (DVSDVRBVI)  [AMENDED] 3 
 4 
The Division of Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually 5 

Impaired provides diagnostic, counseling and guidance, physical restoration, training, 6 
and other services to individuals whose major disability is blindness, or severe visual 7 
impairments and/or diabetes impairment. All departmental managers and Visual 8 
ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Field Coordinators 9 
report directly to the Division Administrator or designee. Rehabilitation teachers for the 10 
blind provide in-home training, counseling and instruction in daily-living skills to blind 11 
individuals. DRS has field staff assigned to meet the needs in every county of the state, 12 
although staff may not be officed in each county. Local office staff report to VSVRBVI 13 
Program Managers, who report to the Field Coordinators. The Oklahoma Library for the 14 
Blind and Physically Handicapped provides books and magazines in special media to 15 
blind and print-limited Oklahomans. The Division of Visual ServicesVocational 16 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired administers the Randolph-Sheppard 17 
Business Enterprise Program in Oklahoma, securing suitable locations for vending 18 
facilities; designing and installing equipment; recruiting, training, placing and supervising 19 
operators for the facilities.  20 

Page 95



612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

 

612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

 1 
612:1-11-2.  Definitions [AMENDED] 2 
 3 

The following words and terms, when used in this Subchapter, shall have the 4 
following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 5 

 6 
"Disability" means, with respect to an individual, a physical or mental impairment 7 

that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities of such individual. It also 8 
means having a record of such an impairment or being regarded as having such an 9 
impairment. "Disability" does not include: 10 

 11 
(A)  sexual behavior disorders; 12 
 13 
(B)  compulsive gambling, kleptomania, or pyromania; 14 
 15 
(C)  psychoactive substance abuse disorders resulting from current illegal use of 16 
drugs; or 17 
 18 
(D)  homosexuality and bisexuality. 19 

 20 
"Drug" means a controlled substance, as defined in Schedules I through V of 21 

Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act [21 U.S.C. 812]. 22 
 23 
"Equal employment opportunity" means an opportunity to enjoy equal benefits 24 

and privileges of employment as are available to an average similarly situated employee 25 
without a disability. 26 

 27 
"Essential functions" means the fundamental job duties of the employment 28 

position the individual with a disability holds or desires. The term does not include the 29 
marginal functions of the 30 
position. 31 

 32 
"Has a record of such impairment" means the individual has a history of, or has 33 

been misclassified as having, a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits 34 
one or more major life activities. 35 

 36 
"Illegal use of drugs" means the use of drugs whose possession or distribution is 37 

unlawful under the Controlled Substances Act, as periodically updated by the Food and 38 
Drug Administration. 39 

 40 
"Is regarded as having such an impairment" means: 41 

 42 
(A)  has a physical or mental impairment that does not substantially limit major 43 
life activities but is treated by a covered entity as constituting such limitation; 44 
 45 

Page 96



612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

 

612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

(B)  has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits major life 46 
activities only as a result of the attitudes of others toward such impairment; or 47 
 48 
(C)  has none of the impairments defined herein but is treated by a covered entity 49 
as having a substantially limiting impairment. 50 

 51 
"Major life activities" means functions such as caring for oneself, performing 52 

manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, and working. 53 
 54 
"Physical or mental impairment" means: 55 

 56 
(A)  any physiological disorder, or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or 57 
anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: 58 
neurological, musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory (including 59 
speech organs), cardiovascular, reproductive, digestive, genitourinary, hemic and 60 
lymphatic, skin, and endocrine; or 61 
 62 
(B)  any mental or psychological disorder, such as intellectual disability, organic 63 
brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. 64 

 65 
"Qualified individual with a disability" means an individual with a disability who 66 

satisfies the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related requirements of 67 
the employment position such individual holds or desires, and who, with or without 68 
reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of such position. For 69 
purposes of organizational policy, the Department differentiates between a qualified 70 
person with a disability in the area of employment and a qualified person with a 71 
disability in the area of DRS programs. 72 

 73 
(A)  Employment: An  A qualified individual with a disability is one who, with or 74 
without reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the 75 
position that the individual holds or desires. For the purposes of the ADA, 76 
consideration shall be given to the employer's judgment regarding what functions 77 
of a job are essential. If an employer has prepared a written description before 78 
advertising or interviewing applicants for the job, this description shall be 79 
considered evidence of the essential functions of the job. 80 
 81 
(B)  Programs: An A qualified individual with a disability is one who, with or 82 
without reasonable modifications to rules, policies, or practices; removal of 83 
architectural, communication, or transportation barriers; or the provision of 84 
auxiliary aids and services, meets the essential eligibility requirements for the 85 
receipt of services or the participation in programs or activities provided by DRS. 86 

 87 
"Reasonable accommodation" means: 88 

 89 

Page 97



612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

 

612:1-11-2  Administrative Operations 
  Definitions 

(A)  modifications or adjustments to a job application process that enable a 90 
qualified applicant with a disability to be considered for the position such qualified 91 
applicant desires; or 92 
 93 
(B)  modifications or adjustments to the work environment, or to the manner or 94 
circumstances under which the position held or desired is customarily performed, 95 
that enable a qualified individual with a disability to perform the essential 96 
functions of that position; or 97 
 98 
(C)  modifications or adjustments that enable a covered entity's employee with a 99 
disability to enjoy equal benefits and privileges of employment as are enjoyed by 100 
its other similarly situated employees without disabilities. 101 

 102 
"Relationship or association with an individual with a disability" means a 103 

qualified individual with or without a disability who has a known relationship or 104 
association with an individual who has a known disability. While such individuals are 105 
protected from discrimination in terms of equal jobs and benefits, and equal programs 106 
and activities, there is no requirement for an employer to provide a person without a 107 
disability with a reasonable accommodation. This duty only applies to qualified 108 
applicants or employees with disabilities. 109 

 110 
"Substantially limits" means: 111 

 112 
(A)  unable to perform a major life activity that the average person in the general 113 
population can perform; or 114 
 115 
(B)  significantly restricted as to the condition, manner or duration under which an 116 
individual can perform a particular major life activity as compared to the 117 
condition, manner, or duration under which the average person in the general 118 
population can perform that same major life activity. 119 

 120 
"Undue hardship" means, with respect to the provision of an accommodation, 121 

significant difficulty or expense incurred by a covered entity. The concept of undue 122 
hardship is not limited to financial difficulty. Undue hardship refers to any 123 
accommodation that would be unduly costly, extensive, substantial, or disruptive, or that 124 
would fundamentally alter the nature or operation of the business. 125 

Page 98



612:1-11-15  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of reasonable accommodation 

 
612:11-15  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of reasonable accommodation 
 

 1 
612:1-11-15.  Overview of reasonable accommodation [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  Reasonable accommodation is a modification or adjustment to a job, the work 4 
environment, or policies that enables a qualified individual with a disability to enjoy an 5 
equal employment opportunity.  A reasonable accommodation must be effective. 6 
 7 
(b)  The ADA requires reasonable accommodation in three aspects of employment: 8 

 9 
(1)  to ensure equal opportunity in the application process; 10 
 11 
(2)  to enable a qualified individual with a disability to perform the essential functions 12 
of a job; and, 13 
 14 
(3)  to enable an employee with a disability to enjoy equal benefits and privileges of 15 
employment. 16 

 17 
(c)  Reasonable accommodation requirements do not include accommodations that are 18 
for personal use.  19 
 20 
(d)  Generally, it is the responsibility of the applicant or employee with a disability to 21 
inform the Department that an accommodation is needed to participate in the 22 
application process, to perform essential job functions, or to receive equal benefits and 23 
privileges of employment.  24 
 25 
(e)  If an employee with a known disability is not performing well, or is having difficulty 26 
performing a job, the Department may assess whether this is due to a disability and 27 
may inquire whether the employee needs a reasonable accommodation. It is not 28 
appropriate for the employee's supervisor to independently initiate a request if the 29 
employee does not wish one.  An individual with a disability is not required to accept an 30 
accommodation if the individual has not requested an accommodation and does not 31 
believe one is needed. However, if the individual refuses an accommodation necessary 32 
to perform essential job functions, and as a result cannot perform those functions, the 33 
individual may not be considered qualified. 34 

 35 
(f)  When a qualified individual with a disability requests an accommodation, the 36 
Department must make a reasonable effort to provide an accommodation that is 37 
effective for the individual.  The person with the disability must always be consulted as 38 
the first step in considering an accommodation. The Department and the individual 39 
shall work together to identify the appropriate accommodation. The Department may 40 
consult the Job Accommodation Network or other technical assistance entities as a 41 
resource in order to reasonably accommodate an employee, or job applicant, or client.  42 

 43 
(g)  An individual with a disability may choose to provide his or her own accommodation. 44 
The individual's willingness to do so does not relieve the Department of the duty to 45 

Page 99



612:1-11-15  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of reasonable accommodation 

 
612:11-15  Administrative Operations 
  Overview of reasonable accommodation 
 

provide the accommodation should the individual for any reason be unable or unwilling 46 
to continue to provide the accommodation. 47 
 48 
(h)  The Department may request documentation from an appropriate licensed 49 
professional regarding an individual's functional limitations, when they are not apparent, 50 
to support a reasonable accommodation request. 51 

Page 100



612:1-11-16  Administrative Operations 
  Providing reasonable accommodations 
 

612:1-11-16  Administrative Operations 
  Providing reasonable accommodations 

612:1-11-16.  Providing reasonable accommodations for employees [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Requests for reasonable accommodation. AllAny DRS employeesemployee who 3 
qualify qualifies as an individual with a disability havehas a right to request reasonable 4 
accommodation . No employee will be discriminated against with regard to employment 5 
for exercising his or her rights under the Americans with Disabilities Act.  To be 6 
considered qualified an employee must be able to perform the essential functions of 7 
their his/her position with or without a reasonable accommodation.  If the employee is 8 
unable to perform the essential functions with or without a reasonable accommodation 9 
they may no longer be considered qualified and may be removed from the position. The 10 
employee's supervisor shall inform the Civil Rights Administrator of each 11 
accommodation request.  DRS consumers also have the right to request reasonable 12 
modification of policies, practices or procedures, and/or the removal of barriers to 13 
achieve program access.  This information will include a description of the request, the 14 
proposed solution, and the date the solution is to be carried out.  15 

 16 
(1)  Request by a consumer. The Department has committed itself to ensuring that 17 
its offices and facilities are architecturally accessible. If an architectural barrier is 18 
identified, the local administrator is to notify DRS Property Management and the 19 
agency ADA Coordinator immediately. Other requests for reasonable 20 
accommodations should be met in the most effective and efficient manner available. 21 
 22 
(2)  Request by an employee. Employee requests for reasonable accommodation 23 
shall be handled on an individual, case-by-case basis.  The Department shall 24 
engage in an interactive process with the qualified employee in an effort to identify 25 
reasonable accommodations that will allow the qualified individual with a disability to 26 
perform the essential job functions. It is the responsibility of the employee requesting 27 
the reasonable accommodation to actively participate in the process. This includes 28 
but is not limited to providing any documentation or information from an appropriate 29 
licensed professional indicating the disability requiring a reasonable accommodation 30 
and any functional limitations that prevent the qualified employee from being able to 31 
perform the essential functions of the position without a reasonable accommodation.  32 

 33 
(b)  Accommodation request procedure.  Employee requests for reasonable 34 
accommodation shall be handled on an individual, case-by-case basis.  The 35 
Department shall engage in an interactive process with the qualified employee in an 36 
effort to identify reasonable accommodations that will allow the qualified individual with 37 
a disability to perform the essential job functions. It is the responsibility of the employee 38 
requesting the reasonable accommodation to actively participate in the process. This 39 
may include but is not limited to providing requested documentation or information 40 
indicating the disability requiring a reasonable accommodation, reason the 41 
accommodation is needed and/or the nature of the accommodation sought.   42 
 43 
(c)  Approval of accommodation requests.  The employee’s supervisor may approve 44 
or deny a reasonable accommodation request as submitted, request additional 45 
information if needed for reaching a decision or identifying an effective accommodation, 46 

Page 101



612:1-11-16  Administrative Operations 
  Providing reasonable accommodations 
 

612:1-11-16  Administrative Operations 
  Providing reasonable accommodations 

or refer the request to the next supervisory level.  Documentation of the request, 47 
decision and accommodation solution shall be maintained in the supervisor’s file. 48 
 49 
(bd)  Appeal of accommodation solution. The Director of Rehabilitation Services is 50 
the final authority for acting on appeals of proposed and reasonable accommodation 51 
solutions. Any disputes  Disputes concerning reasonable accommodation are subject to 52 
the final review and decision of the Director of the Department of Rehabilitation 53 
Services. The Director may intervene in requests at any time in order to bring about a 54 
prompt and impartial decision to the request. The employee may appeal any 55 
accommodation decision by filing an internal agency grievance. If dissatisfied with the 56 
decision of the Director, the employee may pursue a complaint with the appropriate 57 
state or federal agency responsible for enforcing laws affecting provision of reasonable 58 
accommodations for employees with disabilities. 59 

 60 
 61 
 62 

Page 102



612:1-11-57  Administrative Operations 
  Undue hardship/undue burdens 

 

612:1-11-57  Administrative Operations 
  Undue hardship/undue burdens 
 

 1 
612:1-11-57. Undue hardship/undue burdens [REVOKED] 2 
 3 
(a) Employment. The responsibility of DRS to provide a reasonable accommodation 4 
to a job applicant or an employee is limited to those situations in which it would not 5 
be an undue hardship. Undue hardship means an action requiring significant 6 
difficulty or expense; one which is unduly costly, extensive, substantial, disruptive, or 7 
that will fundamentally alter the nature of the employment. The concept of undue 8 
hardship is not limited to financial difficulty, e.g., when an action would 9 
fundamentally alter the nature of the employment position. Whether a particular 10 
accommodation will be an undue hardship is determined on a case by case basis. 11 
Factors to be considered include: 12 
 13 

(1) the nature and cost of the accommodation needed; 14 
 15 
(2) the overall financial resources of DRS; 16 
 17 
(3) the overall size of DRS with respect to the number of employees; 18 
 19 
(4) the number, type, and location of DRS facilities; 20 
 21 
(5) the type of operations of DRS, including composition, structure, and functions 22 
of the workforce; and, 23 
 24 
(6) the impact of the accommodation upon the operation of DRS. 25 
 26 

(b) Programs. DRS is required to make its programs accessible when viewed in 27 
their entirety. It is not required to provide program access when it would result in a 28 
fundamental alteration in the nature of the program or undue financial or 29 
administrative burdens. However, if measures to provide full program access would 30 
result in a fundamental alteration or undue burdens, DRS is still required to take 31 
measures to provide as much program access as possible without resulting in 32 
fundamental alteration or undue burdens. Furthermore, DRS has the obligation to 33 
prove that providing program access would result in a fundamental alteration or 34 
undue burden and all funding resources must be considered. The decision that 35 
fundamental alteration or undue burdens would result must be made by the 36 
Department Director. The decision must be documented in a written statement 37 
including the reasons for reaching the conclusion that fundamental alteration or 38 
undue burdens would result. 39 

Page 103



612:1-13-3  Administrative Operations 
  Administration of programs 

 
612:1-13-3  Administrative Operations 
  Administration of programs 

 1 
612:1-13-3.  Administration of programs  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
Prior to implementation of any new programs or new methods for providing existing 4 
services, the Civil Rights Administrator will carry out a study and prepare a report which 5 
will show the impact on minority groups the implementation will have, and the 6 
accessibility of the services, as proposed, to minorities or clients with disabilities; both 7 
present and prospective. 8 

 9 
(1)  Methods of recording and reporting the delivery of the services by race will be 10 
solicited by the Civil Rights Administrator from each Department facility, institution, or 11 
local office participating in the program. 12 

 13 
(21)  The Department will take positive action, consistent with Title VI regulations, ADA, 14 
or Section 504 regulations, to overcome the effects of conditions which result or have 15 
resulted in limiting participation in any program by persons of a particular race, color, 16 
national origin, sex, age or disability. 17 

 18 
(32)  The Department will ensure that the services and activities of its programs will be 19 
accessible to clients who have disabilities. 20 

Page 104



612:1-13-4  Administrative Operations 
  Dissemination of rules 

 
612:1-13-4  Administrative Operations 
  Dissemination of rules 

 1 
612:1-13-4.  Dissemination of rules  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
 The Department will inform all employees, clients, applicants and the general 4 
public that all services, any and all other benefits under its program are provided on 5 
a nondiscriminatory basis. The methods of disseminating policy include (1) - (7) of 6 
this Section. 7 
 8 

(1)  Written notice on all application and admission forms. 9 
 10 
(2)  A nondiscrimination statement on all invoices, financial transaction forms, 11 
contracts and agreements, business communications, and other related 12 
documentation. 13 
 14 
(3)  A statement in all brochures and pamphlets which are distributed to 15 
beneficiaries, applicants, and the public on the Department's policy of 16 
nondiscrimination. 17 
 18 
(4)  Official posters for distribution to vendors or recipients, to be placed in 19 
prominent public places. 20 
 21 
(5)  Information to the general public on its right to file complaints, and the 22 
addresses of the Department and the Oklahoma Human Rights 23 
CommissionOffice of Civil Rights Enforcement, to which complaints may be sent. 24 
 25 
(6)  In areas where there are significant numbers of non-English speaking 26 
minorities, the Department will communicate its policy, including complaint rights, 27 
in the appropriate languages. 28 
 29 
(7)  For persons with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, the 30 
Department will provide appropriate auxiliary aids where necessary to afford 31 
such persons an equal opportunity to learn of its policies or to benefit from its 32 
programs or services. 33 

Page 105



612:1-13-5  Administrative Operations 
  Awareness  

 
612:1-13-5  Administrative Operations 
  Awareness 

 1 
612:1-13-5.  Awareness  [REVOKED] 2 

 3 
(a)  The Civil Rights Administrator will ensure that all Department staff members are 4 
provided with copies of the Department's policy statements signed by the Director 5 
pertaining to the agency's commitment to equal employment opportunity, ADA 6 
compliance and prevention of harassment on an annual basis.  After reading the policy 7 
statements, each employee shall acknowledge by email attesting to receipt of the policy 8 
statements.  The Human Resources Unit shall provide all new employees with current 9 
copies of the aforementioned policy statements upon entry-on-duty. 10 
 11 
(b)  The Civil Rights Administrator will provide program information on compliance 12 
review techniques and procedures, reporting procedures, data gathering and analysis, 13 
and any other appropriate instruction pertaining to Title VI, as needed. 14 

Page 106



612:1-13-6  Administrative Operations 
  Maintenance of racial and ethnic data 

 
612:1-13-6  Administrative Operations 
  Maintenance of racial and ethnic data 

 1 
612:1-13-6. Maintenance of racial and ethnic data  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
The Department will collect and maintain racial and ethnic data showing the extent 4 
to which members of minority groups are beneficiaries of and participants in its 5 
programs. Considerations of privacy or confidentiality will not be used as a bar to 6 
providing access to the Human Rights CommissionOffice of Civil Rights 7 
Enforcement to records or data. The system outlined will alert the Department and 8 
the Civil Rights Administrator of suspect situations where there is a relatively low 9 
rate of minority participation, or where minorities do not appear to be deriving equal 10 
benefits and services. The system will also assist the Civil Rights Administrator to 11 
set his or her own investigative priorities. 12 

Page 107



612:1-13-7  Administrative Operations 
  Composition of planning and policymaking 
  bodies 

 
612:1-13-7  Administrative Operations 
  Composition of planning and policymaking 
  bodies 

 1 
612:1-13-7.  Composition of planning and policymaking bodies  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  The Department shall provide individuals that are included in the affirmative action 4 
categories the opportunity for membership on its planning and advisory bodies. 5 
 6 
(ba)  The Department shall ensure that all its institutional vendors are aware and shall 7 
comply with the legal stipulations outlined in Federal regulations pertaining to minorities 8 
or individuals with disabilities in planning and advisory bodies. 9 
 10 
(cb)  The Department will incorporate in its requirements for institutional vendors as a 11 
condition of their approval, an assurance from those institutional vendors that every 12 
reasonable effort is made to comply with provisions of the Civil Rights Act. 13 
 14 
(dc)  The Department will further provide interested persons, including individuals with 15 
disabilities or organizations representing individuals with disabilities, the opportunity to 16 
assist in the self-evaluation of its current policies and practices and the effect thereof in 17 
regard to ADA and Section 504. 18 

Page 108



612:1-13-9  Administrative Operations 
  Complaint rules and procedures 
 

 
612:1-13-9  Administrative Operations 
  Complaint rules and procedures 

612:1-13-9.  Complaint rules and procedures  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Any person who believes that he/she or any specific class of persons has been 3 
subjected to discrimination in a Department program subject to Title VI, ADA, or Section 4 
504 may, personally or by a representative, file a written complaint.  Department 5 
personnel will assist the complainant in the writing of the complaint if such assistance is 6 
needed.  Complaints may be filed with the Department or the Human Rights 7 
CommissionOffice of Civil Rights Enforcement.  If filed with the Department, the 8 
complaint will be brought to the attention of the Director.  A complaint must be filed no 9 
later than 180 days from the date of an alleged discriminatory act.  The time for filing 10 
may, however, be extended by the responsible Office or Civil Rights official. 11 
 12 
(b)  After determining that the complaint falls within the jurisdiction of the Civil Rights 13 
Administrator, he or she mustTitle VI, ADA, or Section 504, the Director must insure a 14 
prompt and thorough investigation of the complaint. Following investigation of the 15 
complaint, the responsible official of the Department as designated by the Director will 16 
determine whether or not discrimination did in fact occur, necessary action will be taken 17 
to correct the discriminatory practice, or require it to be corrected, and prevent any 18 
recurrence of such discrimination.  The Department will take follow-up action to 19 
determine that the corrective measures have eliminated the conditions that contributed 20 
to the discriminatory act. 21 
 22 
(c)  The complainant will be advised in writing within 45 days from the receipt of the 23 
complaint as to the findings of the Department regarding the complaint.  In the same 24 
written notice the complainant will be advised if he/she is not satisfied with the decision 25 
he/she may appeal to the U.S. Department of Education. The Department will maintain 26 
records to show the nature of the complaint, the details of the investigation, and the 27 
action taken by the Department.  If the complaint has been found to be valid, the 28 
records will indicate the nature of the corrective action taken.  All complaint records will 29 
be available for review by the Human Rights CommissionOffice of Civil Rights 30 
Enforcement. 31 
 32 
(d)  In those cases where the complaint is filed initially with the Human Rights 33 
Commission, that office may proceed to investigate the complaint utilizing its own 34 
resources, or it may request the Department to conduct the investigation.  In either 35 
instance, the identity of the complainants will be kept confidential, except to the extent 36 
necessary for the conduction of any investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding. 37 

Page 109



612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 
 

 
612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 

PART 3.  HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT SECTION - 1 
PERSONNEL PROGRAMS 2 

 3 
612:3-3-20.  Department of Rehabilitation Services recruitment and selection plan 4 
 5 
(a)  Method of application. All applicants who are permanent classified employees, or 6 
former permanent classified state employees eligible for reinstatement to the classified 7 
service, shall submit a completed OPMHCM Personal Data Summary Sheet form for 8 
the position to the DRS Human Resources Unit or other designated location no later 9 
than the closing date and time stated in the posted notice. DRS does not carry over 10 
completed Personal Data Summary Sheets from one posting to the next unless 11 
specified on the posting. All other applicants for classified positions must apply by 12 
means of the method indicated on the vacancy notice. The DRS Human Resources Unit 13 
notifies applicants who did not meet minimum education and experience requirements 14 
for the position.  Applicants may submit additional information to the DRS Human 15 
Resources Unit which reflects they meet the minimum qualifications for the position.  16 
The Human Resources Unit will submit the additional information to Human Capital 17 
Management for review.  If Human Capital Management determines that minimum 18 
qualification for the position are met, the applicant log may be amended and the 19 
applicant given consideration for the position if a final selection has not been made by 20 
the selecting official.   21 
 22 
(b)  Optional Program for Hiring Applicants with Disabilities. Applicants that have 23 
been certified as "a person with a severe disability" by Human Capital Management will 24 
be included on the Special Appointment/Free Names list through OPMHCM and may be 25 
considered along with other qualified internal and external applicants.   26 
 27 
(c)  Eligibility for consideration. The agency may consider external applicants 28 
concurrently with internal applicants following closing of the announcement. To be 29 
eligible for consideration, applicants must meet the requirements set forth in Paragraphs 30 
(1) or (2) of this Subsection. 31 

 32 
(1)  A permanent classified employee or a former state employee who is eligible for 33 
reinstatement must: 34 

 35 
(A)  submit a completed OPMHCM Personal Data Summary Sheet form for the 36 
position to the DRS Human Resources Unit or other designated location no later 37 
than the closing date and time specified on the posting notice; and 38 
 39 
(B)  be certified by the OPMHCM Applicant Services Division as meeting the 40 
minimum qualifications for the posted Level(s) of the Job Family.  However, 41 
career progression promotions shall be exempt from this requirement provided 42 
that an employee has been in a lower level of the job family for an amount of time 43 

Page 110



612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 
 

 
612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 

equal to the difference in the lengths of the experience requirements of the two 44 
levels.  This exception shall not apply in any case to entry into a job family or 45 
where the next higher level is a supervisory position. 46 

 47 
(2)  All other applicants for employment may be eligible for consideration through:  48 

 49 
(A)  an open competitive certificate from OPMHCM;  50 
 51 
(B)  Certification as a person with a severe disability under 74 O.S. 840-4.12; 52 
and/or 53 
 54 
(C)  Special Disabled Veterans Certification. 55 

 56 
(d)  Factors for consideration. Paragraphs (1) through (5) establish factors for 57 
consideration.  58 

 59 
(1)  In filling vacancies, the agency will consider factors such as performance 60 
appraisals, education, experience, and other qualifications related to the expected 61 
ability of an individual to perform the work successfully. 62 
 63 
(2)  The agency may also post and consider special additional factors such as 64 
limiting consideration to permanent classified employees of the DRS, special 65 
working conditions that an applicant must be willing to accept and selective 66 
qualifications required for a position. 67 
 68 
(3)  A qualified permanent classified DRS employee will be given preference when 69 
the merit, ability, and capacity of that employee is relatively equal to that of 70 
applicants from outside DRS as determined by the selection process. 71 
 72 
(4)  A qualified permanent classified DRS employee with the greatest seniority 73 
based upon the last date of continuous DRS employment will be given preference 74 
when the merit, ability, and capacity of that employee is relatively equal to other 75 
applicants as determined by the selection process. 76 
 77 
(5)  Consideration may be given to redress underutilization of targeted minority 78 
groups. To meet affirmative action goals, all available applicants may be considered. 79 

 80 
(e)  Methods for consideration. Paragraphs (1) through (3) establish methods for 81 
consideration.  82 

 83 
(1)  The methods for consideration may include review of personnel records, 84 
applications, ratings, work histories, attendance records, test results, references, 85 

Page 111



612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 
 

 
612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 

and other documents and information relating to a person's eligibility or 86 
qualifications. 87 
 88 
(2)  Applicants may be required to participate in interviews and in other selection 89 
procedures. 90 
 91 
(3)  A personal background investigation, including any civilian and military court 92 
records may be conducted. 93 

 94 
(f)  Entrance salary. The entrance salary for any position in the classified service shall 95 
be governed by the Merit Rules. 96 
 97 
(g)  Probationary period (classified service). Individuals newly hired into the 98 
classified service will serve a probationary period. The probationary period gives the 99 
new employee an opportunity to demonstrate the ability to perform the assigned duties 100 
of the position. The initial probationary period lasts for one year, except that the Director 101 
or Chief of Staff may waive the remainder of the probationary period at any time after a 102 
probationary employee has served six months by notifying the employee and Human 103 
Capital Management in writing as to the waiver and the reasons for it. The probationary 104 
period may not be extended.  However, if a probationary employee is granted leave 105 
without pay that exceeds 5 working days, the date of the final working day of the 106 
probationary period shall be adjusted by the number of working days the probationary 107 
employee was on leave without pay in excess of 5 working days.  Notification of such 108 
leave to Human Capital Management and the employee shall include the scheduled 109 
date of the final working day of the adjusted probationary period.  The appointment of 110 
an employee on probationary status may be terminated whenever the performance is 111 
determined to be unsatisfactory. The probationary employee does not have the right of 112 
appeal to the Merit Protection Commission when terminated during the probationary 113 
period [530:10-11-32]. The employee's immediate supervisor is responsible for carefully 114 
observing and evaluating performance.  The performance evaluation of a probationary 115 
employee must be completed no later than thirty days prior to the end of the 116 
probationary period.   117 
 118 
(h)  Related employees (classified/unclassified service). The Department reserves 119 
the right to make placements and work assignments of personnel as necessary to 120 
eliminate and/or prevent situations in which a position is occupied by a relative of the 121 
senior administrator of the relevant division, facility, or office. The Director may waive 122 
the prohibitions in this Subsection. The Department prohibits the employment of any 123 
person in a position which would result in: 124 

 125 
(1)  immediate supervision by a relative. Relative is defined to include wife, husband, 126 
children, parents, stepparents, parents-in-law, grandchildren, grandparents, 127 
brothers, sisters, stepchildren, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, sons-in-law, 128 

Page 112



612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 
 

 
612:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Department of Rehabilitation Services 
  recruitment and selection plan 

daughters-in-law, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, first cousins or any of the above 129 
with whom the employee shares a foster relationship; or 130 
 131 
(2)  two or more relatives reporting to the same immediate supervisor. 132 

 133 
(i)  Other employment, prohibition against use of position for personal gain and 134 
avoidance of conflict of interest.  Oklahoma Ethics Commission rules [OAC Title 257] 135 
are applicable regarding prohibition against use of position for personal use. 136 

 137 
(1)  Each employee must, during office hours, devote full time, attention, and effort to 138 
the Department's business. The employee may not use office hours for private gain. 139 
 140 
(2)  An employee may accept other employment outside the employee's assigned 141 
hours of duty as long as such other employment does not interfere with the 142 
employee's work with the Department. If an employee engages in other employment 143 
while an employee of the Department, such employment or changes in the 144 
employment, as it occurs shall be reported by use of the Report of Other 145 
Employment form. Such notification shall be given to the employee's immediate 146 
supervisor.   147 

 148 
(j)  Final selection. While others may recruit, screen, consider and make 149 
recommendations, the decision on all appointments and changes in classification is 150 
tentative until it has the approval of the Director or designee.  No offer of employment 151 
may be made until notification of final approval is received from the Personnel Office of 152 
the DRS Human Resources Unit.   153 

Page 113



612:3-5-30  Management Services Division 
 Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired compliance reviews 

 

612:3-5-30  Management Services Division 
 Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired compliance reviews 

 1 
612:3-5-30.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation 2 

for the Blind & Visually Impaired compliance reviews  [AMENDED] 3 
 4 

(a)  Assigned Case Review staff will conduct reviews on a random sample of closed cases 5 
to determine if case documentation indicates consumers are being served according to 6 
standards established by the Rehabilitation Act and agency policy.  Staff will use the 7 
instrument currently approved by the Director or designee and will report their findings to 8 
appropriate staff on a regular schedule. 9 
 10 
(b)  Upon request and as other duties allow, Case Review staff will conduct reviews of 11 
active cases and will report their findings to appropriate staff within agreed-upon deadlines. 12 
 13 
(c)  Case Review staff will participate in compliance reviews conducted by RSA as 14 
assigned.  RSA staff will be responsible for reporting the results of such reviews unless 15 
otherwise directed by the Administrator for Policy Development and Program Standards. 16 

Page 114



612:3-5-31  Management Services Division 
 Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired outcome measures 

 

612:3-5-31  Management Services Division 
 Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 
 Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired outcome measures 

 1 
612:3-5-31.  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation 2 

for the Blind & Visually Impaired outcome measures  [AMENDED] 3 
 4 
(a)  Assigned Program Standards staff will conduct data analysis and consumer surveys to 5 
determine actual service outcomes for the Divisions of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 6 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired. Such information will 7 
be gathered from a statistically significant random sample of consumer cases. Staff will 8 
report their findings on a regular basis to be specified by affected administrators. 9 
 10 
(b)  Outcome measures will be used to determine the overall effectiveness of the  Divisions 11 
of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 12 
Visually Impaired in carrying out their mission. Results will therefore be reported on a 13 
program level, and not on an individual caseload level. 14 
 15 
(c)  Assigned Program Standards staff will assist RSA staff in conducting reviews of agency 16 
programs and community based rehabilitation programs funded under the Rehabilitation 17 
Act. RSA staff will be responsible for reporting the results of such reviews unless otherwise 18 
directed by the Administrator of Policy Development and Program Standards. 19 

Page 115



612:10-1-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purpose 
 

 

612:10-1-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purpose 

612:10-1-1.  Purpose  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
The purpose of this Chapter is to set forth rules for the provision of services provided by 3 

the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation and the Division of Visual Services Vocational 4 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired.   5 

Page 116



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

612:10-1-2.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the following 3 
meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 4 

 5 
"Act" means the Rehabilitation Act [29 USC 701 et seq.]. 6 
 7 
"ADL" Activities of Daily Living often refer to the routine activities carried out for 8 

personal hygiene and health (including bathing, dressing, feeding) and for operation of a 9 
household. 10 

 11 
"Applicant" means an individual who has completed and signed an agency application 12 

form or has otherwise requested vocational rehabilitation services; who has provided 13 
information necessary to initiate an assessment to determine eligibility and priority for 14 
services; and who is available to complete the assessment process. 15 

 16 
"Assistive technology" means technology designed to be utilized in an assistive 17 

technology device or service. 18 
 19 
"Assistive technology device" means any item, piece of equipment, or product 20 

system, whether acquired commercially, modified, or customized, that is used to increase, 21 
maintain, or improve functional capabilities of individuals with disabilities. 22 

 23 
"Assistive technology service" means any service that directly assists an individual 24 

with a disability in the selection, acquisition, or use of an assistive technology device. 25 
 26 
"Authorized Representative" means a client's or applicant's parent, guardian, 27 

advocate (i.e. Client Assistance Program) or other person designated by the client or 28 
applicant as the individual authorized to deal with the Department on behalf of the client or 29 
applicant, consistent with provisions of the Act. Authorized representative does not include 30 
an employee of the Department of Rehabilitation Services, another state agency, or vendor 31 
of the Department unless the person is actually the parent, guardian, or is serving in the 32 
capacity of guardian (for example: court appointed). 33 

 34 
"Best correction" refers to the use of standard eyeglasses or contact lenses and does 35 

not include the use of bioptic telescopic systems or specialized lenses which cannot be 36 
worn by the individual on a sustained basis. 37 

 38 
"Blind" means persons who are blind within the meaning of the State Law relating to 39 

Vocational Rehabilitation. Legal blindness means a visual acuity of 20/200 or less in the 40 
better eye with best correction, or a visual field of 20 degrees or less. 41 

Page 117



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

 42 
"Client/Consumer" means an individual found eligible and receiving services under the 43 

Act. 44 
 45 
"Clubhouse model" means a psychosocial and vocational approach to work 46 

adjustment for people with mental illness.  The work-ordered day is a core element of the 47 
clubhouse, which focuses on strengths, talents and abilities.  Work in the clubhouse helps 48 
members develop appropriate social skills and gain self-worth, purpose, and confidence.  49 
The clubhouse enables members to return to paid work through Transitional Employment, 50 
Supported Employment and independent employment. 51 

 52 
"Community rehabilitation program" (CRP) means a program that directly provides 53 

or facilitates the provision of vocational rehabilitation services to individuals with disabilities, 54 
and provides singly or in combination, services for an individual with a disability to enable 55 
the individual to maximize opportunities for employment, including career advancement. 56 

 57 
"Comparable services and benefits" means services that are provided or paid for in 58 

whole or in part by other Federal, state or local public agencies, health insurance or 59 
employee benefits, and are available to the individual at the time needed to further the 60 
progress of the individual toward achieving his/her identified employment outcome. 61 

 62 
"Compensatory training" means training required before the client can enter a formal 63 

training program or employment, such as pre-vocational or personal adjustment training. 64 
 65 
"Competitive employment" means work in the competitive labor market that is 66 

performed on a full-time or part-time basis in an integrated setting; and for which the 67 
individual is compensated at or above the minimum wage, but not less than the customary 68 
wage and level of benefits paid by the employer for the same or similar work performed by 69 
individuals who do not have disabilities. 70 

 71 
"Consumer Independence Support Services" (CISS) are defined as providing 72 

independent living assessment, intensive counseling, community integration, and housing 73 
modifications to further assist consumers with severe disabilities in achieving 74 
independence. 75 

 76 
"Continuity of Services" means once an individual is selected for services in 77 

accordance with policy, regardless of the priority category from which the individual was 78 
selected, the individual will receive the necessary purchased services, including post-79 
employment services. 80 

 81 

Page 118



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

"Counselor" means the qualified rehabilitation professional, who is an employee of the 82 
designated state unit, and who has primary responsibility for the management of an 83 
individual's rehabilitation services case record, including determination of eligibility, service 84 
planning and management, counseling and guidance, and determination of successful or 85 
unsuccessful rehabilitation. Counselor is equivalent to such terms as VR/VSVR/VRBVI 86 
Specialist and VR/VSVR/VRBVI Coordinator. 87 

 88 
"Department" unless otherwise indicated in the text, means the Department of 89 

Rehabilitation Services as constituted in 74 O.S., Section 166.1 et seq. 90 
 91 
"DRS" means the Department of Rehabilitation Services. 92 
 93 
"DVR" means the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. 94 
 95 
"DVSDVRBVI" means the Division of Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the 96 

Blind & Visually Impaired. 97 
 98 
"Eligibility" or "Eligible" means: 99 

 100 
(A) when used in relation to an individual's qualification for Vocational Rehabilitation 101 
services, a determination that the individual has a physical or mental impairment 102 
which for such individual constitutes or results in a substantial impediment to 103 
employment; can benefit in terms of an employment outcome from rehabilitation 104 
services; and requires vocational rehabilitation services to prepare for, enter, engage 105 
in, or retain gainful employment; 106 
 107 
(B) when used in relation to an individual's qualification for Supported Employment 108 
services, a determination that the individual is eligible for Vocational Rehabilitation 109 
services; is an individual with the most severe disabilities (priority group one); and  110 

 111 
(i) for whom competitive employment has not traditionally occurred; or 112 
 113 
(ii) for whom competitive employment has been interrupted or intermittent as a 114 
result of a severe disability; and 115 
 116 
(iii) who, because of the nature and severity of their disability, need intensive 117 
supported employment services, and extended services after the transition from 118 
intensive supported employment services, in order to perform such work; 119 

 120 
(C) when used in relation to an individual's qualification for Rehabilitation Teaching 121 
services, certification that the individual is legally and/or functionally blind or has a 122 

Page 119



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

rapidly progressive condition and may have secondary disabilities; the individual has 123 
identifiable deficiencies in independent living due to disabilities; and it is expected 124 
services will improve the individual's independence in the home and community; 125 
 126 
(D) when used in relation to an individual's qualification for Independent Living 127 
Rehabilitation services, certification that the individual has a severe physical or 128 
mental disability; the disability results in a substantial limitation or inability to function 129 
independently in the family or community or to continue in employment; and a 130 
reasonable expectation that independent living services will significantly assist the 131 
individual improve his/her ability to function independently. 132 

 133 
"Employment and Retention" (E&R) means short-term job coach support for 134 

individuals with severe disabilities who require assistance preparing for, obtaining, and 135 
maintaining employment. 136 

 137 
"Employment outcome" means, with respect to an eligible individual, entering or 138 

retaining full-time or, if appropriate, part-time competitive employment in the integrated 139 
labor market to the greatest extent practicable; supported employment; or any other type of 140 
employment (including self-employment, telecommuting, or business ownership) that is 141 
consistent with an individual's strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, 142 
capabilities, interests, and informed choice. 143 

 144 
"Extended employment" means work in a non-integrated or sheltered setting for a 145 

public or private nonprofit agency or organization that provides compensation in 146 
accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act and any needed support services to an 147 
individual with a disability to enable the individual to continue to train or otherwise prepare 148 
for competitive employment, unless the individual through informed choice chooses to 149 
remain in extended employment. 150 

 151 
"Extended period of time" means when appropriate services are provided in a timely 152 

and orderly manner, completion of the Individualized Plan for Employment (IPE) will be 153 
expected to require a minimum of 6 months. 154 

 155 
"Extended services" means ongoing support services provided to individuals with the 156 

most severe disabilities after the time-limited vocational rehabilitation services have been 157 
completed and job stabilization has been achieved.  They consist of specific services, 158 
including natural supports, needed to maintain the supported employment placement. 159 
Extended services are paid from funding sources other than DRS and are specifically 160 
identified in the IPE. 161 

 162 

Page 120



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

"Extreme medical risk" means a risk of substantially increasing functional impairment 163 
or risk of death if medical services are not provided expeditiously. 164 

 165 
"Functional capacities" means a client's assets, strengths, and resources which 166 

maintain or increase the individual's ability to work. Functional capacities include mobility, 167 
communication, self-care, self-direction, interpersonal skills, work tolerance, or work skills. 168 

 169 
"Functional limitations" means physical or mental conditions, emergent from a 170 

disability, which impair, interfere with, or impede one or more of an individual's functional 171 
capacities. 172 

 173 
"Higher education" means universities, colleges, community/junior colleges, 174 

vocational schools, technical institutes, or hospital schools of nursing. 175 
 176 
"Highly challenged" describes a client receiving supported employment services who, 177 

due to the nature of the disability, requires a greater level of support from the job coach to 178 
achieve and maintain employment. 179 

 180 
"Homemaker" means a person whose primary work is performance of duties related to 181 

upkeep and maintenance of a home. 182 
"IEP" means Individualized Education Program as required by the Individuals with 183 

Disabilities Education Act. 184 
 185 
"Independent Living (IL) Core services" is defined as information and referral 186 

services; independent living skills training; peer counseling; and individual and systems 187 
advocacy. 188 

 189 
"Independent Living Services"  as defined in the Rehabilitation Act, 29 USC Section 190 

705 (17) and (18), include IL core services and counseling, housing procurement and 191 
modifications, personal assistance, mobility training, rehabilitation technology, life skills 192 
training, interpreters, readers, transportation, community integration, supported living, 193 
physical rehabilitation, aids and devices, social and recreational opportunities, and other 194 
services that are necessary and not inconsistent with the Act’s provisions related to 195 
independent living. 196 

 197 
"Individual with a disability" means an individual having one or more physical or 198 

mental conditions which materially limits, contributes to limiting or, if not corrected, will 199 
probably result in limiting an individual's employment activities or vocational functioning. 200 

 201 
"Individual with a severe disability" means with respect to eligibility for the state's 202 

Optional Program for Hiring Applicants with Disabilities, an individual who has a physical or 203 

Page 121



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

mental impairment which seriously limits one or more functional capacities (such as 204 
mobility, communication, self-care, self-direction, interpersonal skills, work tolerance, or 205 
work skills) in terms of an employment outcome. 206 

 207 
"Individual with significant disability" means an individual with a significant barrier to 208 

employment, as used in the Rehabilitation Act amendments of 1998, and an individual: 209 
 210 
(A) who has a physical or mental impairment seriously limiting one or more 211 
functional capacities (such as mobility, communication, self-care, self-direction, 212 
interpersonal skills, work tolerance, or work skills) in terms of an employment 213 
outcome; 214 
 215 
(B) whose vocational rehabilitation can be expected to require multiple vocational 216 
rehabilitation services over an extended period of time; and 217 
 218 
(C) who has one or more physical or mental disabilities resulting from amputation, 219 
arthritis, autism, blindness, burn injury, cancer, cerebral palsy, cystic fibrosis, 220 
deafness, head injury, heart disease, hemiplegia, hemophilia, respiratory or 221 
pulmonary dysfunction, mental illness, intellectual disability, multiple sclerosis, 222 
muscular dystrophy, musculoskeletal disorder, neurological disorders (including 223 
stroke and epilepsy), paraplegia, quadriplegia, other spinal cord conditions, sickle 224 
cell anemia, specific learning disability, end-stage renal disease or other disability or 225 
combination of disabilities determined on the basis of an assessment for determining 226 
eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs to cause comparable substantial 227 
functional limitation. 228 

 229 
"Individual with the most significant disability" means an individual with the most 230 

significant barrier to employment as used in the Rehabilitation Act amendments of 1998, 231 
and an individual with physical or mental disabilities:  232 

 233 
(A) who has a severe physical or mental disability that seriously limits three or more 234 
major life activities in terms of an employment outcome; 235 
 236 
(B) whose vocational rehabilitation can be expected to require multiple vocational 237 
rehabilitation services over an extended period of time; and 238 
 239 
(C) who has one or more physical or mental disabilities resulting from amputation, 240 
arthritis, autism, blindness, burn injury, cancer, cerebral palsy, cystic fibrosis, 241 
deafness, head injury, heart disease, hemiplegia, hemophilia, respiratory or 242 
pulmonary dysfunction, mental illness, intellectual disability, multiple sclerosis, 243 
muscular dystrophy, musculoskeletal disorder, neurological disorders (including 244 

Page 122



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

stroke and epilepsy), paraplegia, quadriplegia, other spinal cord conditions, sickle 245 
cell anemia, specific learning disability, end-stage renal disease or other disability or 246 
combination of disabilities determined on the basis of an assessment for determining 247 
eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs to cause comparable substantial 248 
functional limitation. 249 

 250 
"Integrated setting" means: 251 

 252 
(A) With respect to the provision of services, a setting typically found in the 253 
community in which applicants or eligible individuals interact with non-disabled 254 
individuals other than non-disabled individuals who are providing services to those 255 
applicants or eligible individuals. 256 
 257 
(B) With respect to an employment outcome, means a setting typically found in the 258 
community in which applicants or eligible individuals interact with non-disabled 259 
individuals, other than non-disabled individuals who are providing services to those 260 
applicants or eligible individuals, to the same extent that non-disabled individuals in 261 
comparable positions interact with other persons. 262 

 263 
"Intercurrent (acute) conditions" means an illness or injury occurring during the 264 

actual course of an individual's rehabilitation which, if not cared for, will complicate or delay 265 
achievement of the client's employment outcome as identified in the client's IPE. 266 

 267 
"IPE" means the Individualized Plan for Employment. 268 
 269 
"Job Club" is a structured learning experience for a client to build skills in self-270 

assessment, resume development, job search and research strategies, and interview 271 
techniques to assist the person to enter a career of their choice. 272 

 273 
"Job Coach/Employment Training Specialist" means a qualified individual providing 274 

support services to eligible individuals in supported employment and employment and 275 
retention programs.  Services directly support the eligible individual's work activity including 276 
marketing and job development, applied behavioral analysis, job and work site assessment, 277 
training and worker assessment, job matching procedures, and teaching job skills. 278 

 279 
"Long-term treatment" means medical or psychological treatment that is expected to 280 

last more than three months. 281 
 282 
"Maintenance" is a service provided to assist with the out-of-ordinary or extra 283 

expenses to the individual resulting from and needed to support the individual's 284 

Page 123



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

participation in diagnostic, evaluative, or other substantial services in the IPE.  Activities of 285 
Daily Living (ADL) expenses are not eligible for maintenance payments. 286 

 287 
"Milestones" means a payment system that reimburses a vendor based on incentives 288 

and outcomes.  The vendor is paid when the client completes pre-defined checkpoints on 289 
the way to a desired employment goal. 290 

 291 
"Multiple services" means the counseling and guidance provided as a routine part of 292 

case management plus two or more VR services. Comparable benefits and/or services can 293 
count toward meeting the definition of multiple services. Services routinely provided as a 294 
package do not count as multiple services for the purpose of determining the presence of a 295 
significant disability, even if two or more services are included in the package.   296 

 297 
"Natural supports" means any assistance, relationships or interactions that allow a 298 

person to maintain employment in ways that correspond to the typical work routines and 299 
social interactions of other employees.  Natural supports may be developed through 300 
relationships with people or put into place by the adaptation of the work environment itself, 301 
depending on the support needs of the person and the environment. 302 

 303 
"Occupational license" means any license, permit, or other written authority required 304 

by a state, city or other governmental unit to be obtained in order to enter an occupation. 305 
 306 
"Ongoing support services" means services specified in the IPE according to 307 

individual need, which support and maintain an individual with the most severe disabilities 308 
in supported employment. Sponsored ongoing support services are provided from the time 309 
of placement until the individual is stabilized on the job. Ongoing support services are 310 
provided by one or more extended services providers, or by natural supports, following 311 
transition throughout the individual's term of employment. In transitional employment, the 312 
provision of ongoing support services must include continuing sequential job placements 313 
until job permanency is achieved. 314 

 315 
"Other Qualified Rehabilitation Personnel" means qualified rehabilitation personnel 316 

who, in addition to rehabilitation counselors, are necessary to facilitate the accomplishment 317 
of the employment outcomes and objectives of an individual (Section 100(a)(3)(E) of the 318 
Act.)  Other qualified rehabilitation personnel include, but are not limited to, rehabilitation 319 
teachers of the blind who are certified at the national level as Certified Vision Rehabilitation 320 
Therapists (CVRT) or who are CRC-eligible (Section 101(a)(7)(B) of the Act).  The agency 321 
has determined that nationally certified rehabilitation teachers of the blind are necessary for 322 
the provision of vocational rehabilitation services and accomplishment of employment 323 
outcomes in Homemaker cases and that in their role as Other Qualified Rehabilitation 324 

Page 124



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

Personnel; nationally certified rehabilitation teachers are approved to manage Homemaker 325 
cases through closure. 326 

 327 
"Package of services" means several services which are usually provided together for 328 

the same purpose. The services in a package are usually, but not always, from the same 329 
category of  services (see definition of multiple services, this section). Examples include, 330 
but are not limited to: surgery, anesthesia, and hospitalization; or personal computer, 331 
software, and peripheral equipment. 332 

 333 
"Personal assistance services" means a range of services provided by one or more 334 

persons designed to assist an individual with a disability to perform daily living activities on 335 
or off the job that the individual would typically perform without assistance if the individual 336 
did not have a disability. 337 

 338 
"Physical and mental restoration services" means services which are necessary to 339 

correct or substantially modify a physical or mental condition which is stable or slowly 340 
progressive, within a reasonable period of time. 341 

 342 
"Physical or mental disability" means a physical or mental condition which, if not 343 

corrected, materially limits, contributes to limiting or will result in limiting an individual's 344 
activities or functioning. 345 

 346 
"Rehabilitation Act" means the Rehabilitation Act [29 USC 701 et seq.]. 347 
 348 
"Related factors" means those factors which are not directly attributable to the 349 

impediment to employment, but which have impact on the potential for successful 350 
rehabilitation. They frequently become evident only from an assessment of the person's 351 
social, vocational, educational, and environmental circumstances. 352 

 353 
"Section 504 Plan" is a plan designed as a protection for students with disabilities who 354 

may not be considered eligible for special education under IDEA in compliance with Section 355 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended. 356 

 357 
"Small business enterprises" means a small business operated by blind or other 358 

individuals with severe disabilities under the management and supervision of the state 359 
DRS. Such businesses include only those selling, manufacturing, processing, servicing, 360 
agricultural, and other activities which are suitable and practical for the effective utilization 361 
of the skills and aptitudes of individuals who are blind or individuals who have severe 362 
disabilities. Small business enterprise provides substantial gainful employment or self-363 
employment commensurate with the time devoted by the operators to the business, the 364 
cost of establishing the business and other factors of an economic nature. 365 

Page 125



612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 
 

 

612:10-1-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

 366 
"Stabilization" means the period of time when job coach support is reduced to the 367 

long-term maintenance level while the individual retains employment, and personal 368 
satisfaction with the job, as well as employer satisfaction with the person’s job 369 
performance.  Stabilization must include appropriate individualized supports, including a 370 
minimum of two employee contacts and one employer contact per month. 371 

 372 
"Substantial impediment to employment" means that a physical or mental disability 373 

(in the light of related medical, psychological, vocational, educational, cultural, social or 374 
environmental factors) that impedes an individual's occupational performance, by 375 
preventing his/her obtaining, retaining, or preparing for a gainful occupation consistent with 376 
his/her capacities and abilities. 377 

 378 
"Supported employment" (SE) means competitive work in integrated work settings, or 379 

employment in integrated work settings in which individuals are working toward competitive 380 
work, consistent with the strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, 381 
interests, and informed choice of the individuals, for individuals with the most severe 382 
disabilities who meet the eligibility criteria for supported employment. This term includes 383 
transitional employment for persons who are individuals with the most severe disabilities 384 
due to mental illness (see the definition for "transitional employment"). 385 

 386 
"Transitional employment" (TE) means, when referring to the Supported Employment 387 

Program, a series of temporary job placements in competitive work in integrated settings 388 
with ongoing support services for individuals with the most severe disabilities due to mental 389 
illness. 390 

 391 
"Transportation" is a service provided to assist with the costs of travel, including 392 

instruction in the use of public transportation vehicles and systems, which result from and 393 
are needed to support the individual's participation in diagnostic, evaluative, or other 394 
substantial and necessary VR services. 395 

 396 
"Unpaid family worker" means a person who works without pay on a family farm or in 397 

a family business, operated by a family member who is related by blood or marriage. 398 
 399 
"VR" means the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, or the more general term 400 

vocational rehabilitation services, depending upon the context. 401 
 402 
"VSVRBVI" means the Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the 403 

Blind & Visually Impaired, or the more general term visual services, depending upon the 404 
context. 405 

Page 126



612:10-1-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation programs 
 

 

612:10-1-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation programs 

612:10-1-3.  Basic philosophy of rehabilitation programs  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Purpose.  The purpose of programs and services provided by the Division of 3 
Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) and the Division of Visual Services Vocational 4 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired (DVSDVRBVI) is to empower individuals 5 
with disabilities to maximize employment, economic self-sufficiency, independence, and 6 
inclusion and integration into society through comprehensive programs of vocational 7 
rehabilitation.  Vocational rehabilitation programs are designed to assess, plan, develop 8 
and provide vocational rehabilitation services for individuals with disabilities, consistent with 9 
their strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, interests and informed 10 
choice, so that they may prepare for and engage in gainful employment (34 CFR 361.1 (b)). 11 
 12 
(b)  Basic philosophy.  DVR and DVSDVRBVI vocational rehabilitation programs are 13 
carried out in accordance with the principles stated in Section 100 (3) of the Rehabilitation 14 
Act including,  15 
 16 

1.  Individuals with disabilities, including individuals with the most significant disabilities, 17 
are generally presumed to be capable of engaging in gainful employment and the 18 
provision of individualized vocational rehabilitation services can improve their ability to 19 
become gainfully employed. 20 

 21 
2.  Individuals with disabilities must be provided the opportunities to obtain gainful 22 
employment in integrated settings. 23 

 24 
3.  Individuals with disabilities must have the opportunity to be active and full partners in 25 
their vocational rehabilitation process. 26 

 27 
4.  Qualified vocational rehabilitation counselors and other qualified and specialized 28 
rehabilitation personnel are necessary to facilitate the accomplishment of the 29 
employment outcomes and objectives of an individual.  30 

Page 127



612:10-1-3.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Procedural exceptions 
 

 

612:10-1-3.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Procedural exceptions 
 

612:10-1-3.1.  Procedural exceptions  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
 Procedures set forth in this Chapter are not intended to reflect every situation that 3 
might confront DVR or DVSDVRBVI staff or to replace the staff's use of good judgment.  In 4 
individual cases an exception from basic procedures may be requested.  Authority to 5 
approve certain deviations from standard procedure rests with the division administrator.  6 
Authority to approve certain procedural exceptions has been delegated to program 7 
managers and field coordinators.  Only those exceptions stated in rule may be applied to 8 
rules. 9 

Page 128



612:10-1-3.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Pilot projects 
 

 

612:10-1-3.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Pilot projects 

612:10-1-3.2  Pilot projects [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

The purpose of pilot projects is to allow the Divisions of Vocational Rehabilitation and 3 
Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired to design and 4 
evaluate service delivery innovations on a scale that will provide for an effective trial without 5 
being disruptive to the entire organization.  Such pilot projects might include trials of 6 
innovative policies, standards, and/or procedures. 7 
 8 

(1)  Authorization of pilot projects.  The Division Administrator may approve 9 
applications for pilot projects after review and approval of the pilot by the DVR/DVS 10 
DVR/DVRBVI Management Team.  Approval of an application for a pilot project by the 11 
Division Administrator will constitute authority to implement the pilot project for a length 12 
of time to be specified by the Division Administrator.  The Division Administrator can 13 
terminate the pilot project at any time prior to the specified project duration.  The pilot 14 
project may not be extended beyond the originally approved time period. 15 
 16 
(2)  Effect of DRS policy on pilot projects.  The Director of the Department of 17 
Rehabilitation Services may waive the applicability of specified departmental policies 18 
when necessary to implement a meaningful trial of the approved pilot project.  The 19 
waiver will apply only to the pilot project specified by the Director, and will be effective 20 
only for the duration of the pilot project.  The waiver will end immediately upon 21 
termination or completion of the model project.   22 

Page 129



612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 
 

 

612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 

612:10-1-5.  Confidentiality [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  General guidelines. All client or applicant information acquired will remain the property 3 
of DRS. All casework materials are to be maintained in the appropriate case record. The 4 
terms "release of information", "release of personal information", and similar terms refer to 5 
providing access to the record, or providing copies, summaries, descriptions, or other 6 
reproductions of the actual case record materials and not to the materials themselves. All 7 
applicants, clients, or client representatives will be informed of the Department's policies on 8 
confidentiality of personal information. This information will only be used and released for 9 
purposes directly related to the administration of the Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 10 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired programs. Information 11 
containing identifiable personal information will not be shared with advisory or other bodies 12 
who do not have official responsibility for the administration of these programs. In the 13 
administration of the program, the DVR and DVSDVRBVI units may obtain personal 14 
information from service providers and cooperating agencies under assurances the 15 
information will not be further divulged. Use and release of personal information will 16 
conform to applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Questions regarding release 17 
of information are to be directed to the Department's general counsel. Staff are to consult 18 
the general counsel before providing trial testimony, depositional testimony, or a sworn 19 
affidavit concerning consumer information. Moreover, if served with a subpoena for the 20 
release of client information, staff should notify the general counsel immediately. In a legal 21 
proceeding, client information can only be released without the client's consent in response 22 
to a court order.  A subpoena by itself is not sufficient to authorize disclosure of client 23 
information. 24 
 25 
(b)  Written release required. Release of personal information must be by written consent 26 
of the individual or authorized representative.  If requested in writing by an applicant or 27 
eligible individual, DRS will make all requested information in that individual's record of 28 
services available to the individual in a timely manner except as provided in subsection (c). 29 
The Department's Authorization for Release of Information form may be used when the 30 
client requests that personal information be released by DRS to a third party and may also 31 
be used to request confidential information from other sources. Other release forms are 32 
acceptable, as long as they provide the required information. Written authorization for 33 
release of information must include: 34 

 35 
(1)  the nature of the information to be released; 36 
 37 
(2)  designation of the parties to whom the information is to be released; 38 
 39 
(3)  the specific purpose for which the released information may be used; 40 

 41 

Page 130



612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 
 

 

612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 

(4)  designation of the agency or person authorized to disclose the information; and 42 
 43 
(5)  dates of initiation and termination of consent. 44 

 45 
(c)  Release of information to the individual. The individual, or the individual's 46 
representative, will be given access to the relevant case record, or provided copies of 47 
requested information upon providing a written authorization for release of information, 48 
except as in (1) through (3) of this Subsection. 49 

 50 
(1)  Psychological, psychiatric, mental health and substance abuse treatment records 51 
and information from psychological, psychiatric, mental health and substance abuse 52 
treatment practitioners may only be obtained provided the requirements of Section 1-53 
109 of Title 43A of the Oklahoma Statues are met.  Under these circumstances, refer 54 
the individual, or the individual's representative, to the treating health professional.   55 
 56 
(2)  When a DRS professional staff person believes medical or other information not 57 
covered in (1) of this Subsection may be harmful to the individual, the information may 58 
not be released directly to the individual but must be provided to the individual through 59 
a third party chosen by the individual, which may include, among others, an advocate, 60 
a family member, or a qualified medical or mental health professional, unless a 61 
representative has been appointed by a court to represent the individual, in which case 62 
the information must be released to the court-appointed representative. 63 
 64 
(3)  Information obtained from another organization or agency may be released only 65 
through that agency, or under the conditions established by the outside agency, 66 
organization or providers. For example, information from the Veteran's Administration 67 
and Social Security Administration may not be released. Refer the individual requesting 68 
such information to the source from which the information was obtained. 69 

 70 
(d)  Request for information correction. An individual who believes that information in the 71 
individual's case record is inaccurate or misleading may request that the information be 72 
amended. Even if the information is not amended, the request for amendment must be 73 
documented in the case record. 74 
 75 
(e)  Release of information to other programs or authorities. Paragraphs (1) through 76 
(4) of this Subsection provide the rules governing release of personal information to other 77 
programs or authorities. 78 
 79 

(1)  Upon receiving the informed written consent of the individual, or the individual's 80 
representative, information may be released to another agency or organization. Only 81 
that information that would be released to the involved individual, or the individual's 82 

Page 131



612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 
 

 

612:10-1-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Confidentiality 

representative will be released, and only to the extent that the other program or 83 
organization demonstrates that the information requested is necessary for its program.  84 

 85 
(2)  Personal information will be released if required by Federal law or regulations. 86 
 87 
(3)  Personal information will be released in response to investigations in connection 88 
with law enforcement, fraud, or abuse, unless expressly prohibited by Federal or State 89 
laws or regulations, and in response to an order issued by a judge, magistrate, or other 90 
authorized judicial officer. 91 
 92 
(4)  Personal information may be released in order to protect the individual or others if 93 
the individual poses a threat to his or her safety or to the safety of others. 94 

 95 
(f)  Release of information for audit, evaluation or research. Personal information may 96 
be released to an organization, agency, or individual engaged in audit, evaluation, or 97 
research, only: 98 

 99 
(1)  for the purposes directly connected with the administration of the DVR or 100 
DVSDVRBVI program; 101 
 102 
(2)  for purposes which would significantly improve the quality of life for persons with 103 
disabilities; and 104 
 105 
(3)  if the organization, agency or individual assures: 106 

 107 
(A) The information will be used only for the purpose it is being provided; 108 
 109 
(B) The information will be released only to persons officially connected with the 110 
audit, evaluation or research; 111 
 112 
(C) The information will not be released to the individual; 113 
 114 
(D) The information will be managed in a manner to safeguard confidentiality; and 115 
 116 
(E) The final product will not reveal any personal identifying information without the 117 
informed written consent of the involved individual or the individual's 118 
representative. 119 

Page 132



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

612:10-1-6.  Due process [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Notification of rights to due process. Any applicant or client of DVR or DVSDVRBVI 3 
dissatisfied with a determination that affects the provision of vocational rehabilitation 4 
services may request a timely review of the determination. Each applicant or client, or as 5 
appropriate, the individual's authorized representative will be informed of: 6 
 7 

(1)  the right to get decisions regarding the individual's case reviewed by an impartial 8 
hearing officer; 9 
 10 
(2)  the right to pursue mediation on decisions regarding the individual's case; 11 
 12 
(3)  the names and addresses of individuals with whom requests for mediation or due 13 
process hearings may be filed; 14 
 15 
(4)  the manner in which a mediator or impartial hearing officer may be selected; and 16 
 17 
(5)  the availability of assistance from the client assistance program. 18 

 19 
(b)  When notification of rights to due process is required. The notifications specified 20 
in (a) shall be provided in writing, and in appropriate accessible format: 21 
 22 

(1)  at the time an individual applies for VR services; 23 
 24 
(2)  at the time an individual is assigned to the State's order of selection; 25 
 26 
(3)  at the time the Individualized Plan for Employment is developed; and 27 
 28 
(4)  upon reduction, suspension, or cessation of VR services for the individual. 29 

 30 
(c)  Client Assistance Program (CAP). The purpose of the Client Assistance Program 31 
(CAP) as described in this Section is to provide assistance with informing and advising 32 
clients and applicants of all available benefits under the Rehabilitation Act. When requested 33 
by clients and applicants, CAP will assist them in their relationships with projects, 34 
programs, and Community Rehabilitation Programs providing services to them under the 35 
Act. 36 

 37 
(1)  The Oklahoma CAP has the authority to pursue legal, administrative and other 38 
appropriate remedies to ensure the protection of the rights of individuals with 39 
disabilities who are receiving treatment, services or rehabilitation under the Act within 40 
the State. 41 

Page 133



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

 42 
(2)  Vocational Rehabilitation agencies are required by Federal statute to advise all 43 
clients and applicants of the existence of CAP, the services provided by the program, 44 
and how to contact the program. A brochure is provided to each individual at the time 45 
of application and development of the IPE. 46 
 47 
(3)  Counselors must assure clients and applicants have access to CAP without fear of 48 
reprisal and are not pressured against or otherwise discouraged from using CAP 49 
services. 50 
 51 
(4)  The CAP staff members will provide the following services: 52 

 53 
(A)  Helping clients or applicants to understand rehabilitation service programs 54 
under the Act; 55 
 56 
(B)  Advising clients or applicants of benefits available to them through 57 
rehabilitation programs authorized under the Act and their rights and 58 
responsibilities in connection with those benefits; 59 
 60 
(C)  Otherwise assisting clients and applicants in their relationships with projects, 61 
programs, and Community Rehabilitation Programs providing rehabilitation 62 
services under the Act; 63 
 64 
(D)  Helping clients or applicants by pursuing or assisting them in pursuing legal, 65 
administrative, and other available remedies when necessary to ensure the 66 
protection of their rights under the Act; 67 
 68 
(E)  Advising State and other agencies of identified problem areas in the delivery of 69 
rehabilitation services to individuals with disabilities and suggesting methods and 70 
means of improving agency performance; and 71 
 72 
(F)  Providing information to the public concerning the CAP and Title I of the ADA. 73 

 74 
(5)  Clients may be referred to CAP by any one of the following: 75 

 76 
(A)  The client's counselor; 77 
 78 
(B)  Other DRS representative; 79 
 80 
(C)  Office of Handicapped Concerns' Hotline; 81 
 82 

Page 134



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

(D)  Self; 83 
 84 
(E)  Any other interested party. 85 
 86 

(6)  Every client or applicant has the right to protection of information provided by 87 
him/her from unauthorized or indiscriminate disclosure. DVR and DVSDVRBVI will 88 
provide CAP officials information regarding an individual's case in accordance with 89 
612:10-1-5 and applicable Federal law and regulations. 90 
 91 
(7)  The CAP staff will make periodic field visits to facilitate CAP's availability to clients 92 
or applicants who cannot travel to Oklahoma City. 93 

 94 
(d)  Supervisory review. DVR and DVSDVRBVI use a supervisory review process to 95 
resolve disagreements as close to the field service delivery level as possible. The objective 96 
of the supervisory review process is a timely resolution of disagreements, and is not to be 97 
used to delay or deny a fair hearing before a hearing officer or the services of an impartial 98 
mediator. The supervisory review of a counselor determination starts the 60 day time 99 
period established under (f)(5) of this Section. The request for a fair hearing is submitted at 100 
this time in accordance with (f)(2) of this Section. 101 

 102 
(1)  The supervisory review is usually conducted by the program manager. If the 103 
program manager was involved in the disputed determination, the field coordinator 104 
conducts the administrative review. If the field coordinator was involved in the disputed 105 
determination, the division administrator conducts the administrative review. 106 
 107 
(2)  The decision that results from the administrative review will be stated in a letter to 108 
the individual, or to the individual's representative, with copies to the case record, the 109 
program manager, and the hearings coordinator.  The letter will identify the individual, 110 
case number, caseload, and office location. The body of the letter will state the reason 111 
for the administrative review and the decision resulting from that review. If the 112 
administrative review resolves the disagreement, the Withdrawal of Request for 113 
Hearing form must be submitted with the copy of the letter that is sent to the hearings 114 
coordinator. 115 
 116 

(e)  Mediation. Whenever a fair hearing is requested under this Section, mediation shall be 117 
offered as an option to resolve a disputed decision.  DRS uses the voluntary mediation 118 
services of the Oklahoma Supreme Court. The  supervisor will arrange for a mediator with 119 
the Early Settlement Center that is most convenient to the consumer upon receipt of a 120 
request for mediation. DRS will bear the cost of the mediation. The mediation session will 121 
be scheduled in a timely manner. An agreement reached by the parties to the dispute in the 122 
mediation will be set forth in writing. Discussions that occur during the mediation process 123 

Page 135



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

will be confidential and may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due process 124 
hearing or civil proceeding. Should the dispute be resolved through mediation, a withdrawal 125 
of request for hearing must be submitted to the hearings coordinator. The parties to the 126 
mediation may be required to sign a confidentiality pledge prior to commencement of the 127 
process. Nothing in this Subsection shall be construed to preclude the parties from 128 
informally resolving the dispute. The Departmental representative attending the mediation 129 
must be the individual who has final decision making authority for the question in dispute. 130 
The mediation: 131 
 132 

(1)  must be entered into voluntarily by all parties; 133 
 134 
(2)  is not used to deny or delay the hearing or any other right; and 135 
 136 
(3)  Is conducted by a qualified and impartial mediator. 137 
 138 

(f)  Fair hearing process. The fair hearing process will be conducted in accordance  139 
with (1) through (10) of this Subsection. 140 

 141 
(1)  Services under IPE to continue. No services being provided under the IPE shall 142 
be stopped, delayed, or reduced by the Department pending a final resolution of a 143 
requested hearing unless so requested by the individual or individual's authorized 144 
representative; or the service was obtained through misrepresentation, fraud, collusion, 145 
or criminal conduct on the part of the individual with disabilities.  146 
 147 
(2)  Request for a fair hearing. The individual has 30 calendar days following the date 148 
on the notice of the adverse decision to request a fair hearing.   149 

 150 
(A)  The individual requesting a fair hearing, may submit it to the local office, or may 151 
send it directly to the hearings coordinator in State Office.  DVR and DVSDVRBVI 152 
staff will assist the individual in completing this form and with preparation of 153 
evidence from the case record in conformance with 612:10-1-5, if so requested. 154 
 155 
(B)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff will immediately notify their supervisor of the 156 
request for a fair hearing so that the administrative review can be started by the 157 
appropriate staff person. The completed Hearing Summary form, a copy of the 158 
notice of the adverse decision, and all supporting materials to be used in the 159 
hearing must be sent to the hearings coordinator as soon as possible. If a request 160 
for a fair hearing is submitted to the local office, staff will immediately forward it with 161 
the other materials. 162 
 163 

Page 136



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

(C)  Prior to the actual fair hearing, the hearings coordinator will provide copies of 164 
materials the agency will use in the fair hearing to the individual and/or the 165 
individual's representative in conformance with 612:10-1-5. 166 
 167 

(3)  Withdrawal of request for a fair hearing. The individual, or the individual's 168 
representative, may submit a withdrawal of request for hearing any time following the 169 
submission of a request for a fair hearing up to the time the hearing is actually held. If 170 
the issue is resolved prior to the fair hearing, the individual, or the individual's 171 
representative, must submit a Withdrawal of Request for Hearing to end the fair hearing 172 
process. 173 
 174 
(4)  Selection of impartial hearing officer.  The hearings coordinator will select an 175 
impartial hearing officer from a list of qualified impartial hearing officers maintained and 176 
identified by the State unit.  Once selected, the impartial hearing officer will assume 177 
responsibility for arranging and conducting the fair hearing with the assistance of 178 
agency staff as necessary. The hearings coordinator will be apprised of events in the 179 
hearing process, and will be provided copies of all correspondence. 180 

 181 
(A)  Selections will be made randomly; or by agreement between the director of the 182 
designated State unit and the applicant or eligible individual or, as appropriate, the 183 
individual's representative; from the list of available impartial hearing officers. The 184 
hearings coordinator will forward all relevant materials to the assigned impartial 185 
hearing officer. 186 
 187 
(B)  The impartial hearing officer will send written notice of the fair hearing to all 188 
parties involved. The written notice of the fair hearing will include the name, 189 
address, and a brief vita of the impartial hearing officer. 190 
 191 
(C)  The individual may request a different impartial hearing officer based upon 192 
presented evidence that a conflict of interest exists consistent with Section 7 (16) of 193 
the Rehabilitation Act and 34 CFR 361.5(b)(25). A request for a different impartial 194 
hearing officer must be made within five days of receiving the fair hearing notice. 195 

 196 
(5)  Scheduling of the fair hearing. The fair hearing must be held within 60 calendar 197 
days from the date the request for a fair hearing is received, unless the issue is resolved 198 
prior to the 60th day or the parties agree to a specific extension of time. The 199 
administrative review must be conducted and concluded within the same 60 days. 200 
Delays or continuances will not be given for the purpose of extending the provision of 201 
services. Any agreement to an extension of time must be formalized in writing. 202 
 203 

Page 137



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

(6)  Consumer's participation in hearing. At a fair hearing, the individual, or the 204 
individual's representative, is afforded the opportunity to: 205 

 206 
(A)  present additional evidence, information, and witnesses to the impartial hearing 207 
officer; 208 
 209 
(B)  be represented by counsel or other advocate selected by the applicant or 210 
eligible individual; and 211 
 212 
(C)  examine all witnesses and other relevant sources of information and evidence. 213 

 214 
(7)  Agency staff attendance. Professional staff involved in the disputed determination 215 
will appear at the hearing to provide appropriate information and evidence and 216 
testimony. Other staff will appear as directed. 217 
 218 
(8)  Order of proceedings in the fair hearing. The Impartial Hearing Officer will 219 
conduct the fair hearing in accordance with State laws regarding conduct of individual 220 
proceedings before an agency, and applicable Federal laws and regulations. Although 221 
the order of proceedings is at the discretion of the Hearing Officer, generally, the fair 222 
hearing follows this order of proceedings: 223 

 224 
(A)  presentation, arguments, and disposition of all preliminary motions and matters; 225 
 226 
(B)  opening statements; 227 
 228 
(C)  information and evidence presented by the agency; 229 
 230 
(D)  evidence presented by the grievant; 231 
 232 
(E)  rebuttal by either or both sides; 233 
 234 
(F)  closing statements by the grievant; 235 
 236 
(G)  closing statements by the agency; and 237 
 238 
(H)  rebuttal by grievant. 239 

 240 
(9)  Decision. The hearing officer makes a decision based on the provisions of the 241 
approved State Plan, the Act, Federal vocational rehabilitation regulations, and State 242 
regulations and policies that are consistent with Federal requirements and on whether 243 
or not the counselor properly applied rules. The hearing officer does not have the 244 

Page 138



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

authority to rule upon the legality of DRS rules that are consistent with Federal 245 
requirements. A decision made after a fair hearing shall be final, unless a party to the 246 
fair hearing requests a review under Paragraph (10) of this Subsection. The hearing 247 
officer provides the individual, or the individual's representative, and the hearings 248 
coordinator a full written report of the findings and grounds for the decision within 30 249 
days of the completion of the hearing. The hearings coordinator will immediately forward 250 
the decision to the Director of DRS. The impartial hearing officer may make one of 251 
several decisions, which include, but are not limited to: 252 
 253 

(A)  finding in favor of the grievant; 254 
 255 
(B)  upholding the determination or action of the agency; 256 
 257 
(C)  accepting a withdrawal of the appeal confirmed in writing signed by the 258 
grievant, or  the grievant's representative; or 259 
 260 
(D)  accepting a settlement of the issues agreed to by the grievant and the agency 261 
which must include a written withdrawal of request for a hearing. 262 

 263 
(10)  Review of impartial hearing officer's decision. Any party involved in a fair 264 
hearing may request an impartial review of the impartial hearing officer's decision within 265 
20 calendar days of that decision. This review will be conducted by the Governor or the 266 
Governor's designee to whom DRS is assigned. The review will be conducted in 267 
accordance with the standards in (A) through (E) of this paragraph: 268 

 269 
(A)  The Governor or the Governor's designee will not delegate responsibility for 270 
this review to any officer or employee of DRS. 271 
 272 
(B)  The Governor or the Governor's designee will provide an opportunity for the 273 
submission of additional evidence and information relevant to a final decision 274 
concerning the matter under review. 275 
 276 
(C)  The Governor or the Governor's designee will make a final decision within 30 277 
days of the request for administrative review. The decision will be provided to all 278 
parties, and/or to the parties' authorized representatives, in writing. The written 279 
decision will include a full report of the findings, and the grounds for the decision. 280 
 281 
(D)  The Governor or the Governor's designee cannot overturn or modify a 282 
decision, or part of a decision, made by an impartial hearing officer that supports 283 
the position of the individual unless the Governor or the Governor's designee 284 
concludes, based upon clear and convincing evidence, that the decision of the 285 

Page 139



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

hearing officer is clearly erroneous on the basis of being contrary to the approved 286 
State plan, the Act, Federal vocational rehabilitation regulations, or State 287 
regulations and policies that are consistent with Federal requirements. The 288 
Governor or the Governor's designee will apply the standards presented in (i) 289 
through (iii) of this Subparagraph when conducting the review of the hearing 290 
officer's decision. 291 

 292 
(i)  The hearing officer's decision shall not be arbitrary, capricious, an abuse 293 
of discretion, or otherwise unreasonable. 294 
 295 
(ii)  The hearing officer's decision shall be supported by substantial findings of 296 
fact. 297 
 298 
(iii)  In reaching the initial decision, the impartial hearing officer shall correctly 299 
apply Federal and State law, regulation, agency policy, and the approved 300 
State Plan as they pertain to the specific issue in question. 301 

 302 
(E)  A decision made under this Paragraph shall be final unless a party involved in 303 
the hearing brings a civil action. 304 

 305 
(g)  Civil proceedings. Any party aggrieved by a final decision of an impartial hearing 306 
officer, or by the Governor or the Governor's designee, may bring a civil action for review of 307 
the decision. The action may be brought in any State court of competent jurisdiction or in a 308 
district court of the United States of competent jurisdiction without regard to the amount in 309 
controversy. If a party brings a civil action, the final decision of the impartial hearing officer, 310 
or of the Governor or the Governor's designee, shall be implemented pending review by the 311 
court. In any action brought under this Subsection, the court: 312 

 313 
(1)  shall receive the records relating to the hearing, and the records relating to any 314 
review conducted under (f)(10), if applicable; 315 
 316 
(2)  shall hear additional evidence at the request of a party to the action; and 317 
 318 
(3)  basing the decision of the court on the preponderance of the evidence, shall grant 319 
such relief as the court determines to be appropriate. [29 USC 722] 320 

 321 
(h)  Standards for impartial hearing officers. In addition to qualifications required in a 322 
contract with the Department, an impartial hearing officer must meet the standards set forth 323 
in (1) through (6) of this Subsection: 324 
 325 

Page 140



612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 
 

 

612:10-1-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Due process 

(1)  cannot be an employee of a public agency (other than an administrative law judge, 326 
hearing examiner, or employee of an institution of higher learning); 327 
 328 
(2)  cannot be a member of the Oklahoma Rehabilitation Council; 329 
 330 
(3)  has not been involved previously in the vocational rehabilitation of the applicant or 331 
eligible individual; 332 
 333 
(4)  must have knowledge of the delivery of vocational rehabilitation services, the State 334 
plan required under Section 101 of the Act, and the Federal and State rules governing 335 
the provision of such services and training with respect to the performance of official 336 
duties; 337 
 338 
(5)  must have no personal, professional or financial interest that would be in conflict 339 
with the objectivity of the impartial hearing officer; and 340 
 341 
(6)  must have successfully completed impartial hearing officer training presented by 342 
DRS. 343 
 344 

(i)  Standards for impartial mediators. In addition to qualifications required in a contract 345 
with the Department, an impartial mediator: 346 

 347 
(1)  will be trained and certified or licensed in effective mediation techniques; 348 
 349 
(2)  will not be an employee of a public agency (other than an Administrative Law 350 
Judge, hearing examiner, employee of a State Office of Mediators, or employee of an 351 
institution of higher education); 352 
 353 
(3)  will not be a member of the Oklahoma Rehabilitation Council; 354 
 355 
(4)  must be knowledgeable in laws and regulations relating to the provision of VR 356 
services; 357 
 358 
(5)  has not been involved previously in the vocational rehabilitation of the applicant or 359 
eligible individual; and 360 
 361 
(6)  must have no personal, professional or financial interest that would be in conflict 362 
with the impartiality of the mediator. 363 

Page 141



612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 
 

 

612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 

612:10-1-7.  Purchase of services and goods for individuals with disabilities 1 
[AMENDED] 2 

 3 
(a)  All Department authorizations are made in compliance with the state purchasing policy 4 
under legal authority of the Director or by an employee to whom the Director has delegated 5 
such authority. Services, other than diagnosis, must be in an approved Individualized Plan 6 
for Employment prior to authorization. All authorizations are to be issued prior to or 7 
simultaneously with the provision of the services. Verbal authorizations may be made when 8 
needed to ensure effective delivery of services. Verbal authorization must be followed 9 
immediately by the actual authorization. Separate authorizations for each fiscal year are 10 
required when a planned service extends beyond a single fiscal year. Rehabilitation 11 
professionals may not authorize fees for services in excess of those established by the 12 
Department unless approved by the Division Administrator. A prior written purchasing 13 
agreement is required before authorization can be made to any medical vendor or post-14 
secondary school. Other nonmedical vendors will not require a prior written purchasing 15 
agreement unless stated otherwise in the DRS policy manual section(s) for that service. 16 
When a vendor has a prior written purchasing agreement with the Department, and 17 
required approvals have been obtained, authorization may be issued for consumer services 18 
directly to that vendor. All other consumer services will be purchased pursuant to the rules 19 
in (g) and (h) of this Section. However, a requisition may be submitted to the DRS 20 
Purchasing Section if, in the judgment of the responsible rehabilitation professional, the 21 
best interests of the consumer and/or the agency would be served by having the 22 
Purchasing Section handle the procurement. In either case, once items have been received 23 
and checked against the authorization, the appropriate DVR or DVSDVRBVI staff, in 24 
accordance with (g) and (h) of this Section, approves the claim, then forwards it to the DRS 25 
Financial Services Division. When a vendor does not abide by the authorization or written 26 
purchasing agreement or bills and accepts fees from the client in addition to those agreed 27 
upon, the rehabilitation professional will bring this to the immediate attention of the 28 
supervisor for action by the administration. The vendor will not be used for further 29 
rehabilitation services until agreement to discontinue the objectionable practice is reached. 30 
 31 
(b)  Since the Department is a state-federal agency, it does not pay sales, excise, or 32 
transportation taxes. 33 
 34 
(c)  All claims for medical and/or nonmedical client services must be filed on claim forms 35 
approved by the Department.  When the provision of an authorization is fulfilled, payment 36 
for the authorized client services constitutes payment in full.  The client will not have any 37 
financial liability other than the amount required of clients who must participate in the cost 38 
of the service provided. The individual is liable for services he/she arranged which were not 39 

Page 142



612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 
 

 

612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 

planned and initiated under the auspices of DRS. When DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds are 40 
used to supplement third party medical resources, participation cannot exceed the 41 
difference between the third-party payment and the Department's established schedule.  42 
 43 
(d)  The client must transfer, assign, or authorize payments to the Department of any and 44 
all claims against Health Insurance or Liability Insurance companies or other third parties, 45 
to the full extent of all payments for medical services made by the Department. 46 
 47 
(e)  The Department retains right and title to any tools, equipment, durable medical 48 
equipment, or other goods costing $500 or more purchased with DVR and DVSDVRBVI 49 
funds, until and unless such goods are released to the client.  Upon delivery of any such 50 
goods to the client, a Receipt for Equipment and Title Agreement must be completed and 51 
approved. 52 

 53 
(1)  Completion of Program: 54 

 55 
Any tools, equipment or durable medical goods purchased for training or occupational 56 
purposes remain with the client after completion of the program of services if they can 57 
be used in the client’s chosen vocation.  If the client fails to complete the program of 58 
service, the counselor will make effort to reclaim the goods to transfer to another client. 59 

 60 
(2)  Disposition at closure: 61 

 62 
Case recording must reflect the disposition at the time of closure of tools, equipment, 63 
and goods provided the client.  All occupational tools, equipment, and durable medical 64 
goods remain the property of the agency until released.  If the client is not using the 65 
items, the counselor will pick them up if an economical savings to the agency will result, 66 
and if the transfer will not endanger the health or safety of the client. 67 
 68 
(3)  Title Release: 69 
 70 
Title on any tools, equipment or durable medical equipment purchased with DRS funds 71 
for training or occupational purposes will not be released to the client until the 72 
counselor has determined the client is using the items as planned.   73 

 74 
(f)  When the rehabilitation professional determines an authorization or portion of an 75 
authorization will not be utilized, procedures to cancel the remaining services will be 76 
completed.  Before the case is closed, all unliquidated authorizations must be canceled or 77 
accounted for to determine if a claim will be made against any outstanding authorization. 78 

Page 143



612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 
 

 

612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 

 79 
(g)  Purchasing consumer goods or services, other than direct client payments, when there 80 
is no prior written purchasing agreement is basically a three step process. These steps 81 
include specifying the requirements for the goods or services, authorizing for the purchase, 82 
and receiving delivery of the goods or services. For audit purposes, no one person can 83 
perform more than one of these steps. A different person is required for: 84 
 85 

(1)  identifying the requirement for the purchase; 86 
 87 
(2)  placing the order; and 88 
 89 
(3)  accepting the material or service. 90 
 91 

(h)  When a prior written purchasing agreement for consumer goods or services, other than 92 
direct client payments, is not required, and the service or package of services to be 93 
obtained will cost the amount of the DCAM authority order limit or less, the rehabilitation 94 
professional and client will jointly choose an appropriate vendor. The rehabilitation 95 
professional will then authorize for the planned services to the chosen vendor. When a prior 96 
written purchasing agreement for consumer services, other than direct client payments, is 97 
not required, and the service or package of services will cost more than the DCAM 98 
authority order limit, the rehabilitation professional will follow rules in (1) through (7) of this 99 
Subsection. 100 

 101 
(1)  The rehabilitation professional will obtain specialist recommendations for purchase 102 
requirements and approvals in accordance with agency policy.  103 
 104 
(2)  The participation of the client, or the client's authorized representative, will be 105 
obtained in deciding upon at least three vendors to be contacted by the rehabilitation 106 
professional to obtain bids for the goods or services. The rehabilitation professional will 107 
review available vendor information with the client, or client's authorized representative, 108 
to jointly determine which vendor(s) can best meet the needs of the client in terms of 109 
product and service function, quality, and vendor accessibility. 110 
 111 
(3)  At least three vendors offering the goods or services will be contacted to obtain 112 
bids. To expedite planning and service delivery, bids may be obtained verbally. Upon 113 
request, contacted vendors will be afforded at least 24 hours in which to prepare and 114 
submit the verbal bid. The rehabilitation professional will ensure that all bids are 115 
submitted in writing for the same or comparable items, and will document the bids 116 
received by using the Vendor Bid Documentation Form. 117 

Page 144



612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 
 

 

612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 

 118 
(4)  The rehabilitation professional will issue the appropriate authorization and claim to 119 
the vendor submitting the lowest and best bid. If the rehabilitation professional 120 
managing the case is also the recognized specialist who identified the purchase 121 
requirements, then the supervisor will issue the appropriate authorization. Authorization 122 
may be issued to a vendor not submitting the lowest bid only with strong 123 
documentation that the selected vendor can best meet the needs of the client. When 124 
the bid is in excess of $5,000.00 the successful bidder will sign a non-collusion 125 
statement (to be sent with the claim), which will be maintained in the case service 126 
record. 127 
 128 
(5) In the case of a vehicle modification or housing modification, upon completion of the 129 
authorized services, the counselor will contact the AT Specialist to schedule inspection 130 
of the work in accordance with 612:10-7-220 and 612:10-11-38.  The AT Specialist will 131 
complete the "Assistive Technology Inspection Report" verifying the modification 132 
conforms to acceptable standards and the work is satisfactory.  3 133 
 134 
(6)  Upon delivery of the goods or services in accordance with the IPE and 135 
authorization, a rehabilitation staff person other than the specialist who specified the 136 
purchase requirements and the rehabilitation professional who authorized the purchase 137 
will accept delivery, verify that goods received match the vendor invoice, sign the 138 
appropriate claim form, sign and attach the invoice and forward them to the DRS 139 
Financial Services Division. 140 
 141 
(7)  Upon delivery of any goods costing $500 or more to the client, a Receipt for 142 
Equipment and Title Agreement must be completed and approved. 143 
 144 
(8)  Itemized documentation will be in the case record on all orders costing less than 145 
$500 and the client will acknowledge their receipt.  (For example, signing and dating 146 
the packaging slip, vendor's invoice, or typed list of goods.) 147 
 148 
(9)  Returned or repossessed items must be documented on for "Receipt for 149 
Equipment and Title Agreement" and the final disposition noted in Case Narrative 150 
entry. 151 
 152 

(i)  Program Managers will review case records when submitted for approvals to ensure 153 
that purchases are being awarded in a manner that ensures competition and client 154 
participation within the scope of DRS and applicable fiscal rules. At least once each fiscal 155 
year a random selection of case records will be reviewed by the DRS Central/Departmental 156 

Page 145



612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 
 

 

612:10-1-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Purchase of services and goods for 
  individuals with disabilities 

Services Unit to monitor compliance with DRS and applicable fiscal rules. If a Program 157 
Manager has reason to believe that a rehabilitation professional is not making a good faith 158 
effort to award purchases in a competitive manner and in accordance with agency policy, a 159 
fiscal audit of the entire caseload will be requested to determine the appropriate action to 160 
take. 161 
 162 
(j) Pursuant to 74 O.S. 85.44A, any goods or services required under a court order shall be 163 
purchased in accordance with DRS fiscal rules. 164 

Page 146



612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

612:10-3-2.  Consideration of comparable services and benefits  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Prior to providing any VR service to an eligible individual, except those services 3 
specified in Paragraph (1), the VR counselor will determine whether comparable services 4 
and benefits  are available under any other program unless any of the conditions in 5 
Paragraph (2) apply to the individual. 6 

 7 
(1)  The VR services listed in (A) through (F) are to be provided without first 8 
determining the availability of comparable services and benefits. However, comparable 9 
services and benefits may be used for these VR services if the comparable services 10 
and benefits are readily available at the time the VR services are needed. VR services 11 
exempt from a required search for comparable services and benefits are: 12 

 13 
(A)  information and referral services to eligible individuals not in an open priority 14 
group under the order of selection; 15 
 16 
(B)  assessment for determining eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs by 17 
qualified personnel, including, if appropriate, an assessment by personnel skilled in 18 
rehabilitation technology; 19 
 20 
(C)  counseling and guidance, including information and support services to assist 21 
an individual in exercising informed choice; 22 
 23 
(D)  referral and other services to secure needed services from other agencies 24 
through cooperative agreements; 25 
 26 
(E)  job-related services, including job search and placement assistance, job 27 
retention services, follow-up services, and follow-along services; and 28 
 29 
(F)  rehabilitation technology, including telecommunications, sensory, and other 30 
technological aids and devices. 31 

 32 
(2)  Determining whether comparable benefits and services are available will not be 33 
required prior to providing any VR services if that determination would interrupt or 34 
delay: 35 

 36 
(A)  the progress of the individual toward achieving the employment outcome 37 
identified in the IPE; 38 
 39 

Page 147



612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

(B)  an immediate job placement; or 40 
 41 
(C)  the provision of such services to any individual at extreme medical risk. 42 
 43 

(b)  Counselors will advise clients of available benefits, help in completing the application 44 
for such benefits when needed, and refer clients to the appropriate contact person. Each 45 
client is required to apply for such benefits. DVR and DVSDVRBVI will not participate in the 46 
cost of services for any client who fails to apply for and accept available comparable 47 
benefits.  48 
 49 
(c)  Whether or not the client must participate in the cost of VR services has absolutely no 50 
effect upon the required search for, or use of, available comparable benefits. Available 51 
comparable benefits cannot be used in place of client resources when the client is required 52 
to participate in the cost of VR services. 53 
 54 
(d)  Awards and scholarships based upon merit will not be counted as comparable benefits. 55 
 56 
(e)  A student loan is not a comparable benefit. Failure to apply for a student loan which 57 
must be repaid will not be cause to withhold participation by DVR or DVSDVRBVI. Clients 58 
who have defaulted on a student loan will not be assisted with post-secondary training until 59 
the client has cleared the default or has made arrangement with the lender on the terms of 60 
payment.  Documentation of the arrangement made must be in the case record before 61 
post-secondary training services are provided when it is known a client has defaulted on a 62 
loan. The counselor will inform such clients of organizations which can help resolve debt 63 
problems, such as credit counseling services and legal aid. 64 
 65 
(f)  Clients are expected to provide the counselor a copy of the award letter(s) or other 66 
written notice of comparable benefits received from other sources, and it is expected the 67 
comparable services and benefits available to the client will be used to defray all or part of 68 
the cost of the individual's IPE. 69 
 70 
(g)  The client's IPE will be reviewed and amended by the client and VR counselor 71 
whenever comparable services or benefits that were not accounted for in the original plan 72 
become available to the client. 73 
 74 
(h)  Cooperative agreements between DRS and other service providers may affect how 75 
comparable services and benefits available from such service providers will be applied in 76 
an IPE. Cooperative agreements entered into by DRS with other service providers will 77 
include: 78 

Page 148



612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

612:10-3-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Consideration of comparable services 
  and benefits 
 

 79 
(1)  provisions for determining and stating the financial responsibility of each 80 
agency in providing services; 81 
 82 
(2)  conditions, terms, and procedures for DRS to be reimbursed by other agencies 83 
for providing covered services; 84 
 85 
(3)  procedures for resolving interagency disputes under the agreement; and 86 
 87 
(4)  coordination of agency procedures for timely VR services delivery. 88 

Page 149



612:10-3-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client participation in services cost and 
  Financial status determination 
 

 
612:10-3-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client participation in services cost and 
  Financial status determination 
 

 1 
612:10-3-3.  Client participation in services cost and financial status determination 2 
[AMENDED] 3 
 4 
(a)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI require the client to participate in the cost of some vocational 5 
rehabilitation services if the client and/or client’s family resourcesincome exceedexceeds the 6 
established basic living requirement for the applicable family size.  Any client who has been 7 
determined eligible for Social Security benefits under Title II or XVI of the Social Security Act 8 
is exempt from client participation in service costs.  9 
 10 
(b)  Before an individual can be provided services other than those listed in DRS policy, the 11 
counselor must evaluate the client's financial situation to determine if the client must 12 
participate in the cost of services, and if so, the amount of such participation. Any client 13 
whose available family resourcesincome exceedexceeds the applicable basic living 14 
requirement is required to apply the monthly surplus to the cost of services during each 30 15 
day period services are provided. DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds will not be used to purchase 16 
services based on client's financial status when there is any refusal on client's behalf to 17 
participate in the cost of services. However, the client can be provided services not based 18 
on financial status. Any client who does not have a surplus is not required to participate in 19 
the cost of services. Financial status does not exempt the client from required use of 20 
comparable benefits. If a payment is required of the client, it will be made to the vendor.  21 
 22 
(c)  The counselor will re-evaluate the client’s financial situation at least annually and any 23 
time there is a change in the financial situation of the client or family. The amount of client 24 
participation in cost is based upon the most recent determination of client's financial status 25 
at the time the IPE or amendment is written, and is stated in the IPE or amendment.  26 
 27 
(d)  The client's financial status must be verified when an IPE includes services which 28 
require client participation in cost of services. Information used to verify the client's financial 29 
status includes such documents as income tax returns, bank statements, pay stubs, 30 
canceled checks, payment receipts, and/or payroll documents. It is the client's responsibility 31 
to provide the documents needed for verification of financial status information for the family. 32 
If the client refuses to provide the requested verification, DVR and DVSDVRBVI resources 33 
will not be used to defray the cost of services which require client participation in cost of 34 
services. 35 

Page 150



612:10-3-4  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Services exempt from client participation 
  in service costs  

 
612:10-3-4  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Services exempt from client participation 
  in service costs  
 

 1 
612:10-3-4.  Services exempt from client participation in service costs [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI clients who have income and assets above the basic living 4 
requirements will be required to apply surplus resources to the cost of rehabilitation 5 
services except for the following services which do not require a determination of 6 
financial status: 7 

 8 
(1)  services provided to assess eligibility and rehabilitation needs (services which 9 
would require the individual's participation in cost under an IPE will also require the 10 
individual's participation in cost during an evaluation of the individual's ability to 11 
benefit from VR services); 12 
 13 
(2)  counseling, guidance, referral, and other services provided directly by DVR and 14 
DVSDVRBVI staff; 15 
 16 
(3)  on-the-job training; 17 
 18 
(4)  personal or work-adjustment training; 19 
 20 
(5)  reader services; 21 
 22 
(6)  interpreter services; 23 
 24 
(7)  personal assistance services; 25 
 26 
(8)  job-related services including job search and placement, job retention services, 27 
follow-up services and follow-along services; 28 
 29 
(9)  compensatory training; 30 
 31 
(10)  job coaching services (i.e., supported employment, employment and retention, 32 
transitional employment); or 33 
 34 
(11)  any auxiliary aid or service that an individual with a disability requires under 35 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act or the Americans with Disabilities Act, or 36 
regulations implementing those laws, in order for the individual to participate in the 37 
VR program; and 38 
 39 
(1112)  library services. 40 

 41 

Page 151



612:10-3-4  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Services exempt from client participation 
  in service costs  

 
612:10-3-4  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Services exempt from client participation 
  in service costs  
 

(b)  Recipients of Social Security benefits under Titles II (federal old age, survivors, and 42 
disability insurance benefits) or XVI (SSI) of the Social Security Act do not have to 43 
participate financially in the cost of their rehabilitation program.   44 

Page 152



612:10-3-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic living requirements 

 
612:10-3-5  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic living requirements 

 1 
612:10-3-5.  Basic living requirements [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  A basic living requirement has been established for different size family groups.  4 
A family member is an individual who is a relative or guardian of an applicant or 5 
eligible individual.  Basic living requirements are based on 2400% of the Federal 6 
poverty level adjusted annually for family size. The standard is intended to cover 7 
only the necessities of food, shelter, utilities, clothing, transportation, and incidentals 8 
to give the counselor some criteria by which to measure the financial status of a 9 
client.  To qualify as independent from the family group, the client must meet one of 10 
the following criteria: 11 

 12 
(1)  Beneficiary of Titles II (federal old age, survivors, and disability insurance 13 
benefits) or XVI (SSI);  14 
 15 
(2)  At least 24 years of age and single; 16 
 17 
(3)  A ward of the court and in custody of DHS; 18 
 19 
(4)  Married and maintaining a separate household; 20 
 21 
(5)  Meets the criteria for temporary housing as described in 612:10-3-5(c) or; 22 
 23 
(6)  The counselor verifies the client has the financial resources to demonstrate 24 
self-sufficiency and the client declares no family contributions are available. 25 

 26 
(b)  Verification of family membership should be based upon whatever available 27 
information most accurately documents family membership according to the 28 
definition given in this Subsectionrule. Examples of acceptable verification include 29 
the latest Federal income tax return, payroll information, insurance policies, client 30 
report, and/or counselor observation. 31 
 32 
(c)  An eligible individual whose disability has resulted in the need to live with family 33 
or friends, and as appropriate the individual's spouse and dependent children, will be 34 
considered as a separate household regardless of living arrangements.   35 

Page 153



612:10-3-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Income, Assets and Liabilities 
 

 
612:10-3-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Income, Assets and Liabilities 

612:10-3-6.  Income, Assets and Liabilities [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
Determination of income, assets and liabilities will be verified and documented by 3 

the counselor in the case recording when services in the IPE and amendments 4 
require client participation in cost.  If the individual refuses to provide the requested 5 
information, DRS resources will not be used to purchase services which require 6 
client participation in cost of the services. 7 

 8 
(1)  Income. 9 

 10 
(A)  Income generated from salaried wages will be calculated by gross 11 
earnings minus federal taxes, state taxes and social security deductions. 12 
 13 
(B)  Income generated from business or profession will be calculated by 14 
adjusted gross minus additional federal and state taxes divided by 12 to 15 
determine a monthly amount. 16 
 17 
(C)  Income received from unearned sources, such as pensions, public 18 
assistance, interest, dividends, royalties, trust fund, or money payments of 19 
any kind will be counted.  Educational grants, stipends, or loans will not be 20 
included in the calculation.  If a yearly income is available, it will be divided by 21 
12 to calculate a monthly amount. 22 

 23 
(2)  Assets. 24 

 25 
(A)  Liquid assets such as money, bonds, savings accounts, available trust 26 
funds, certificate of deposits and other available cash resources will be 27 
calculated toward the agency's resource allowable amount and any surplus 28 
will be divided by 12 and added to the monthly income. 29 
 30 
(B)  Material assets: 31 

 32 
(i)  Any vehicles or boats used for the primary purpose of recreation are to 33 
be counted as an asset.  The client is responsible for furnishing 34 
verification of fair market value from a reputable source. 35 
 36 
(ii)  A client's home and contiguous property will be exempt 37 
 38 
(iii)  Non business related property or equipment will be counted as an 39 
asset.  The client is responsible for furnishing verification of fair market 40 
value from a reputable source. 41 

 42 
(32)  Liabilities.  When the client is making regular monthly payments on any 43 
areas of liability listed below, payments will be itemized.  If regular payments are 44 
not being made on a debt, an expense cannot be shown for this item. 45 

Page 154



612:10-3-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Income, Assets and Liabilities 
 

 
612:10-3-6  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Income, Assets and Liabilities 

 46 
(A)  Medical. Regular monthly oOut-of-pocket medical payments not covered 47 
by insurance, including medication and supplies, can be used as a medical 48 
expense.  Monthly premiums for health insurance can be included. 49 
 50 
(B)  Disability related expenses. Disability related expenses beyond the 51 
basic living requirements may be considered, if not funded by DRS.   52 
 53 
(C)  Other. Court order commitments, including child support, can be counted 54 
as a monthly liability. 55 
 56 
(D)  Education expenses. Costs for any family member incurred only for 57 
tuition, books, and fees, toward post-secondary educational expenses, not 58 
included in the IPE or paid by grants, scholarships, fee waivers, etc., can be 59 
counted as a monthly liability.  Only the amount of the monthly payments can 60 
be counted as a liability. 61 

Page 155



612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 
 

 

612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 

612:10-7-1.  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 1 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
(a)  Vocational rehabilitation services are provided by the Division of Vocational 4 
Rehabilitation and the Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 5 
Visually Impaired to help eligible individuals achieve employment outcomes that are 6 
consistent with the unique strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, 7 
interests, and informed choice of each eligible individual. To the maximum extent 8 
appropriate, VR services are meant to result in competitive employment in an integrated 9 
setting. Vocational rehabilitation services include services for individuals and services to 10 
groups of individuals. 11 
 12 
(b)  Vocational rehabilitation services for an individual are prescribed in an Individualized 13 
Plan for Employment (IPE) that is based on an assessment of the individual’s rehabilitation 14 
needs, guidance provided by a qualified vocational rehabilitation professional and the 15 
individual’s informed choice with regard to employment goal, services and service 16 
providers.  Services may include but are not limited to: 17 
 18 

(1)  an assessment for determining eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs by 19 
qualified personnel, including, if appropriate, an assessment by personnel skilled in 20 
rehabilitation technology; 21 
 22 
(2)  counseling and guidance, including information and support services to assist an 23 
individual in exercising informed choice; 24 
 25 
(3)  referral and other services to secure needed services from other agencies through 26 
cooperative agreements if such services are not available from DVR or DVSDVRBVI; 27 
 28 
(4)  job-related services, including job search and placement assistance, job retention 29 
services, ongoing services, and extended services; 30 
 31 
(5)  vocational and other training services, including the provision of personal and 32 
vocational adjustment services, books, tools, and other training materials; 33 
 34 
(6)  to the extent that financial support is not readily available from a source (such as 35 
health insurance or comparable services and benefits) other than DVR or 36 
DVSDVRVBI, diagnosis and treatment of physical and mental impairments; 37 

Page 156



612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 
 

 

612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 

 38 
(7)  maintenance for additional costs incurred while participating in an assessment for 39 
determining eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs or while receiving services 40 
under an Individualized Plan for Employment; 41 
 42 
(8)  transportation, including training in the use of public transportation vehicles and 43 
systems, that is provided in connection with the provision of any other service 44 
described in this section and needed by the individual to participate in rehabilitation 45 
services or to achieve an employment outcome; 46 
 47 
(9)  on-the-job or other related personal assistance services provided while an 48 
individual is receiving other services described in this section; 49 
 50 
(10)  interpreter services provided by qualified personnel for individuals who are deaf or 51 
hard of hearing, and reader services for individuals who are determined to be blind; 52 
 53 
(11)  rehabilitation teaching services, and orientation and mobility services, for 54 
individuals who are blind; 55 
 56 
(12)  occupational licenses, tools, equipment, and initial stocks and supplies; 57 
 58 
(13)  technical assistance and other consultation services to conduct market analyses, 59 
develop business plans, and otherwise provide resources, to the extent such resources 60 
are authorized to be provided through the statewide workforce investment system, to 61 
eligible individuals who are pursuing self-employment or telecommuting or establishing 62 
a small business operation as an employment outcome; 63 
 64 
(14)  rehabilitation technology, including rehabilitation engineering, assistive technology 65 
devices and assistive technology services;  66 
 67 
(15)  transition services for students with disabilities, that facilitate the achievement of 68 
the employment outcome identified in the Individualized Plan for Employment; 69 
 70 
(16)  supported employment services for individuals with the most significant 71 
disabilities that need ongoing support services from a job coach to obtain and maintain 72 
employment; 73 
 74 

Page 157



612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 
 

 

612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 

(17)  employment and retention services for individuals with significant disabilities who 75 
require short term job coach support to obtain and maintain a successful employment 76 
outcome; 77 
 78 
(18)  transitional employment services for individuals with the most significant 79 
disabilities due to mental illness who have little or no successful work history and need 80 
work adjustment/trial work experience;  81 
 82 
(19) job placement services for individuals with disabilities who are job ready; 83 
 84 
(20)  services to the family of an individual with a disability necessary to assist the 85 
individual to achieve an employment outcome; and 86 
 87 
(21)  specific post-employment services necessary to assist an individual with a 88 
disability to, retain, regain, or advance in employment. 89 

 90 
(c)  Vocational rehabilitation services for groups of individuals with disabilities are described 91 
in 34 CFR 361.49 and include:  92 

 93 
(1)  in the case of any type of small business operated by individuals with significant 94 
disabilities the operation of which can be improved by management services and 95 
supervision provided by DVR or DVSDVRBVI, the provision of such services and 96 
supervision, along or together with the acquisition by DVR or DVSDVRBVI of vending 97 
facilities or other equipment and initial stocks and supplies; 98 
 99 
(2)  services that contribute to the rehabilitation of a group of individuals but are not 100 
related directly to an individualized plan for employment of any one individual with a 101 
disability; 102 
 103 
(3)  the use of telecommunications systems (including telephone, television, satellite, 104 
radio, and other similar systems) that have the potential for substantially improving 105 
delivery methods of activities described in this section and developing appropriate 106 
programming to meet the particular needs of individuals with disabilities; 107 
 108 
(4)  special services to provide access to information for individuals who are blind, 109 
visually impaired, deaf, hard of hearing or deaf-blind including: 110 

 111 

Page 158



612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 
 

 

612:10-7-1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Overview of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 
   Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind  
  & Visually Impaired 

(A)  the use of telecommunications, Braille, sound recordings, or other appropriate 112 
media; 113 
 114 
(B)  captioned television, films, or video cassettes for individuals who are deaf or 115 
hard of hearing; 116 
 117 
(C)  tactile materials for individuals who are deaf-blind; and 118 
 119 
(D)  other special services that provide information through tactile, vibratory, 120 
auditory, and visual media. 121 

 122 
(5)  technical assistance and support services to businesses that are not subject to 123 
Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 [42 USC 12111 et seq.] and that 124 
are seeking to employ individuals with disabilities; and 125 
 126 
(6)  consultative and technical assistance services to assist educational agencies in 127 
planning for the transition of students with disabilities from school to post-school 128 
activities, including employment. 129 

Page 159



612:10-7-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Field staff responsibilities 
 

 

612:10-7-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Field staff responsibilities 

612:10-7-2.  Field staff responsibilities [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  The counselor is responsible for contacting each referral within 30 days of receipt of the 3 
referral information. The counselor is responsible for completing a contact by telephone or 4 
in person. The counselor is responsible for providing interpreter services to applicants who 5 
are deaf or non-English speaking. 6 
 7 
(b)  The rehabilitation counselor is responsible for the determination of an individual's 8 
eligibility to receive services from DVR or DVSDVRBVI.   In cases where the counselor has 9 
difficulty in making an eligibility determination, the counselor will consult with the 10 
supervisor. For further clarification, the case will be reviewed by the field coordinator for a 11 
decision. Individuals who are legally blind are to be referred to the appropriate rehabilitation 12 
teacher for determination of eligibility for the rehabilitation teaching program. 13 
 14 
(c)  The counselor's primary vocational rehabilitation service is counseling and guidance 15 
with job placement.  Additional services must be justified as necessary to compensate for, 16 
correct or circumvent an impediment to employment. Every IPE must include a plan of 17 
counseling and guidance services. Regular documentation of counseling sessions will be 18 
included in every DVR and DVSDVRBVI case. 19 
 20 
(d)  The rehabilitation counselor is to ensure that the client is a full participant in the 21 
decisions that are made concerning his or her vocational rehabilitation. This responsibility is 22 
carried out by providing the individual with as much relevant information as is available so 23 
that the individual, and/or the individual's authorized representative, can exercise informed 24 
choice consistent with the Department's policies. The minimum information concerning 25 
service choice to be supplied includes: 26 

 27 
(1)  service cost; 28 
 29 
(2)  available service providers; 30 
 31 
(3)  service accessibility; 32 
 33 
(4)  expected duration of services; 34 
 35 
(5)  consumer satisfaction with the services in question, to the extent that such 36 
information is available; 37 
 38 
(6)  qualifications of potential service providers; 39 
 40 
(7)  the types of services offered by the potential service providers; 41 

Page 160



612:10-7-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Field staff responsibilities 
 

 

612:10-7-2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Field staff responsibilities 

 42 
(8)  the degree to which services are provided in integrated settings; and 43 
 44 
(9)  outcomes achieved by individuals working with the service provider, to the extent 45 
such information is available. 46 

 47 
(e)  The individual will be notified in writing of any adverse determination made by 48 
professional staff concerning that individual's case. This notification will be made in a timely 49 
manner, and in a manner that supports the individual's right to due process. 50 
 51 
(f)  The counselor will complete a financial status determination form prior to the provision 52 
of any service (other than exempt services listed in 612:10-3-4) to determine if the client will 53 
be required to participate in the cost of services. 54 
 55 
(g)  The counselor will inform each individual of his or her rights and responsibilities as an 56 
applicant or client of DVR and DVSDVRBVI.  Cross reference 612:10-7-3 57 
 58 
(h)  The Department of Rehabilitation Services (DRS) has an obligation under state and 59 
federal law to provide services in a fair and impartial manner.  State Ethics Commission 60 
Rules state that the proper operation of state government requires that the state employee 61 
be independent and impartial; that state employees not use state office to obtain private 62 
benefits; that a state employee must avoid action which creates the appearance of using 63 
state office to obtain a private or inappropriate benefit; and that state employees exercise 64 
their powers without prejudice or favoritism. 65 
 66 
(i)  The counselor is limited in determining eligibility for services for friends or relatives.  At 67 
the time of application or referral, if in the counselor's judgment, the individual is familiar to 68 
the point of friendship, the counselor must immediately disclose this relationship to their 69 
supervisor in writing and obtain approval before determining eligibility.  If the applicant is 70 
related by blood or marriage, the counselor must immediately refer the case to another 71 
counselor, if available.  If no other counselor is available, the counselor must notify their 72 
supervisor immediately for appropriate case assignment.  The counselor should also 73 
disclose the potential conflict of interest to the applicant and explain the reason for the 74 
potential delay of eligibility determination.  The counselor must not only be impartial in the 75 
determination of eligibility but also act so that there can be no question of impartiality.  The 76 
technician must also disclose to the counselor any relationship with the applicant that might 77 
create a conflict of interest.  The counselor will then contact the Program Manager to see if 78 
the case can be worked without partiality or transferred to another counselor. 79 

Page 161



612:10-7-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client responsibilities 
 

 

612:10-7-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client responsibilities 

612:10-7-3.  Client responsibilities  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
To make the rehabilitation effort a success, the individual and agency's staff must 3 

work together to reach chosen goals.  This shared responsibility requires that the client or 4 
applicant for services accept the basic responsibilities in (1) through (12) of this Subsection. 5 
Other specific client responsibilities are stated in relevant manual sections. It is the 6 
counselor's responsibility to fully and appropriately inform the client of client responsibilities. 7 

 8 
(1)  Provide information and be available to complete the assessment process to find 9 
out if you are eligible for services. 10 
 11 
(2)  Be on time and keep appointments with DVR/DVSDVRBVI staff, doctors and 12 
others.  Call in advance or as soon as possible, if you cannot come to an appointment. 13 
 14 
(3)  Follow the advice of doctors and other medical professionals. 15 
 16 
(4)  Participate with your DVR/DVSDVRBVI counselor in developing the Individualized 17 
Plan for Employment, (IPE) including participating in assessments needed to 18 
determine your needs and strengths. 19 
 20 
(5)  Provide enrollment documents to home/supervisor counselor before the college or 21 
university's designated "Drop and Add" deadline so an authorization can be issued, if 22 
your IPE includes educational and training services. 23 
 24 
(6)  Attend education or training classes on a regular basis and make at least passing 25 
grades, if your IPE includes these services. 26 
 27 
(7)  Review your IPE with your counselor at least once a year and participate in making 28 
revisions to the plan when needed. 29 
 30 
(8)  Maintain satisfactory progress toward completing the IPE. 31 
 32 
(9)  Abstain from abuse of drugs and/or alcohol.  Individuals who abuse drugs and/or 33 
alcohol while receiving services will be referred to the Oklahoma Department of Mental 34 
Health and Substance Abuse Services (ODMHSAS) and/or other appropriate agencies 35 
for purposes of seeking treatment.  All case services will be suspended.  If the client 36 
refuses or fails to cooperate with seeking treatment, or is not available to pursue a 37 
DRS program, this will be considered as reasonable cause for case closure. 38 
 39 
(10)  Keep the appropriate professional informed of changes in the individual's 40 
address, financial status, or other program-related changes. 41 

Page 162



612:10-7-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client responsibilities 
 

 

612:10-7-3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Client responsibilities 

 42 
(11)  Apply for and make appropriate use of any comparable benefits and services for 43 
which the client is eligible to defray in whole or in part the cost of services in the 44 
individual's IPE and provide verification of financial aid award status to counselor. 45 
 46 
(12)  Work with the counselor to obtain or keep suitable gainful employment or 47 
appropriate independent living outcomes as services are being completed. 48 

Page 163



612:10-7-21  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Processing incoming referrals 
 

 

612:10-7-21  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Processing incoming referrals 

612:10-7-21.  Processing incoming referrals [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Processing incoming referrals. All referrals to DVR and DVSDVRBVI will be 3 
contacted by the VR counselor and appropriate action taken within 30 days, after receipt of 4 
the referral information. The counselor is responsible for completing a contact by telephone 5 
or in person. The counselor is responsible for providing interpreter services to referrals who 6 
are deaf or non-English speaking. In situations where the individual cannot be personally 7 
contacted, correspondence will be mailed to the individual for informational purposes.  8 
 9 
(b)  Referrals to rehabilitation teachers. All individuals who are legally blind, whether 10 
being served by a DVR counselor or a DVSDVRBVI counselor, will be referred to a 11 
rehabilitation teacher.   12 

Page 164



612:10-7-21.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Information and referral system 
 

612:10-7-21.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Information and referral system 
 

612:10-7-21.1.  Information and referral system [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff will ensure that individuals with disabilities, including 3 
eligible individuals who do not meet order of selection criteria when the agency is operating 4 
under an order of selection,  are provided accurate vocational rehabilitation information and 5 
guidance, using appropriate modes of communication. This information and guidance will 6 
be used to assist the individual in preparing for, securing, retaining, or regaining 7 
employment.  8 
 9 
(b)  Staff will ensure that individuals with disabilities are appropriately referred to Federal 10 
and State programs, including other components of the workforce investment system.  An 11 
appropriate referral shall: 12 
 13 

(1)  be to the Federal or State program(s) best suited to address the specific 14 
employment needs of the individual; and 15 

 16 
(2)  include, for each involved program, provision to the individual of: 17 

 18 
(A)  a notice of the referral from DVR or DVSDVRBVI to the agency responsible for 19 
the program; 20 

 21 
(B)  information identifying a specific point of contact within the agency responsible 22 
for the program; and 23 

 24 
(C)  information and advice regarding the most suitable services to assist the 25 
individual 26 

Page 165



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 1 
612:10-7-24.1. Basic eligibility requirements for vocational rehabilitation services 2 
[AMENDED] 3 
 4 
(a)  An individual is eligible for vocational rehabilitation services under the Rehabilitation 5 
Act through the State Department of Rehabilitation Services if the individual: 6 
 7 

(1)  has a physical or mental impairment which for such individual constitutes or 8 
results in a substantial impediment to employment;   9 
 10 
(2)  is determined by a qualified vocational rehabilitation counselor to require 11 
vocational rehabilitation services to prepare for, enter, engage in, or retain gainful 12 
employment;   and  13 
 14 
(3) can benefit in terms of an employment outcome from vocational rehabilitation 15 
services. 16 

 17 
(b)  The agency presumes that an applicant with a physical or mental impairment that 18 
constitutes or results in a substantial impediment to employment can benefit from 19 
vocational rehabilitation services in terms of an employment outcome, unless the 20 
agency demonstrates, based on clear and convincing evidence, that the individual is 21 
incapable of benefiting from rehabilitation services due to the severity of the individual’s 22 
disability.   23 
 24 
(c)  An individual who has a disability or is blind as determined pursuant to Titles II 25 
(federal old age, survivors, and disability insurance benefits) or XVI (SSI) shall be: 26 
 27 

(1)  considered to have a significant disability under the order of selection; and 28 
 29 
(2)  presumed to be eligible for vocational rehabilitation services,  (provided that the 30 
individual intends to achieve an employment outcome consistent with the unique 31 
strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, capabilities, interests, and 32 
informed choice of the individual) unless clear and convincing evidence 33 
demonstrates that the individual is incapable of benefiting in terms of an employment 34 
outcome from vocational rehabilitation services due to the severity of the individual's 35 
disability. 36 

 37 
(d)  Eligibility requirements shall be applied without regard to: 38 
 39 

(1)  duration of residence in the state,  40 
 41 
(2)  type of disability,  42 
 43 

Page 166



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

(3)  age, except that in serving eligible individuals below working age, the client must 44 
be expected to reach working age by the time the IPE is completed, and DRS will 45 
not provide services that are the responsibility of the public school system.  46 
 47 
(4)  gender, race, color or national origin,  48 
 49 
(5)  type of expected employment outcome, 50 
 51 
(6)  source of referral, or  52 

 53 
(7)  the particular service needs or anticipated cost of services required by an 54 
applicant or applicant's family.  55 

 56 
(e)  Disabled veterans.  Disabled veterans are eligible for vocational rehabilitation 57 
services on the same basis as other individuals with disabilities subject to the following 58 
restrictions: 59 
 60 

(1)  Disabled veterans are not provided services which can be secured from the 61 
Veterans Administration (VA), unless use of VA services will cause a substantial 62 
delay of services. 63 
 64 
(2)  Veterans receiving additional benefits under the G. I. Bill or the War Orphan Act 65 
may be provided services if such services do not duplicate those being received 66 
from the VA. 67 

 68 
(f)  Applicants who are employed.  Employed persons who meet basic eligibility 69 
requirements may be provided vocational rehabilitation services when the employment 70 
is not consistent with the individual’s strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, 71 
interests and capabilities. 72 
 73 
(g)  Citizenship.  Participation in the VR program is available to citizens and nationals 74 
of the United States, lawfully admitted permanent resident aliens, refugees, asylees and 75 
parolees, and other immigrants authorized to work in the United States.   76 
 77 
(h)  Criteria.  Some conditions have unique criteria that must be considered when 78 
determining eligibility. 79 
 80 

(1)  Alcoholism/Drugs. Individuals may be eligible for vocational rehabilitation 81 
services based on a substance abuse diagnosis that may be made by a psychiatrist, 82 
psychologist, medical doctor or certified substance abuse counselor.  Clients  must 83 
be willing to undergo random alcohol/drug screening.  DRS does not pay for 84 
detoxification or replacement drug treatment.  Documentation from qualified Drug 85 
and Alcohol treatment professionals indicating that the client is presently substance-86 
free, maintaining sobriety, and actively participating in a treatment or maintenance 87 

Page 167



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

program if recommended by the treating professional must be filed in the case 88 
record upon IPE development. 89 
 90 
(2)  Allergies/Asthma.  Allergies/asthmatic conditions that require continuous or 91 
intermittent medical intervention and result in a substantial impediment to 92 
employment will be considered eligible for services.  93 

 94 
(3)  Deafness and Hearing Loss.  The rehabilitation professional will base eligibility 95 
determination upon one of the measurement methods listed below.  The case record 96 
must document the method chosen provides the most accurate evaluation of 97 
functional hearing level for the individual. 98 

 99 
(A)  Eligibility criteria.  Eligibility criteria for each method of measurement are 100 
listed in (i) through (iv) of this Subsection.  An individual will also be considered 101 
to have a qualifying disability when documentation indicates the hearing loss is 102 
progressive and the progression is substantial enough to result in an impediment 103 
to employment. 104 

 105 
(i)  Average hearing loss.  Average hearing loss, which is determined by 106 
computing average of the pure tone thresholds for each ear at 1000Hz, 107 
2000Hz, 3000Hz and 4000Hz.  An individual is considered to have a 108 
qualifying disability based upon average hearing loss when: 109 

 110 
(I)  The hearing loss in one ear is profound (91 dB or greater) and the 111 
hearing loss in the better ear is at least 15 dB; or 112 
 113 
(II)  The hearing loss in the better ear is 30 dB or greater. 114 

 115 
(ii)  Speech recognition threshold (SRT).  An individual is considered to 116 
have a qualifying disability when: 117 

 118 
(I)  the speech reception threshold in one ear is 91 dB or greater and is at 119 
least 15 dB in the better ear; or 120 
 121 
(II)  the speech reception threshold in the better ear is 30 dB or greater. 122 

 123 
(iii)  Speech discrimination or word recognition score.  An individual is 124 
considered to have a qualifying disability when the speech discrimination or 125 
word recognition score is 70% or less. 126 
 127 
(iv)  Articulation index.  An individual is considered to have a qualifying 128 
disability when the articulation index is 70% or less. 129 

 130 
(B)  Severity of Hearing Loss.  All individuals who qualify as having a 131 

Page 168



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

severe hearing loss will be referred to a Rehabilitation Counselor for the Deaf 132 
and Hard of Hearing (RCD).  Relevant information provided will include copies of 133 
the initial interview narrative recording, medical information, eligibility data entry 134 
form, Individualized Plan for Employment, pertinent copies of case narratives and 135 
DRS application form.  On receipt of a referral, the RCD will contact the client 136 
and make a determination of potential for Deaf and Hard of Hearing services.  137 
The referring counselor will be informed in writing of the RCD's findings. 138 

 139 
(i)  Severe Hearing Loss.  Average hearing loss, as calculated above, is 140 
considered severe when: 141 

 142 
(I)  The hearing loss in one ear is profound (91 dB or greater) and the 143 
hearing loss in the better ear is at least 31 dB; or 144 
 145 
(II)  The hearing loss in each ear is 55 dB or greater. 146 

 147 
(ii)  Severe Speech Recognition Threshold (SRT).  An individual is 148 
considered to have severe disability when; 149 

 150 
(I)  The SRT in one ear is 91 dB or greater and the SRT in the better ear is 151 
at least 31 dB; or 152 
 153 
(II)  The SRT in each ear is 55 dB or greater. 154 

 155 
(iii)  Severe Speech Discrimination or word recognition score.  An 156 
individual is considered to have a severe disability when the speech 157 
discrimination or word recognition score is 59% or less. 158 

 159 
(4)  Diabetes:  The individual must require prescribed medication to control the 160 
condition.  Those persons whose diabetes is controlled by diet and exercise alone or 161 
whose condition does not result in a substantial impediment to employment will not 162 
be considered eligible.  Eligible clients will be required to undergo a visual exam by a 163 
licensed ophthalmologist at least once a year.  All insulin dependent diabetics are 164 
required to attend diabetic education training as part of their IPE. All diabetics will 165 
need to complete a knowledge survey regarding current best practices for the 166 
management of diabetes.  Should the knowledge survey identify significant need for 167 
diabetes training, the training will be incorporated into the IPE. This can be provided 168 
by a consumer's personal physician, in coordination with the VR specialist.  If 169 
diabetic education is provided, a separate intermediate objective addressing this 170 
service must be included on the IPE.   171 
 172 
(5)  Facial and Disfigurement Conditions.  When these conditions result in an 173 
impediment to employment an individual may be eligible for VR services. 174 
 175 

Page 169



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

(6)  Learning Disabilities.  An individual may be identified as learning disabled: 176 
 177 

(A)  When there is a marked discrepancy between verbal and performance 178 
intellectual level or 179 
 180 
(B)  When the individual's achievement on individually administered, 181 
standardized tests in reading, mathematics or written expression is substantially 182 
below that expected for age, schooling and level of intelligence (DSM IV).   183 

 184 
(7)  Mental Disorders.  Treatment must be incorporated as a service in the IPE for 185 
individuals with a mental disorder. 186 
 187 
(8)  Intellectual Disability.  To be eligible, individuals having an I.Q. of 69 or below 188 
and substantially limited adaptive functioning, as measured by an individual 189 
intelligence test, will be considered to have a substantial disability.  Individuals 190 
eligible under IDEA with an I.Q. level higher than 69 may be considered to have a 191 
substantial impairment provided the documentation used by the school in 192 
determining eligibility under IDEA, in the counselor's judgment, confirms the 193 
individual is functioning in the intellectual disability range of ability.  Individuals not 194 
enrolled in public school special education classes with an I.Q. higher than 69 may 195 
be considered to have a substantial impairment provided appropriate documentation 196 
confirms the individual is functioning in the intellectual disability range of ability. 197 
 198 
(9)  Height.  To be eligible, a person's stature must constitute or result in a 199 
substantial impediment to employment. 200 
 201 
(10)  Obesity.  To be eligible, a person must be considered obese according to a 202 
recognized medical classification protocol  and the impairment must constitute or 203 
result in a substantial impediment to employment.  Some type of weight loss plan or 204 
treatment for obesity must be included as a service in the IPE.   205 
 206 
(11)  Visual.  The individual must be found to have at least a 25% loss of total visual 207 
efficiency with best correction, or there must be evidence the condition is 208 
progressive and will soon reach the visual loss described above.  “Best correction”  209 
refers to the use of standard eyeglasses or contact lenses, and does not include use 210 
of bioptic telescopic systems or any specialized lenses which cannot be worn by the 211 
individual on a sustained basis.  Any one or all of the following factors may be used 212 
to determine whether a 25% loss of total efficiency exists. 213 

 214 
(A)  Central visual acuity (Snellen method or equivalent).  Acuity of 20/60 or 215 
less in the better eye after best correction (in the case of difference of acuity 216 
between reading and distance use the greater loss). 217 
 218 
(B)  Loss of depth perception or stereopsis. 219 

Page 170



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 220 
(i)  Eligibility on the basis of depth perception loss.  When defining 221 
eligibility based on depth perception alone, it is generally accepted a total loss 222 
of depth perception would not constitute a 25% loss of visual efficiency.  223 
Other factors to consider include: Is the client's loss of depth perception 224 
acute?  Did the client recently lose his or her depth perception?  Did the 225 
client's past vocational experience require good depth perception?  If the 226 
client is currently working, does his/her present vocation require good depth 227 
perception?  After considering these factors the counselor will determine if 228 
there are functional limitations to the extent the individual would be prevented 229 
from obtaining, retaining or preparing for employment. 230 
 231 
(ii)  Eligibility based on loss of stereopsis.  Stereopsis is defined as the 232 
blending into one-picture two images of an object seen from slightly different 233 
points of view so as to produce the impression of relief and solidity.  This type 234 
of loss usually results from suppression of vision in one eye due to alternating 235 
exotropia, esotropia, hypertropia or a difference in the refractive power of the 236 
two eyes so great that separate images cannot be fused.  When determining 237 
eligibility based on lack of stereopsis the counselor will take into account most 238 
of the factors used in determining eligibility based on loss of depth perception.  239 
One major difference is stereopsis cannot be learned.  In other words, if an 240 
individual does not have binocular vision, it is impossible for the individual to 241 
have stereopsis.  From a functional standpoint, stereopsis is considerably 242 
different from depth perception.  The individual can still do many jobs with 243 
various degrees of depth perception yet these same jobs may have certain 244 
steps that require acute stereopsis.  Thus an employee losing the stereopsis 245 
part of his visual function would be at risk for injuring himself or other workers 246 
or might be considered as a target for termination. 247 

 248 
(iii)  Limited peripheral vision.  This is restriction of visual fields by 25% or 249 
more as documented by a formal visual field examination.  The examination 250 
should report the qualitative percentage of visual field loss and/or remaining 251 
percentage of visual efficiency. 252 
 253 
(iv)  Diplopia (Double Vision).  There are different degrees of double vision.  254 
The type of double vision most disabling is the type that manifests itself in the 255 
primary direction of gaze. 256 
 257 
(v)  Aphakia.  In cases of binocular Aphakia the central visual efficiency of 258 
the better eye will be accepted at 75% of its value (25% loss of visual 259 
efficiency) and in monocular Aphakia the central visual efficiency will be 260 
accepted at 50% of its value (50% loss of visual efficiency).  Individuals with 261 
intraocular lens implants are not considered to have a visual disability as a 262 
result of an aphakic condition. 263 

Page 171



612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 
612:10-7-24.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Basic eligibility requirements for vocational 
  Rehabilitation services 

 264 
(vi)  Color deficiency.  When total absence of color discrimination or red-265 
green deficiency exists it will be considered a disability.  266 

 267 
(12)  Re-evaluation.  Individuals with chronic disabilities that can be removed with 268 
little or no residual limitations will not be eligible for purchase of services other than 269 
those related to the required treatment. 270 

Page 172



612:10-7-24.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assessment for determining eligibility 
 

 

612:10-7-24.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assessment for determining eligibility 

612:10-7-24.2.  Assessment for determining eligibility  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  To determine whether an individual is eligible for vocational rehabilitation services: 3 

 4 
(1)  the counselor will use to the maximum extent possible and appropriate existing data 5 
including counselor observations, education records, information provided by the 6 
individual or the individual’s family, and determinations made by officials of other 7 
agencies; and 8 
 9 
(2)  to the extent necessary provide appropriate assessments, including provision of 10 
goods and services during the assessment, to obtain additional documentation 11 
necessary to make the determination of eligibility and priority group assignment. The 12 
counselor will carefully evaluate the need to provide assistive technology devices and 13 
services or worksite assessments.  14 
 15 

(b)  The counselor will determine whether an individual is eligible for vocational 16 
rehabilitation services within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 60 days after the 17 
individual has submitted an application for services. This time period may be extended only 18 
when unforeseen and exceptional circumstances beyond the control of the Department 19 
preclude completing the determination of eligibility within the 60 days and the individual 20 
agrees a specific extension of time is warranted as documented on the Need for Extension 21 
of Time to Determine Eligibility form; or a trial work period or an extended evaluation is 22 
needed to determine the individual's ability to benefit from VR services. 23 
 24 
(c)  Documentation that the individual has a disability which constitutes or results in an 25 
impediment to employment must come from qualified professionals.  26 
 27 
(d)  Applicants who have been determined eligible for vocational rehabilitation services by 28 
an American Indian Vocational Rehabilitation program are deemed to be eligible for 29 
services through DRS. After making the determination of eligibility the VR counselor may 30 
authorize assessments and services needed to further document eligibility, assign priority 31 
group and develop the IPE, making maximum use of diagnostic documentation and other 32 
data provided by the American Indian VR program. 33 
 34 
(e)  A qualified rehabilitation professional may proceed with a determination of eligibility if 35 
there is an obvious and/or observable disability that results in an impediment to 36 
employment.  The VR specialist will document observations pertaining to the applicant’s 37 
disability.  After making the determination of eligibility the VR specialist may authorize any 38 
assessments and services necessary to further document eligibility, establish priority group 39 
placement and determine rehabilitation needs for development of the Individualized Plan 40 
for Employment.    41 

Page 173



612:10-7-24.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assessment for determining eligibility 
 

 

612:10-7-24.2  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assessment for determining eligibility 

 42 
(f)  Diagnosis and evaluation are to be provided only for determination of eligibility for VR 43 
services, priority group placement, and determination of VR service needs. DVR and 44 
DVSDVRBVI funds are not to be used to assist an individual in establishing eligibility for 45 
other programs. 46 
 47 
(g)  When necessary, diagnostic evaluations may be purchased at any time during the life 48 
of the case.  49 
 50 
(h)  If an individual is determined eligible, the VR counselor will notify the individual in 51 
writing. If the individual is determined to be ineligible, the counselor will notify the applicant 52 
and provide information on further options in accordance with DRS policy on ineligibility 53 
decisions.    54 
 55 
(i)  Eligibility for supported employment.  The counselor may not find an individual 56 
ineligible for supported employment services because a resource for providing extended 57 
services cannot be identified.  In this instance, the counselor will: 58 
 59 

(1)  accept the individual as eligible for VR services; 60 
 61 
(2)  plan VR services as appropriate, including the expected availability of extended 62 
services; and 63 
 64 
(3)  seek out and/or help in developing the needed extended services resource. 65 

Page 174



612:10-7-24.3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
 Trail Work Experience and Extended Evaluation 
 

 

612:10-7-24.3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
 Trail Work Experience and Extended Evaluation 

612:10-7-24.3.  Trial Work Experience and Extended Evaluation  [AMENDED]  1 
 2 
(a)  Use of trial work experience and extended evaluation. It shall be presumed that an 3 
individual can benefit in terms of an employment outcome from vocational rehabilitation 4 
services unless clear and convincing evidence demonstrates that the individual is incapable 5 
of benefiting in terms of an employment outcome due to the severity of the individual's 6 
disability. In making such demonstration, the VR Counselor will explore the individual's 7 
capabilities to perform in work settings through the use of trial work experiences with 8 
appropriate supports, except under limited circumstances when an individual cannot take 9 
advantage of such experiences and extended evaluation may be utilized.  10 
 11 
(b)  Trial work. The trial work experience shall be provided in the most integrated setting 12 
possible, consistent with the individual's informed choice and rehabilitation needs, and shall 13 
be of sufficient variety and duration to determine the eligibility of the individual or to 14 
determine the existence of clear and convincing evidence that the individual is incapable of 15 
benefiting from VR services in terms of an employment outcome.  Cases may not remain in 16 
this status more than 18 months.  An assessment of the individual's progress is required as 17 
frequently as necessary but at least once every 90 days. The assessment will include 18 
periodic reports from the institution, facility or person providing the services to determine 19 
the results of the provision of such services and to ascertain whether the individual may be 20 
determined to be eligible or ineligible. The assessment summary narrative will be recorded 21 
in the case file.  22 

 23 
(c)  Extended evaluation.  Extended evaluation is available for individuals with the most 24 
significant disabilities who cannot take advantage of trial work experiences or if the options 25 
for trial work experiences have been exhausted before DVR or DVSDVRBVI is able to 26 
conclude whether the applicant is able to benefit from vocational rehabilitation services or 27 
incapable of benefiting from VR services in terms of an employment outcome due to the 28 
severity of the disability.  Trial work experiences remain the first option by which to assess 29 
an individual's ability to benefit from VR service.  Extended evaluation is not meant to be a 30 
routine alternative to trial work experiences, but is to be used only as a last resort and 31 
under limited circumstances.  An individual may be determined unable to take advantage of 32 
a trial work experience if there is a need for substantial restoration services prior to entering 33 
a work environment.  Extended evaluation involves the development of a written plan which 34 
provides only those services necessary to make a determination of eligibility.  35 
 36 
(d)  Case recording requirements. The counselor will document the case record 37 
according to the criteria and recording standards in (1) - (5) of this Subsection. 38 
 39 

(1)  Justification that a trial work experience or an extended evaluation is 40 
required. It is presumed that an individual can benefit in terms of an employment 41 

Page 175



612:10-7-24.3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
 Trail Work Experience and Extended Evaluation 
 

 

612:10-7-24.3  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
 Trail Work Experience and Extended Evaluation 

outcome from vocational rehabilitation services unless clear and convincing evidence 42 
demonstrates otherwise. The use of trial work experiences or extended evaluations is to 43 
be limited solely to those extraordinary situations in which the preponderance of 44 
evidence obtained in the normal manner is sufficient to challenge the presumption of 45 
benefit due to the severity of the disability. Documentation and case recording must 46 
clearly support the determination that this preponderance of evidence exists, and that 47 
trial work experience is necessary to make the eligibility determination. 48 

 49 
(2)  Written plan for trial work experiences or extended evaluations. Services 50 
related to the trial work experience or extended evaluation will be planned by the 51 
counselor and individual, or the individual's authorized representative. The trial work 52 
experience or extended evaluation plan will describe the services necessary to obtain 53 
clear and convincing evidence concerning the presumption of benefit.  54 
 55 
(3)  Termination of trial work experience or extended evaluation - eligible. When 56 
an individual is determined to be eligible for services, the case is processed in 57 
accordance with DRS policy. 58 

 59 
 (4)  Termination of trial work experience or extended evaluation - ineligible. If the 60 

trial work experience or extended evaluation provides clear and convincing evidence 61 
that the individual cannot benefit from vocational rehabilitation services in terms of an 62 
employment outcome due to the severity of the disability, the case may be closed as 63 
ineligible in accordance with DRS policy.  In addition to explaining the individual's right 64 
to a review of the determination and the availability of the Client Assistance Program, 65 
the counselor will make referrals to other agencies, facilities, or programs as may be 66 
appropriate. 67 

 68 
(5)  Amendments. An amendment to the plan is made stating all new decisions, facts, 69 
and planned services not already covered in the original trial work experience or 70 
extended evaluation plan. 71 

Page 176



612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 
 

 

612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 

612:10-7-25.1.  Order of selection  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Need for order of selection. The Department, in consultation with the Oklahoma 3 
Rehabilitation Council, has determined, due to budgetary constraints or other reasoned 4 
limitations, that it cannot serve all individuals who are determined eligible for DVR and 5 
DVSDVRBVI services. The Department consults with the Oklahoma Rehabilitation Council 6 
regarding the: 7 

 8 
(1)  need to establish an order of selection, including any re-evaluation of the need; 9 
 10 
(2)  priority categories of the particular order of selection; 11 
 12 
(3)  criteria for determining individuals with the most significant disabilities; and 13 
 14 
(4)  administration of the order of selection. 15 

 16 
(b)  Priority groups. It is the policy of DRS to provide vocational rehabilitation services to 17 
eligible individuals under an order of selection. Under the order of selection, the 18 
Department has established three priority groups on the basis of serving first those with the 19 
most significant disabilities. Every individual determined to be eligible for DVR and 20 
DVSDVRBVI services is placed in the appropriate priority group based upon the 21 
documentation used to determine eligibility and/or vocational rehabilitation needs. Selection 22 
and placement in a priority group is based solely upon the significance of the eligible 23 
individual's disability, and is not based upon the type of disability, geographical area in 24 
which the individual lives, projected type of vocational outcome, age, sex, race, color, 25 
creed, religion, or national origin of the individual. The priority groups are: 26 

 27 
(1)  Priority Group 1. Eligible individuals with the most significant barrier to 28 
employment. A most significant barrier is one that includes a  mental or physical 29 
disability resulting in serious limitations in three or more functional capacities and can 30 
be expected to require multiple services over an extended period of time.   31 
 32 
(2)  Priority Group 2. Eligible individuals with significant barriers resulting in serious 33 
limitations in at least one, but not more than, two functional capacities and can be 34 
expected to require multiple services over an extended period of time.   35 
 36 
(3)  Priority Group 3. Eligible individuals with disabilities not meeting the definition of 37 
individual with a significant barrier.   38 

 39 
(c)  Implementation. Prior to the start of each fiscal quarter, or when circumstances 40 
require, the DRS Director will determine in which priority groups new Individualized Plans 41 

Page 177



612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 
 

 

612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 

for Employment will be written and initiated. The Director may restrict the writing and 42 
initiation of new Individualized Plans for Employment within a priority group to cases having 43 
eligibility dates falling on or before a specified date providing that all consumers in higher 44 
priority groups are being served. Considerations in making this determination will include, 45 
but not be limited to, the projected outcomes, service goals, expenditures, and resources 46 
available for each priority group. Projected costs and resources for each priority group will 47 
be based upon costs of current Individualized Plans for Employment, anticipated referrals, 48 
availability of financial resources, and adequacy of staffing levels. The Director will 49 
implement actions under the order of selection through written notice to DVR and 50 
DVSDVRBVI staff. The written notice will specify the implementation date of the action and 51 
direct DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff on how to handle cases by priority group and application 52 
date. DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff will inform each eligible individual on their caseloads: 53 
 54 

(1)  of the priority groups in the order of selection; 55 
 56 
(2)  of the individual's assignment to a priority group; and 57 
 58 
(3)  of the individual's right to appeal that assignment.  59 

 60 
(d)  Closing and opening priority groups. When all or part of a priority group is closed, 61 
designated cases within that priority group without a written IPE will be placed on a waiting 62 
list after the individual has been determined to be eligible. No IPE will be written for cases 63 
on the waiting list. Staff will continue to take applications, diagnose and evaluate all 64 
applicants to determine eligibility and vocational rehabilitation needs, find the individual 65 
eligible when documentation supports such a decision, then place each eligible individual's 66 
case in the appropriate priority group. If an eligible individual is placed in a closed priority 67 
group, his or her case will go on the waiting list and no IPE will be written or initiated. The 68 
DRS Director will notify DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff in writing when all or part of a closed 69 
priority group is opened. When this directive includes new applicants who are found 70 
eligible, individuals already on the waiting list within that same priority group will be given 71 
priority over new applicants. When all or part of closed priority groups are opened, staff will 72 
contact individuals on the waiting list to develop and implement their Individualized Plans 73 
for Employment using the priorities in Paragraphs (1) - (3) of this Subsection: 74 

 75 
(1) contact individuals within the highest open priority group first, Most Significant being 76 
the highest of all priority groups; 77 
 78 
(2) within each opened priority group, staff will contact individuals on the waiting list in 79 
order of application date, earliest application date first; then 80 
 81 

Page 178



612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 
 

 

612:10-7-25.1  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Order of selection 

(3) staff will contact individuals whose cases will remain on the waiting list to explain 82 
how their cases will be handled. 83 
 84 

(e) Continuity of services. Any individual with an IPE that existed prior to the date all or 85 
part of that individual's priority group was closed will continue to receive services as 86 
planned. Such an IPE may be amended if the changes are necessary for the individual to 87 
continue progress toward achieving an appropriate employment outcome, or are otherwise 88 
necessary within policy. Persons requiring post employment services will also be provided 89 
the necessary services regardless of priority group assignment. 90 
 91 
(f) Information and referral services. Information and referral services will remain 92 
available to eligible individuals who are not in an open priority group. These individuals will 93 
be given information and guidance, using appropriate modes of communication, to assist 94 
such individuals in preparing for, securing, retaining or regaining employment, and will be 95 
appropriately referred to Federal and State programs (other than the vocational 96 
rehabilitation program) including other components of the statewide workforce investment 97 
system in the state.  No IPE will be written to provide such services to these individuals.   98 

Page 179



612:10-7-31  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Transfer of cases 
 

 

612:10-7-31  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Transfer of cases 

612:10-7-31.  Transfer of cases  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Transfer of cases between caseloads. When it has been determined an individual 3 
has moved from one counselor's area to another, the individual could be served more 4 
appropriately under another DVR or DVSDVRBVI program, or in the supervisor's opinion, 5 
transfer is in the best interest of the individual, the case will be transferred.   6 
 7 
(b)  Transfer of cases between programs. Prior to transferring a case between DVR and 8 
DVSDVRBVI, the transferring counselor must obtain the required specialist information to 9 
support the change of primary disability.  10 

Page 180



612:10-7-50  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Eligibility Status 
 

 

612:10-7-50  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Eligibility Status 

612:10-7-50.  Eligibility Status  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Use of Eligibility Status.  An active case is defined as one which has been accepted 3 
as meeting the basic eligibility requirements. An applicant who has been determined 4 
eligible for vocational rehabilitation will be placed in Eligibility Status for completion of a 5 
comprehensive assessment to determine employment goal and rehabilitation needs and for 6 
development of the Individualized Plan for Employment (IPE).  An individual who is placed 7 
in an order of selection priority group that is not currently being served will be placed on a 8 
waiting list and held there pending further directives from the Director concerning opening 9 
or closing of priority groups.  10 
 11 
(b)  Case recording requirements.   The counselor records activities during this period by 12 
individual entry or by summary recording at regular intervals in case narratives. Copies of 13 
pertinent case information will be shared with all DVR or DVSDVRBVI professionals 14 
involved in the case. During eligibility status and throughout the life of the case, 15 
DVSDVRBVI counselors and rehabilitation teachers will share pertinent information related 16 
to a case they jointly serve.  Pertinent case information will also be shared with contracted 17 
vendors, when appropriate, with a release signed by the client.  If an IPE cannot be 18 
developed during this period, the client's case is closed with a full explanation to the client 19 
and documentation as to the reason for closing the case. This documentation will be 20 
completed on a closure letter and a copy given to the client.  21 

Page 181



612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 
 

 

612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 

612:10-7-51.  Individualized Plan for Employment  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Options for developing the Individualized Plan for Employment (IPE).  The VR 3 
counselor will provide the eligible individual, or the individual's authorized representative, in 4 
writing and in appropriate mode of communication, with information on the individual's 5 
options for developing the IPE. 6 

 7 
(1)  The required information will include the following: 8 

 9 
(A)  information on the availability of assistance, to the extent determined to be 10 
appropriate by the eligible individual, or authorized representative, from a qualified 11 
VR counselor in developing all or part of the IPE, and the availability of technical 12 
assistance for this purpose; 13 
 14 
(B)  a description of the required content of the IPE; 15 
 16 
(C)  as appropriate: 17 

 18 
(i)  an explanation of agency requirements for client participation in cost of 19 
services; 20 
 21 
(ii)  additional information requested by the individual or authorized 22 
representative; 23 
 24 
(iii)  information on the availability of assistance in completing 25 
DVR/DVSDVRBVI forms required in developing the IPE; 26 
 27 
(iv)  For cases involving Mental Disorders and Obesity, treatment must be 28 
incorporated as a service in the IPE, in accordance with DRS policy.   29 

 30 
(D)  a copy of  a DRS publication addressing client’s rights and responsibilities. 31 

 32 
(2)  For cases in an open priority group, the IPE must be completed and signed as 33 
soon as possible, consistent with the needs of the individual, but not more than 90 34 
calendar days following the eligibility determination, unless the individual or the 35 
authorized representative and the VR or VSVRBVI counselor jointly agree to an 36 
extension of time of a specific duration.  The 90-day time frame for development of the 37 
IPE will be applied from the date a closed priority group is reopened. 38 

 39 
(b)  Vocational objective.  The primary purpose in providing vocational rehabilitation 40 
services is to assist an eligible individual obtain appropriate competitive employment in an 41 

Page 182



612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 
 

 

612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 

integrated setting consistent with the individual's informed choice. The choice of a 42 
vocational objective for an individual receiving vocational rehabilitation services must be 43 
based primarily upon the individual's strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, 44 
interests and capabilities. 45 

 46 
(1)  Informed choice.  The vocational objective is to be chosen with the full 47 
participation of the client. The client's interests and informed choice determine his or 48 
her vocational goal to the extent these factors are consistent with the client's strengths, 49 
resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, interests and capabilities. 50 
 51 
(2)  External conditions.  Factors such as the local labor market or local economy 52 
must also be taken into consideration. However, in most cases these factors cannot be 53 
used as the only basis upon which to determine whether a vocational objective is 54 
appropriate. 55 
 56 

(c)  Non-competitive vocational objectives.  The primary mission of DVR and 57 
DVSDVRBVI is to help eligible individuals achieve competitive employment in an integrated 58 
work setting. Therefore, careful consideration and planning are required when services are 59 
to be provided to achieve a long term goal of non-competitive employment.   60 

 61 
(1)  Homemaker.  A homemaker is defined as a person whose primary work is 62 
performance of duties related to the upkeep and maintenance of a home. This work 63 
takes place in the individual's own home, without remuneration. 64 

 65 
(A)  The IPE can have a vocational objective of homemaker only when services will 66 
directly and substantially improve the individual's ability to perform the primary 67 
homemaking work activities for their home. 68 
 69 
(B)  Self-care activities are not sufficient to meet the definition of gainful 70 
occupation.  71 
 72 
(C)  A vocational objective of homemaker can be established for only one person 73 
within the same household. 74 

 75 
(2)  Unpaid family worker.  A vocational objective of unpaid family worker is 76 
appropriate when services will enable the individual to perform work without pay on a 77 
family farm or in a family business operated by one or more members of the client's 78 
family. The record must document how the services will substantially improve the 79 
productivity of the client and his/her contribution to the family farm or business. 80 
 81 

(d)  General requirements for the Individualized Plan for Employment.   82 

Page 183



612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 
 

 

612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 

 83 
(1)  The IPE documents the client's chosen employment goal, and the planning of 84 
vocational rehabilitation services which are necessary to achieve a successful 85 
employment outcome. The client will be a full participant in the development of the IPE 86 
or any amendments consistent with Federal and State regulations, laws, and statutes. 87 
The eligible individual must be given the opportunity to exercise informed choice in 88 
selecting an employment outcome, the specific VR services to be provided under the 89 
plan, the service providers, and the methods for service delivery.  For cases in an open 90 
priority group, the IPE must be agreed to and signed by the eligible individual or 91 
authorized representative, approved by a VR counselor and, as appropriate, other 92 
administrators employed by DVR or DVSDVRBVI within 90 days of determination of 93 
eligibility, unless the individual or the authorized representative of the individual and the 94 
VR or VSVRBVI counselor jointly agree to an extension of time of a specific duration.  95 
To the maximum extent possible, the IPE is to be provided in the native language or 96 
mode of communication of the individual or, as appropriate, of a parent, family 97 
member, guardian, advocate, or authorized representative. It is also required the client 98 
receive a copy of the plan and any subsequent amendments. 99 
 100 
(2)  The IPE is subject to continuous development and change. Substantial changes to 101 
the IPE are documented as amendments. A substantial change is broadly defined as 102 
any change in the employment objective, or in service needs or available resources not 103 
accounted for in the original IPE or existing amendment(s). The amount of any client 104 
participation in the cost of a service will be based upon the determination of client's 105 
financial status completed at the time the relevant IPE or amendment is written, and is 106 
to be stated in the IPE or amendment. If services based upon financial status are 107 
included in the original IPE and/or in the amendment, a new Financial Status 108 
Determination form will be completed when the IPE is amended.  A copy of any 109 
Amendment to an Individualized Plan for Employment will be given to the client, or 110 
client's authorized representative, as appropriate. 111 
 112 
(3)  Diagnosis related to eligibility or the IPE can be provided at any time it is necessary 113 
during the life of the case.  114 
 115 
(4)  An IPE is not considered in effect until all required approvals have been obtained in 116 
accordance with Department policy. 117 
 118 
(5)  Plan reviews are comprehensive reviews of the entire IPE. A plan review can be 119 
done at any time, but must be done at least annually. The client must be given the 120 
opportunity to review the plan and, if necessary, participate in its redevelopment and 121 
agree to its terms. A financial status determination will be completed at the time of plan 122 
review when the IPE includes services based upon client's financial status. 123 

Page 184



612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 
 

 

612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 

 124 
 125 

(e)  Content of the Individualized Plan for Employment.  The Individualized Plan for 126 
Employment must include: 127 
 128 

(1)  a description of the specific employment outcome that is chosen by the client 129 
consistent with the unique strengths, resources, priorities, concerns, abilities, 130 
capabilities, interests, and informed choice of the client, and to the maximum extent 131 
appropriate, results in competitive employment in an integrated setting, and the 132 
estimated timeframe for the achievement of the employment outcome; 133 

 134 
(2)  a description of the specific VR services that are: 135 

 136 
(A)  needed to achieve the employment outcome including as appropriate, the 137 
provision of assistive technology services and devices, and personal assistance 138 
services, including training in the management of such services; 139 
 140 
(B)  provided in the most integrated setting that is appropriate for the service 141 
involved and is consistent with the informed choice of the client; and 142 
 143 
(C)  timelines for the achievement of the employment outcome and for the initiation 144 
of services. 145 

 146 
(3)  a description of the service provider chosen by the client or authorized 147 
representative, and the methods of services delivery; 148 
 149 
(4)  a description of the criteria that will be used to evaluate progress toward achieving 150 
the employment outcome; 151 
 152 
(5)  the terms and conditions of the IPE including as appropriate: 153 
 154 

(A)  the responsibilities of DVR or DVSDVRBVI; 155 
 156 
(B)  the responsibilities of the client, including: 157 

 158 
(i)  the client's responsibilities for the employment outcome; 159 
 160 
(ii)  the client's participation in paying the cost of VR services; and 161 
 162 
(iii)  the client's responsibility to apply for, accept, and use comparable services 163 
and benefits to defray in whole or in part the cost of VR services. 164 

Page 185



612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 
 

 

612:10-7-51  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Individualized Plan for Employment 

 165 
(6)  for an IPE that includes supported employment services, information identifying: 166 
 167 

(A)  the extended services needed by the client; and 168 
 169 
(B)  the source of the extended services, including natural supports, or an 170 
explanation  concluding  there is a reasonable expectation  a source will become 171 
available; and 172 
 173 
(C)  the weekly work goal.   174 

 175 
(7)  if it appears they will be necessary, a statement of needed post-employment 176 
services. 177 

Page 186



612:10-7-87  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Actions requiring supervisor’s approval 
 

 

612:10-7-87  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Actions requiring supervisor’s approval 

612:10-7-87.  Actions requiring supervisor's approval  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

Actions requiring supervisory approval include:   3 
 4 

(1)  All actions of a newly employed counselor/teacher.   5 
 6 
(2)  All IPE's or amendments when the total of the planned DVR and DVSDVRBVI 7 
expenditures for the entire case exceed $25,000. 8 
 9 
(3)  All case closures in which an IPE was developed and services initiated. 10 
 11 
(4)  Transfer of cases from one counselor/teacher caseload to another outside the 12 
sending supervisor's unit (signed by the supervisor of the sending counselor or 13 
teacher).  14 
 15 
(5)  All IPE's which include purchase of physical or mental restoration services, 16 
prescription drugs or prescribed medical supplies lasting more than three months. 17 
 18 
(6)  Small Business plans with a cost to the agency in excess of $10,000.00. 19 
 20 
(7)  Vehicle or home modifications over the DCAM authority order limit and housing 21 
modifications involving structural modifications. 22 
 23 
(8)  Vehicle repairs that exceed $1,000.00 for the life of a case. 24 
 25 
(9)  Dental services with a projected cost over $5,000.00. 26 

Page 187



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

612:10-7-98.  General guidelines for physical and mental restoration services 1 
[AMENDED] 2 

 3 
(a)  To the extent that assistance is not readily available from a source other than DVR or 4 
DVSDVRBVI, diagnosis and treatment of physical and mental impairments may be 5 
provided to assist the individual with a disability in preparing for, securing, retaining or 6 
regaining employment.  Physical or mental restoration services are provided only when the 7 
condition is stable, or slowly progressive. A slowly progressive condition is one in which the 8 
client's functional capacity is not expected to diminish so rapidly as to prevent successful 9 
completion of vocational rehabilitation services, and/or employment for a reasonable period 10 
of time. The individual is liable for services he or she arranged which were not planned and 11 
initiated under the auspices of DVR and DVSDVRBVI. DVR and DVSDVRBVI will not pay 12 
for hospitalization or treatment occurring prior to initiation of an Individualized Plan for 13 
Employment (IPE).  DVR and DVSDVRBVI will not pay for emergency hospitalization or 14 
treatment needed at the time of referral.  However, diagnostic examinations or information 15 
may be paid from DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds for use in eligibility determination, priority 16 
group placement, or determination of vocational rehabilitation needs. Physical and/or 17 
mental restoration services will be purchased only from licensed or board certified health 18 
professionals unless otherwise specified in DRS policy.  Payment will be made in 19 
accordance with the established fee schedule of the Department. 20 
 21 
(b)  Temporary conditions with sudden onset do not fall within the definition of impairment 22 
for eligibility purposes.  Emergency treatment of remediable conditions will not be 23 
purchased by DVR and DVSDVRBVI except under intercurrent illness policy.  When the 24 
staff is in doubt as to the effect of such a condition upon the outcome of the IPE objectives, 25 
a medical consultation may be requested. 26 
 27 
(c)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI do not provide long-term or ongoing physical or psychological 28 
treatment. DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds cannot be used to initiate treatment that is 29 
reasonably anticipated to last more than three months unless supervisory approval has 30 
been obtained for a three month extension.  Additional three month extensions may be 31 
approved if the client maintains reasonable progress toward achieving the vocational goal. 32 
Persons needing long-term or ongoing treatment are to be referred to other medical 33 
assistance sources if available.  34 
 35 
(d)  Payment from DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds may be planned and authorized only after 36 
applicable third party pay sources provide verification of the expense they will cover, and 37 
not cover, associated with the physical or mental restoration services in question. When 38 
DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds are used to supplement a third party pay source, planned 39 

Page 188



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

services and the authorization will be limited to those expenses that fall within the scope of 40 
the program and that do not exceed the difference between what the third party pay source 41 
will pay and the Department's established payment schedule.   42 
 43 
(e)  Individuals with chronic disabilities that can be removed with little or no residual 44 
limitations will not be eligible for purchase of services other than those related to the 45 
required treatment. 46 
 47 
(f)  Physical and mental restoration services may include but are not limited to: 48 

 49 
(1)  Braces and orthotic devices. 50 
 51 
(2)  Chiropractic services.  A chiropractor providing treatment must be duly licensed to 52 
practice his profession in Oklahoma, have a current provider/vendor agreement with 53 
DRS, and following evaluation of the client’s needs, must provide a treatment plan with 54 
goals, time frames and the estimated number of treatments required to meet the goals.  55 
Treatment may not be extended beyond three months unless progress toward treatment 56 
goals can be determined. 57 
 58 
(3)  Dental services.  Dental services may be provided to treat or correct dental 59 
conditions that constitute an impediment to employment or participation in the 60 
rehabilitation process, produce health problems or aggravate an existing disability.  61 
Dental services with a projected cost over $5,000.00 require review by the DRS dental 62 
consultant and supervisory approval.  63 
 64 
(4)  Dialysis and treatment for end-stage-renal-disease.  DVR and DVSDVRBVI may 65 
assist with the cost of Medicare deductible, co-insurance, and services not covered by 66 
Medicare if documentation states other resources are not available and the client is 67 
actively participating in an IPE with treatment as part of the plan.  Requests for kidney 68 
transplants must be approved by the medical consultant.   69 
 70 
(5)  Prescription drugs and prescribed medical supplies.   Prescription drugs and/or 71 
prescribed medical supplies may be purchased when required for proper diagnosis, for 72 
post-operative treatment, or to stabilize a documented disability. The need for the drugs 73 
and/or medical supplies must be documented in a physician's report.  Payment will be 74 
made for generic type drugs unless the physician specifically requests a brand name 75 
drug. 76 
 77 
(6)  Hearing aids and audiological services.    78 

Page 189



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

 79 
(7)  Hospitalization  when recommended by a physician and the client is to receive 80 
medical treatment or surgery. Hospitalization may also be authorized for diagnostic 81 
services upon recommendation of a physician. 82 
 83 
(8)  Treatment for intercurrent illness.  Intercurrent illness is an illness or injury which 84 
occurs during the course of an individual's vocational rehabilitation and, if not treated, 85 
will complicate or significantly delay achievement of the client's employment outcome.  86 
DVR and DVSDVRBVI will purchase treatment for intercurrent illness or injuries if the 87 
client is not covered by health insurance or eligible for comparable services and 88 
benefits, or when the provision of services through comparable services and benefits 89 
would significantly interrupt or delay treatment for an individual at extreme medical risk, 90 
jeopardize a job placement or impair the individual’s progress in achieving the planned 91 
employment outcome. 92 
 93 
(9)  Laboratory work and x-rays if required by the physician to complete his examination 94 
or in conjunction with diagnosis or treatment. 95 
 96 
(10)  Low vision services.   97 
 98 
(11)  Medical examinations, when necessary to determine eligibility, achieve a goal in 99 
the IPE or when related to an intercurrent illness. 100 
 101 
(12)  Nursing services can be provided for a client who is convalescing from physical 102 
restoration services if recommended by the doctor of treatment.  Either Registered 103 
Nurses or Licensed Practical Nurses may be used to provide this service when a 104 
current medical vendor agreement is on file with the Department. Volunteers may be 105 
used if less technical care is needed and if approved by the client's physician. 106 
 107 
(13)  Physical and occupational therapy may be provided on either an in-hospital or 108 
outpatient basis if recommended by the attending physician. 109 
 110 
(14)  Post-operative care of cataract patients.  111 
 112 
(15)  Prosthetic eyes, glasses and other optical aids.   113 

 114 
(A) Glasses and other visual aids and services may be prescribed or provided by 115 
either an ophthalmologist or an optometrist. Other optical aids recommended by 116 
optical aid clinics are purchased upon the recommendation of the specialist(s) in 117 

Page 190



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

one or more such clinics. Prosthetic eyes are provided, upon the recommendation 118 
of an ophthalmologist. 119 
 120 
(B) Lenses and frames for glasses purchased by DRS will be authorized at fee 121 
schedule prices. The vendor may add a service charge not to exceed the 122 
established fee.  An additional code and fee may be added for tinting if it has been 123 
prescribed by the physician or optometrist that performed the eye examination with 124 
written medical/vocational justification. 125 
 126 
(C) The fee that has been established for frames will only cover the cost of plain 127 
sturdy frames. Clients do not have the option of selecting more expensive frames 128 
and paying the difference between the vendor's price and the amount authorized. If 129 
the vendor accepts payment from the client or a representative of the client and 130 
also files a claim with the Department for the same services, a violation of the 131 
Provider Agreement has occurred and the vendor would be subject to sanctions.  132 
 133 
(D) If a client selects special frames and has sufficient resources to purchase 134 
them, the frames should not be included on the authorization and the client would 135 
be responsible for the entire cost of the frames.   136 

 137 
(16)  Prosthetic limbs. 138 

 139 
(A)  Prosthetic limbs may be provided if the prosthesis is recommended by a 140 
physician. The client who has successfully worn a prosthesis will not be required to 141 
see an orthopedist or physiatrist, or attend an amputee clinic unless some other 142 
disorder is apparent.  143 
 144 
(B)  An individual who has never worn a prosthesis must be seen by a physician 145 
before the prosthesis is provided.  The client must agree to training in its use. Gait 146 
training is considered Personal Adjustment Training and does not require client 147 
participation in cost. However, physical therapists providing the training are 148 
recognized as medical vendors and require authorizations completed on a Medical 149 
Service Authorization. 150 
 151 
(C)  Persons with multiple amputations must have the special examination and 152 
training. 153 
 154 
(D)  The counselor may authorize for a prescribed standard prosthesis without 155 
further review. The choice of prosthesis must be closely related to its intended use 156 

Page 191



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

in a work setting, or in relation to reasonable independent living goals. Non-157 
standard prostheses (i.e., myoelectric) will not be purchased with DRS funds 158 
unless medically justified and/or required for a specific employment, or 159 
independent living, outcome. When a prosthesis other than a standard prosthesis 160 
is prescribed the counselor will request a consultation from the appropriate medical 161 
consultant. Justification for the non-standard prosthesis must be documented in 162 
the case record. 163 
 164 

(17)  Psychiatric and psychological treatment. 165 
 166 
(A) Psychotherapy may be provided for emotional conditions which may be 167 
expected to respond within a reasonable period of time.  Psychotherapy can be 168 
provided only by the sources in (1) - (5) of this Subsection. 169 

 170 
(i)  Psychiatrists certified by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology 171 
or completed the required training and are "Board Qualified", or who have 172 
spent a major portion of their time in a particular specialty for at least two 173 
years and are recognized as specialists in the local community (same criteria 174 
as applied to other medical specialists). 175 

 176 
(ii)  Licensed Doctors of Medicine or Doctors of Osteopathy who have 177 
received specific training for and are experienced in performing mental health 178 
therapeutic, diagnostic, or counseling functions. 179 

 180 
(iii)  Psychologists with a doctorate in clinical or counseling psychology who 181 
hold a valid license to practice psychology. 182 

 183 
(iv)  Psychologists with a doctorate in clinical or counseling psychology who 184 
are employed by governmental agencies exempt from the licensing law. 185 

 186 
(v)  Other licensed clinicians or those employed by governmental agencies 187 
who have received administrative approval to provide this treatment service.  188 

 189 
(B)  Upon receipt of a written report from the therapist, the supervisor may approve 190 
additional three-month periods of therapy.  Clients needing long-term or ongoing 191 
psychiatric or psychological treatment will be referred to the appropriate community 192 
mental health center. 193 
 194 

Page 192



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

(C)  Personal Adjustment Counseling may be provided for those persons with 195 
emotional conditions who may benefit from counseling to bring about a more 196 
adequate social adjustment, alleviate superficial anxiety, and to create more 197 
effective interpersonal relationships.  Personal Adjustment Counseling may be 198 
provided by: those individuals listed in (17) (A) of this Subsection. 199 

 200 
(18)  Speech therapy/training as recommended in a speech evaluation.  Speech 201 
therapy, although provided by recognized speech therapists, is considered Personal 202 
Adjustment training and is not based on financial status.  The providers of speech 203 
therapy are classified as medical vendors. 204 
 205 
(19)  Surgery and medical treatment.  206 

 207 
(A)  Surgery and complex or unusual medical treatment may be provided when 208 
recommended by a specialist. Medical consultant approval will be obtained prior to 209 
planning and authorizing a diagnostic procedure which could lead to immediate 210 
surgical treatment. The medical consultant will give conditional approval for the 211 
possible surgery if deemed necessary.  Normal post-operative care is an integral 212 
part of the surgery; therefore, no post-operative charges are to be paid above the 213 
approved surgical fee. 214 
 215 
(B)  Specified outpatient surgical services are approved for payment when 216 
provided in qualified outpatient surgical facilities. Qualified facilities include 217 
Medicare certified free standing ambulatory surgical centers, Medicare certified 218 
hospitals offering outpatient surgical services, and hospitals which have an 219 
agreement with DRS. 220 
 221 
(C)  The counselor will advise the client he/she may be liable for any balance due 222 
when payment by private insurance exceeds the Department allowable rate. 223 

 224 
(20)  Weight loss treatment.  A weight loss plan or treatment are included as a service in 225 
the IPE for individuals who are eligible on the basis of obesity.  A licensed dietician or a 226 
physician skilled in weight reduction must monitor any treatment program authorized by 227 
the agency.  Surgery for weight loss is not provided unless medically recommended as 228 
treatment for morbid obesity, a second confirming medical opinion is obtained, andthe 229 
surgery is approved by the DRS medical consultant and supervisory approval is 230 
obtained.  Before approving DRS provision of surgery for treatment of morbid obesity, 231 
the supervisor shall consider the individual’s past experience with standard weight loss 232 

Page 193



612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 
 

 

612:10-7-98  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for physical and mental  
  restoration services 

protocols, and medical and behavioral factors that may impact the individual’s ability to 233 
obtain long-term benefit from the surgery .   234 
 235 
(21)  Wheelchairs and other durable medical equipment when prescribed by a physician 236 
or recommended by an occupational therapist, physical therapist, assistive technology 237 
specialist or person with equivalent qualifications.  Power mobility devices may be 238 
purchased for individuals when necessary to assist the client in achieving IPE goals. 239 

 240 
(A)  The client, and/or client's authorized representative, will participate in choosing 241 
from which vendor the wheelchair or durable medical equipment will be purchased. 242 
Wheelchairs and other durable medical equipment will be authorized at the agency 243 
approved fee.  244 
 245 
(B)  The client, or client's family or authorized representative as appropriate, is 246 
responsible for maintaining wheelchairs or other durable medical equipment in 247 
good working order. DVR and DVSDVRBVI will pay for repairs to wheelchairs or 248 
other durable medical equipment during the life of the case unless there is clear 249 
evidence the equipment has been damaged due to client abuse or neglect. An 250 
agency-purchased wheelchair will be returned to the agency if the client becomes 251 
unable to use it.   252 
 253 
(C)  Wheelchair rental may be authorized for a period not to exceed six months 254 
when necessary to assist the client with mobility.  An exception can be made if it is 255 
documented that rental is more cost effective than purchase.  256 

Page 194



612:10-7-130  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Maintenance 
 

 

612:10-7-130  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Maintenance 

612:10-7-130.Maintenance  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  General guidelines. Maintenance is a supportive service provided to assist with the 3 
out-of-ordinary or extra expenses to the individual resulting from and needed to support 4 
the individual's participation in diagnostic, evaluative, or other substantial services in the 5 
IPE. Maintenance, including payments, may not exceed the cost of documented 6 
expenses to the individual resulting from service provision. Authorizations for 7 
maintenance will not be issued to pay the cost, or part of the cost, for any other service 8 
or expense.   9 
 10 
(b)  Provision of maintenance. To receive maintenance, an individual must be either 11 
an eligible DVR or DVSDVRBVI client or an applicant for vocational rehabilitation 12 
services undergoing diagnostic evaluation and testing. For an accepted client, 13 
maintenance must be a supportive service related to outcomes listed in the 14 
Individualized Plan for Employment. The costs of the maintenance may not exceed the 15 
amount of increased expenses that the IPE causes for the individual or his/her family. 16 
The provision of maintenance as a supportive service is not synonymous with general 17 
assistance payments. It is not intended to pay for those living costs that exist 18 
irrespective of the individual's status as a DVR and DVSDVRBVI client. Maintenance 19 
payments must be carefully tied to the achievement of specific VR outcomes which 20 
must be stated and documented in the case record and the IPE to justify such 21 
payments. Maintenance cannot substitute for or supplement income assistance 22 
payments. 23 
 24 

(1)  Maintenance for diagnostic and evaluation services.  25 
Maintenance payments for individuals receiving diagnostic or evaluation services 26 
may be authorized for overnight care, short-term lodging and/or meals.   27 
 28 
(2)  Maintenance for physical restoration services.  29 
Maintenance for physical restoration services is paid to the client until he/she is 30 
able to work. The client must be in his/her own home and the covered period of 31 
convalescence is to be 60 days or less. For convalescent periods in excess of 60 32 
days, the counselor will refer the client to other sources for assistance (public 33 
assistance, SSI). In no instance will medical maintenance be paid while the client is 34 
hospitalized. 35 
 36 
(3)  Maintenance for training.  37 
Maintenance can be authorized for full time vocational school students or college 38 
students. Maintenance can be authorized for a client granted an exception to the 39 
full-time attendance requirement under 612:10-7-150(a).   40 

 41 

Page 195



612:10-7-130  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Maintenance 
 

 

612:10-7-130  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Maintenance 

(4)  Maintenance for job search services.  42 
Maintenance for job search services requires an IPE with major services directed 43 
toward the goal of employment. 44 
 45 
(5)  Maintenance for job relocation.  46 
Maintenance may be paid to a client for assistance in relocating to a new job site. 47 
Maintenance services for this purpose must be identified on the IPE.   48 

 49 
(c)  Clothing expenses. Clothing and/or uniforms can be purchased when needed to 50 
begin training or enter employment.  Everyday clothing needs of the client are 51 
considered as part of the basic living requirements. Any clothing purchased for the client 52 
must be: 53 
 54 

(1)  required by the training facility; 55 
 56 
(2)  necessary to participate in job search or begin employment; or 57 
 58 
(3)  necessary to begin a training program that requires clothing standards beyond 59 
the client's means. 60 

 61 
(d)  Day care expenses. Day care expenses will be paid for from DVR and 62 
DVSDVRBVI funds only when necessary to participate in the IPE, and it is fully 63 
documented that no other resources are available for this service, including family 64 
members and friends.   65 

Page 196



612:10-7-142  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for training services 
 

 

612:10-7-142  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for training services 

612:10-7-142.  General guidelines for training services  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Types of training.  Training provided by DVR and DVSDVRBVI may include: 3 
 4 
(1)  Vocational.  Vocational training provides the knowledge and skills necessary for 5 
performing the tasks involved in an occupation.  Such knowledge and skills may be 6 
acquired through training from an institution, on-the-job, by tutors or through a 7 
combination of these methods. Vocational training may be provided for any occupation. 8 
 9 
(2)  Prevocational.  Prevocational training includes any form of academic or basic 10 
training provided for the preparatory skills needed for entrance into a vocational 11 
training program or employment.  Prevocational training is initiated to enhance 12 
occupational knowledge or skills or to remove an educational deficiency interfering with 13 
employment. 14 
 15 
(3)  Personal or work adjustment.  Personal or work adjustment training includes any 16 
training given for one or a combination of the reasons given in (A) - (D) of this 17 
paragraph. 18 
 19 

(A)  To assist the individual in developing personal habits, attitudes, and skills 20 
enabling the individual to function effectively in spite of disability. 21 
 22 
(B)  To develop or increase work tolerance prior to engaging in prevocational or 23 
vocational training or in employment. 24 
 25 
(C)  To develop work habits and to orient the individual to the world of work. 26 
 27 
(D)  To provide skills or techniques enabling the individual to compensate for a 28 
disability such as the loss of a body part or the loss of a sensory function. 29 
 30 

(b)  Training may be provided for clients who: 31 
 32 

(1)  are mentally, physically and/or emotionally capable of pursuing a course of training 33 
to completion; 34 
 35 
(2)  require training to achieve an employment outcome or other goals established in 36 
the Individual Plan for Employment (IPE); and 37 
 38 
(3)  are determined to have a reasonable opportunity for obtaining employment in the 39 
chosen vocation. 40 

 41 

Page 197



612:10-7-142  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for training services 
 

 

612:10-7-142  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  General guidelines for training services 

(c)  Decisions related to training are based on the individual needs and informed choices of 42 
the client as identified in the IPE.   43 
 44 
(d)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI will only pay tuition and fees for courses which count toward 45 
requirements consistent with the vocational goal of the IPE.  Training of DVR and 46 
DVSDVRBVI clients is provided by colleges, universities, private business and trade 47 
schools, state supported vocational schools, employers in the form of on-the-job training, 48 
sheltered workshops, and other approved training facilities with valid contracts.   49 
 50 
(e)  Federal regulations require a search for comparable services and benefits with the 51 
results documented before payment can be made for training in the following institutions: 52 
colleges, universities, community/junior colleges, public or private vocational/technical 53 
schools, or hospital schools of nursing.    PELL grants and other available Federal/State 54 
student aid (excluding merit awards) must be applied to tuition, fees and all other 55 
educational expenses as a first dollar source prior to consideration of the expenditure of 56 
DRS funds. 57 
 58 
(f)  Training costs will not be authorized beyond the first DVR and DVSDVRBVI sponsored 59 
enrollment until proof of the availability of comparable benefits is received by the counselor. 60 
 61 
(g)  Once training has begun, the client is expected to progress toward the vocational 62 
objective at a steady rate.  This requires the client to attend training on a regular basis, and 63 
maintain a full-time load unless an exception is granted by the counselor due to severity of 64 
disability, scheduling problems or other valid reasons.  Training progress reports or other 65 
methods of reporting (i.e., grade reports, transcripts) are utilized to document training 66 
progress.  Sporadic attendance and reduced training loads causing a delay in the 67 
completion of training must be reviewed by the counselor. The client is responsible for 68 
advising the counselor of problems encountered during the training program. 69 

 70 
(h)  All types of institutional, technical, personal adjustment or employment training are 71 
purchased by an authorization issued by the counselor. 72 

Page 198



612:10-7-149  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  College and university training 
 

 

612:10-7-149  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  College and university training 

612:10-7-149.  College and university training  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Training for rehabilitation clients is provided in those colleges and universities which 3 
are accredited by the appropriate accrediting agency, whose credits will be given full 4 
recognition by other accredited colleges and universities, and which are under contract.  5 
Private and denominational colleges and universities may be used for the training of 6 
DRS clients, provided they are accredited and under contract.   7 
 8 
(b)  Clients approved for college or university training must exhibit the ability to do 9 
college work.  The counselor will have evidence in the case folder file indicating the 10 
client's ability to do college work before a program is developed calling for training at the 11 
college or university level. 12 
 13 
(c)  For DVR and DVSDVRBVI clients pursuing a college or university degree, the 14 
Department will sponsor only the number of semester hours or remaining hours 15 
required for a specific degree.  Exceptions may be approved by the counselor. 16 
 17 
(d)  Previously completed credit hours which are applicable to the degree requirements 18 
will be incorporated in the development of the IPE.  When a client changes majors, DVR 19 
and DVSDVRBVI funding will be limited to the number of credit hours needed for the 20 
new major minus the number of DVR and DVSDVRBVI funded credit hours lost due to 21 
the change in majors, unless the change in majors results from circumstances beyond 22 
the client's control.  23 

Page 199



612:10-7-150  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Continued eligibility for college or 
  university training 
 

 

612:10-7-150  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Continued eligibility for college or 
  university training 

612:10-7-150.  Continued eligibility for college or university training  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Requirements for continued eligibility. DVR or DVSDVRBVI clients in college or 3 
university training will be expected to attend classes regularly and make continuous 4 
progress toward graduation. To continue assistance with college or university training, the 5 
client must maintain a cumulative 2.0 grade-point average (GPA), based on a four point 6 
(4.0) scale. The client must carry the minimum number of semester hours determined to be 7 
full time at the school attended. Exceptions may be granted by the  counselor, based on 8 
severity of disability, scheduling problems, or other valid reasons. When a client fails to 9 
meet the requirements for continued sponsorship the guidelines in (1) - (5) of this 10 
Subsection are to be followed: 11 
 12 

(1)  Payment of training services based on client's financial status will not be provided if 13 
the client's grades fall below 1.5 cumulative GPA. 14 
 15 
(2)  Training services may be paid for a client having a cumulative GPA between 1.5 16 
and 1.9 for the first semester that grades fall below 2.0 cumulative GPA. Subsequent 17 
enrollments can only be paid if the student's cumulative GPA shows progress. 18 
 19 
(3)  A client failing to meet the grade point requirement may continue to receive 20 
services not based on financial status. 21 
 22 
(4)  A client failing to meet grade point requirements may be approved by the counselor 23 
if there are extenuating circumstances beyond the client's control. 24 
 25 
(5)  A client failing to meet grade point requirements will be contacted as soon as 26 
appropriate to complete a program review to determine if a change in services, 27 
vocational goal, or objectives is needed.  A client failing to meet chosen goals will not 28 
have his/her case closed until the counselor has provided counseling and guidance 29 
and determined that a change in the IPE is inappropriate. The counselor should 30 
investigate the need for further vocational and/or educational evaluation to explore 31 
alternative employment goals. 32 

 33 
(b)  Withdrawals and failures. Clients who withdraw or fail courses paid by DVR and 34 
DVSDVRBVI will be required to pay for a like number of hours during the following 35 
enrollment period subject to the guidelines in (a) of this Section. 36 

Page 200



612:10-7-152  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Payment of tuition and fees at college 
  and universities 
 

612:10-7-152  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Payment of tuition and fees at college 
  and universities 
 
 

612:10-7-152.  Payment of tuition and fees at colleges and universities [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Public institutions of higher learning.  Tuition and fees for DVR and DVSDVRBVI 3 
clients attending public colleges and universities will be paid at the rate set for resident 4 
students by the Oklahoma Regents for Higher Education and within limits prescribed by the 5 
Legislature. DVR and DVSDVRBVI  will pay those fees charged to all students and special 6 
fees associated with required courses in the student's major field of study.  After the 7 
completion of the first semester, a grade report, proof of enrollment, and an itemized 8 
invoice are required documentation to support the authorization for tuition and fees.  It is 9 
the responsibility of the client to provide this support documentation.  The client may 10 
provide this documentation electronically or as a printed document in the standard format 11 
used by the school.   12 
 13 
(b)  Private institutions of higher learning.  Tuition and fees for students in attendance at 14 
accredited private or denominational schools will be paid at the same rate as that paid at 15 
state-supported colleges or universities of equal rank.  After the completion of the first 16 
semester, a grade report, proof of enrollment, and an itemized invoice are required 17 
documentation to support the authorization for tuition and fees.  It is the responsibility of the 18 
client to provide this support documentation.  The client may provide this documentation 19 
electronically or as a printed document in the standard format used by the school. 20 
 21 
(c)  Federal/State student aid.  Pell Grant and all other Federal/State aid (excluding merit 22 
awards) must be applied to tuition, fees and all other educational expenses as a first dollar 23 
source prior to the consideration of the expenditure of DRS funds regardless of whether the 24 
student is attending a public or private institution of higher education. 25 
 26 
(d)  Cost documentation.  Each client is responsible for providing the counselor a copy of 27 
the college or university’s current semester costs before the designated “Drop and Add” 28 
date. 29 

Page 201



612:10-7-158  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Training for individuals in custody of the 
  Department of Corrections 
 

 

612:10-7-158  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Training for individuals in custody of the 
  Department of Corrections 

612:10-7-158.  Training for individuals in custody of the Department of Corrections 1 
[AMENDED] 2 

3 
 DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds are not used to defray the cost of training for individuals 4 
in the custody of the Department of Corrections.  This does not apply to individuals who 5 
meet the criteria set forth within a joint memorandum of understanding between DRS and 6 
the Department of Corrections. 7 

Page 202



612:10-7-161  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Public and private vocational schools 
 

 

612:10-7-161  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Public and private vocational schools 

612:10-7-161.  Public and private vocational schools  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Client training may be purchased from public or private vocational schools that have a 3 
valid purchasing agreement with DRS, after use of available comparable benefits such as 4 
PELL grants and other federal/state student aid (excluding merit awards).     5 
 6 
(b)  Privately-owned vocational schools must be accredited or licensed through the 7 
appropriate state board, if applicable, before a purchasing agreement with DRS can be 8 
finalized.  Tuition at privately owned vocational schools will be paid at rates approved by 9 
the Oklahoma Commission for Rehabilitation Services sitting as the Rates and Standards 10 
Committee.  The authorized rate will remain constant during the contract period.   11 
 12 
(c)  Continued eligibility of a client in training at a vocational school will be based on the 13 
client's performance in respect to grades, progress and attendance. The minimum 14 
standards used by the training facility for satisfactory progress in respect to grades and 15 
attendance will be utilized by DVR and DVSDVRBVI staff in determining the progress of the 16 
client. 17 
 18 

(1)  DVR and DVSDVRBVI sponsored clients attending vocational technical schools 19 
who withdraw or fail course work will be required to pay for like credit or clock hours 20 
during the following enrollment period. 21 
 22 
(2)  A client who fails to meet agency sponsorship guidelines for training at vocational 23 
technical schools may continue to receive services not requiring client participation in 24 
cost of services. 25 
 26 
(3)  A client failing to meet agency sponsorship guidelines may be approved by the 27 
counselor if there are extenuating circumstances. 28 
 29 
(4)  A client failing to meet agency sponsorship guidelines will be contacted as soon as 30 
appropriate to complete a program review to determine if a change in services, 31 
vocational goal or objective is needed.  A client failing to meet chosen goals will not 32 
have her/his case closed until the counselor has provided counseling and guidance 33 
and has determined that a change in the IPE is inappropriate. The counselor should 34 
investigate the need for further vocational and/or educational evaluation to explore 35 
alternative employment goals. 36 

Page 203



612:10-7-162  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Textbooks, supplies, training tools 
  and equipment 
 

 

612:10-7-162  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Textbooks, supplies, training tools 
  and equipment 

612:10-7-162.  Textbooks, supplies, training tools and equipment  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  For clients attending training, an allowance may be provided to cover the actual cost of 3 
required books, supplies, training tools and equipment, after available comparable benefits 4 
have been applied.  When an allowance is provided, the client will be required to furnish 5 
documentation of the costs of required books, supplies, tools or equipment.  The counselor 6 
will work with the client in obtaining and utilizing comparable benefits including the PELL 7 
grant and planning for the use of other resources to help meet this expense.  The textbook 8 
allowance will be adjusted the following semester for clients who fail or withdraw from 9 
courses paid by DVR or DVSDVRBVI.  Only textbooks for the current semester’s 10 
enrollment will be provided. 11 
 12 
(b)  Training tools and equipment costing more than $500 will be purchased directly from 13 
the vendor in accordance with DRS policy.  14 
 15 
(c)  The client, or client's family or authorized representative as appropriate, is responsible 16 
for maintaining supplies and training tools in good working order. DVR and DVSDVRBVI 17 
will pay for repairs to supplies and training tools purchased with DVR and DVSDVRBVI 18 
funds during the life of the case unless there is clear evidence the supplies or training tools 19 
have been damaged due to client abuse or neglect. 20 
 21 
(d)  Gun "kits", but not operable firearms, used as training tools may be purchased for 22 
students in gun-smithing school only. 23 
 24 
(e)  The Department retains title to any tools costing $500 or more purchased for training 25 
purposes until title is released by an authorized agent of the Department.  The counselor 26 
will complete the Receipt for Equipment and Title Agreement, and obtain necessary 27 
signatures, before releasing such tools to the client.  Any tools purchased for training 28 
purposes remain with the client while he/she is in training and after the completion of the 29 
training if they can be used in the client's chosen vocation.  If the client drops out of 30 
training, DRS at its discretion may take steps to repossess the tools to transfer to another 31 
client. 32 
 33 
(f)  Case recording must reflect the disposition of tools and materials provided the client 34 
before the case is closed. 35 
 36 
(g)  Computers and related high tech equipment necessary for the client to participate in a 37 
training program or required by the training entity may be purchased as a client service in 38 

Page 204



612:10-7-162  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Textbooks, supplies, training tools 
  and equipment 
 

 

612:10-7-162  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Textbooks, supplies, training tools 
  and equipment 

accordance with agency policy.  The cost of computers and related equipment will not be 39 
included in an allowance for textbooks and supplies. 40 

Page 205



612:10-7-183  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Ongoing support services 
 

 

612:10-7-183  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Ongoing support services 

612:10-7-183.  Ongoing support services  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

 The individual will be provided needed and appropriate ongoing support services such 3 
as job site training, transportation, service to family members, or any service necessary to 4 
achieve and maintain the supported employment placement throughout the term of 5 
employment.   DVR and DVSDVRBVI sponsored support services are provided from the 6 
time of placement until the individual is stabilized on the job (completion of "Stabilization 7 
Milestone”) by the service provider.   8 

Page 206



612:10-7-184  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
   Extended services 
 

 

612:10-7-184  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Extended services 

612:10-7-184.  Extended services  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

 Extended services are a continuation of ongoing support services provided to 3 
individuals in Supported Employment at completion of stabilization, during the "Successful 4 
Rehabilitation" Milestone and beyond case closure.   Such services consist of the provision 5 
of specific services, including natural supports, needed to maintain the supported 6 
employment placement. Extended services are paid from funding sources other than DVR 7 
and DVSDVRBVI and are specifically identified in the IPE. An individual may not be found 8 
ineligible for supported employment services because the resource for providing extended 9 
services cannot be identified.    10 

Page 207



612:10-7-199  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Reader/recording service 
 

 

612:10-7-199  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Reader/recording service 

612:10-7-199.  Reader/recording services  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Reader services may be purchased for individuals who are blind, visually impaired or 3 
have difficulty reading standard print books/materials due to any other disability. Reader 4 
services are exempt from client participation in cost of service. Hours of reader service 5 
purchased shall be based upon the client’s needs with respect to reading of textbooks, 6 
training materials or other printed materials used in the rehabilitation process.  7 
 8 
(b)  Payment for reader services will be based on the Federal Minimum Wage, unless the 9 
counselor justifies use of a higher basis for readers of specialty subjects (e.g., law, science, 10 
technology, professions).  Reader services may not be paid in advance.  Payment is 11 
authorized directly to the client in the same manner as maintenance or transportation and 12 
may be included on the same authorization with either or both of these other services.   13 

 14 
(c)  Individuals who have difficulty reading or using standard print materials will be referred 15 
to existing resources for recorded, large print, Braille and digital books and materials.  Any 16 
required fee or materials cost for a recorded/digital textbook service may be paid through 17 
DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds and is not based on financial status determination.  18 

Page 208



612:10-7-201  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Rehabilitation teaching services 
 

 

612:10-7-201  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Rehabilitation teaching services 

612:10-7-201.  Rehabilitation teaching services  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

 Rehabilitation teachers provide counseling and instruction to aid clients in adjusting to 3 
blindness.  All clients who are legally blind or have a rapidly progressive eye condition are 4 
to be referred to a rehabilitation teacher.  Exceptions are allowed in instances where 5 
rehabilitation teaching services have been provided and the client appears to be functioning 6 
independently, or when physical restoration services are planned which will likely restore 7 
the client's functioning to a level which would remove the need for rehabilitation teaching.  8 
Rehabilitation teachers employed by the Division of Visual Services Vocational 9 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired may serve clients who are legally blind 10 
jointly with the DRS counselor.  11 

Page 209



612:10-7-203  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Orientation and Mobility (O & M) 
 

 

612:10-7-203  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Orientation and Mobility (O & M) 

612:10-7-203.  Orientation and Mobility (O & M) [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

 DVR and DVSDVRBVI clients who are legally blind can receive direct instruction from 3 
O & M specialists employed by the Department.  O & M specialists assist these clients to 4 
adjust to their surroundings.  5 

Page 210



612:10-7-205  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Services to persons who are deaf-blind 
 

 

612:10-7-205  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Services to persons who are deaf-blind 
 

612:10-7-205.  Services to persons who are deaf-blind  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Overview of services. Because of the overwhelming impact upon the individual with a 3 
combination disability of deafness and blindness, a multiple disciplinary approach is 4 
needed to adequately serve these individuals. Unique problems in mobility and 5 
communication can cause severe social, recreational, academic deprivation and long term 6 
prevocational training may be necessary. Persons who are deaf-blind are capable of 7 
competitive employment and the counselor will carefully evaluate expected employment 8 
outcomes.   9 
 10 
(b)  Deaf-Blindness Specialist. To promote and coordinate appropriate services for 11 
persons with dual losses of vision and hearing, the Division of Visual Services Vocational 12 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired employs a Deaf-Blindness Specialist. This 13 
specialist works with counselors, rehabilitation teachers and others who provide services 14 
directly to clients who are deaf-blind. A major role served by this specialist is coordinating 15 
services and ensuring dialogue among schools, programs, agencies and organizations 16 
serving the deaf and blind. 17 

Page 211



612:10-7-206  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assistive technology services for individuals 
  with visual impairments 
 

 

612:10-7-206  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Assistive technology services for individuals 
  with visual impairments 

612:10-7-206.  Assistive technology services for individuals with visual impairments 1 
[AMENDED] 2 

 3 
The need for assistive technology devices and services is to be addressed in the client’s 4 
Individualized Plan for Employment.  Counselors and rehabilitation teachers may refer 5 
clients with visual disabilities to the Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for 6 
the Blind & Visually Impaired assistive technology laboratory for blindness and low vision 7 
which may provide or procure: 8 
 9 

(1)  assistive technology evaluations; 10 
 11 
(2)  recommendation of assistive technology devices and services to meet individual 12 
needs; 13 
 14 
(3)  training in use of technology and devices, referral to training sources and 15 
information on training options; 16 
 17 
(4)  information on technologies and devices to meet specific individual needs; 18 
 19 
(5)  technical assistance for installation and operation of select applications and 20 
devices; and 21 
 22 
(6)  demonstration and loan of adaptive aids, devices, electronic and computer 23 
technologies and other assistive technology products. 24 

Page 212



612:10-7-216  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks 
  and supplies 
 

 

612:10-7-216  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks 
  and supplies 

612:10-7-216.  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks and supplies 1 
[AMENDED] 2 

 3 
(a)  Tools, occupational equipment and supplies will be provided to eligible clients to the 4 
extent necessary to achieve their vocational goal providing the client has adequate 5 
resources available for the proper maintenance and upkeep of such tools and equipment. 6 
The client, or client's family or authorized representative as appropriate, is responsible for 7 
maintaining tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks, and supplies in good working 8 
order. DVR and VSD DVRBVI will not pay for repairs to tools, occupational equipment, 9 
initial stocks and supplies purchased with DVR and DVSDVRBVI funds once title has been 10 
released to the client. DVR and DVSDVRBVI will not pay for repairs before title is released 11 
when there is clear evidence that the damage resulted from abuse or neglect. 12 
 13 
(b)  The client will retain possession and control of articles while engaging in the job or 14 
occupation for which articles were provided, or when title is released to client. Occupational 15 
tools, occupational equipment, and initial stocks and supplies are defined as follows:  16 

 17 
(1)  Occupational tools are considered to be those minimum tools required for a 18 
designated trade, necessary to the employment of the individual, and not furnished by 19 
the employer.  DRS will NOT purchase operable firearms even if required for 20 
employment.  Counselor will assist consumer in finding resources to help in this 21 
purchase if necessary. 22 
 23 
(2)  Occupational equipment is equipment required to meet the minimum needs of an 24 
individual in starting and conducting a business of his or her own. 25 
 26 
(3)  Initial stocks and supplies are those materials and merchandise necessary for the 27 
client to become operational in a business.   28 

 29 
(c)  Purchase of occupational tools, equipment and initial stocks and supplies will be made 30 
in accordance with 612:10-1-7. If the client is required to participate in cost of services, the 31 
payment will be made to the nonmedical vendor. When the equipment is received and/or 32 
installed, the appropriate rehabilitation professional completes the Receipt for Equipment 33 
and Title Agreement. If the purchase total is $5,000 or more, the rehabilitation professional 34 
then signs the vendor's invoice and routes it to DRS state office.   35 
 36 
(d)  Used tools or equipment may be purchased when it is evident considerable savings 37 
may be affected. Used equipment or tools are to be appraised piece-by-piece by at least 38 

Page 213



612:10-7-216  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks 
  and supplies 
 

 

612:10-7-216  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Tools, occupational equipment, initial stocks 
  and supplies 

three shop owners or managers in the same type of work, and who are not acquainted with 39 
the vendor.   40 
 41 
(e)  If the counselor, after a thorough check of the tools or equipment, finds they are not 42 
being used for the purpose for which they were purchased, the counselor is to repossess 43 
the tools or equipment by executing the Release or Receipt of Equipment form.   44 

Page 214



612:10-7-245  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

 

 

612:10-7-245  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

612:10-7-245.  Definitions [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
 The following words and terms, when used in this Part, shall have the following 3 
meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 4 
 5 
 "FLSA" means the Fair Labor Standards Act which sets forth labor standards and 6 
protections as enforced by the U.S. Department of Labor.  7 
 8 
 "IDEA" means the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, P.L. 101-476 which 9 
ensures the rights and protections of children with disabilities and their parents being 10 
served by public education agencies through special education services and on an 11 
individualized education program (IEP).  12 
 13 
 "IEP" means Individualized Education Program.  This is an educational document 14 
developed on an annual basis that documents the educational and transition goals 15 
students are working toward each year in grades PK-12. 16 
 17 
 "LEA" means Local Educational Agency, or local school district. 18 
 19 
 "SDE" means State Department of Education. 20 
 21 

“SECTION 504 Plan” is a plan designed as a protection for students with disabilities 22 
who may not be considered eligible for special education under the IDEA in compliance 23 
with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended.  24 
 25 
 "Teacher coordinator"  means a teacher employed by a school who is released as 26 
part of her work day and responsible for  working with DVR/DVSDVRBVI counselors 27 
and students eligible for the Transition from School to Work Program.  28 
 29 
 “Work Adjustment Training (WAT)” is provided on a work site, in a school, or in 30 
an approved Community Rehabilitation Program having valid contracts with DRS.  WAT 31 
may also include (but is not limited to) activities aimed toward work tolerance, 32 
development of personal habits, attitudes, and work habits necessary to orient the 33 
individual to the world of work.  High school students eligible for this service must be at 34 
least 16 years of age and may not participate for more than 18 months unless 35 
determined necessary by the counselor and client. 36 
 37 
 “School Work Study (SWS)” allows students with disabilities to work on the school 38 
campus. The students are supervised or closely monitored by school personnel, and the 39 
school pays the students a stipend with DRS making reimbursement to the school for 40 

Page 215



612:10-7-245  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

 

 

612:10-7-245  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Definitions 

that payment. The stipend is not a wage/salary. The school maintains liability for the 41 
students while working on campus. 42 
 43 
 “Trial Work/Extended Evaluation” has the meaning given these terms in DRS 44 
policy and federal law/rules.       45 
 46 
 “Work Site Learning (WSL)” allows students with disabilities to work in the 47 
community.  The students are supervised or closely monitored by school personnel, and 48 
the school pays the students a stipend with DRS making reimbursement to the school 49 
for that payment. The stipend is not a wage/salary. The school maintains liability for the 50 
students while working off campus. 51 
 52 
 “Employer Work Study (EWS)” allows students with disabilities employment 53 
experience in part-time jobs in the community with the employers paying the 54 
wages/salary(ies).  In this instance, the students are employees of the community 55 
employers, and DRS does not reimburse the employers for the wages/salary(ies).   56 

Page 216



612:10-9-17  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Application Status 
 

 

612:10-9-17  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Application Status 

612:10-9-17.  Application Status  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  A case is placed in Application Status when the individual submits an application with 3 
DVR  or DVSDVRBVI in accordance with agency policy.    4 
 5 
(b)  A decision of eligibility or ineligibility must be made within 60 days of the completed 6 
application unless unforeseen and exceptional circumstances beyond the control of the 7 
Department indicate the need for an extension as documented on the Need for Extension 8 
of Time to Determine Eligibility form. The consumer must agree an extension of time is 9 
warranted after full consultation.   10 
 11 
(c)  The rehabilitation teacher will conduct an initial interview and document it in a narrative 12 
summary. The consumer and/or representative will be given an explanation of consumer 13 
rights and responsibilities and information about the Client Assistance Program and 14 
mediation procedures in a medium which is understandable to the individual and in their 15 
preferred medium. The teacher will document this in the case record.  The consumer will be 16 
offered the opportunity to register to vote at time of application and/or time of address 17 
change.   18 

Page 217



612:10-11-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Administrative review 
 

 

612:10-11-7  Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 
  Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 
  Visually Impaired 
  Administrative review 
 

612:10-11-7.  Administrative review  [AMENDED] 1 
2 

 Any individual who is an applicant or client of OB services must be advised of his/her 3 
right to request a timely review or a re-determination of any action taken by DRS staff.   4 
The review will be conducted by the Administrator for Visual Services Vocational 5 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired or his/her designee, who shall respond to 6 
the applicant or client in writing with the findings and conclusions of the review. 7 

Page 218



612:15-1-3  Oklahoma Library for the Blind and 
  Physically Handicapped (OLBPH) 
  Library functions and legal basis 
 

 

612:15-1-3  Oklahoma Library for the Blind and 
  Physically Handicapped (OLBPH) 
  Library functions and legal basis 

612:15-1-3. Library functions and legal basis  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  The Oklahoma Library for the Blind and Physically Handicapped (OLBPH), operated by 3 
the Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired 4 
within the Department of Rehabilitation Services, is the regional library for Oklahoma as 5 
part of the national network of libraries of the Library of Congress National Library Service 6 
(NLS) for the Blind and Physically Handicapped. 7 
 8 
(b)  On March 3, 1931, the Pratt-Smoot bill authorized the Library of Congress to arrange 9 
with other libraries to serve as local or regional centers to circulate books to blind or 10 
visually-impaired users.  By the end of fiscal 1966, Congress passed Public Law 89-522 11 
extending the service to library users who could not read standard print because of physical 12 
disability, which can include certain reading disabilities.  State law (7 O.S. Section 8 and 74 13 
O.S. 166.4(B)(3)(b) and 166.5) establish that the Section of Services to the Blind (Visual 14 
Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired) of the Commission for 15 
Rehabilitation Services has the authority and duty to provide special library services to blind 16 
and visually impaired citizens. 17 
 18 
(c)  Functions of the Library include but are not limited to: 19 
 20 

(1)  Loan of books and periodicals in accessible formats for eligible adults and children 21 
with visual, physical or learning disabilities that prevent effective use of standard print 22 
materials; 23 
 24 
(2)  Production of recorded and Braille materials on request and on a limited basis, 25 
subject to availability of resources.  Fees may be established to cover the cost of 26 
production.  Services provided by OLBPH as part of the National Library Service will be 27 
given priority over requests for production of reading materials in alternate formats;   28 
 29 
(3)  Acquisition, housing and circulation of Braille textbooks and other accessible 30 
instructional materials for students with print disabilities in grades pre-K through 12; 31 
 32 
(4)  Improving access to print information for Oklahomans with print disabilities by 33 
providing, through contract or directly, services that supply audio or electronic access 34 
to newspapers, books, works by Oklahoma authors, educational programming, local 35 
and state activities, and information on resources. 36 
 37 
(5)  Recruitment and training of volunteers to support library functions.  38 

Page 219



612:15-5-2  Oklahoma Library for the Blind and 
  Physically Handicapped (OLBPH) 
  Suspension procedures 
 

 

612:15-5-2  Oklahoma Library for the Blind and 
  Physically Handicapped (OLBPH) 
  Suspension procedures 

612:15-5-2.  Suspension procedures  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

 In the event any of the rules in this Chapter are violated repeatedly, the borrower's 3 
service may be suspended for a period of time after being given a written warning and an 4 
opportunity to reply.  If after reinstatement of services, abuse continues, service may be 5 
suspended again.  In the event of suspension, these steps will be taken: 6 

 7 
(1)  The library will first discuss the problem noted with the patron by telephone or in 8 
person, then will send a warning letter summarizing the discussion, the problem and, 9 
provide an opportunity for the patron to reply. 10 
 11 
(2)  If service abuse reoccurs, a second written communication is sent to the patron 12 
citing the earlier warning letter, listing incidents of abuse, giving the patron an 13 
opportunity to reply by a certain date, and suspending the service for a stated period 14 
up to six months.  A specific date for resumption of service is included.  Service will be 15 
suspended only after a review by and upon the concurrence of both the administrative 16 
librarian and the Director of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 17 
Visually Impaired. 18 
 19 
(3)  When the service is resumed, a letter will be sent to the borrower notifying him/her 20 
of the resumption of the service and reminding the patron that further reoccurrences 21 
will result in another suspension of service as it relates to the documented abuse. 22 

Page 220



612:20-3-5  Special Schools 
  Departmental resources 
 

 

612:20-3-5  Special Schools 
  Departmental resources 

612:20-3-5.  Departmental resources  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  In-service training.  State Office staff are available as resource persons through the 3 
Staff Development Unit.  They are charged by the director with the responsibility of 4 
assisting the superintendents with the development of a meaningful, ongoing in-service 5 
training program patterned to serve the individual needs of each school and embodying the 6 
Department's school goals. 7 
 8 
(b)  Rehabilitative and Visual Services UnitVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind and 9 
Visually Impaired Division.  Coordination of efforts to make a smooth transition from 10 
secondary school to employment or further training will be facilitated by VR counselors 11 
trained to work with the blind and deaf.  The Department of Rehabilitation Services will 12 
encourage and support efforts to enhance communication and cooperation between school 13 
and rehabilitation personnel. 14 

Page 221



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

 1 
612:25-2-5.  Definitions  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
The following words or terms, when used in this Manual, shall have the following 4 

meaning unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 5 
 6 

"Act" means the Randolph-Sheppard Vending Facility Act (Public Law 74-732), as 7 
Amended by Public Law 83-565 and Pub Law 93-516, 20 U.S.C., Ch. 6A, Sec. 107. 8 

 9 
"Active participation" means a process of good faith negotiations involving the 10 

Elected Committee of Licensed Managers and the State Licensing Agency. The 11 
Committee must be given the opportunity to have meaningful input into the decision-12 
making process in the formulation of program policies which govern the duties, 13 
supervision, transfer, promotion and financial participation of licensed managers. The 14 
SLA is charged with the ultimate responsibility for the administration and operation of all 15 
aspects of the Business Enterprise Program. 16 

 17 
“Annual Evaluation” means an evaluation conducted on a yearly basis of a 18 

manager. This evaluation will be performed at the end of each calendar year. 19 
 20 
"BEP" means the Business Enterprise Program of the State Licensing Agency 21 

which provides self-employment opportunities for qualified persons who are blind. 22 
 23 
"BEP Operations Coordinator" means the person who has responsibility for the 24 

operation of the Business Enterprise Program in the State. 25 
 26 

"Blind person" means a person who, after examination by a physician skilled in the 27 
diseases of the eye or by an optometrist, whichever the person shall select, has been 28 
determined to have (1) not more than 20/200 central visual acuity in the better eye with 29 
correcting lenses, or (2) an equally disabling loss of the visual field as evidenced by a 30 
limitation to the field of vision in the better eye to such a degree that its widest diameter 31 
subtends an angle of no greater than 20 degrees. 32 

 33 
"Board" or "Commission" means the governing body for the State Licensing 34 

Agency. 35 
 36 
"Business Consultant (BC)" means an individual who provides consultative and 37 

management services to those business enterprises and licensed managers of the 38 
State to which the consultant is assigned. 39 

 40 
"Business Enterprise" means an approved business administered by the State 41 

Licensing Agency. See definition of "Vending Facility." 42 
 43 
"Business Enterprise Program (BEP)" means the Business Enterprise Program 44 

services available to establish business enterprises for persons who are blind. 45 
 46 

Page 222



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

"Cafeteria facility" means a food dispensing business enterprise capable of 47 
providing a broad variety of prepared foods and beverages (including hot meals) 48 
primarily through the use of a line where customers serve themselves from displayed 49 
selections. A cafeteria may be fully automatic or provide limited waiter or waitress 50 
service. Table and/or booth seating facilities are always provided. 51 

 52 
"Client or Consumer" means any person who has made application for the State 53 

Licensing Agency's services and has been determined by the State Licensing Agency to 54 
be eligible for services. 55 

 56 
"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Rehabilitation Services 57 

Administration (RSA) who exercises approval authority for the Federal government 58 
under the Randolph-Sheppard Act. 59 

 60 
"Committee" means the Elected Committee of Licensed Managers. 61 
 62 
"Contract" means a written agreement between the State Licensing Agency and 63 

officials in control of Federal or other property to establish a business enterprise. 64 
 65 
"Contract labor" means a person or company that performs duties or services not a 66 

part of the regular duties of the business enterprise. 67 
 68 
"Counselor" means Division of Vocational Rehabilitation or Division of Visual 69 

ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired counselors assigned 70 
to the State Licensing Agency's program of vocational rehabilitation. 71 

 72 
"Director" or "Executive Director" means the chief administrator of the State 73 

Licensing Agency. 74 
 75 

"Displaced licensed manager" means a licensed manager who has been 76 
displaced from his or her business enterprise through no fault of his or her own. 77 

 78 
"Dry/Wet facility" means any business enterprises providing manual dispensing of 79 

prepackaged articles, refreshments, and services. 80 
 81 
"Elected Committee of Licensed Managers (ECM)" means the committee elected 82 

biennially by licensed managers in accordance with 34 CFR 395.14. 83 
 84 
"Emergency" means an unforeseen circumstance that calls for immediate action. 85 

When a piece of equipment is out of order it is not normally considered an emergency 86 
unless it will harm/destroy lives, other equipment or property. 87 

 88 
"Employee" means an individual who receives compensation for services rendered 89 

to a licensed manager. 90 
 91 

Page 223



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

"Equipment, expendable" means items having a relatively small cost per item and 92 
having a relatively short life expectancy. 93 

 94 
"Equipment, non-expendable" means all necessary equipment which requires a 95 

relatively high capital outlay and has a normal life expectancy of several years. 96 
 97 
"Federal property" means any building, land or other real property owned, leased, 98 

or occupied by any department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States 99 
(including the Department of Defense and the United States Postal Service), or any 100 
other instrumentality wholly owned by the United States. 101 

 102 
"Federal regulations" means the regulations issued pursuant to the Randolph-103 

Sheppard Act. 104 
 105 
"Grantor" means a Federal, State, County, Parish, city government, private 106 

corporation, company, partnership or individual, who grants a permit or enters into an 107 
agreement with the State Licensing Agency to operate a business enterprise on its/their 108 
property. 109 

 110 
"Grantor's agreement" means a written document between a Grantor and the 111 

State Licensing Agency which sets forth the terms, conditions and responsibilities of all 112 
parties to the agreement for the operation of a business enterprise on private and/or 113 
public property. 114 

 115 
"Gross receipts" means all revenue from a business enterprise, including sales tax. 116 
 117 
"Inactive Licensee" means a licensed individual who is not currently working in the 118 

Business Enterprise Program. 119 
 120 
"Initial stock and supplies" means those resalable items or supplies necessary for 121 

the opening and operation of a specific type of business enterprise. 122 
 123 
"Interim manager" means a licensed manager appointed to manage a business 124 

enterprise on a temporary basis. 125 
 126 
"License" means a written instrument issued by the State Licensing Agency to a 127 

person who is blind, authorizing such person to manage a business enterprise. 128 
 129 
"Licensed employee" means a licensed individual who is currently working for a 130 

licensed manager. 131 
 132 
"Licensed Manager (LM)" means a licensed individual who has signed an 133 

agreement with the State Licensing Agency to manage a Randolph-Sheppard business 134 
enterprise under the supervision of the State Licensing Agency. 135 

 136 
"Licensee" means a person who is blind and holds a valid BEP license. 137 

Page 224



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

 138 
"Licensing agency" means the State Licensing Agency (SLA), which has been 139 

designated by the Commissioner, pursuant to the Act, to issue licenses to persons who 140 
are blind for the management of business enterprises. 141 

 142 
"Management services" means inspection, quality control, consultation, 143 

accounting, regulating, in-service training, and other related services provided on a 144 
systematic basis to support and improve business enterprises operated by licensed 145 
managers. 146 

 147 
"Manager's agreement" means an agreement between a licensed manager and 148 

the State Licensing Agency, establishing basic terms and conditions for management of 149 
a business enterprise. 150 

 151 
“Mail” is a method of distributing information that includes, but is not limited to, the 152 

U.S. Postal System, email, fax, or Federal Express. 153 
 154 
"Net earnings" or "Net profits" means gross profit after deducting operating 155 

expenses and set-aside collected. 156 
 157 
"Net proceeds" means the amount remaining from the sale of articles or services of 158 

business enterprises and any vending machine income or other income accruing to 159 
licensed managers after deducting the cost of such sales and other authorized 160 
expenses excluding set-aside charges required to be paid by the licensed managers. 161 

 162 
"Net sales" means the sum total of sales, excluding sales tax. 163 
 164 
"Nominee" means a nonprofit agency or organization designated by the State 165 

Licensing Agency through a written agreement to act as its agent in the provision of 166 
services to licensed managers under the State's Business Enterprise Program. 167 

 168 
"Other income" means money received by a licensed manager from sources other 169 

than over the counter and machine sales. 170 
 171 

"Other property" means property which is not Federal property and on which 172 
business enterprises are established or operated by the use of any funds derived in 173 
whole or in part, directly or indirectly, from the operation of vending facilities on any 174 
Federal property. 175 

 176 
“Performance Evaluation” means an evaluation conducted to determine if a 177 

manager is eligible to apply for a facility or to be awarded a permanent BEP license.  178 
 179 
“Permanent BEP License” means a license issued on a permanent basis to a BEP 180 

manager who has successfully completed all probationary requirements. 181 
 182 

Page 225



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

"Permit" means the official approval given a State Licensing Agency by a 183 
department, agency, or instrumentality in control of the maintenance, operation and 184 
protection of Federal property or person in control of other property where the State 185 
Licensing Agency is authorized to establish a business enterprise. 186 

 187 
“Probationary BEP License” means a license issued to an individual on their first 188 

day as manager of an Oklahoma BEP facility. 189 
 190 
“Probationary Licensee” means a person who has received a certificate of 191 

completion of the Business Enterprise Program training and has not completed their six 192 
(6) month probationary period. 193 

 194 
"Purveyor" means an approved source of supply for food, beverages, supplies, or 195 

services. 196 
 197 
"Randolph-Sheppard Act" means Public Law 74-732 as amended by Public Law 198 

83-565, Public Law 93-516, and Public Law 95-602, 20 U.S.C. Chapter 6A, Section 107. 199 
 200 
"Retained vending machine income" means vending machine income disbursed 201 

by a property managing department, agency or instrumentality of the United States, or 202 
received from vending machines on State or other property in excess of the amounts 203 
eligible to accrue to licensed managers. 204 

 205 
"Routine preventive maintenance" means the regular care, upkeep, and cleaning 206 

of equipment used in a business enterprise. 207 
 208 
"Rules and regulations" means the instrument written by the State Licensing 209 

Agency and approved by the Secretary of Education setting forth the conduct and 210 
operation of the Business Enterprise Program.  A copy of the document granting 211 
approval of the rules and regulations from RSA, will be mailed to each licensed 212 
manager. 213 

 214 
"Saleable stock/merchandise" means products comprising the merchandise 215 

available for sale to the public and determined by the SLA to be from an approved 216 
source in the original container, in date, consistent with the needs of the customers for a 217 
particular business enterprise. 218 

 219 
"Satellite business enterprise" means a business enterprise assigned to a without 220 

a permanently assigned licensed manager on a temporary basis which is being 221 
managed by a licensed manager who is also managing his/her regularly assigned 222 
business enterprise. 223 

 224 
"Satisfactory site" means an area determined by the BEP Operations Coordinator 225 

to have sufficient space, electrical and plumbing outlets, and other such 226 
accommodations as prescribed by the Act, for the location and operation of a business 227 
enterprise in accordance with applicable health laws and building codes. 228 

Page 226



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

 229 
"Secretary" means the United States Secretary of Education. 230 
 231 
"Set-aside funds" means funds which accrue to a State Licensing Agency from an 232 

assessment against the net proceeds of each business enterprise in the State's 233 
business enterprise Program and any income from vending machines on Federal 234 
property which accrues to the SLA. 235 

 236 
"Snack bar business enterprise" means a business enterprise engaged in selling 237 

limited lines of refreshment and prepared food items necessary for a light meal service. 238 
 239 
"State Licensing Agency (SLA)" means the State agency that issues licenses to 240 

persons who are blind for the operation of business enterprises on public and/or private 241 
property. 242 

 243 
"State property" means lands, buildings, and/or equipment owned, leased, or 244 

otherwise controlled by the State. 245 
 246 

"Statewide average manager earnings" means the average annual manager 247 
earnings (after set-aside) as calculated each year for the RSA-15 Report. 248 

 249 
"Trainee" means a qualified client of the Division of Visual ServicesVocational 250 

Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired, who when referred to the Business 251 
Enterprise Program, is placed in training to prepare for licensing under the rules and 252 
regulations of the State Licensing Agency. 253 

 254 
"Training program" means the program of study and/or on-the-job training 255 

provided to prospective and/or experienced licensed managers. 256 
 257 
"Vending facility" means automatic vending machines, cafeterias, snack bars, cart 258 

service, shelters, counters, and such other appropriate auxiliary equipment which may 259 
be operated by licensed managers and which is necessary for the sale of newspapers, 260 
periodicals, confections, tobacco products, foods, beverages, and other articles or 261 
services dispensed automatically or manually and prepared on or off the premises in 262 
accordance with all applicable health laws and including the vending or exchange of 263 
chances for any lottery authorized by State Law and conducted by an agency of a 264 
State within such State. [CFR 34, Part 395.1(X)] 265 

 266 
"Vending machine" means any  machine, operated using currency or other 267 

medium of exchange, which dispenses articles or services, except any machine 268 
operated by the United States Postal Service for the sale of postage stamps or other 269 
postal products and services. Machines providing services of a recreational nature and 270 
telephones shall not be considered to be vending machines. 271 

 272 
"Vending machine facility" means an automated business enterprise which 273 

dispenses a variety of food and refreshment items and services from vending machines. 274 

Page 227



612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

612:25-2-5 Business Enterprise Program 
 Definitions 

Included in this category would be interstate highway locations and vending machine 275 
routes. 276 

 277 
"Vocational Rehabilitation Services for the Blind and Visually Impaired" means 278 

those services as defined in the Rehabilitation Act. [29 USC 701 et seq.] 279 
 280 
"Volunteer" means an individual who works in a business enterprise and receives 281 

no compensation. 282 

Page 228



612:25-4-TOC Business Enterprise Program 
 SUBCHAPTER 4. THE STATE LICENSING AGENCY 

612:25-4-TOC Business Enterprise Program 
 SUBCHAPTER 4. THE STATE LICENSING AGENCY 

SUBCHAPTER 4. THE STATE LICENSING AGENCY 1 
 2 

PART 1. ORGANIZATION AND GENERAL OPERATION STANDARDS 3 
 4 
Section 5 
612:25-4-1.  Organization of the State Licensing Agency 6 
612:25-4-2.  SLA staff responsibilities  [REVOKED] 7 
612:25-4-3.  Guidelines for communication  [REVOKED] 8 
612:25-4-4.  Management services provided by the State Licensing Agency 9 
 10 

PART 3. BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM TRAINING  11 
 12 

612:25-4-14.  Training for new or potential licensed managers 13 
612:25-4-15.  Training for present licensed managers 14 
612:25-4-16.   Training for Business Enterprise Program staff 15 
 16 

PART 5. STATE LICENSING AGENCY RESPONSIBILITY FOR BUSINESS 17 
ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS 18 

 19 
612:25-4-25.  Management of BEP equipment and fixtures 20 
612:25-4-26.  Maintenance and replacement of business enterprise equipment 21 
612:25-4-27.  Initial inventory and supplies 22 
612:25-4-28.  Method of payment for initial stock  [REVOKED] 23 
612:25-4-29.  Failure of licensed manager to repay loan  [REVOKED] 24 
612:25-4-30.  Second merchandise loan  [REVOKED] 25 
 26 

PART 7. SUPPORT SERVICES AND WAREHOUSE  27 
 28 

612:25-4-40.  Overview of support services  [REVOKED] 29 
612:25-4-41.  Support services personnel  [REVOKED] 30 
612:25-4-42.  Warehouse operations  [REVOKED] 31 
 32 

PART 9. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF LICENSED MANAGERS 33 
  34 

612:25-4-52.  SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers  35 
[REVOKED] 36 

612:25-4-53.  Promotion and transfer policy 37 
612:25-4-54.  Business enterprise vacancy announcement 38 
612:25-4-55.  Qualifications 39 
612:25-4-56.  Applications 40 
612:25-4-57.  Applicant Selection Committee 41 
612:25-4-58.  Annual Evaluation 42 
612:25-4-59.  Interview, Selection Process and Scoring 43 
612:25-4-60.  Ninety day replacement 44 
612:25-4-61.  Satellite/remote business enterprise locations 45 
612:25-4-62.  Vending machine income 46 

Page 229



612:25-4-TOC Business Enterprise Program 
 SUBCHAPTER 4. THE STATE LICENSING AGENCY 

612:25-4-TOC Business Enterprise Program 
 SUBCHAPTER 4. THE STATE LICENSING AGENCY 

 47 
PART 11. BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM AUDITING AND DUE PROCESS  48 

 49 
612:25-4-72.  Audits 50 
612:25-4-73.  Due process 51 
612:25-4-74.  Probation  [REVOKED] 52 
612:25-4-75.  Arbitration of complaints after the evidentiary hearing 53 
612:25-4-76.  Arbitration of SLA complaints against federal agencies 54 

Page 230



612:25-4-1  Business Enterprise Program 
  Organization of the State Licensing Agency 
 

 

612:25-4-1  Business Enterprise Program 
  Organization of the State Licensing Agency 

612:25-4-1.  Organization of the State Licensing Agency  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Governing board. The Oklahoma Department of Rehabilitation Services (DRS) is the 3 
designated State Licensing Agency (SLA) for administration of Oklahoma’s vending facility 4 
program for the blind under the Randolph-Sheppard Act.  The governing board of the SLA 5 
is the Oklahoma Commission for Rehabilitation Services. The Director of DRS reports 6 
directly to the Commission. 7 
 8 
(b)  Business Enterprise Program administration. The Business Enterprise Program 9 
(BEP) is located in the Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & 10 
Visually Impaired, a division of DRS, and is administered by the Business Enterprise 11 
Program Operations Coordinator who reports to the Visual Services Vocational 12 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Division Administrator.  13 
 14 
(c)  BEP staff. The SLA, with consultation from the Elected Committee of Licensed 15 
Managers, determines staffing requirements for administration of the BEP and provision of 16 
services to achieve the mission, goals and objectives of the Program. 17 
 18 
(d)  Licensed managers. The individual enterprises established by the Business 19 
Enterprise Program are managed by licensed managers. Licensed managers are subject to 20 
the policies and procedures of the Business Enterprise Program, but are not employees of 21 
the program, the SLA, or the State of Oklahoma. They do, however, have a contractual 22 
relationship with the SLA and are required to manage the business enterprise in 23 
accordance with established rules and regulations. 24 

Page 231



612:25-4-14  Business Enterprise Program 
  Training for new or potential 
  licensed managers 
 

 

612:25-4-14  Business Enterprise Program 
  Training for new or potential 
  licensed managers 

612:25-4-14.  Training for new or potential licensed managers  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Overview of Licensed Manager Training. The Business Enterprise Program (BEP) 3 
provides individuals who are blind with training that leads to potential employment as a 4 
Licensed Manager of a vending facility or related business in the Business Enterprise 5 
Program. The training program includes but is not limited to training in laws and regulations 6 
affecting the Business Enterprise Program, state and federal tax reporting, food service 7 
operations, sanitation, inventory control, money management, staffing of personnel, safety 8 
procedures, business management principles and techniques, and preparation of reports 9 
required by the State Licensing Agency. The licensed manager training program will be 10 
based on a curriculum developed and periodically reviewed through consultation with 11 
appropriate business representatives, trainers, BEP experts, and the Elected Committee of 12 
Licensed Managers.  Additional training required by the licensed manager trainee to adjust 13 
to blindness, learn assistive technology skills or improve the trainee’s opportunity to 14 
succeed as a licensed manager may be arranged through coordination with the DRS 15 
Division of Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired and 16 
DRS Division of Vocational Rehabilitation. 17 

 18 
(b)  Application process. Applications for BEP training shall include the following 19 
information which shall be obtained from the individual’s counselor: 20 

 21 
(1)  current eye examination, documenting blindness; 22 
 23 
(2)  documentation for United States citizenship;  24 
 25 
(3)  documentation the client is at least 18 years of age; and 26 
 27 
(4)  completion of any rehabilitation training prerequisites established by the BEP in 28 
consultation with the ECM to better optimize the successful employment outcome;. 29 

 30 
(c)  Acceptance for training. Applicant qualifications will be reviewed by BEP staff who 31 
will report any training-related recommendations to the individual’s DVSDVRBVI/DVR 32 
counselor and BEP operations coordinator.  An individual’s application must be approved 33 
by the BEP operations coordinator prior to acceptance into the training program. 34 
 35 
(d)  Notice regarding criminal background record.  Before entering training, BEP 36 
applicants will be informed that a criminal background investigation will be performed and 37 
may prevent their being licensed to manage some BEP facilities.    38 
 39 
(e)  Duration of training. To be eligible for licensure as a BEP facility manager an 40 
individual must complete the full BEP manager training program, unless the BEP 41 
operations coordinator, in consultation with the Chair of the Elected Committee of Licensed 42 
Managers, determines an exception is justifiable. 43 

Page 232



612:25-4-14  Business Enterprise Program 
  Training for new or potential 
  licensed managers 
 

 

612:25-4-14  Business Enterprise Program 
  Training for new or potential 
  licensed managers 

 44 
(f)  Completion of training. Each trainee who completes the BEP manager training 45 
program is issued a certificate certifying that the trainee has met all the training criteria to 46 
be a licensed manager in the Business Enterprise Program. Upon assuming management 47 
of their first facility, a certified graduate shall be issued a temporary license and begin a six 48 
(6) month probationary period.  During this period, the probationary manager will receive 49 
benefits afforded all other managers, along with accruing seniority.  Upon completion of 50 
their probationary period, the BEP Operations Coordinator, in consultation with the ECM 51 
Chair, will review their progress and if determined appropriate will issue their permanent 52 
BEP Manager License. 53 
 54 
(g)  Failure to complete training. If it appears that a trainee will not be able to successfully 55 
complete training, the BEP operations coordinator, in consultation with the ECM Chair, will 56 
review the individual’s training record before making a decision to terminate training. The 57 
BEP operations coordinator will notify the trainee and their DVSDVRBVI or DVR counselor 58 
of any BEP decision to terminate training. 59 

 60 
(h)  Post-training interview. Upon completion of a new manager's probationary period, 61 
they will be interviewed by a representative of the Elected Committee of Licensed 62 
Managers, normally the chairperson, to evaluate the effectiveness of the training program. 63 
The interviewer formulates recommendations and comments regarding the training 64 
program toand provideprovides them to the BEP Operations Coordinator. 65 
 66 
(i)  Acceptance of out-of-state licenses. The BEP Operations Coordinator will evaluate 67 
the skills and knowledge of BEP applicants who were licensed managers in other states. 68 
Training will be provided to correct any noted deficiencies and acquaint the applicant with 69 
Oklahoma's program. After qualifications are met, the applicant is issued a training 70 
completion certificate. 71 
 72 
(j)  Seniority. Seniority in the Oklahoma Business Enterprise Program will only accrue 73 
when managing an Oklahoma BEP facility.  74 

Page 233



612:25-4-27 Business Enterprise Program 
 Initial inventory and supplies 

612:25-4-27 Business Enterprise Program 
 Initial inventory and supplies 

612:25-4-27.  Initial inventory and supplies  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Initial inventory.  A licensed manager may acquire initial merchandise for resale by 3 
purchasing it with his/her own funds, utilizing self-employment assistance that may be 4 
available from DRS or other public and private sources, or use of a merchandise loan 5 
provided by the State Licensing Agency (SLA). 6 
 7 
(b)  Merchandise loan.  When necessary to enable a licensed manager to acquire initial 8 
merchandise inventory, the SLA may extend a merchandise loan subject to the following 9 
terms: 10 
 11 

(1)  The amount of the loan will be determined by the SLA in consultation with the 12 
licensed manager and based on an assessment of merchandise necessary to initiate 13 
sales. 14 
 15 
(2)  The total amount of the loan will not exceed the average of the prior year’s 16 
inventories without approval from the BEP operations coordinator. 17 
 18 
(3)  All merchandise purchased and placed on a merchandise loan must have prior 19 
approval by the SLA.  The SLA will not make multiple purchases from any purveyor. 20 
 21 
(4)  The incoming licensed manager, BEP business consultant and BEP operations 22 
coordinator will determine what may be purchased from the existing stock of the 23 
outgoing facility manager.  Only salable merchandise may be purchased. The BEP 24 
business consultant and operations coordinator will also assist the out-going manager in 25 
selling any remaining salable merchandise and its interim storage. 26 
 27 
(5)  A merchandise loan must be repaid to the SLA by a licensed manager in monthly 28 
installments equaling two percent (2%) of monthly gross sales.  A licensed manager 29 
shall not allow the facility inventory level to fall below that of the balance of the 30 
merchandise loan.  Managers receiving loans will sign a merchandise security 31 
agreement that will be retained on file by DRS and released to the manager when loan 32 
repayment is complete along with a letter from the BEP Operations Coordinator officially 33 
notifying the licensed manager of their full repayment of the loan. 34 
 35 
(6)  When a merchandise loan is secured by stock, a licensed manager may not permit 36 
the ownership of the stock to vest in any person or organization other than the SLA.   37 
 38 
(7)  When a licensed manager leaves a business enterprise, any remaining 39 
merchandise loan balance (and other unmet obligations to the SLA) will be subtracted 40 
from the ending inventory in to determiningdetermine the manager’s equity in the ending 41 
stock. 42 
 43 

(c)  Failure of licensed manager to repay loan.  44 
 45 

Page 234



612:25-4-27 Business Enterprise Program 
 Initial inventory and supplies 

612:25-4-27 Business Enterprise Program 
 Initial inventory and supplies 

(1)  If a licensed manager’s merchandise loan payment is not received in the BEP office 46 
within five days after the due date, the licensed manager will be placed on probation 47 
and is not eligible to make application into the selection process. 48 
 49 
(2)  If a licensed manager’s merchandise loan payment remains delinquent through the 50 
succeeding month and is not received in the BEP office within five days after the 51 
succeeding month’s due date, the BEP operations coordinator will recommend 52 
suspension or termination of the operator’s agreement by the SLA director unless an 53 
alternate repayment schedule has been approved by the SLA.  The SLA will initiate 54 
action to collect a remaining merchandise loan balance when a loan payment is two 55 
months overdue. 56 
 57 
(3)  When a licensed manager leaves the program for any reason, the merchandise 58 
loan is due in full unless arrangements are made with the SLA to divide the balance into 59 
twelve (12) equal payments that will be due on the first day of each month.    60 

 61 
(d)  Second merchandise loan.   62 
 63 

(1)  Under documented extreme circumstances, a licensed manager who has paid off 64 
his/her previous merchandise loan may receive a second merchandise loan for the 65 
same facility when it has been determined that the loan is necessary to allow the 66 
licensed manager to remain in his/her facility. 67 
 68 
(2)  If a licensed manager requires a second merchandise loan while the first loan is still 69 
outstanding, other than for the expansion of his/her facility, he/she will be placed on 70 
probation until one of the loans is paid in full. 71 
 72 
(3)  Second merchandise loans for the purpose of facility expansion will be limited to 73 
50% of the cost of additional salable merchandise needed.  74 

 75 
(e)  If a licensed manager wishes to provide his or her own merchandise and will not 76 
require a merchandise loan, he or she must sign a statement to that effect.  It is the 77 
incoming manager’s choice to procure any merchandise from the out-going manager.  If 78 
this condition occurs, the outgoing manager must be given a one-week notice prior to the 79 
facility turnover to the new manager. 80 

Page 235



612:25-4-52 Business Enterprise Program 
 SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers 

612:25-4-52 Business Enterprise Program 
 SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers 

PART 9. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF LICENSED MANAGERS  1 
 2 

612:25-4-52.  SLA responsibility for assignment and transfer of licensed managers  3 
[REVOKED] 4 

 5 
The SLA will carry out assignment and transfer of licensed managers through business 6 

enterprise vacancy announcements, eligibility verification, and establishing and convening 7 
a Selection Committee. 8 

Page 236



612:25-4-53 Business Enterprise Program 
 Assignment, promotion and transfer policy 

612:25-4-53 Business Enterprise Program 
 Assignment, promotion and transfer policy 

 1 
612:25-4-53.  Assignment, promotion and transfer policy  [AMENDED] 2 
  3 
(a)  Assignment.  The State Licensing Agency (SLA) administers a competitive selection 4 
process to accomplish the assignment of primary facilities to qualified individuals to 5 
manage Business Enterprise Program (BEP) vending facilities.  The selection process 6 
established by the SLA provides that the Elected Committee of Blind Licensed Managers 7 
(ECM) is an active participant in the selection of facility managers. 8 
 9 
(b)  Promotion.  It is the SLA’s policy to provide promotion opportunities for licensees 10 
through use of the established competitive selection process. 11 
 12 
(cb) Transfer.  The SLA, in consultation with the ECM, may transfer a licensed manager to 13 
a different location of similar complexity and income potential when it appears to be in the 14 
best interest of the licensed manager and/or the BEP.  The SLA notifies the licensed 15 
manager and the ECM Chair, in writing, by registered or certified mail of athe transfer and 16 
the grounds for the transfer.   17 

Page 237



612:25-4-54 Business Enterprise Program 
 Business enterprise vacancy announcement 

612:25-4-54 Business Enterprise Program 
 Business enterprise vacancy announcement 

612:25-4-54.  Business enterprise vacancy announcement  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  The procedure for announcing business enterprise openings is a mail out to all licensed 3 
managers, licensed employees, and licensees on the mailing list. 4 
 5 
(b)  The announcement period will be at least ten working days. 6 
 7 
(c)  If available, the information in (1) through (910) of this Subsection will be contained on 8 
each announcement. 9 

 10 
(1)  type of business enterprise; 11 
 12 
(2)  estimated number of employees in the building and/or traffic flow unless security 13 
considerations prohibit release of such information; 14 
 15 
(3)  location of the business enterprise; 16 
 17 
(4)  classification;  18 
(5)  average gross sales as reported on monthly report for the previous 12 months; 19 
 20 
(6)  for a new business enterprise, estimates of monthly gross sales based upon 21 
potential patronage, with disclaimer this estimate is not a guarantee of sales; 22 
 23 
(7)  application due date; 24 
 25 
(8)  name and telephone number of the BEP business consultant; and 26 
 27 
(9)  name and telephone number of the current manager.; and 28 
 29 
(10)  a copy of an OTC Form A 100. 30 
 31 

(d)  The following statement will be placed on all announcements.  “All applicants are to be 32 
advised that any records provided with you application, including Business Plans, may be 33 
subject to the Oklahoma Open Records Act.” 34 

Page 238



612:25-4-55 Business Enterprise Program 
 Qualifications 

612:25-4-55 Business Enterprise Program 
 Qualifications 

612:25-4-55.  Qualifications  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  In order to apply for manager placement in a Classification “A” or “B” facility in the 3 
Business Enterprise Program (BEP), an individual must hold a permanent license issued by 4 
the State Licensing Agency (SLA). In addition, the SLA requires experience in the program 5 
before an individual will be considered eligible to apply for "A" andor "B" classification 6 
business enterprises. Certified graduates of the BEP Training Program are only eligible to 7 
apply for Classification “C” andor “D” facilities. A location new to the BEP program is to be 8 
classified "C" for the initial 90 days of operation. The BEP Operations Coordinator, in 9 
consultation with the ECM Chairperson, will determine the need for any experience 10 
requirements.  11 
 12 
(b)  Applicants who qualify for the next lower classification will be considered for interview 13 
when no qualified applicants apply for a classification “A” or “B” facility announcement when 14 
it is deemed appropriate to do so by the BEP Operations Coordinator in consultation with 15 
the ECM Chairperson.  16 
 17 
(c)  Experience requirements for each classification are: 18 
 19 

(1)  Classification A. Applicants will be restricted to individuals who have a minimum of 20 
three (3) years total experience in an Oklahoma bBusiness eEnterprise including a 21 
minimum of one (1) year of management experience. 22 
 23 
(2)  Classification B. Applicants will be restricted to individuals who have a minimum of 24 
two (2) years total experience in an Oklahoma bBusiness eEnterprise, including a 25 
minimum of six (6) months of management experience,or two (2) years additional 26 
employment in a business enterprise may be substituted for the management 27 
experience. 28 
 29 
(3)  Classification C. No experience required, except on new locations as deemed 30 
appropriate by the BEP Operations Coordinator in consultation with the ECM 31 
Chairperson. 32 
 33 
(4)  Classification D. No experience required. 34 

 35 
(d)  The BEP Operations Coordinator, in consultation with the ECM Chairperson, may 36 
require additional BEP experience on applications for any facility. Verified BEP experience 37 
from another state may be considered. 38 
 39 
(e)  A displaced licensed manager will have “15” points added in the selection process a for 40 
the first comparable business enterprise announced; including type, gross sales, and 41 
geographical location,; for one year from the date of displacement. 42 
 43 
(fe)  Applicants will not be eligible to apply for a business enterprise facility if any of the 44 
following conditions exist: 45 
 46 

Page 239



612:25-4-55 Business Enterprise Program 
 Qualifications 

612:25-4-55 Business Enterprise Program 
 Qualifications 

(1)  The licensed manager is on probation or the SLA has initiated 47 
suspension/termination proceedings against the licensed manager. 48 
 49 
(2)  The applicant is not current with their merchandise loan payments. 50 
 51 
(3)  The applicant is not current with his/her set-aside owed to the SLA. 52 
 53 
(4)  The applicantApplicants who have a permanent license have has not scored at 54 
least an 80 on thetheir performance evaluation. 55 
  56 
(5)  Conditions 1-4 will not apply to new BEP training graduates. 57 

 58 
(gf)  Applicants must be eligible to obtain an Oklahoma Tax Permit. Along with each 59 
application, the applicant is to provide a signed OTC Form A 100 to determine their 60 
standing in relation to Sales Tax and Employee Withholding. The OTC Form A 100 will be 61 
used on a one-time basis for a tax inquiry in relation to that announcement application only. 62 

Page 240



612:25-4-57 Business Enterprise Program 
 Applicant Selection Committee 

612:25-4-57 Business Enterprise Program 
 Applicant Selection Committee 

612:25-4-57.  Applicant Selection Committee  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

Selection Committee. The Selection Committee shall be established and convened 3 
by the SLA. The Selection Committee will consider applicants for assignment and transfer. 4 
The Selection Committee shall make recommendation(s) to the BEP Operations 5 
Coordinator or designee. 6 

 7 
(1)  The BEP selection committee is chaired by the BEP Operations Coordinator or 8 
designee.  Members include two members of the SLA staff, the area member of the 9 
ECM or alternate and the chairperson of the ECM or alternate (vice-chair or secretary 10 
or another member of the ECM, in order). If no member of the ECM can serve in either 11 
capacity, the BEP Operations Coordinator shall poll from the ECM chairs outside of the 12 
State of Oklahoma to complete the committee. No person can serve on the selection 13 
committee who has a conflict or of interest or is related to an applicant. 14 

Page 241



612:25-4-58 Business Enterprise Program 
 Annual and Performance Evaluations 
 

 
 
612:25-4-58 Business Enterprise Program 
 Annual and Performance Evaluations 

612:25-4-58.  Annual and Performance Evaluations  [AMENDED] 
 

(a)  The BEP will conduct an annual evaluation of each licensed manager at the end of 
each calendar year.  Performance evaluations will be conducted when a manager applies 
for a facility or when a probationary period ends.  All evaluations will be based on data 
collected from the manager's primary assigned facility and will consist of the previous 
twelve (12) working months information. The Licensed Manager will be advised of the 
results of any evaluation in writing. The manager will be evaluated in the following areas: 

 
(1)  Tasks/responsibilities 

 
(A)  Timely submission and accuracy of all required monthly reports and payments. 
 
(B)  Accurately calculated gross profit percentage reported on monthly reports. 
 
(C)  Accurately calculated net profit percentage reported on monthly reports. 
 
(D)  Maintenance of an acceptable level of merchandise inventory. 
 
(E)  Attendance at Agency and other certified training. 
 
(F)  Attendance at Quarterly ECM Meetings. 
 

(2)  Work Habits 
 
(A)  Provides preventive maintenance and appropriate cleaning/sanitation. 
 
(B)  Merchandise displayed, rotated and stocked sufficiently. 
 
(C)  Maintains required insurances. 
 
(D)  Maintains agreed upon hours of operation. 
 
(E)  Maintains professional relationships with customers and grantors. 

 
(b)  When a Licensed Manager applies for a facility a performance evaluation will be 
conducted to determine their eligibility to apply.  To be eligible the manager must score at 
least 80 of the available 100 points.  Any score above 80 will accrue to the benefit of the 
licensed manager in that selection process by adding it to their total score.  If there is a 
second interview conducted, these points will not be added to the total points of the second 
interview. 
 

Page 242



612:25-4-59 Business Enterprise Program 
 Interview, Selection Process and Scoring 

612:25-4-59 Business Enterprise Program 
 Interview, Selection Process and Scoring 

612:25-4-59.  Interview, Selection Process and Scoring  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  All eligible applicants will be referred by the SLA to the Selection Committee for a 3 
personal interview. 4 
 5 
(b)  All personal information made available to the Selection committee and all information 6 
discussed in the course of a selection is held confidential.  Information will not be released 7 
to any other individual, agency, or organization by Selection Committee members, unless 8 
they are advised in writing by the SLA’s legal counsel to release information.  9 
 10 
(c)  An applicant not present at the appointed time for their interview will have his/her name 11 
removed from consideration for this location unless due to reasonable extenuating 12 
circumstances make them unable to appear and a majority vote of the selection committee 13 
agrees to allow a change of the interview time.  14 
 15 
(d)  Following every interview, each Selection Committee member will complete a score 16 
sheet on the applicant.  Members of the Selection committee must complete their own 17 
score sheets before assisting another member.  After each interview, the scores from all 18 
score sheets on the applicant will be totaled.  Selection Committee members may not 19 
change their scores for an applicant after scores for the applicant have been tabulated.  20 
The total scores for all applicants will then be ranked.  21 
 22 
(e)  Any candidate not scoring a minimum of 50 percent of the available points, not 23 
including seniority, performance evaluation, or displaced manager points, will be deemed 24 
not qualified to manage the facility being considered. 25 
 26 
(f)  The score of the Chairperson of the Selection Committee’s score will not be added into 27 
the ranking unless it is a tie. 28 
 29 
(g)  Any agreement made to the Selection Committee by a selected candidate will be 30 
transferred to an addendum in the manager's agreement by the BEP Operations 31 
Coordinator. 32 
 33 
(h)  After all applicants' scores from the initial interview have been tabulated, any applicant 34 
whose total score is within 5 points of the applicant receiving the highest score will be 35 
awarded a second interview will be given to the top scorer and any applicant whose total 36 
score is within 5 points of the top score.  The SLA will have the responsibility of convening 37 
the same Selection Committee and notifying all eligible applicants of the time and place of 38 
the second interview.  The second interview will be governed by the same process rules as 39 
the initial interview described above. 40 

 41 
(i)  To determine the final rankings of the applicants, combine the personal interview points 42 
from the second interview to the combined point total of the first interview. 43 
 44 
(j)  The scoring shall be based on the following factors: 45 

 46 

Page 243



612:25-4-59 Business Enterprise Program 
 Interview, Selection Process and Scoring 

612:25-4-59 Business Enterprise Program 
 Interview, Selection Process and Scoring 

(1)  Personal interview; 47 
 48 
(2)  Business Plan; 49 
 50 
(3)  Performance evaluation points accrued over 80; 51 
 52 
(4)  Seniority; and 53 
 54 
(5)  Displaced manager points, if applicable.  A displaced licensed manager will have 15 55 
points added in the selection process for the first comparable business enterprise 56 
announced, including type and gross sales, for one year from the date of displacement. 57 
 58 

(k)  Once a selection is made, all individual applicants who received a personal interview 59 
will be immediately notified of their result. This notification will be in writing with an attempt 60 
to be contacted by phone. 61 

Page 244



612:25-4-60 Business Enterprise Program 
 Ninety day replacement 

612:25-4-60 Business Enterprise Program 
 Ninety day replacement 

 1 
612:25-4-60.  Ninety day replacement  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
If the licensed manager defaults on the Manager’s Agreement for any reason (i.e. 4 

resignation, removal by the SLA or death) during the first 90 days from the date of 5 
selection, the BEP Operations Coordinator will, following such default and completion of 6 
any resulting due process action, offer the business enterprise to the applicant who ranked 7 
second of the two candidates submitted by the Selection Committee during in the previous 8 
selection process. If the second person decides to remove his/her name from 9 
consideration, it will be offered to the next applicant with the highest accumulated points. In 10 
the event of a tie, or there are scores within five (5) points of the now highest ranking score, 11 
the procedures identified in 612: 25-4-59 will be followed the BEP Operations Coordinator 12 
and Chairperson of the Elected Committee of Licensed Managers will review the 13 
applications and make the final selection. This procedure will be exercised until a qualified 14 
licensed manager accepts the business enterprise. If all the applicants have removed their 15 
names from consideration, a determination will be made by the BEP Operations 16 
Coordinator, in consultation with the ECM Chairperson, to combine, remove, re-announce, 17 
or satellite the business enterprise. 18 

Page 245



612:25-4-61 Business Enterprise Program 
 Satellite/remote business enterprise locations 

612:25-4-61 Business Enterprise Program 
 Satellite/remote business enterprise locations 

612:25-4-61. Satellite/remote business enterprise locations  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  A business enterprise or vending machine facility will be assigned to a licensed 3 
manager on a temporary basis when: the regular selection process does not produce a 4 
permanent licensed manager, when a licensed manager has been removed by the SLA, or 5 
when a business enterprise is vacated on short notice by a licensed manager and the time 6 
element to follow the regular selection process will cause the grantor to terminate the 7 
permit/contract with the SLA. 8 
 9 

(1)  the regular selection process does not produce a permanent licensed manager, 10 
 11 
(2)  a licensed manager has been removed by the SLA, or 12 
 13 
(3)  when a business enterprise is vacated on short notice by a licensed manager. 14 
 15 

(b)  The BEP Operations Coordinator, in consultation with the Chairperson of the Elected 16 
Committee of Licensed Managers, may assign a licensed manager to a satellite/remote 17 
business enterprise on a temporary basis. The length of the agreement for a temporary 18 
assignment will be until the regular selection process can generate a permanent licensed 19 
manager to manage the vacant business enterprise, but not less than 180 days, unless a 20 
shorter period is agreed upon by the satellite manager.  At the SLA’s discretion, in 21 
consultation with the ECM Chair, in In order to achieve an equitable distribution of satellite 22 
business enterprises, a licensee that currently operates a location and a satellite location 23 
will not be eligible for an additional satellite unless there are no other applicantsqualified 24 
licensed managers interested.  Licensed Managers who only qualify for lower facility 25 
classifications than the satellite under  consideration may be assigned when it is deemed 26 
appropriate by the BEP Operations Coordinator, in consultation with the ECM Chairperson. 27 
  28 
(c)  After the temporary assignment of a licensed manager by the BEP Operations 29 
Coordinator, a temporary agreement will be issued for a maximum of one year, at which 30 
time the satellite business enterprise will be advertised and a permanent licensed manager 31 
selected through the normal selection process. At the end of one year, if a permanent 32 
licensed manager is not produced through the selection process, the temporary location will 33 
be reassessed by the BEP Operations Coordinator, in consultation with the ECM 34 
Chairperson, for possible may be closed closure, added permanently to another business 35 
enterprise through the selection process in part or in whole, or again be placed on a 36 
temporary agreement for a period of no less than 90 days to a maximum of one year. 37 
Satellite locations will be reviewed by the SLA, in consultation with the ECM, every 180 38 
days for possible advertisement of permanent assignment, adding in whole or in part to 39 
another business enterprise facility, continue the satellite assignment, or closure.  The 40 
satellite manager will be kept informed when this will occur and the result of the review. 41 
  42 
(d)  The temporary agreement for a satellite business enterprise may be canceled only for 43 
cause shown. 44 
 45 
(ed)  The licensed manager may resign the satellite agreement with 30 days written notice. 46 

Page 246



612:25-4-61 Business Enterprise Program 
 Satellite/remote business enterprise locations 

612:25-4-61 Business Enterprise Program 
 Satellite/remote business enterprise locations 

 47 
(fe) The satellite business enterprise will be managed as a separate business location for 48 
all purposes except for insurance and the tax permit. It is the licensed manager's 49 
responsibility to notify the Oklahoma Tax Commission and his or her insurance carrier of 50 
the addition and when the satellite manager agreement has ended. 51 

Page 247



612:25-4-62 Business Enterprise Program 
 Vending machine income 

612:25-4-62 Business Enterprise Program 
 Vending machine income 

 1 
612:25-4-62.  Vending machine income  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  Collection, distribution and use of income from vending machines on Federal property 4 
shall be governed by applicable Federal rules.  Income from non-Federal property will 5 
follow the same rules. 6 
 7 
(b)  Unassigned income from non-Federal property is used to develop and enhance the 8 
BEP.  Use will be determined with consultation of the ECM. 9 

Page 248



612:25-4-72 Business Enterprise Program 
 Audits 

612:25-4-72 Business Enterprise Program 
 Audits 

612:25-4-72.  Audits  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

The SLA reserves the right to develop audit procedures with active participation of the 3 
ECM. The SLA reserves the right to conduct audits, including the use of third party 4 
auditors.  The licensed manager will be given a 30 calendar day written notice. 5 

Page 249



612:25-4-73 Business Enterprise Program 
 Due process 

612:25-4-73 Business Enterprise Program 
 Due process 

612:25-4-73.  Due process  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Due process overview. The SLA provides procedures for fair hearings of licensed 3 
managers' grievances. These procedures provide each licensed manager the opportunity 4 
to seek remediation of dissatisfaction with any SLA action arising from the operation of the 5 
BEP. 6 
 7 
(b)  Informal administrative review. It is the policy of the SLA to resolve complaints in an 8 
expeditious and facilitative manner. These resolutions shall be accomplished through the 9 
informal administrative review process whenever possible. A licensed manager has the 10 
right to request a full evidentiary hearing at any time within established due process time 11 
lines.  These timelines are identified late in this policy. 12 

 13 
(1)  Informal administrative reviews are conducted by the SLA staff person closest to 14 
the problem who was not involved in the action resulting in the complaint, and who can 15 
resolve the complaint in the most expeditious manner. 16 
 17 
(2)  The informal administrative review is to be completed within 30 calendar days of 18 
receipt of the complaint to the appropriate SLA staff person. 19 
 20 
(3)  The results of the informal administrative review are to be reported in writing within 21 
15 calendar days to the BEP Operations Coordinator, with a copy going to the licensed 22 
manager affected. 23 

 24 
(c)  Full evidentiary hearings. Licensed managers have the right to a full evidentiary 25 
hearing to resolve dissatisfaction with any SLA action arising from the operation or 26 
administration of the Business Enterprise Program. 27 

 28 
(1) If the complaint cannot be resolved with an informal administrative review, or in the 29 
absence of an informal administrative review, the licensed manager may request a full 30 
evidentiary hearing. The request for a full evidentiary hearing must be made to the BEP 31 
Operations Coordinator in writing within 30 calendar days from the date the licensed 32 
manager receives the notification of adverse action, or the written report of the informal 33 
administrative review. The request for a full evidentiary hearing is to be sent by certified 34 
mail. Upon receipt, the BEP Operations Coordinator will immediately forward the 35 
request to the Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually 36 
Impaired Division Administrator and the DRS Hearings Coordinator. The Licensed 37 
Manager submitting the request for full evidentiary hearing will be notified of the date it 38 
was forwarded. 39 
 40 
(2) The licensed manager may be represented in the evidentiary hearing by legal 41 
counsel, or other representation of the licensed manager's choice, and at the licensed 42 
manager's expense. 43 
 44 
(3) Reasonable accommodations will be arranged by the SLA upon the request of the 45 
licensed manager. 46 

Page 250



612:25-4-73 Business Enterprise Program 
 Due process 

612:25-4-73 Business Enterprise Program 
 Due process 

 47 
(4) The hearing will be scheduled by the SLA for a time and place convenient and 48 
accessible to the licensed manager and the SLA staff involved in the hearing. The 49 
licensed manager will be notified of the place and time of the hearing and the right to 50 
be represented by legal or other counsel in writing. 51 
 52 
(5) The hearing will be conducted by an impartial and qualified official with no 53 
involvement or vested interest in the SLA, action at issue, or with the operation of the 54 
affected business enterprise. The presiding officer will conduct the hearing in 55 
accordance with State and/or Federal laws and rules governing the conduct of such 56 
proceedings. In any case, the hearing will be conducted in a manner that avoids delay, 57 
maintains order, and provides for a full recording and reporting of the proceedings so 58 
that a full and true disclosure of the facts and issues occurs. 59 
 60 
(6) The hearing officer's determination will be based upon the facts as presented by 61 
both parties and upon applicable law and the existing rules of the SLA. The hearing 62 
officer does not have the power to rule upon the legality or construction of the rules 63 
themselves. The officer's decision will determine the relevant issues and facts to be 64 
ruled upon. 65 
 66 
(7) The hearing officer shall make a written report of the evidence presented, the laws 67 
and rules used in determining a resolution, and the resolution itself. This report shall be 68 
issued to the BEP Operations Coordinator and the licensed manager, or his/her 69 
authorized representative within 15 calendar days of the conclusion of the full 70 
evidentiary hearing. 71 
 72 
(8) The hearing officer's report shall be issued to the Director of the SLA within 15 73 
calendar days of the conclusion of the full evidentiary hearing. The SLA Director issues 74 
his or her final written decision to the BEP Operations Coordinator and the licensed 75 
manager within 30 calendar days of the date on which he or she receives the hearing 76 
officer's report. 77 
 78 
(9) If the licensed manager is dissatisfied with the decision, she or he may request that 79 
the Secretary (USDE) convene an arbitration panel. 80 

Page 251



612:25-6-1 Business Enterprise Program 
 Licensing requirements for managing a business enterprise 

612:25-6-1 Business Enterprise Program 
 Licensing requirements for managing a business enterprise 

 1 
612:25-6-1.  Licensing requirements for managing a business enterprise  [AMENDED] 2 

 3 
(a)  Definition of license. A license is a written instrument issued by the SLA to a licensed 4 
manager, authorizing such person to operate a business enterprise on Federal or other 5 
property. 6 
 7 
(ba)  Issuance and conditions of a license. A license shall be issued by the SLA in 8 
accordance with Federal regulations making the individual eligible to operate a business 9 
enterprise.  The license will be issued upon successful completion of the SLA training 10 
program.  The license shall be prominently displayed in the licensed manager's business 11 
enterprise. Licensed Managers whose facility consists of only vending machines, must 12 
carry their BEP license with them. The license remains effective for an indefinite length of 13 
time, unless terminated, suspended, or revoked by the SLA in accordance with State and 14 
Federal regulations. A license issued to a qualified individual is non-transferable.   15 
 16 
Requirements for the issuance of a BEP license are that the individual: 17 

 18 
(1)  must be blind as verified by documentation;  19 
 20 
(2)  must be a U.S. citizen.  Applicable documentation must be submitted with 21 
application; 22 
 23 
(3 ) be at least 18 years of age or older; 24 
 25 
(4)  have successfully completed the BEP manager training program or been granted a 26 
modification of this requirement by the BEP operations coordinator. 27 

 28 
(cb)  Termination of agreement or removal from a business enterprise. The SLA may 29 
terminate a manager's agreement and/or immediately remove the licensed manager from 30 
operation of a business enterprise for cause shown. Termination of a manager's agreement 31 
or removal from operation of a business enterprise does not necessarily mean that the 32 
manager's license will be suspended or terminated. The licensed manager has the right to 33 
a full evidentiary hearing when dissatisfied with any State Licensing Agency action in 34 
accordance with BEP, State, and Federal regulations. 35 
 36 
(dc)  Reinstatement of license. Reinstatement of a BEP license for an individual can be 37 
accomplished by formally requesting the SLA reinstate the BEP License within a two year 38 
period.   39 
 40 
(ed) Termination of license. A license automatically expires when the licensed manager is 41 
no longer a U.S. citizen, no longer meets the definition of legal blindness, surrenders his or 42 
her license, resigns, retires, or dies. A license may be terminated or suspended by the SLA, 43 
after affording the licensed manager an opportunity for a full evidentiary hearing in 44 
accordance with State and Federal regulations. 45 

Page 252



612:25-6-2.1 Business Enterprise Program 
 Probation 

612:25-6-2.1 Business Enterprise Program 
 Probation 

612:25-6-2.1  Probation  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Scope. A licensed manager who is not meeting all of the requirements or 3 
qualifications set forth in the BEP rules and regulations, or a licensed manager who is 4 
not managing the business enterprise in a proper manner, may be placed on probation. 5 
Intensive review/consultation will be provided during the probationary period. The period 6 
of the probation will be used to focus on specific problem areas and attempts will be 7 
made to improve the licensed manager's performance. This is the first step in the formal 8 
disciplinary ladder process. If proper results are not achieved, suspension or revocation 9 
termination of the BEP License may be necessary. 10 
 11 
(b)  Initiation of probation procedure. The BEP Operations Coordinator will place 12 
licensed managers on probation through a probation letter. The business consultant will 13 
deliver, read and explain the letter of probation to the licensed manager. The business 14 
consultant and licensed manager will then sign the probation letter. The original is given 15 
to the licensed manager, one copy returned to the BEP Operations Coordinator, and 16 
one copy mailed to the Chairperson of the Elected Committee of Licensed Managers. 17 
 18 
(c)  Probationary letter. The probationary letter will specify the cause(s) for placing the 19 
manager on probation and rules that have been violated. It will clearly state the terms of 20 
the probation, including the length of the probationary period, the remedial action 21 
required and the consequences of failure to take remedial action. A statement will be 22 
included which indicates it has been read and understood by the licensed manager, 23 
followed by a space for the licensed manager's and business consultant's signature, 24 
and the date. This acknowledgement does not imply that the licensed manager agrees 25 
with the charges issues identified, but rather, that he/she understands the terms of 26 
his/her probation. Refusal to sign does not invalidate the letter. 27 
 28 
(d)  Probationary periods. Probationary periods are usually 30 to 90 days, at the 29 
discretion of the BEP Operations Coordinator, but may be longer or shorter as 30 
circumstances warrant. The exact period of probation will be specified in the 31 
probationary letter.  32 

 33 
(e)  Consequences. The Licensed Manager or the business consultant may submit a 34 
request to the BEP Operations Coordinator that the licensed manager be taken off 35 
probation whenever the licensed manager's performance improves to a satisfactory 36 
level. If remedial action does not result in improved performance within the time 37 
specified, the BEP Operations Coordinator may recommend that: 38 

 39 
(1)  the SLA Director transfer the licensed manager to a more suitable business 40 
enterprise;  41 
 42 
(2)  the probationary period be extended; and/or 43 
 44 
(3)  the SLA Director terminate the Managers Agreement and suspend/terminate the 45 
licensed manager's BEP license. 46 

Page 253



612:25-6-3 Business Enterprise Program 
 Grounds for suspension or termination of a license 

612:25-6-3 Business Enterprise Program 
 Grounds for suspension or termination of a license 

 1 
612:25-6-3.  Grounds for suspension or termination of a license  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  A BEP license may be suspended or terminated for the reasons set forth in (1) through 4 
(13) of this Subsection. 5 

 6 
(1)  Failure to open the assigned business enterprise as stated in the permit/contract 7 
with the grantor agency, without prior proper approval from the SLA (abandonment of 8 
business enterprise). 9 
 10 
(2)  Defrauding any agency of the government (including the SLA) or any purveyor or 11 
failure to pay monies due including taxes, fees, or assessments to any governmental 12 
entity or purveyor. 13 
 14 
(3)  Failure to file required financial and other records monthly reports with the SLA or 15 
preserve them for a specified time, and failure to comply/cooperate with audits 16 
conducted by the SLA or other State or Federal agencies. 17 
 18 
(4)  Failure to maintain the required insurance coverage. 19 
 20 
(5)  The business enterprise is not being operated in accordance with the rules and 21 
regulations, terms and conditions of the permit with the grantor agency, or the terms 22 
and conditions of the business enterprise manager's agreement. 23 
 24 
(6)  Intentional abuse, neglect, unauthorized use or removal of the business enterprise 25 
equipment; or failure to properly maintain the equipment in a clean and operating 26 
manner within the scope of the licensed manager's level of maintenance authorization. 27 
 28 
(7)  Substance abuse (alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs, etc.) while operating the 29 
business enterprise; or other substance abuse that interferes with the operation of a 30 
business enterprise. 31 
 32 
(8)  Operation of a business enterprise in such a way that the SLA's interest in 33 
retaining the contract for the location is obviously endangered. 34 
 35 
(9)  Failure to comply with all Federal and State laws prohibiting discrimination and 36 
failure to provide services without regard to race, gender, color, national origin, 37 
religion, age, political affiliation, or disability. 38 
 39 
(10)  Determination by the SLA that the licensed manager no longer has the 40 
necessary skills and abilities for effectively managing a business enterprise. 41 
 42 
(11)  Use of the business enterprise to conduct unlawful activities. 43 
 44 

Page 254



612:25-6-3 Business Enterprise Program 
 Grounds for suspension or termination of a license 

612:25-6-3 Business Enterprise Program 
 Grounds for suspension or termination of a license 

(12)  Failure to personally operate and manage the business enterprise in accordance 45 
with the manager's agreement.  Management means the personal supervision of the 46 
day-to-day operation of the assigned BEP facility by the assigned manager. 47 
 48 
(13)  Does not actively work as a licensed manager or licensed employee in the 49 
Business Enterprise Program for 2 years. 50 

 51 
(b)  When the BEP Operations Coordinator determines that a BEP license should be 52 
suspended or terminated, the BEP Operations Coordinator shall make a written 53 
recommendation to the Division Administrator.  The Division Administrator shall then 54 
recommend to the SLA Director for action.  The licensed manager shall be notified in 55 
writing if action is to be taken.  The BEP license may only be suspended or terminated after 56 
affording the licensed manager an opportunity for a full evidentiary hearing in accordance 57 
with BEP Rule 612:25-4-73.  The licensed manager may be immediately removed from the 58 
operation pursuant to BEP Rule 612:25-6-1(c) pending the outcome of the evidentiary 59 
hearing. 60 

Page 255



612:25-6-15 Business Enterprise Program 
 Setting aside of funds 

612:25-6-15 Business Enterprise Program 
 Setting aside of funds 

 1 
612:25-6-15.  Setting aside of funds  [AMENDED] 2 
 3 
(a)  Set-aside charges paid by the licensed manager will be placed in a revolving account 4 
maintained by the SLA. Set-aside charges will be re-evaluated yearly by the SLA and the 5 
Elected Committee of Licensed Managers. Adjustments will be made accordingly in the 6 
appropriate classification, with allowances for reasonable charges for improving services, 7 
fluctuation of costs, and for program expansion. 8 
 9 
(b)  Funds will be set aside only for the purpose of: 10 

 11 
(1)  maintenance and replacement of equipment; 12 
 13 
(2)  the purchase of new equipment; 14 
 15 
(3)  management services; 16 
 17 
(4)  assuring a fair minimum of return to licensed managers; or 18 
 19 
(5)  the establishment and maintenance of retirement or pension funds and health 20 
insurance contributions. 21 

 22 
(c)  The licensed manager's set-aside charges will be on a sliding scale of 0% to not more 23 
than 12% of the net proceeds of the business enterprise during any one month. The sliding 24 
scale will be in four classifications: Class A, B, C, and D (based on prior year's 25 
performance). 26 

 27 
(1)  Class A - 12% of net proceeds, $60,000 and above. 28 
 29 
(2)  Class B - 10% of net proceeds, $25,000 to $59,999. 30 
 31 
(3)  Class C - 6% of net proceeds, $10,000 to $24,999. 32 
 33 
(4)  Class D - 0% of net proceeds, $9,999 and below. 34 
 35 

(d) A licensed manager will submit his/her set-aside payment to the BEP office on or before 36 
the 25th of the current calendar month. If the 25th falls on a weekend, the payment is due in 37 
the BEP office no later than the close of business on the last business day prior to the 25th.  38 
Set-aside payments may be mailed to the BEP office.  To be considered on time, they must 39 
be postmarked by the 21st of the month for regular mail or the 22 for overnight mail.  If 40 
these dates fall on a day where the post office is closed, they must be postmarked the day 41 
before.  If the set-aside payment is late the SLA shall notify the manager by phone on the 42 
next business day following the due date.  If the set-aside payment is not received in the 43 
BEP office within five calendar days after the due date, the licensed manager will be placed 44 
on probation and assessed a $50 late charge.  If the licensed manager’s overdue set aside 45 
payment is not received in the BEP office within five calendar days after the due date in the 46 

Page 256



612:25-6-15 Business Enterprise Program 
 Setting aside of funds 

612:25-6-15 Business Enterprise Program 
 Setting aside of funds 

succeeding month (i.e. is over one month and five calendar days late), the manager is 47 
assessed another $50 late fee.  If the first and second payments are not received by the 48 
time the third report is due, the licensed manager’s agreement will be cancelled and the 49 
BEP licenses will be suspended, unless an alternate payment schedule has been approved 50 
in advance by the SLA.  Failure to pay monthly set-aside in a timely manner three or more 51 
times within any twelve month period will result in formal disciplinary action. 52 
 53 
(e)  If a business enterprise should show a marked change in net proceeds, a request for 54 
reclassification may be made by the licensed manager or the SLA after 90 days. Each 55 
licensed manager will be notified of changes in set-aside charges, and the new percentage 56 
of net proceeds will be effective at the beginning of the first business month following the 57 
mailing of notice to the licensed manager.  The licensed manager will start paying the 58 
higher or lower percentage of set-aside with the second report due following notification. 59 
 60 
(f)  All new business enterprises will be placed in class C for 90 days, at which time the 61 
SLA will review the business enterprise for reclassification and notify the licensed manager 62 
of changes in set-aside charges and the new percentage of net proceeds shall be effective 63 
at the beginning of the first business month following the mailing of notice to the licensed 64 
manager. 65 

Page 257



612:25-6-18 Business Enterprise Program 
 Establishing new licensed managers in business enterprises 

612:25-6-18 Business Enterprise Program 
 Establishing new licensed managers in business enterprises 

 1 
612:25-6-18.  Establishing new licensed managers in business enterprises  2 

[AMENDED] 3 
 4 
Business Enterprise Program (BEP) staff will provide consultation and assistance to 5 
accomplish installation of licensed managers in business enterprises.  Steps in the 6 
installation process will include the following: 7 
 8 

(1)  BEP staff will orient the new licensed manager to the business enterprise as 9 
needed.  10 
 11 
(2)  An inventory of the outgoing manager’s merchandise that will be transferred to the 12 
incoming manager will be performed by the outgoing and incoming licensed managers 13 
with assistance from the BEP.  The outgoing licensed manager or designee, incoming 14 
licensed manager or designee, and a representative from the BEP must be present 15 
when merchandise is counted. The completed merchandise inventory is signed by both 16 
outgoing and incoming licensed managers, accepting the count of merchandise.  All 17 
items not being transferred to the incoming manager must be removed from the facility 18 
prior to the incoming manager taking responsibility for the facility. 19 
 20 
(3)  The BEP will assist the incoming licensed manager in procuring initial merchandise 21 
for sale and will arrange for the licensed manager to obtain a merchandise loan as 22 
necessary and in accordance with agency policy.   23 
 24 
(4)  An equipment inventory is completed and the incoming licensed manager signs the 25 
inventory sheet and assumes responsibility for the equipment. 26 
 27 
(5)  The BEP will assist the incoming licensed manager in filling out any insurance or 28 
retirement enrollment or change forms as necessary. 29 
 30 
(6)  The BEP will verify that workers compensation and liability insurance on the 31 
business enterprise are in effect.  The business enterprise will not be opened by the 32 
new licensed manager until this is verified. 33 
 34 
(7)  The BEP will provide the incoming licensed manager with a copy of the 35 
permit/contract in effect for the business enterprise. 36 
 37 
(8)  The BEP will provide the incoming licensed manager with a supply of the forms 38 
required by the SLA relative to the business enterprise operation. 39 
 40 
(9)  The incoming licensed manager must read and sign a licensed manager’s 41 
agreement before assuming the operation of any business enterprise.  If needed, BEP 42 
staff will read the agreement to the manager and/or provide the agreement in the 43 
accessible format required by the manager. 44 

Page 258



612:25-6-21 Business Enterprise Program 
 Business expenses 

612:25-6-21 Business Enterprise Program 
 Business expenses 

612:25-6-21.  Business expenses  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
Business expenses calculated as a flat-rate percentage of gross sales may be deducted 3 

from gross sales on the licensed manager’s monthly report to the SLA.  The percentage of 4 
gross sales which may be reported as a business expense deduction shall be set by the 5 
Business Enterprise ProgramSLA in consultation with the Elected Committee of Licensed 6 
Managers and shall be determined using available historical data and industry standards.  7 
The percentage rate will be reviewed annually to ensure it continues to reflect average 8 
monthly expenditures attributable to standard business expenses. 9 

Page 259



612:25-6-22 Business Enterprise Program 
 Monthly reports 

612:25-6-22 Business Enterprise Program 
 Monthly reports 

612:25-6-22.  Monthly reports  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 

(a)  Content and when due. Licensed managers must submit monthly business 3 
enterprise financial reports to the SLA.  Reports will contain data on gross sales, 4 
merchandise purchases, payroll expense, business expense and other information 5 
determined necessary to reflect business financial status and calculate licensed 6 
manager set-aside, retirement and/or merchandise loan payments.  The monthly reports 7 
shall be for one of the two following time periods: 1) the sixteenth (16th) day of the 8 
previous calendar month to the fifteenth (15th) day of the current calendar month; or 2) 9 
the twenty-first (21st) day of the previous calendar month to the twentieth (20th) day of 10 
the current calendar month.  The licensed manager may choose either period, but must 11 
notify the business consultant which option is chosen by September 30th of each year.  12 
The licensed manager shall use the same option throughout the federal fiscal year.  13 
Monthly reports are due in the BEP office on or before the 25th of the current calendar 14 
month. If the 25th falls on a weekend, the monthly report is due in the BEP office no later 15 
than the close of business on the last business day prior to the 25th.  Monthly reports 16 
may be mailed to the BEP office.  To be considered on time, they must be postmarked 17 
by the 21st of the month for regular mail or the 22nd for overnight mail.  If these dates fall 18 
on a day where the post office is closed, they must be postmarked the day before.  The 19 
BEP shall notify the manager by phone on the first business day following the 25th if the 20 
report is not received. The BEP will review each monthly report for mathematical errors, 21 
correct loan payment, correct set-aside payment, approved business expenses, and 22 
other factors that will affect the accuracy of the report. The business consultant will sign 23 
the report indicating that the report is correct, correct payments are attached (if 24 
required), and all items in question have been discussed with the licensed manager. 25 
 26 
(b)  Failure to file in a timely manner. If the monthly report is not received in the BEP 27 
office within five calendar days after the due date, the licensed manager will be placed 28 
on probation.  If the 1st and second reports are not received by the time the 3rd report is 29 
due, the licensed manager’s agreement will be canceled and the BEP licenses will be 30 
suspended.  Failure to file monthly reports in a timely manner three or more times within 31 
any twelve month period will result in formal disciplinary action. 32 

 33 
(c)  Fee for reports. The Agency maintains records for its use and may charge a 34 
reasonable fee to supply copies of records to individuals. The agency will supply copies 35 
of lost reports or other documents at 25 cents per page. 36 

Page 260



DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

 
DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

 1 
DRS: 1-13-1.  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 2 
 3 
(a)  Sexual Harassment.  The Department of Rehabilitation Services [DRS] explicitly 4 
prohibits sexual harassment of employees. Sexual harassment is unlawful and may 5 
subject those who engage in it to DRS formal discipline as well as civil and criminal 6 
penalties. 7 
 8 
(b)  Definition of Sexual Harassment.  Sexual harassment shall be defined as 9 
unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical 10 
conduct of a sexual nature in the following context: 11 
 12 

(1)  when submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 13 
condition of an individual's employment, or 14 
 15 
(2)  when submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the 16 
basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or 17 
 18 
(3)  when such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 19 
individual's work or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working 20 
environment. 21 
 22 

(c)  Criminal Action.  When criminal action is pursued in addition to an administrative 23 
grievance under this policy, the Director shall designate a DRS representative, typically 24 
the Civil Rights Administrator or Agency Attorney, to coordinate investigative actions 25 
with local law enforcement authorities to ensure that criminal prosecution is not 26 
jeopardized. The Civil Rights Administrator/Affirmative Action Officer or designated 27 
representative may defer administrative investigation at the request of DRS or local law 28 
enforcement authorities pending completion of a criminal investigation. 29 
 30 
(c)  Examples of Prohibited Conduct.  Conduct prohibited by this policy may include, 31 
but is not limited to: 32 
 33 

(1)  Unwelcome sexual flirtation, advances or propositions for sexual activity. 34 
 35 
(2)  Continued or repeated verbal abuse of a sexual nature, such as suggestive 36 
comments and sexually explicit jokes. 37 
 38 
(3)  Sexually degrading language to describe an individual. 39 
 40 
(4) Remarks of a sexual nature to describe a person’s body or clothing. 41 
 42 
(5)  Display of sexually demeaning objects and pictures. 43 
 44 
(6)  Offensive physical contact, such an unwelcome touching, pinching, brushing 45 
the body. 46 

Page 261



DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

 
DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

 47 
(7) Coerced sexual intercourse. 48 
 49 
(8) Sexual assault. 50 
 51 
(9) Rape, date or acquaintance rape, or other sex offenses, forcible or non-forcible. 52 
 53 
(10) Actions indicating that benefits will be gained or lost based on responses to 54 
sexual advances. 55 
 56 

 57 
(d)  Supervisors and Co-workers.  Since some employees of DRS hold positions of 58 
authority that may involve the legitimate exercise of power over others, it is their 59 
responsibility to be sensitive to that power.  Supervisors in particular, in their 60 
relationships with subordinates, need to be aware of potential conflicts of interest and 61 
the possible compromise of their evaluative capacity. Because there is an inherent 62 
power difference in these relationships, the potential exists for the less powerful person 63 
to perceive a coercive element in suggestions regarding activities outside those 64 
appropriate to the professional relationship. It is the responsibility of employees to 65 
behave in such a manner that their words or actions cannot reasonably be perceived as 66 
sexually coercive, abusive, or exploitive. Sexual harassment also can involve 67 
relationships among equals as when repeated advances, demeaning verbal behavior, 68 
or offensive physical contact interfere with an individual's ability to work and study 69 
productively.  Sexual harassment can also result from situations where there has been 70 
a romantic relationship between a supervisor and employee, which has ended or when 71 
there is a relationship that creates a third party sexual harassment hostile work 72 
environment. Sexual harassment can also result from situations where there is an 73 
ongoing consensual sexual relationship between a supervisor and an employee. 74 
 75 
(e)  Grievance.  DRS is committed to providing an environment of work free from 76 
sexual harassment and to insuring the accessibility of appropriate grievance procedures 77 
for addressing all complaints regarding sexual harassment. The DRS reserves the right, 78 
however, to deal administratively with sexual harassment issues whenever becoming 79 
aware of their existence.  Records of all complaints shall be transmitted to and 80 
maintained by the Human Resources Department and the Civil Rights 81 
Administrator/Affirmative Action Officer as confidential records. 82 
 83 
DRS encourages victims employees to report instances of sexual assault or other sex 84 
offenses, either forcible or non-forcible. In addition to internal grievance procedures, 85 
victimsemployees are encouraged to file complaints or reports with local law 86 
enforcement agencies by telephoning 911, as soon as possible after the offense occurs 87 
in order to preserve evidence necessary to the proof of criminal offenses. 88 
 89 
In the absence of a formal grievance, DRS reserves the right to investigate and deal 90 
administratively with sexual harassment issues whenever becoming aware of their 91 
existence.  Supervisors who become aware of instances of sexual harassment as 92 

Page 262



DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

 
DRS:1-13-1  Administrative Operations 
  Sexual Harassment/Sexual Assault 

defined in paragraph (c) shall immediately or as soon as reasonably possible report 93 
them to the respective Division Administrator or Chief of Staff who shall consult with 94 
legal counsel and initiate appropriate corrective action. 95 
 96 
(f)  Examples of Prohibited Conduct.  Conduct prohibited by this policy may include, 97 
but is not limited to: 98 
 99 

(1)  Unwelcome sexual flirtation, advances or propositions for sexual activity. 100 
 101 
(2)  Continued or repeated verbal abuse of a sexual nature, such as suggestive 102 
comments and sexually explicit jokes. 103 
 104 
(3)  Sexually degrading language to describe an individual. 105 
 106 
(4)  Remarks of a sexual nature to describe a person's body or clothing. 107 
 108 
(5)  Display of sexually demeaning objects and pictures. 109 
 110 
(6)  Offensive physical contact, such as unwelcome touching, pinching, 111 
brushing the body. 112 
 113 
(7)  Coerced sexual intercourse. 114 
 115 
(8)  Sexual assault. 116 
 117 
(9)  Rape, date or acquaintance rape, or other sex offenses, forcible or non-118 
forcible. 119 
 120 

(10)  Actions indicating that benefits will be gained or lost based on response to 121 
sexual advances. 122 

 123 
(gf)  Retaliation.  Any attempt to penalize or retaliate against a person for filing a 124 
complaint or participating in the investigation of a complaint of sexual harassment will 125 
be treated as a separate and distinct violation of DRS policy. 126 
 127 
(hg)  Discipline.  Appropriate disciplinary action may include a range of actions up to 128 
and including discharge. 129 
 130 
(h)  Criminal Action.  When criminal action is pursued in addition to an administrative 131 
grievance under this policy, the Director shall designate a DRS representative to 132 
coordinate investigative actions with local law enforcement authorities to ensure that 133 
criminal prosecution is not jeopardized.  The designated representative may defer 134 
administrative investigation at the request of DRS or local law enforcement authorities 135 
pending completion of a criminal investigation.  136 

Page 263



DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 
 

 

DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 

DRS:3-3-16.  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe working 1 
conditions or services are temporarily reduced due to hazardous 2 
weather (paid administrative leave)  [AMENDED] 3 

 4 
(a)  If agency offices are closed because of an imminent peril threatening the public health, 5 
safety, or welfare of state employees or the public, or when state services are temporarily 6 
reduced due to hazardous weather conditions, the Appointing Authority shall place 7 
employees who are scheduled to work in the affected work areas on paid administrative 8 
leave or, if applicable, shall assign them to work in another location. During their normal 9 
duty hours, employees on paid administrative leave due to unsafe working conditions are 10 
on stand-by or on-call status. Appointing Authorities may call employees to return to their 11 
normal duties or respond to the demands of the situation as necessary. [74:840-2.20A(A)] 12 
 13 
(b)  Paid administrative leave means leave granted to affected employees if offices of 14 
agencies are closed because of an imminent peril threatening the public health, safety, or 15 
welfare of state employees or the public or when state services are temporarily reduced 16 
due to hazardous weather. Examples of reasons for temporarily closing an office due to 17 
unsafe working conditions are: leaks of toxic fumes in buildings; life threatening damage to 18 
building structures; or emergency operations which would be disrupted by the presence of 19 
the usual work force; or any other condition which poses a significant threat to the safety of 20 
the work force. 21 
 22 
(c)  Paid administrative leave shall be afforded to affected employees only when a state 23 
office is temporarily closed or services are temporarily reduced in accordance with Merit 24 
Rule 530:10-15-71. Upon its reopening, normal Merit Rules governing leave and agency 25 
procedures shall apply.  The granting of administrative leave applies only to employees 26 
scheduled to work during the time period of the closure or reduced services.  It does not 27 
apply to employees who are absent during the closure or reduction on any previously 28 
approved leave.  Temporary employees shall not be granted administrative leave under this 29 
policy when state services are temporarily reduced due to hazardous weather conditions.  30 
However, paid administrative leave shall be granted to temporary employees when agency 31 
offices are closed because of an imminent peril threatening the public health, safety, or 32 
welfare of state employees or the public. 33 
 34 
(d)  When the Governor or his designee, the Commissioner of the Oklahoma Department of 35 
Public Safety, issues an official announcement which authorizes agencies, or parts of 36 
agencies, to maintain only essential services due to hazardous weather conditions, DRS 37 
will implement the provisions of Merit Rule 530:10-15-71, Leave when an office is 38 
temporarily closed due to unsafe working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 39 
due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave).  If the decision is made to authorize 40 
state agencies to maintain only essential services, the Commissioner of the Oklahoma 41 

Page 264



DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 
 

 

DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 

Department of Public Safety will announce the curtailment of state government operations 42 
by notifying the media.  Such information will also be posted on the website: 43 
www.youroklahoma.com.  Because of Oklahoma's unpredictable weather conditions, the 44 
Commissioner of the Oklahoma Department of Public Safety has conditionally limited his 45 
authority to the Oklahoma City metropolitan area, which includes the following seven 46 
counties: Canadian, Cleveland, Lincoln, Logan, McClain, Oklahoma, and Pottawatomie. 47 
Decisions regarding agency operations outside these seven counties are hereby given by 48 
the Commissioner of the Oklahoma Department of Public Safety to Appointing Authorities, 49 
to be made on an individual basis as necessary; however, the Commissioner of the 50 
Oklahoma Department of Public Safety reserves the authority to authorize reductions in 51 
services at any location in the state.  When the Commissioner of the Oklahoma Department 52 
of Public Safety, issues an official announcement which authorizes agencies, or parts of 53 
agencies, within the seven metropolitan counties to maintain only essential services due to 54 
hazardous weather conditions, the message on the DRS Weather Hotline will be updated 55 
with that information.  Agency employees assigned to the offices within these seven 56 
counties, including Disability Determination Division, will be responsible for checking the 57 
DRS Weather Hotline for information regarding offices closures or reduction of services due 58 
to hazardous weather. 59 
 60 
(e)  Essential staff will be designated according to (1) through (5) of this subsection. The 61 
respective Division Administrator or Superintendent will notify those employees who are 62 
responsible for staffing essential functions during hazardous weather conditions.  63 
 64 

(1)  Oklahoma School for the Blind - as directed in writing by the Superintendent. 65 
 66 
(2)  Oklahoma School for the Deaf - as directed in writing by the Superintendent. 67 
 68 
(3)  Disability Determination Division - as directed in writing by the Division 69 
Administrator.  The Disability Determination Division staff in the Tulsa Office will not be 70 
considered as essential unless otherwise notified in writing by the Division Administrator 71 
and the decision regarding office closure during hazardous weather in Tulsa will be 72 
based on the decision made by the federal office building. 73 
 74 
(4)  Within the State Office, the Director is designated as staffing an essential function, 75 
however, the Director or designee may require additional personnel to report to work if 76 
circumstances require.   77 
 78 
(5)  The assigned Programs Manager responsible for the VR/VSVR/VRBVI field offices 79 
outside of the seven counties within the Oklahoma City metropolitan area has been 80 
designated as the individual with the responsibility for determining whether the office(s) 81 
should be closed and/or services reduced due to hazardous weather.  The Programs 82 

Page 265



DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 
 

 

DRS:3-3-16  Management Services Division 
  Leave when an office is temporarily closed due to unsafe 
  working conditions or services are temporarily reduced 
  due to hazardous weather (paid administrative leave) 

Manager will determine if any staff members within their assigned area are essential to 83 
provide basic minimum services during hazardous weather conditions and will notify 84 
those staff members of the designation.  In addition, the Programs Manager will 85 
establish a method to ensure that their staff members are notified of decisions that are 86 
made to authorize offices to reduce services or close during hazardous weather.  In 87 
addition, the Programs Manager will ensure that the telephone message for the main 88 
office telephone number is updated so that callers are aware of the office closure.  If the 89 
Programs Manager position is vacant, the designated Field Coordinator will assume the 90 
responsibility for this determination and ensure that staff members are notified of the 91 
determination. 92 

 93 
(f)  Employees who are considered responsible for maintaining essential services and who 94 
are required to work when state services are temporarily reduced due to hazardous 95 
weather conditions shall be entitled to accrue administrative leave on a straight-time basis 96 
for all hours worked during such reduction.  Such leave must be taken within 180 days of its 97 
accrual or the employee shall be paid for the leave.  An extension of the time period for 98 
taking the leave may be approved for up to an additional 180 days, provided the Appointing 99 
Authority submits a written request with sufficient justification to Human Capital 100 
Management. 101 
 102 
(g)  Employees who are responsible for maintaining essential services who do not report to 103 
work during hazardous weather have the following options to request time off and account 104 
for the absence.   105 
 106 

(1)  Charge the absence to accumulated compensatory time; 107 
 108 
(2)  Charge the absence to accumulated annual leave; 109 
 110 
(3)  Make up lost time during the workweek in which the time was lost in a manner 111 
consistent with the FLSA, if the Division Administrator or Superintendent determines 112 
that office hours and schedules permit. 113 
 114 
(4)  More than one option may be exercised to account for the absence, but if the 115 
absence cannot be accounted for by exercising the options in (1) through (3), Leave of 116 
Absence without Pay will be utilized. 117 

Page 266



DRS:-3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Criminal Background Check 
 

 

DRS:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Criminal Background Check 

DRS:3-3-20.  DRS Criminal Background Check  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Purpose: DRS has determined that conducting criminal background checks through 3 
the Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation (OSBI) as part of the employee selection 4 
process will provide a mechanism to enhance safety and security for DRS clients, 5 
employees and state property. 6 
 7 
(b)  Application:  This section shall apply to all DRS hires except those by the Oklahoma 8 
School for the Blind and the Oklahoma School for the Deaf.  The schools shall conduct 9 
criminal background checks pursuant to O.A.C. 612:20-3-39. 10 
 11 
(c)  Authority:  DRS is authorized to conduct criminal background searches on new hires 12 
pursuant to 74 O.S. § 166.12 and O.A.C. 612:3-3-20(e)(3).   13 
 14 
(d)  Mandate: Criminal background checks shall be conducted for all new hires to DRS 15 
effective January 1, 2012. 16 
 17 
(e)  Procedure:  Criminal background checks shall be conducted in the following manner: 18 
 19 

(1)  Notice:  All announcements for employment with DRS shall include a notice that 20 
the applicant selected shall be required to consent to a criminal background check and 21 
that the offer of employment shall be conditioned upon a review of the check’s outcome 22 
by DRS.  A written consent form approved by DRS legal counsel shall be presented to  23 
an applicant selected for employment. 24 
 25 
(2)  Request for criminal background check:  After an applicant has been selected 26 
for employment, the DRS Division making the hire (Hiring Division) shall provide the 27 
signed consent form along with the information required by OSBI to the HR Programs 28 
Manager for Personnel and Benefits of the DRS Human Resources Unit.  Upon receipt 29 
of the applicant’s signed consent form along with the name and social security number 30 
from the Hiring Division, the DRS Human Resources Unit shall request a criminal 31 
background check, including a check of the Oklahoma Sex Offender Registry and the 32 
Oklahoma Violent Crime Offender Registry of the applicant by OSBI.   33 
 34 
(3)  Disqualifying Offenses:  If the report from OSBI indicates that a criminal history 35 
exists for the applicant, the HR Programs Manager for Personnel and Benefits of the 36 
DRS Human Resources Unit shall determine if the report indicates a disqualifying 37 
criminal offense.  The criminal offenses which disqualify an applicant from DRS 38 
employment are those that fall under the following categories: murder; manslaughter; 39 
rape; aggravated assault and battery; and any crime involving physical abuse of a 40 
family member.   41 
 42 
(4)  Hiring Review Committee:  Upon receipt of an OSBI report which indicates a 43 
criminal history but does not indicate the presence of a disqualifying offense, the HR 44 
Programs Manager for Personnel and Benefits of the DRS Human Resources Unit shall 45 

Page 267



DRS:-3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Criminal Background Check 
 

 

DRS:3-3-20  Management Services Division 
  Criminal Background Check 

notify the members of the DRS Hiring Review Committee.  The Hiring Review 46 
Committee shall consist of HR Programs Manager for Personnel and Benefits of the 47 
DRS Human Resources Unit and the DRS Division Administrators or designees.  If 48 
either the Vocational Rehabilitation or Visual ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the 49 
Blind & Visually Impaired Division is not the Hiring Division, those divisions may be 50 
represented by only one administrator or designee.  The notice to the Hiring Review 51 
Committee shall include a copy of the OSBI report. 52 
 53 
(5)  Review:  Each member of the Hiring Review Committee shall review the applicant’s 54 
criminal history and make a recommendation to the representative from the Hiring 55 
Division as to suitability for employment.  Factors to be considered in the review shall 56 
include the following:  57 
 58 

(A)  the nature and gravity of the offense(s); 59 
 60 
(B)  the time that has passed since the conviction and/or completion of the sentence; 61 
and 62 
 63 
(C)  the nature of the job sought.   64 
 65 

The Hiring Review Committee may communicate with the applicant to seek clarification 66 
or further information regarding matters contained in the report.  This communication 67 
may consist of a telephone call by the Hiring Division member, a teleconference or an 68 
in-person meeting.  If a teleconference or in-person meeting is scheduled, at least three 69 
members of the Hiring Review Committee shall participate.  After recommendations 70 
have been received from all members of the Hiring Review Committee, the 71 
Administrator of the Hiring Division shall submit a final recommendation to the DRS 72 
Director regarding  the final  hiring decision.  After the Director has received the Hiring 73 
Division Administrator’s recommendation, the Director shall make the final decision.  74 
After the Director’s decision to hire or not hire and before the offer of employment is 75 
made, the recommendations and the decision shall be submitted to DRS legal counsel 76 
for review.  The purpose of the review by legal counsel shall be to advise the Director as 77 
to the fairness and consistency of the process with regard to other similar applicants.   78 

Page 268



DRS:3-3-95  Management Services Division 
  Types of grievances 

 
DRS:3-3-95  Management Services Division 
  Types of grievances 

 1 
DRS: 3-3-95.  Types of grievances 2 

 3 
(a)  Promotion.  An employee who feels that he or she has not been treated fairly with 4 
regard to a promotional action has the right to file a formal grievance.  The Merit 5 
Protection Commission will accept an appeal regarding a promotional action only after 6 
such complaint has been reviewed in the formal grievance procedure. 7 

 8 
(b)  Classification.  An employee who believes he or she is not classified in 9 
accordance with the work assigned on a regular and consistent basis as an integral part 10 
of his or her work assignment and job family descriptor has the right to file a formal 11 
grievance.  An employee who believes he or she is entitled to compensation for having 12 
performed duties on a regular and consistent basis which do not conform to the job 13 
family descriptor for the position he or she occupies or occupied has the right to file a 14 
formal grievance. For additional information regarding classification grievances, refer to 15 
Section DRS:3-3-98 (b) of these procedures and Merit Rule 455:10-19-35 (c).   16 

 17 
(c)  Discipline.  An employee who has reason to believe that any discipline imposed 18 
was not uniform, appropriate or in compliance with the agency progressive discipline 19 
policy has the right to file a formal grievance.  Except for a suspension without pay, 20 
involuntary demotion or discharge, the Merit Protection Commission will accept appeals 21 
concerning discipline only after such complaint has been reviewed in the formal 22 
grievance procedure. 23 

 24 
(d)  Leave.  An employee who feels he or she has not been treated fairly with regard to 25 
annual, sick or any other leave accrual, accumulation, use or eligibility, including leave 26 
without pay and leave sharing has the right to file a formal grievance.  The Merit 27 
Protection Commission will accept an appeal regarding leave issues only after such 28 
complaint has been reviewed in the formal grievance procedure.   29 

 30 
(e)  Employee Performance Management Process (PMP) Appraisal.  An employee 31 
who disagrees with his or her individual performance rating has the right to file a formal 32 
grievance.  The Merit Protection Commission will accept, for alternative dispute 33 
resolution only, a complaint involving disagreement with the individual performance 34 
rating only after such complaint has been reviewed in the formal grievance procedure.  35 
The Commission will accept an appeal of alleged violations of the Oklahoma Personnel 36 
Act or Merit Rules in regard to the employee performance rating system only after such 37 
complaint has been reviewed in the formal grievance procedure.  Alleged violations of 38 
Title 74 O.S. Section 840-2.5 and Section 840-2.9 in regard to the employee 39 
performance rating system may be appealed directly to the Commission. 40 

- 41 
(f)  Discrimination.  Complaints of illegal discrimination, including sexual harassment, 42 
are subject to the grievance process and are filed with the designated agency grievance 43 
manager/assistant grievance manager and assigned to the Civil Rights Administrator 44 
within seven (7) calendar days and are handled in accordance with the special 45 
procedures outlined in DRS:3-3-101.  A complaint of discrimination must describe an 46 

Page 269



DRS:3-3-95  Management Services Division 
  Types of grievances 

 
DRS:3-3-95  Management Services Division 
  Types of grievances 

adverse employment condition or action which the employee believes occurred, or was 47 
directed at him or her, due to the employee's political or religious opinions or affiliations, 48 
race, creed, gender (including sexual harassment), color, age (over 40), national origin 49 
or disability.  Grievances which allege retaliation for any previous discrimination 50 
complaint filed will also be processed as a complaint of discrimination.  Any employee 51 
filing a grievance alleging a complaint of discrimination must indicate on the Internal 52 
Agency Grievance Resolution Form, MPC Form 900, the basis under which the 53 
complaint is being filed.  Complaints which fail to properly identify one of the above 54 
listed reasons as the basis of any complaint of discrimination will be processed the 55 
same as grievances which do not allege discrimination.  Time frames for resolving 56 
complaints of discrimination will adhere to those time frames set by merit rule and this 57 
procedure. 58 

 59 
(g)  Pay movement mechanisms and other compensation issues.  Any employee 60 
who feels that a violation of law, rule, policy or practice has occurred with regard to pay 61 
movement mechanisms or other compensation issues has the right to file a formal 62 
grievance.  The Merit Protection Commission will accept an appeal regarding pay 63 
movement mechanisms and other compensation issues only after such complaint has 64 
been reviewed in the formal grievance procedure. 65 

Page 270



DRS:3-3-101  Management Services Division 
  Discrimination and harassment complaint  
  policy and procedure 

 1 

DRS:3-3-101.  Discrimination and harassment complaint policy and procedure 2 

(a)  The purpose of this Section is to define discrimination and harassment and to 3 

establish a procedure to be used when handling grievances charging discrimination 4 

or harassment. The Department of Rehabilitation Services does not tolerate 5 

discrimination or harassment of employees. If subjected to such conduct, employees 6 

are encouraged to use the Discrimination and Harassment Complaint and Grievance 7 

Resolution Procedure (DHCGRP), contained in this section, to reach resolution. No 8 

employee will be disciplined or retaliated against for filing a grievance in accordance 9 

with these procedures. 10 

 11 

(b)  Respect for the rights of all and for the differences among people of diverse 12 

characteristics and backgrounds is a guiding principle of the DRS. Discrimination or 13 

harassment of staff members or clients because of race, religion, sex, national 14 

origin, age or disability, has no place in the DRS work force. Such practices violate 15 

both the law and the ideals of the DRS. Incidents which constitute actual or apparent 16 

discrimination or harassment can sometimes be the result of inadequate 17 

communication or insensitivity and can be quite unintentional. In such cases, simple 18 

honest discussion among the individuals involved may be the best way to resolve 19 

the matter. In other cases, communication may have broken down, the intent may 20 

have been malicious, or may involve a violation of DRS policy, State and/or Federal 21 

Law. In such instances, alleged violations can be handled through the Discrimination 22 

and Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedure. 23 

 24 

(c)  Employees who believe they have been subjected to discrimination or sexual 25 

harassment are encouraged to utilize the DRS Discrimination and Sexual 26 

Harassment Complaint Procedure for resolution of their concerns. The use of this 27 

procedure does not, however, prohibit an employee from filing a complaint with the 28 

Human Rights CommissionOffice of Civil Rights Enforcement, Federal Equal 29 

Employment Opportunity Commission and/or the Merit Protection Commission. The 30 

filing of a complaint through this process does not constitute filing a complaint or 31 

appeal with any of the above-referenced agencies. The rights, feelings and 32 

perceptions of all staff in the work unit must be respected. Concerns about 33 

conditions that affect one's work performance should be addressed through normal 34 

supervisory and administrative channels, whenever possible. The Discrimination and 35 

Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedure attempts to balance the rights of all 36 

parties, while ensuring the right of each employee to work in a setting free of 37 

discrimination and harassment. 38 

 39 

(d)  For purposes of this Section, discrimination shall be defined as any violation of 40 

applicable state and/or federal civil rights laws or any violation of DRS Policy or 41 

procedure in which an employee's race, sex, national origin, religion, age and/or 42 

disability is the basis for an employment decision. 43 

 44 

Page 271



DRS:3-3-101  Management Services Division 
  Discrimination and harassment complaint  
  policy and procedure 

(e)  Sexual harassment is defined as repeated or unwelcome sexual advances, 45 

requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature 46 

when: 47 

(1)  submission to such conduct is made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term or 48 

condition of an individual's employment; 49 

 50 

(2)  submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis 51 

for employment decisions; or 52 

 53 

(3)  such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 54 

individual's work performance (may include mutually agreeable conduct between 55 

parties if the activity results in adverse working conditions for uninvolved co-56 

workers or subordinates). 57 

 58 

(f)  Sexual harassment is a serious form of discrimination which can take various 59 

forms, such as inappropriate remarks, comments, gestures, overtures or physical 60 

contact. In addition to being contrary to DRS Policy, sexual harassment is a violation 61 

of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. The Federal Equal Employment 62 

Opportunity Commission has issued a regulation (29 CFR 1604) elaborating on the 63 

types of conduct that constitute sexual harassment. This regulation states, "With 64 

respect to conduct between fellow employees, an employer is responsible for acts of 65 

sexual harassment in the work place where the employer (or its agents or 66 

supervisory employees) knows or should have known of the conduct, unless it can 67 

show that it took immediate and appropriate corrective action...prevention is the best 68 

tool for the elimination of sexual harassment. An employer should take all steps 69 

necessary to prevent sexual harassment from occurring, such as affirmatively raising 70 

the subject, expressing strong disapproval, developing appropriate sanctions, 71 

informing employees of their right to raise and how to raise the issue of harassment 72 

under Title VII, and developing methods to sensitize all concerned." 73 

 74 

(g)  Pursuant to MPC Merit Rule 430:10-19-35, this Subsection sets forth the 75 

necessary steps and time frames a DRS employee must utilize in order to resolve 76 

work related disputes involving an allegation of discrimination and/or sexual 77 

harassment. There are three levels in the grievance process when it involves an 78 

allegation of discrimination and/or sexual harassment. These levels are the informal 79 

discussion, the formal grievance, and the final resolution. The necessary steps and 80 

time frames for resolving work related disputes involving an allegation of 81 

discrimination and/or sexual harassment are presented in (1) through (5) of this 82 

Subsection. 83 

 84 

(1)  Informal discussion. An employee with a work related dispute involving 85 

allegations of discrimination or sexual harassment is required to speak to his/her 86 

immediate supervisor, except in instances where the immediate supervisor is 87 

alleged to be a party to the discriminatory or sexual harassing act. In situations 88 

where the immediate supervisor is accused of discrimination or sexual 89 

Page 272



DRS:3-3-101  Management Services Division 
  Discrimination and harassment complaint  
  policy and procedure 

harassment, the employee is required and must speak with either the Grievance 90 

Manager, Civil Rights Administrator or any other supervisor. Once any of the 91 

above-named officials are apprised of allegations of discrimination or sexual 92 

harassment, said official must initiate appropriate corrective action. 93 

 94 

(2)  Filing period. If an employee cannot resolve the alleged discriminatory issue 95 

during counseling with any of the officials named in (1) of this Subsection, a 96 

formal grievance may be filed: 97 

 98 

(A)  within twenty (20) calendar days of the date of the act or incident; or 99 

 100 

(B)  within twenty (20) calendar days of the date the employee becomes 101 

aware of or, with reasonable effort, should have become aware of the 102 

grievable issue. [See MPC Rule 455:10-19-42] 103 

 104 

(3)  Filing a formal grievance. Once the employee has completed the MPC 105 

Internal Agency Grievance Resolution form, he/she must give the form and all 106 

written documentation, such as witness statements, to the Grievance Manager. 107 

The employee should not submit documents he/she wants returned. The 108 

Grievance Manager is assigned the responsibility of coordinating complaints 109 

alleging discrimination. Upon receipt of discrimination complaints, the Grievance 110 

Manager will refer them to the DRS Civil Rights AdministratorDirector or 111 

designee within seven three (73) business days. Pursuant to MPC Rule 455:10-112 

9-44, the formal grievance must be resolved (including any investigation and the 113 

issuance of the final resolution letter) within forty-five (45) days from the filing of 114 

the grievance.  This period may be extended up to fifteen (15) days for good 115 

cause.  The grieving employee and DRS may agree to extend up to an additional 116 

thirty (30) days for good cause.  The agreement must be in writing and include 117 

the reason for the extension.  In no case shall the resolution time exceed ninety 118 

(90) days.  119 

 120 

(4)  Civil Rights Administrator's investigation Investigation. The second level 121 

Decision Maker in grievances involving alleged discrimination is the DRS Civil 122 

Rights Administrator or his/her designee.  Upon receipt of a discrimination 123 

grievance, the Civil Rights AdministratorDirector or designee shall refer it for an 124 

independent investigationinvestigate the complaint. The Civil Rights 125 

Administrator or designee investigator is empowered to gather information 126 

pertaining to the complaint and interview parties involved. In complaints involving 127 

alleged sexual harassment, the Complainantgrievant may request to initially 128 

interview with a member of the same sex, as designated by the Civil Rights 129 

AdministratorDirector. The investigation shall be completed within twenty (20) 130 

calendar days of receipt of the grievance, at which time the Civil Rights 131 

Administrator or designee will issue a written report. 132 

 133 

Page 273



DRS:3-3-101  Management Services Division 
  Discrimination and harassment complaint  
  policy and procedure 

(5)  Final resolution. The discrimination and sexual harassment complaint 134 

procedure will end when the Director receives the Civil Rights 135 

Administrator'sinvestigation report and issues a letter containing DRS's final 136 

resolution to the Grievant. The Director will issue a final decision letter within 137 

fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Civil Rights Administrator's report. Copies will 138 

be provided to the Grievance Manager and the individual responsible for 139 

committing the alleged discriminating act. 140 

Page 274



DRS:3-3-110  Management Services Division 
  Risk Management Programs Purpose and Scope 
 

 

DRS:3-3-110  Management Services Division 
  Risk Management Programs Purpose and Scope 

DRS:3-3-110.  Risk Management Programs Purpose and Scope [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
 The purpose of this section is to provide direction and guidance to employees and 3 
other affected entities in the application or management of risk management matters 4 
according to pertinent laws, rules and or policy.  The Risk Management Programs 5 
include policies and procedures regarding emergency evacuations, safety and violence 6 
free workplace.  The DRS Risk Manager is the authorized DRS contact person for all 7 
matters pertaining to risk management.  This authorization includes the School for the 8 
Deaf, the School for the Blind, the Disability Determination, Visual ServicesVocational 9 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired, Vocational Rehabilitation, Executive, 10 
and Management Services divisions.  All risk management matters shall be referred to 11 
the DRS Risk Manager for coordination of tasks and responsibilities, and for 12 
communication both within DRS and with other agencies and entities.  13 

Page 275



DRS:3-3-112  Management Services Division 
  Disaster Response and Recovery 
 

 

DRS:3-3-112  Management Services Division 
  Disaster Response and Recovery 
 

DRS:3-3-112.  Disaster Response and Recovery  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Procedures.  This section establishes policies and procedures for responding to 3 
situations where the severity and extent of an emergency incident exceeds the more 4 
common types of emergencies that are addressed in DRS:3-3-111, Emergency Evacuation 5 
Plans.  This Section of policy is to be utilized in conjunction with DRS:3-3-111.  The types 6 
of incidents referred to here are those that are most likely to result in significant personal 7 
injury or loss of life, significant damage to or loss of property, and or significant interruption 8 
or cessation of DRS services.  In most cases, the procedures in DRS:3-3-111 will already 9 
have been initiated and will progress to the level of emergencies covered in this section.   10 
 11 
(b)  Requirements of the Oklahoma Department of Civil Emergency Management .  12 
The Oklahoma Department of Civil Emergency Management (CEM) requires certain 13 
positions to be established for emergency and disaster situations.  The required positions 14 
are Emergency Managers, Emergency Coordinators and Alternate Emergency 15 
Coordinators.  The primary function of an Emergency Manager is to provide direction to 16 
staff in incidents of severe emergencies.  The primary function of an Emergency 17 
Coordinator is to implement those directives.  Alternate Emergency Coordinators will 18 
assume the primary role in the absence of the primary Emergency Coordinator. 19 
 20 

(1)  DRS Designation of Required Positions.  For purposes of meeting CEM 21 
requirements, DRS positions designated as Emergency Managers include:  22 
 23 

(A)  the Deputy Director for the State Office;  24 
 25 
(B)  the Superintendents at the Special Schools; and 26 
 27 
(C)  the Division Administrators for the Disability Determination, Vocational 28 
Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually 29 
Impaired Divisions.  30 

 31 
(2)  Emergency Managers.  Also acting in the capacity of Emergency Managers, the 32 
following positions have discretionary authority to make necessary immediate 33 
decisions during disaster emergencies:  34 
 35 

(A)  The Programs Managers at Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services 36 
Vocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired office locations and 37 
facilities;  38 

 39 
(B)  the Programs Manager at the Library for the Blind and Physically 40 
Handicapped; and 41 
 42 
(C)   persons designated by the Administrator at the Disability Determination 43 
Division and the Superintendents at the Special Schools to make necessary 44 
immediate decisions in their absence. 45 

Page 276



DRS:3-3-112  Management Services Division 
  Disaster Response and Recovery 
 

 

DRS:3-3-112  Management Services Division 
  Disaster Response and Recovery 
 

 46 
(D)  However, as soon as the need for immediate decisions ends, these individuals 47 
will report to the Division Administrator or Superintendent what actions have been 48 
taken and will coordinate any remaining decisions with the Division Administrator 49 
or Superintendent.  50 
 51 

(3)  Emergency Coordinators and Alternate Emergency Coordinators. Emergency 52 
Coordinators and Alternate Emergency Coordinators under this section will be the 53 
same individuals who have emergency responsibilities under the Emergency 54 
Evacuation Plan established in accordance with DRS:3-3-111.  When an Emergency 55 
Coordinator position becomes vacant, the Alternate Emergency Coordinator will 56 
assume the primary responsibilities until a replacement Emergency Coordinator is 57 
named which should occur within 3-5 working days.  When an Alternate Emergency 58 
Coordinator position becomes vacant, a replacement Alternate Emergency Coordinator 59 
should be named within 3-5 working days.  60 
 61 
(4)  CEM requirements.  As required by CEM, all Emergency Coordinators should 62 
maintain on their desk in a readily accessible place, a copy of the CEM Emergency 63 
Standard Operating Procedures for State Departments, Agencies, Offices and 64 
Employees (CEM Plan).  Also as required, all DRS Employees should be provided with 65 
a DRS Emergency/Disaster Personal Procedures Card.  66 
 67 
(5)  Supervisors.  Supervisors are responsible to ensure that employees are trained in 68 
the policies and procedures contained in the CEM Plan upon full implementation of the 69 
CEM Plan and within two (2) weeks of entry on duty for new employees. 70 
 71 

(c)  DRS Disaster Management Team 72 
 73 
(1)  DRS staff in executive level positions will serve as members of the DRS Disaster 74 
Management Team.  The DRS Disaster Management Team will include the Director, 75 
Deputy Director, Public Information Administrator, appropriate Division Administrators 76 
or Superintendents at the Special Schools, the Human Resources Administrator, the 77 
Human Resources Programs Director, the DRS Risk Manager and the DRS Property 78 
Manager.  The Chief Financial Officer and other necessary staff will be included 79 
depending on the nature of the crisis or need.  80 

 81 
(2)  The DRS Disaster Management Team will manage crisis situations that result from 82 
emergency or disaster incidents involving DRS employees, visitors or property.  The 83 
DRS Disaster Management Team will make decisions regarding issues including, 84 
communication to the public, employees and clients, return to service, personnel 85 
matters, equipment and property repairs and or replacement, etc. 86 

Page 277



DRS:3-9-8  Management Services Division 
  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation and 
 Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the 
  Blind & Visually Impaired Division’s Clients 
 

 

DRS:3-9-8  Management Services Division 
  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation and 
 Visual Services Vocational Rehabilitation for the 
  Blind & Visually Impaired Division’s Clients 

DRS:3-9-8.  Purchases for Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual Services Vocational 1 
Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired Divisions’ Clients  2 
[AMENDED] 3 

 4 
(a)  Purchases for the acquisition of goods and services.  The purchase of goods and 5 
services, except as outlined in (b) of this section, are not required to be submitted to the 6 
Contracts and/or Purchasing Section.  These types of purchases are exempt under Title 7 
74, Section 85.7, paragraph 12 of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act and are processed 8 
at the VR and VS VRBVI field office level by rehabilitation professionals in accordance with 9 
procedures covered in OAC 612:10-1-7.  If, in the judgment of the responsible rehabilitation 10 
professional, the best interests of the client and/or the agency would be served by having 11 
the Contracts and/or Purchasing Section handle the procurement, a DRS requisition form 12 
may be submitted to the Purchasing or Contracts Section.   13 
 14 
(b) Purchases for special equipment for motor vehicles and home modifications.  15 
The purchase of special equipment for motor vehicles and home modifications projected to 16 
cost more than $5,000.00 are required to be submitted to the Purchasing Section for 17 
processing.  The rehabilitation professional shall also provide the Purchasing Section a 18 
copy of the evaluation report as required in OAC 612:10-7-220 (b) (F) for vehicle 19 
modifications and OAC 612:10-7-221 for home modifications.   20 

Page 278



DRS:-3-9-80  Management Services Division 
  Fleet management 
 

 

DRS:-3-9-80  Management Services Division 
  Fleet management 

DRS:3-9-80.  Fleet management  [AMENDED] 1 
 2 
(a)  Fleet Manager.  The responsibilities of the Materiel Management Section in managing 3 
the Agency's vehicle fleet are: 4 

 5 
(1)  liaison between the Agency and the Division of Capital Assets Management Fleet 6 
Management Division; 7 
 8 
(2)  ensuring compliance with state statutes, Executive orders, and any other 9 
regulations regarding vehicles; 10 
 11 
(3)  maintaining compliance of DRS fleet management policies and procedures; 12 
 13 
(4)  maintaining an accurate inventory of all vehicles within the Agency; 14 
 15 
(5)  coordinating the purchase of all vehicles with the DCAM Fleet Management 16 
Division and DRS Purchasing Section; 17 
 18 
(6)  coordinating the disposal of all vehicles with the DCAM Fleet Management 19 
Division; 20 
 21 
(7)  coordinating any/all vehicle requests with the DCAM Motor Pool Division; 22 
 23 
(8)  monitoring the Agency's vehicle Risk Management Program; and 24 
 25 
(9)  monitoring Pike Pass use, fuel consumption, and vehicle operating and 26 
repair/maintenance records for the Agency's vehicle fleet. 27 
 28 

(b)  Agency owned vehicles.  The Fleet Manager coordinates with the DCAM Fleet 29 
Management Division all reports pertaining to DRS vehicles. 30 
 31 
(c)  Vehicle Operator's License.  All employees operating a state owned vehicle or a 32 
privately owned vehicle for official state business, shall have a valid vehicle operator's 33 
license. 34 
 35 
(d)  Safety Belts.  All persons operating or riding in a vehicle while on state business are 36 
required to wear safety belts. 37 
 38 
(e)  Fuel management.  The Division of Capital Assets Management may annually establish 39 
statewide contracts for the purchase of vehicle fuel.  The Fleet Manager is responsible for 40 
compiling the Agency's annual projected cost for regular unleaded gasoline; No. 2 diesel; 41 
miscellaneous vehicle maintenance (including accessories, repair, and inspection); bulk 42 
purchases (including antifreeze, oil, and fuel card fees); and fuel management reports and 43 
summaries.  The Fleet Manager shall monitor fuel consumption, and vehicle operating and 44 
repair/maintenance cost of the Agency's vehicle fleet.  The Fleet Manager is also required 45 

Page 279



DRS:-3-9-80  Management Services Division 
  Fleet management 
 

 

DRS:-3-9-80  Management Services Division 
  Fleet management 

to provide the State Motor Pool a monthly report on Agency vehicle fuel consumption and 46 
repair/maintenance costs.  The fleet manager also initiates a requisition to purchase the 47 
items listed above from the statewide contract. 48 
 49 
(f)  Pike Pass.  Pike passes may be assigned to a division administrator, school 50 
superintendent, or his/her representative for issue to assigned employees on an as needed 51 
basis.  Requests for Pike Passes shall be submitted to the MMS Fleet Manager.   52 
 53 
(g)  Transportation of non-State employees in state owned vehicles.  When transportation 54 
of individuals who are not employees of the State of Oklahoma is necessary to conduct 55 
state business, those individuals may be transported in state vehicles under the following 56 
circumstances: 57 
 58 

(1)  approval must be obtained in advance by one of the following: 59 
(A)  Program Managers in the Divisions of Vocational Rehabilitation and Visual 60 
ServicesVocational Rehabilitation for the Blind & Visually Impaired, 61 
(B)  Superintendents at the Oklahoma School for the Blind and the Oklahoma 62 
School for the Deaf 63 
(C)  the Division Administrator or Deputy Administrator for the Disability 64 
Determination Division 65 
(D)  Executive and Unit Administrators for the Executive and Management 66 
Services Divisions. 67 

 68 
(2)  only state employees or officials are authorized to drive state vehicles. 69 
 70 
(3)  non-employee passengers are advised that there is no liability coverage for non-71 
employees. 72 

Page 280


	01 A  Commission for Rehabiliation SO cover page 03 09 2015
	01 B March Agenda 03 09 2015
	06 A  Director's Report Cover Page 03 09 2015
	06 B  Directors Report 03 09 2915
	06 C WIOA Update 03 09 2015
	06 D Governor's  Executive Order Hiring Freeze 03 09 2015
	06 E RSA 911 Approval letter 03 09 2015
	06 F 410 activity report for January 2015 03 09 2015
	06 G National LEAD Center posted Paula Burkes 03 09 2015
	07 A  Financial Status Report cvr pg 03 09 2015
	07 B January 2015 FSR Summary 03 09 2015
	08 A  Personnel Activity Report cvr pg 03 09 2015
	08 B Personnel Activity Report 03 09 2015
	09 A Legislative Report Cover Page 03 09 2015
	09 B Legislative Report 03 09 2015
	09 C Watch list 2-25-15 March 09 2015
	10 A OSB Superintedent Report cvr pg 03 09 2015
	10 B OSB Supt Report 03 09 2015
	11 A  United We Ride Report cvr pg 03 09 2015
	11 B United We Ride Report 03 09 2015
	12 A  HRD Report cvr pg 03 09 2015
	12 B DRS HRD Report 03 09 15
	13 A VS Div Adm Report Cover Page 03 09 2015
	13 B VS Adm Report 03 09 2015
	14 A VR Adm Office Security Update Cover Page 03 09 2015
	14 B VR Div Adm Report Security update 03 09 2015
	15 A  Commission Minutes Cvr pg 03 09 2015
	15 B February Minutes 03 09 2015
	16 A OSB  Cover page 03 09 2015
	16 B OSB Executive Summary 03 09 2015
	16 C OSB Donation Report 03 09 2015
	16 D OSB Donation Resolution 03 09 2015
	17 A OSD Donation Report Cover page 03 09 2015
	17 B OSD Executive Summary 03 09 2015
	17 C OSD Donation Rpt 03 09 2015
	17 D OSD Donation Resolution 03 09 2015
	18 A Policy Changes 03 09 2015
	18 B Resolution Policy Approval 03 09 2015
	18 C Policy Executive Summary Commission 03 09 2015
	18 D OK BEP approval letter 03 09 2015
	18 E  612-1-1-6
	18 F 612-1-3-2
	18 G 612-1-3-2. 1
	18 H 612-1-3-8.1
	18 I 612-1-3-10
	18 J 612-1-5-1
	18 K 612-1-5-3
	18 L 612-1-11-2
	18 M 612-1-11-15
	18 N 612-1-11-16
	18 O 612-1-11-57
	18 P 612-1-13-3
	18 Q 612-1-13-4
	18 R 612-1-13-5
	18 S 612-1-13-6
	18 T 612-1-13-7
	18 U 612-1-13-9
	18 V 612-3-3-20
	18 W 612-3-5-30
	18 X 612-3-5-31
	18 Y 612-10-1-1
	18 Z 612-10-1-2
	19 A 612-10-1-3
	19 B 612-10-1-3.1
	19 C 612-10-1-3.2
	19 D 612-10-1-5
	19 E 612-10-1-6
	19 F 612-10-1-7
	19 G 612-10-3-2
	19 H 612-10-3-3
	19 I 612-10-3-4
	19 J 612-10-3-5
	19 K 612-10-3-6
	19 L 612-10-7-1
	19 M 612-10-7-2
	19 N 612-10-7-3
	19 O 612-10-7-21
	19 P 612-10-7-21.1
	19 Q 612-10-7-24.1
	19 R 612-10-7-24.2
	19 S 612-10-7-24.3
	19 T 612-10-7-25.1
	19 U 612-10-7-31
	19 V 612-10-7-50
	19 W 612-10-7-51
	19 X 612-10-7-87
	19 Y 612-10-7-98
	19 Z 612-10-7-130
	20 A 612-10-7-142
	20 B 612-10-7-149
	20 C 612-10-7-150
	20 D 612-10-7-152
	20 E 612-10-7-158
	20 F 612-10-7-161
	20 G 612-10-7-162
	20 H 612-10-7-183
	20 I 612-10-7-184
	20 J 612-10-7-199
	20 K 612-10-7-201
	20 L 612-10-7-203
	20 M 612-10-7-205
	20 N 612-10-7-206
	20 O 612-10-7-216
	20 P 612-10-7-245
	20 Q 612-10-9-17
	20 R 612-10-11-7
	20 S 612-15-1-3
	20 T 612-15-5-2
	20 U 612-20-3-5
	20 V 612-25-2-5
	20 W 612-25-4-TOC
	20 X 612-25-4-1
	20 Y 612-25-4-14
	20 Z 612-25-4-27
	21 A 612-25-4-52
	21 B 612-25-4-53
	21 C 612-25-4-54
	21 D 612-25-4-55
	21 E 612-25-4-57
	21 F 612-25-4-58
	21 G 612-25-4-59
	21 H 612-25-4-60
	21 I 612-25-4-61
	21 J 612-25-4-62
	21 K 612-25-4-72
	21 L 612-25-4-73
	21 M 612-25-6-1
	21 N 612-25-6-2 1
	21 O 612-25-6-3
	21 P 612-25-6-15
	21 Q 612-25-6-18
	21 R 612-25-6-21
	21 S 612-25-6-22
	21 T DRS-1-13-1
	21 U DRS-3-3-16
	21 V DRS-3-3-20
	21 W DRS-3-3-95
	21 X DRS-3-3-101
	21 Y DRS-3-3-110
	21 Z DRS-3-3-112
	22 A DRS-3-9-8
	22 B DRS-3-9-80



